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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Concord New Energy Group Limited (“the Group” or
“Group”), | would like to present to the Shareholders the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018. For
the year ended 31 December 2018 (“the Year”), the Group
generated a revenue of RMB1,414,070,000, and realised
a profit of RMB502,406,000, representing an increase of
151.16% as compared with the corresponding period last
year. The basic earnings per share was RMB5.88 cents. As
at 31 December 2018, net assets of the Group reached
RMB5,546,739,000 and its net assets per share was
RMBO.65.

2018 was a year of rapid growth for the Group.

During the Year, the results of the Group after its
strategic transformation was remarkable, with accelerated
development of its main power generation business. In
2018, the Group’s attributable power generation was
3,635.77 million kWh, representing an increase of 48.55%
over last year. In particular, the power generation of the
Group’s wholly-owned and holding wind power plants
represented an increase of 138.17% over the previous year.
The proportion of revenue from power generation business

to the Group’s revenue increased significantly to 88.48%.

During the Year, the Group continued to optimise the
structure of its power generation assets and steadily
implement the construction of its projects. During the Year,
the total installed capacity of newly commissioned wind
power and solar power plants of the Group was 471TMW,
all of which are wholly-owned by the Group. In particular,
470MW installed capacity belongs to wind power plants
located in southern regions with no power curtailment. As
at the end of the Year, the installed capacity attributable
to the Group was 2,277MW, with installed capacity of
its wholly-owned and holding power plants reaching
1,611TMW, representing 70.75% of the total installed
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capacity. The installed capacity of wind power plants
accounted for 86.21% of the total capacity attributable to
the Group. The asset structure of the Group was improved

with further enhancement of its quality of assets.

During the Year, the Group insisted on the strategy
to lower the Levelized Cost Of Electricity (“"LCOE"). In
particular, we actively tracked and timely applied new
technologies, new wind turbine types, and new processes in
the construction of the Group’s invested projects and built
high-quality, high-efficiency power plants at low costs. The
efficiencies of newly installed power plants are significantly
higher than those of the operating power plants located in
the same area. We also promoted the application of energy
internet of things (loT) and construction of regional control
centers in the production of power plants, implemented
refined management and minimized required manpower,
thus reducing the cost of power generation. The application
of POWER" system has improved the level of operation and
maintenance, and increased equipment availability and
power generation output. The newly commissioned power
plants of the Group in 2018 have significantly reduced the
LCOE, and so did the established power plants.

During the Year, the Group achieved satisfactory results
in its new business, and in the area of energy internet
of things business, it actively launched the development
and pilot run of POWER3.0, intelligent inspection system
("Yixun"”) and Enterprise Asset Management strengthening
the functions and applications of big data, as well as
building the Group’s platform of “intelligent operation
and maintenance”. As at the end of the Year, POWER*
system has been serving power plants up to a total of 5GW
capacity. In the area of financial leasing, energy storage,
micro-grids and distribution networks, we have achieved

remarkable progress.
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After years of hard work, the Group’s power generation
business has become the core supporting business segment
of the Group, contributing to the Group with better asset
quality, strengthened comprehensive capability and ample

development potentials.

In 2018, the renewable industry in the PRC has already
entered the era of grid parity in advance under the
backdrop of various policies of the industry issued in the
PRC. With the effective easing of the situation of national
power curtailment, the continuous lowering of power
generation costs of renewable energy, the general trend
of closing coal-fired power plants as a result of the reform
in supply-side of energy. Particularly, it is the unswerving
commitment to the control of environmental pollution of
the Chinese government that has shown us the enormous

development potentials in this industry.

In 2019, the Group will:

1. Focus on the main business of power generation,
accelerate the construction of the Group’s existing
projects with the advantage of high electricity price
and high efficiency to maintain the growing trend of

the Group.

2. Continue to strengthen the management of safety
in power plants’ production and uplift the economic

efficiencies of power plants.

3.  Continue to pursue the principle of the lowest
“LCOE", focus on optimizing design, innovative
applications and up-lifting of the income of the
newly installed power plants, to promote intelligent
operation and maintenance of power plants and to
increase the income of commissioned power plants
through technology transformation and application of
the “POWER™ system.
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4. Continue to step up the efforts in the area of energy
internet of things, continue to promote product
development and application of “POWER™ system;
promote intelligent operation and maintenance of
power plants through high-tech measures such as
energy internet of things, big data analysis, artificial
intelligence, etc., and provide energy supply,

comprehensive energy management and other

derivative services to distributive photovoltaic and
poverty alleviation power stations as well as users in

the area of energy storage.

5. Continue to nurture new businesses, develop
and construct a number of projects on the power
generation supply-side as well as the user-side; and
explore the synergetic development of the Group's
energy storage, operation and maintenance as well
as energy internet driven by the financial leasing

business.

It is expected that the Group’s competitiveness will further

improve in the coming year of hard work.

After years of accumulated efforts, the Group has
accumulated rich experience in project development,
construction, operation and maintenance, and has trained
a team of high quality and dedicated talents. That is, the
Group is in possession of strong development resources.
Looking forward to the future, the whole staff of the Group
will be able to adapt to the era of competitive bidding,
seize the development opportunities and achieve a quantum
leap of the Group with the courage and spirit as if we are

in a startup business.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2018, the global economy continued with a trend
of moderate growth with slowing momentum. There
has been obvious divergence in the growth trends
and monetary policies of major economies. Only the
performance of the U.S. economy has exceeded the
market’s expectation. Facing a complex and grim
external environment, China’s economic continued to
remain generally stable, and develop with steady overall
stability and progress. Statistics from the National
Bureau of Statistics showed that the GDP for the whole
year of 2018 exceeded RMBIO trillion for the first time
and representing a year-on-year increase of 6.6%.

The efficiency of China’s energy industry improved
significantly, further consolidating and developing
the positive momentum of improving quality
while maintaining stability. China’s total electricity
consumption for 2018 was 6.8449 trillion kWh,
representing a year-on-year growth of 8.5%, 1.9
percentage points higher the growth of last year.
The clean energy industry expanded steadily, and
the installed wind power and photovoltaic power
generation capacity continued to maintain a stable
growth. According to the statistics from the National
Energy Administration of the PRC (the “NEA”), as of
the end of 2018, the China’s installed wind power
and photovoltaic power generation capacity had
reached 360GW, accounting for 18.9% of the total
installed power generation capacity. Wind power
and photovoltaic power generated 543.5 billion kWh
of electricity throughout the year, accounting for
approximately 8% of the total power generation. The
newly installed grid-connected wind power capacity
was 20.59GW, and the accumulated grid-connected
capacity had reached 184GW by the end of December,
representing a year-on-year increase of 12%. The newly
installed photovoltaic power generation capacity was
44.26GW, of which, newly installed photovoltaic power
generation capacity from centralised photovoltaic
power plants was 23.30GW, while that of distributed
photovoltaic power plants was 20.96GW. By the end
of December, the national installed photovoltaic power
generation capacity had reached 174GW, representing
a year-on-year increase of 34%.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the operating environment of

renewable energy in China displayed the following

characteristics:

(1)

Changes in Macro Policies Having a Far-
Reaching Impact on the Renewable Energy
Industry

In 2018, there was further deepening of the
supply-side structural reform in the energy
industry. With further improvements in
renewable energy planning and the system of
industrial policies, positive progress was made in
the reform of power system. Various industrial
policies were promulgated. The government
expedited the progress and implementation
of competitive bidding and grid-parity. The
promulgation of the 518 Policy (Guo Neng
Fa Xin Neng [2018] No. 47) clearly indicated
that, for the provinces (autonomous regions
and municipalities directly under the Central
Government) that had not issued their 2018
annual wind power construction plans, their
projects including new addition of centralised
onshore wind power projects and offshore wind
power projects without confirmed investors,
must be subject to competitive bidding for the
allocation of resources and establishment of on-
grid tariffs. The promulgation of the 531 Policy
(Fa Gai Neng Yuan [2018] No. 823) indicated
that there would be no arrangement for the
construction quota of ordinary photovoltaic
power stations. In addition, the market-trading
mechanism for electricity continued to improve
with accelerated progress in market-trading.
Meanwhile, the government cleaned up a
large number of planned but not commenced
projects at the end of the year to make room

for subsequent development. The government
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(1

Changes in Macro Policies Having a Far-
Reaching Impact on the Renewable Energy
Industry (CONTINUED)

sought comments on the quota system
three times during the Year and accelerated
the implementation of the quota system,
encouraged to develop distributed wind power
and photovoltaic power that are directly supplied
to users, and encouraged power generation
enterprises to participate independently
and voluntarily in power generation trading
according to the Basic Rules for Intermediate
and Long Term Electricity Transactions (& 7
hREZ S EAKREA)) on the basis that they
could ensure the safety of power generation and
consumption in their operations. In addition,
the government vigorously promoted the
development of offshore wind power, energy
storage and market-based mechanisms for grid
ancillary services, leading not only to a new
growth driver for the industry, but also the
formulation of a plan in the consumption of
clean energy. This has significantly increased
the share of renewable energy in power
consumption and prompted a comprehensive
development of the renewable energy sector.
With constant improvement of renewable energy
policies in 2018, this shift in policy orientation
implicates that the development of the industry
has already entered the era of competitive

bidding and grid parity.
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l. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(2)

With Wind Power and Photovoltaic Power
Curtailment Relieved, the Trend of Clean
Energy Consumption Remaining Positive

In March 2018, the NEA of China issued the
“Notice on the Results of Monitoring and Early
Warning of Wind Power Investments in 2018”
2018 FERERELERBELRNBA)),
which indicated that three provinces including
Gansu, Xinjiang (including the corps) and lJilin
were red alert regions, and other three provinces
including Inner Mongolia, Heilongjiang and
Ningxia had removed red alert.

In order to facilitate the efforts to make up the
weak points of infrastructure, and to take the
advantages of the key power grid projects in
optimization of the investment structure and
the consumption of clean energy and precise
poverty alleviation, in September 2018, the
NEA published the “Notice on Accelerating
the Planning and Construction of a Number
of Key Projects for Power Transmission and
Transformation” (CEAR IR IEHE — S EEEH
TRBEZR TIEREAN)). The Notice proposed
to accelerate the construction of 9 key projects
including the Qinghai-Henan ultra-high voltage
DC project and total of 5 ultra-high voltage DC
transmission lines and 7 ultra-high voltage AC
transmission lines were planned, to facilitate the
consumption of clean energy in the northwest
and southwest regions.

According to the statistics from the NEA, in
2018, the national wind power curtailment rate
was 7%, representing a year on year drop of
5 percentage points, achieving the lowering of
both wind power curtailment volume as well as
wind power curtailment rate. The photovoltaic
power curtailment rate was 3%, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 2.8 percentage points,
achieving the lowering of both photovoltaic
curtailment volume as well as photovoltaic
curtailment rate. In 2018, the national average
utilization hours of wind power reached 2,095
hours, representing a year-on-year increase of
147 hours, and the national average utilization
hours of photovoltaic power reached 1,115
hours, representing a year-on-year increase of
37 hours. In general, the trend of clean energy
consumption remained positive.
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(3)

Accelerated Advancements in Renewable
Energy Technology with Rapid Reduction in
Costs

During the Year, renewable energy technology
continued its rapid development and the
efficiency of renewable energy facilities
continued to increase. In respect of wind
power, the wind turbines were with longer
blades, higher turbine towers and wind energy
conversion efficiency, and a better develop ability
of low-wind speed resources as well as higher
quality and operating stability. In respect of solar
power generation, the conversion efficiency of
battery modules has been constantly enhancing.
Meanwhile, solar thermal power generation
and energy storage technology have also been
improving, which increase the developable wind
and solar resources. Thanks to the advance of
technology and market competition, the price
of wind turbines and solar power modules have
both decreased as compared with the same

period in the previous year.

Advancements in renewable energy power
generation technology constantly drove down
the Levelized Cost Of Electricity (“LCOE") and
enhanced the competitiveness of renewable
energy commercialisation and operations. In the
imminent age of grid parity, the competitive
advantage of renewable energy has become

most obvious.
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(4)

Continuing Promotion of Power System
Reform

In 2018, the policies on the construction of
the electricity market continued to improve,
encouraging power grid enterprises to
participate in inter-province and inter-region
power trading, prompting various types of
power generation enterprises to enter the
market, and opening the market for eligible
users. With further optimization of the power
trading mechanism in the market, power trading
continued to increase in terms of scale and
proportion. Meanwhile, in 2018, the NDRC,
the NEA and other departments issued a series
of policies on incremental power distribution
reforms, which basically established the policy
system of incremental power distribution reform
and further expanded the channels for social
capital to enter into the power grids, creating
a new business model for the industry. The
promotion of the “distributed projects in close
proximity to users” policy was expected to be
a new highlight of the power system reform,
which would not only contribute to the further
development of the new energy industry and
accelerate the achievement of zero subsidy,
but also facilitate the continued promotion
of market-based power trading and the
implementation of the reform’s original intention
of “controlling the industry but allowing

competitions at both ends”.
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(5)

14

Tight Financing for Renewable Energy
Industry, Policy Support from Government
Increased

In 2018, China’s monetary policy remained
sound and neutral. Though factors such as
financial deleveraging and Sino-U.S. trade
friction increased the difficulty in financing
renewable energy. While there was a slight
increase in financing costs, the borrowing
interest rates of financial institutions were
generally stable. The central bank announced
four times targeted reserve requirement ratio
(RRR) cut during the Year, and supported
financial institutions to expand their credit
facilities to small and micro enterprises, private
enterprises and innovative enterprises through
measures such as increased refinancing,
increased rediscount quotas and flexible credit

policies.
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The Group achieved remarkable results in its strategic
transformation. Revenue and profit of its power
generation business segment increased significantly.
The Group made correct judgments of the time and
situation, accurately set its development direction
and grasp the market opportunities. On the one
hand, it strengthened its efforts in the development
and construction of wind power projects in regions
where power curtailment was not implemented
and increased the income quality of incremental
assets through the investment in a number of power
generation plants which enjoyed high electricity prices
in areas with no power curtailment, as well as through
the aggressive application of new technologies and
new wind turbine types. On the other hand, it utilised
the intelligent operation technology of Internet of
Things to reduce the cost of power generation, and
properly managed its existing assets, thus achieving
remarkable increases in power generation and profit.
Meanwhile, businesses related to the renewable
energy industry such as the Energy Internet of Things,
distributed wind power, distributed photovoltaic
power, energy storage and financial leasing achieved
remarkable expansion.

In 2018, the Group achieved a total income of
RMB1,414,070,000 (2017: RMB1,035,967,000), an
increase of 36.50% over the same period of the
previous year; profit attributable to equity holders
of the Group amounted to RMB502,406,000
(2017: RMB200,036,000), increased by 151.16% as
compared with the same period in the previous year.
The basic earnings per share were RMB5.88 cents
(2017: RMB2.33 cents); and the fully diluted earnings
per share were RMB5.87 cents (2017: RMB2.33 cents).
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As at the end of the Year, the net assets of the Group
amounted to RMB5,546,739,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB5,255,146,000) and its net assets per share was
RMBO0.65 (2017: RMBO0.61).

(1)

16

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance
and Significant Increase in Asset Quality

Satisfactory Development of the
Business of Power Generation;
Significant Growth in Wind Power

Generation

In 2018, power generation output
attributable to the Group increased
significantly, an increase of 48.55% over
the previous year. The Group’s wholly-
owned power plants showed significant
increase of 88.91% in power generation
compared to the previous year. During
the Year, the Group’s share of power
generation from its jointly-owned power
plants grew by 8.74% over the previous
year, benefiting from continuing reduced
curtailment in the northern regions and

improved operating efficiency.
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Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance

and Significant Increase in Asset Quality

(CONTINUED)

i Satisfactory Development of the

Main Business of Power Generation;

Significant Growth in Wind Power
Generation (CONTINUED)

(—) ERMESERER BEEENIE
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Total Attributable Power Generation Output (GWh)

BEARER(ERK)

The Group's Wholly-owned Power

The Group's Invested Power Plants Plants
SERERENER 2o BEER
Business
Segments and Change Change
Regions EBRARES 2018 2017 rate 2018 2017 rate
2018 2017 #lE 2018 F 2017 #lE
Wind Power REREE
Generation 3,187.91 1,997.17 59.62% 1,865.43 783.22 138.17%
Including: He:
Northeastern FlE
China 338.94 269.73 25.66% — — —
Northern China  #Eib[@1 438.55 430.02 1.98% — — —
Northwestern fipldEych
China 141.05 126.29 11.69% — — —
Eastern China ZREY 567.37 457 47 24.02% 323.37 217.90 48.40%
Central Southern A& 13
China 1,507.52 563.59 167.49% 1,347.59 415.26 224.52%
Southwestern AR,
China 194.47 150.06 29.59% 194.47 150.06 29.59%
Photovoltaic XRBER
Power
Generation 447.86 450.29 -0.54% 430.54 432,16 -0.37%
Including: He:
Northeastern BitRf
China 0.01 — — 0.01 — —
Northern China  ZEJt[&H 43.32 25.64 68.95% 31.04 12.57 146.94%
Northwestern it e
China 12.51 63.89 -80.42% 12.51 63.89 -80.42%
Eastern China EZREY, 59.44 59.31 0.22% 54.40 54.26 0.26%
Southwestern  FIEES
China 311.55 285.59 9.09% 311.55 285.59 9.09%
Overseas BINEL
Regions 21.04 15.85 32.74% 21.04 15.85 32.74%
Total a3t 3,635.77 2,447.46 48.55% 2,295.97 1,215.38 88.91%
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(1

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance

and Significant Increase in Asset Quality
(CONTINUED)

ii.

Significant Increase in Utilization
Hours, Further Reduction in Curtailment
Rates

In 2018, the weighted average utilization
hours of the wind power plants invested
by the Group have increased significantly
to 2,148 hours, higher than the national
average of 2,095 hours, of which the
weighted average utilization hours of
wholly-owned wind power plants were
2,288 hours. The weighted average
utilization hours of photovoltaic power
plants invested by the Group were 1,379
hours, which was also higher than the
national average of 1,115 hours, whereas
that of the Group’'s wholly-owned
photovoltaic power plants were 1,356
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R BEIR E52,148
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hours.
Weighted Average Utilization Hours of Power Plants (Hour)
ERMELIAANME(NE)
The Group's Invested The Group’s Wholly-owned
Power Plants Power Plants
SEBERENER Ht BEEH
Business Change Change
Segments 2018 2017 rate 2018 2017 rate
2018 F 2017 Bl® 2018 5 2017 5 Bl®
Average
Utilization
Hours of Wind
Power 2,148 1,921 11.82% 2,288 2,072 10.42%
Average
Utilization
Hours of
Photovoltaic
Power 1,379 1,367 0.88% 1,356 1,313 3.27%
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(1

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance
and Significant Increase in Asset Quality
(CONTINUED)

ii.

Significant Increase in Utilization
Hours, Further Reduction in Curtailment
Rates (CONTINUED)

Benefiting from the significant
improvement in the nationwide grid
curtailment and the increase of high-
quality wind power projects in southern
China areas with no power curtailment,
the operating efficiency of the Group
showed strong improvement for the Year.
The average wind power curtailment
rate of the wind power plants invested
by the Group was 4.03%, decreasing
significantly as compared to the same
period of previous year and was lower than
the level of national average. The wind
power curtailment rate of wholly-owned
power plants was only 0.06%. The average
photovoltaic power curtailment rate of
the photovoltaic power plants invested
by the Group was 12.35%. The increase
in the curtailment rate is mainly due to
the curtailment rate increase of the Tibet
photovoltaic power plant.

—XBEREE)
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Wind and Photovoltaic Power Curtailment Rates of Power Plants (%)

ERERELE (%)
The Group’s Wholly-owned
The Group's Invested Power Plants Power Plants
SERERENER H  BEEH
Business Change Change
Segments BRI 2018 2017 rate 2018 2017 rate
2018 %F 20175 B 2018 %F 2017 % B
Wind Power EEZEE
Curtailment
Rate 4.03% 9.10% -5.07% 0.06% 0.19% -0.13%
Photovoltaic FRERE
Power
Curtailment
Rate 12.35% 7.49% 4.86% 13.60% 831% 5.29%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

—XBEREE)

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance (—) ERNESERLR  EELEEKXIEF
and Significant Increase in Asset Quality BE(E)

(CONTINUED)

ii. Significant Increase in Utilization 2y FE)EEHAEEHS RE

Hours, Further Reduction in Curtailment
Rates (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group implemented
centralised monitoring and control and
smart energy management through the
construction of 4 centralised monitoring
and control centres in Hunan, Hubei,
Anhui and Tibet, the application of the
“POWER™" system and development of
the enterprise asset management (“EAM")
system. The level of intelligent inspection
and maintenance grew rapidly, and the
availability of the wind turbines in the
Group’s invested wind power plants
increased effectively, reaching 97.78%,
of which the availability of the wind
turbines in its wholly-owned wind power
plants was 98.30%. The availability of the
photovoltaic power plants invested by the
Group was 99.18% whereas that of the
Group’s wholly-owned photovoltaic power
plants was 99.03%.

LBl —2 T B ()

AFEE - SEBBRYE -
it 2R ARE4EERF
D H) R - POWER' & %1 JE
AREEEREZF(EAM)H
BR 2EMESEEFRLR
BERERERE  Teetke
KEDLRRA EBERE
HERENREmRAELA
AFMAERESRS EZ
97.78% + Hrh - BEREEM
W48 P A A % % 98.30% ©
EEEERFBRENRE
B A A A E99.18% + H
TEEXKREBRAFAER
99.03% °

Availability of Wind Turbines and Photovoltaic Power Plants (%)

ERATHNAR  KREMTNAR (%)

The Group's Invested Power Plants

SESARENER

The Group's Wholly-owned
Power Plants

Hi BEEH

Business Change
Segments EBRR 2018 2017 rate
2018 2017 Bie®

Change
2018 2017 rate
20185 2017 5 =

Availability of ~ EE 4

Wind Turbines ]| % 97.78% 97.19% 0.59% 98.30% 98.53% -0.23%
Availability of PV ¢ IR EH
Power Plants BriEES 99.18% 98.73% 0.45% 99.03% 98.50% 0.53%
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(1

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance

and Significant Increase in Asset Quality
(CONTINUED)

iii.

Average Feed-in Tariffs of Wind Power
Maintained at Relatively High Levels;
Proportion of Traded Power Volume of
Wholly-owned Projects Decreased

In 2018, under the combined impact of
growth in installed capacity in the wholly-
owned power plants and the declined
tariffs for power transactions, the weighted
average feed-in tariff of wind power
plants invested by the Group increased to
RMBO0.5595/kWh (including VAT) (the same
period of 2017: RMB0.5582/kWh). For
photovoltaic power plants, the weighted
average feed-in tariff was RMB0.9446/kWh
(including VAT) (the same period of 2017:
RMB0.9698/kWh). The weighted average
feed-in tariff of wind power plants wholly-
owned by the Group was RMB0.5948/kWh
(including VAT) (the same period of 2017:
RMB0.5830/kWh). For wholly-owned wind
power plants, the weighted average tariff
(exclusive of subsidies) was RMB0.3910/
kWh. For wholly-owned photovoltaic power
plants, the weighted average feed-in tariff
was RMB0.9073/kWh (including VAT) (the
same period of 2017: RMB0.9357/kWh).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance

and Significant Increase in Asset Quality
(CONTINUED)

iii.

Average Feed-in Tariffs of Wind Power
Maintained at Relatively High Levels;
Proportion of Traded Power Volume
of Wholly-owned Projects Decreased
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the traded power volume
of the Group’'s wholly-owned power
plants amounted to 256.21 million kWh,
accounting for 11.16% (the same period
of 2017: 171.29 million kWh, accounting
for 14.09%). Traded wind power volume
reached 121.55 million kWh, accounting
for 6.52% of wholly-owned wind power
generation (the same period of 2017:
63.74 million kWh, accounting for 8.14%)
and average reduction in wind power
tariffs over the approved benchmark feed-
in tariff was RMB0.0145/kWh) (the same
period of 2017: reduction of RMB0.0275/
kWh). Traded photovoltaic power volume
134.66 million kWh,
accounting for 31.28% of the wholly-

amounted to

owned photovoltaic power generation
(the same period of 2017: 107.55 million
kWh, accounting for 24.89%) and average
reduction in photovoltaic power tariffs over
the approved benchmark feed-in tariff was
RMBO0.0837/kWh (the same period of 2017:
reduction of RMB0.0790/kWh).
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(1

Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance

and Significant Increase in Asset Quality
(CONTINUED)

iv.

Significant Increase in Income and
Profit of Wholly-owned Power Plants;
Continuous Improvement on Return of

Jointly-owned Power Plants

In 2018, the Group’s wholly-owned
power plants achieved a total income of
RMB1,251,109,000, an increase of 74.36%
over the same period of the previous year,
accounting for 88.48% of the Group's
revenue (2017: 69.27%).

During the Year, the Group’s wholly-
owned power plants achieved a total
net profit from power generation of
RMB511,276,000, and the Group shared
net profits totalling RMB149,619,000 from
its associates and joint ventures.

—XBEREE)

(—) ERMESERER BEEENIE
re(#E)

4 BHEEBHUARFEAEE
R EHEEMMAEBEN
>

=

20184 + SEIBEEHLER
WA R 1,251,109,000 7T
B F—FEHRETLI36% 1§
£ B A #88.48% (2017
£ :69.27%) °

AEE SEBEERL
ERBEBFAMNEARKE
511,276,0007C £ @5 =
e AR REEDEFAE

AE# 149,619,000 7T °

23



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1) Rapid Growth in Power Plant Performance
and Significant Increase in Asset Quality
(CONTINUED)

iv. Significant Increase in Income and
Profit of Wholly-owned Power Plants;

— - REOEE)
(—) ERMESERER BEEENIE
re(#E)

4 BHEEBHUARFEAEE
R EHEBEHNmBEX

Continuous Improvement on Return

of Jointly-owned Power Plants

(CONTINUED)

(&)

Revenue and Net Profit of Power Plants (RMB)
ERBRARBFE(ARYE )

2018 2017 | Change rate
2018 % 2017 5§ xR
Revenues of BEERKRA
Wholly-owned
Power Plants 1,251,109,000 717,548,000 74.36%
Including: Hr
Wind Power B E 906,206,000 366,295,000 147.40%
Photovoltaic Power  J¢{Kk 344,903,000 351,253,000 -1.81%
Net Profit of BEERFFNE
Wholly-owned
Power Plants 511,276,000 233,871,000 118.61%
Including: Hr
Wind Power =S 419,089,000 145,630,000 187.78%
Photovoltaic Power DAATN 92,187,000 88,241,000 4.47%
Net Profit of EHEER
Jointly-owned T FIE
Power Plants 149,619,000 127,186,000 17.64%
Including: Hr
Wind Power EE 140,654,000 121,222,000 16.03%
Photovoltaic Power ¥k 8,965,000 5,964,000 50.32%
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(2)

Investment and Construction of Power

Plants

In 2018, the construction of the Group’'s
projects proceeded steadily. The invested
power plants were all high-quality wind power
plants in regions with no power curtailment in
southern China. The Group’s installed capacity
continuously increased. During the Year, the
Group reduced its LCOE and increased the power
generation efficiency by aggressively promoting
the use of new technologies, adopting the latest
wind turbines, and at the same time optimising
designs and strengthening the management
of project construction progress, whereby
the Group effectively reduced the overall
construction cost of projects, greatly increased
the amount of power generation, significantly
reducing LCOE, and tremendously increased the
competitiveness of power plants.

i Continued Increase in Installed Capacity
of Power Plants; Proportion of Wholly-
owned Power Plants Increased Over the
Years

During the Year, the total installed capacity
of the Group’s invested power plants under
construction was 1,068MW (the same
period of 2017: 1,006MW), all of which
were wholly-owned projects. Among them,
6 were continued construction projects,
with an installed capacity of 340MW, 15
new construction projects were started
with an installed capacity of 728MW.

—XBEREE)

() SmRERRER

2018 EHIEE @RIBELH
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(2)

26

Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

Continued Increase in Installed Capacity
of Power Plants; Proportion of Wholly-
owned Power Plants Increased Over the
Years (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group newly added
10 power plants into operation with a total
installed capacity of 471MW (the same
period of 2017: 439MW), all of which were
wholly-owned projects. Among which, 9
were wind power plants with an installed
capacity of 470MW and 1 was distributed
photovoltaic power plant with an installed
capacity of TMW.,

As at the end of the Year, the Group
owned shares in 74 grid-connected wind
power and photovoltaic power plants with
a total installed capacity of 3,189MW (the
same period of 2017: 2,718MW) and an
attributable installed capacity of 2,277MW.
Among them, 55 were wind power plants
with an installed capacity of 2,857MW
(the same period of 2017: 2,387MW) and
an attributable capacity of 1,963MW,
and 19 were photovoltaic power plants
with an installed capacity of 332MW (the
same period of 2017: 331TMW) and an
attributable installed capacity of 314MW.

As at the end of the Year, the Group had
43 wholly-owned grid-connected wind
power and photovoltaic power plants with
a total installed capacity of 1,61T1TMW.
Among which, 26 were wind power plants
with an installed capacity of 1,308MW,
and 17 were photovoltaic power plants
with an installed capacity of 303MW.

—XBEREE)
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NHEEH: BEERAE
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fio H oA B E BROM
BN E4T0MW 0 D e =
KAREBIB RERE
TMW ¢

HEAFR AEEEA
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(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

i Continued Increase in Installed Capacity
of Power Plants; Proportion of Wholly-
owned Power Plants Increased Over the
Years (CONTINUED)

—XBEREE)

(=) ERRERER(E)

Attributable Installed Capacity (MW)

1

THERBEALR &
BEMIGHLZFFEA(E)

REEHRE (MW)
The Group's Invested Power Plants The Group's Wholly-owned Power Plants
EERERENER Hi: BEER

Business Segments Change Change

and Regions ~ EXRAREH 2018 2017 rate 2018 2017 rate

2018% 2017% gLz 20185 2017% gLz

Installed Wind ~ EEZHAE

Power Capacity 1,963 1,493 31.48% 1,308 838 56.09%
Including: A
Northeastern China Bt/ 1] 162 162 0.00% - - -
Northern China R 186 186 0.00% — — —
Northwestern China it [& & 103 103 0.00% . - -
Eastern China £REH 379 248 52.82% 261 130 100.77%
Central Southern MRS

China 1,053 74 47.48% 967 628 53.98%
Southwestern China FEE 80 80 0.00% 80 80 0.00%
Installed EREREE

Photovoltaic

Power Capacity 314 313 0.32% 303 302 0.33%
Including; Hep
Northeastern China Rt &l 1 - - 1 - -
Northern China EfEY 26 26 0.00% 20 20 0.00%
Northwestern China  FitE1 9 9 0.00% 9 9 0.00%
Eastern China ZEE 44 44 0.00% 40 40 0.00%
Southwestern China FEE 215 215 0.00% 215 215 0.00%
Overseas Regions ~ JMEST 18 18 0.00% 18 18 0.00%
Total At 221 1,806 26.08% 1,611 1,140 1.32%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

ii.

Adjusting National Development
Deployment, Exploring Distributed
Wind Power, Distributed Photovoltaic
Power and Energy Storage Businesses

During the Year, in the 2018 Wind Power
Development and Construction Plan”
("2018 FRERMEEFZ T Z ") issued by the
provincial energy bureaus, the Group had
a total of 5 wind power projects (a total of
400MW) listed in the annual development
and construction plan, all of which were
located in regions with good grid access
conditions and without power curtailment.
In 2018, the Group had 4 new approved
wind power projects (a total of 349MW). In
addition, the Group has 4 new approved/
registered photovoltaic projects (a total of
55.4MW).

Currently, the scale of total wind power
projects of the Group which are in
construction but not yet in operation
reached 833MW, and the scale of the
projects which have been approved but
not yet commenced reached 598MW.
During the Year, the Group newly
signed contracts for wind resource of
4,078MW and photovoltaic resource
of 137MW. The Group closely follows
the development of renewable energy
technologies, utilises advanced equipment
such as high anemometer towers and laser
anemometers to continuously track and
evaluate the wind resources it holds, and
selects wind and photovoltaic resources
with the best economic benefits under
the current technology and cost levels to
participate in the competitive biddings
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

ii.

iii.

Adjusting National Development
Deployment, Exploring Distributed
Wind Power, Distributed Photovoltaic
Power and Energy Storage Businesses
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group strengthened
its development efforts in distributed wind
power and photovoltaic power projects,
and has put into operation the nation’s
first high-altitude echelon-use energy
storage project on the power generation
side in Tibet. The Group also actively
developed energy storage projects on the
power generation side and user side.

Expanding Financing Channels,
Consolidating Capital Strength,
Guaranteeing Project Construction

During the Year, the Group optimized its
capital allocation and further expanded its
financing channels by successfully issuing
green corporate bonds and convertible
loan. During the year, the total external
borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB3,824,905,500,
including the disbursement of a convertible
loan of HK$233,800,000 by the Group to
International Finance Corporation (“IFC"),
the issuance of green bonds of US$0.2
billion in Hong Kong and the entering into
of a convertible loan agreement of US$50

million with the Goldman Sachs Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

iii.

Expanding Financing Channels,
Consolidating Capital Strength,
Guaranteeing Project Construction
(CONTINUED)

On 28 December 2017, the Company
entered into the agreement for the
convertible loan of HK$233,800,000
with IFC (the "IFC Convertible Loan”).
On 23 May 2018, the Group issued the
IFC Convertible Loan which consists
of three tranches: (i) Tranche | being
HK$93,480,000; and (ii) Tranche Il being
HK$70,110,000; and (iii) Tranche Il being
HK$70,210,000. IFC has the right to
convert all or any part of the outstanding
amount of the IFC Convertible Loan into
the ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of (i) HK$0.5 per Share
(for Tranche 1); (ii) HK$0.55 per Share (for
Tranche 11); and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share (for
Tranche IllI) (subject to the adjustments
as set out in the agreement for the IFC
Convertible Loan (the “IFC Convertible
Loan Agreement”)). The closing price per
Share is HK$0.34 on the date of the IFC
Convertible Loan Agreement.

The IFC Convertible Loan is convertible
into approximately 431,449,393 Shares
(with nominal value of HK$4,314,493.93).
The net proceeds from the IFC Convertible
Loan, after deducting the commissions
and other estimated expenses payable,
amount to approximately HK$230,200,000
have mainly been used to finance the
development and construction of the
Group’'s new wind energy projects in
PRC. The net price to the Company
for each Share upon conversion of the
IFC Convertible Loan is approximately
HK$0.534.
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

iii.

Expanding Financing Channels,
Consolidating Capital Strength,
Guaranteeing Project Construction
(CONTINUED)

The Directors consider that the IFC
Convertible Loan will deepen the
cooperation between IFC and the Company
with IFC being a shareholder of the
Company (IFC has held 101,140,000 shares
of the Company, approximate 1.17% of
the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the IFC Convertible
Loan Agreement). In the event that IFC
converts all the IFC Convertible Loan, it
will become a substantial shareholder
of the Company. The Directors consider
that the IFC Convertible Loan will finance
the development and construction of the
Company'’s proposed wind energy projects
in PRC. Further, if the conversion right of
the IFC Convertible Loan is to be exercised,
the capital base of the Company shall be
strengthened.

On 13 December 2018 (as amended
and restated on 16 January 2019), the
Company entered into the agreement (a)
for the convertible loan of US$30,000,000
with Goldman Sachs (the “GS Convertible
Loan”) which consists of three tranches:
(i) Tranche | being US$15,000,000; and (ii)
Tranche Il being US$9,000,000; and (iii)
Tranche Il being US$9,000,000; and (b)
to grant to Goldman Sachs the option and
the right to advance the additional loan
of up to an aggregate principal amount of
US$20,000,000 to the Company (the “GS
Additional Loan”) which consists of three
tranches: (i) Tranche | being US$8,000,000;
and (ii) Tranche Il being US$6,000,000;
and (iii) Tranche Il being US$6,000,000.
Goldman Sachs and other lenders of the
GS Convertible Loan and the GS Additional
Loan have the right to convert all or any
part of the outstanding principal amount
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

iii.

Expanding Financing Channels,
Consolidating Capital Strength,
Guaranteeing Project Construction
(CONTINUED)

of their respective participation in the GS
Convertible Loan and the GS Additional
Loan into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of (i) HK$0.5 per
Share (for Tranche I); (ii) HK$0.55 per Share
(for Tranche 1I); and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share
(for Tranche Ill) (subject to the adjustments
as set out in the agreement for the GS
Convertible Loan (the “GS Convertible
Loan Agreement”)). The closing price per
Share is HK$0.305 on the date of the GS
Convertible Loan Agreement.

The GS Convertible Loan and the GS
Additional Loan are convertible into
approximately 720,650,000 Shares (with
nominal value of HK$7,206,500). The
net proceeds from the GS Convertible
Loan and the GS Additional Loan, after
deducting the commissions and other
estimated expenses payable, will amount
to approximately US$29,650,000 and
approximately US$19,770,000 respectively.
The GS Convertible Loan and the GS
Additional Loan have not been drawdown
as at the date of this annual report. As
disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 25 February 2019, the net proceeds
of approximately US$29,650,000 of the
GS Convertible Loan are expected to be
used: (i) as to approximately US$6 million
as working capital for the daily operations
of overseas offices during February 2019
to February 2020; (i) as to approximately
US$7.9 million for repaying interest of US$
bonds in or around July 2019; and (iii) as to
approximately US$15.75 million for funding
the capital investment for construction
of wind power plant in the PRC during
February 2019 to June 2019. The net
proceeds of approximately US$19,770,000
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

iii.

Expanding Financing Channels,
Consolidating Capital Strength,
Guaranteeing Project Construction
(CONTINUED)

of the GS Additional Loan are expected
to be used: (i) as to approximately US$15
million for funding the capital investment
for construction of solar power energy
projects in the United States during
June 2019 to March 2020; and (ii) as to
approximately US$4.77 million for funding
the capital investment for construction of
wind power plant in the PRC during June
2019 to March 2020. The net price to the
Company for each Share upon conversion
of the GS Convertible Loan and the GS
Additional Loan is approximately HK$0.536
and approximately HK$0.535 respectively.

Goldman Sachs’s interest in making an
investment into the Group reflects its
confidence in the Group’s business and
growth potential. The Directors are of
the view that the raising of funds by
the issue of the GS Convertible Loan
and the GS Additional Loan is fair and
reasonable having considered the recent
market conditions which represent an
opportunity for the Company to enhance
its working capital, strengthen its capital
base and financial position and broaden
the Shareholders base without immediate
dilution effect on the shareholding of
the existing Shareholders. The Directors
consider that the GS Convertible Loan
and the GS Additional Loan will finance
the development and construction of the
Company’s proposed wind energy projects
in the PRC. Further, if the conversion
right of the GS Convertible Loan and the
GS Additional Loan is to be exercised,
the capital base of the Company shall be
strengthened.
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1. BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(3) Other Businesses

While focusing on its core power generation
business, the Group also relied on its
investments in the renewable energy industry
to carry out some related business of renewable
energy industry chain based on its main power
generation business. In 2018, the Group made
some achievements in terms of aspects such as
Energy Internet of Things business, intelligent
operation and maintenance, power plant design
services, financial leasing as well as energy
storage and incremental distribution network.

i Research and Development of Energy
Internet of Things Technology

In 2018, the Group increased its investment
in the research and development of
its Energy Internet of Things business,
actively commenced the development and
trial operation of POWER3.0, intelligent
inspection system (“Yixun”) and enterprise
asset management (EAM) system, and
enhanced the functional application of
big data to build an “intelligent operation
and maintenance” platform for the
Group. Based on the regional operation
management, the Group adopted
“POWER™ + “Yixun" + “centralised
monitoring and control centres” + “ EAM”
mode through the online platform of
POWER" system, so as to achieve remote
centralised monitoring and control of
power plants, big data analysis and early
warning, remote intelligent diagnosis,
intelligent work order system and the
operation model of unattended power
plants with minimal human monitoring.
The Group implemented comprehensive
asset full lifecycle management, resulting
in significant improvement of operation
indicator performances of power plants
and effective reduction of LCOE of power
plants.

34
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(3)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

ii.

Research and Development of Energy
Internet of Things Technology
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group’s subsidiary
Beijing Power Concord Technology
Development Co., Limited (”“Power
Concord”) spared great efforts in
expanding external markets of new energy,
and won the bidding of photovoltaic
intelligent operation and maintenance
platform project of Astronergy and the
bidding of the Xiangtan Electric’s project
of intelligent remote monitoring centre
platform of wind power plant. As at the
end of the Year, the POWER" system
has served more than a total of 5GW of
renewable energy power plants, including
photovoltaic power plants with an installed
capacity of 2.9GW and wind power plants
with an installed capacity of 2.1GW.

Operation and Maintenance of Power
Plants

In 2018, the Group’s subsidiary Beijing
Century Concord Operation and
Maintenance Co., Ltd. (“Concord O&M")
won the title of “Top 10 Outstanding
Enterprises in Top 50 Chinese Wind
Power Industry in 2018” and continued to
obtain China’s High and New Technology
Enterprise Certificate successfully. During
the Year, by taking advantage of the
Group’s "POWER™ products, Concord
O&M gradually implemented a new energy
operation mode combining the online
“centralised monitoring and control, big
data analysis, intelligent diagnosis and early
warning and intelligent work order” with
offline “safe, professional and standardised
operation management, centralised
overhaul, professional inspection testing
and power plants with minimal human
monitoring”.

—XBEREE)

(=) HtbH(E)

1

BRI BRI R ()

KEE  AEEMBILRH
NHBarEERAR(E 7
wE DARAOMEINBHF R
M5 RIZEFEFRER LK
BBEHTZEE - PIZM
BEREHECRBEEAF
DFEZEHE - HERER
POWER'ZZ D EHEHE
FERHBBSGW M A BAAE
TRE - HAP R IKE RS
RE29GW  BEMEHT
22.1GW

EHETHE

2018%F - A EMEIL R
BEBEHRBRERMABRA
A EEs]) 552018
BEEES0RTEES D
¥R WRIMEERES
BIR(EHIEMEERE) -
RFEE - BEBEREKTIER
[POWER"] Em  BH E
BEIEREE. R8ES
e BeEPEEL Tl
BINMGETI#2EHEZ &L
EEER REEFRE -
sxnAk BUEAGB
e DABETFIHEEANT
BEREEE -

35



2018 F 8
& i 8e

REBERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

36

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

ii.

iii.

Operation and Maintenance of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

During the Year, Concord O&M had
undertaken a total of 91 wind power
and photovoltaic power plants’ overall
operation and maintenance and scheduled
inspection service contracts with a total
of 5GW, and signed 13 contracts in
areas such as preventive tests, technical
renovation and overhaul and spare parts
sales.

Project Consultancy and Design
Business

In 2018, the Group's subsidiary Concord
Power Consulting & Design (Beijing)
Corp., Ltd. (“Design Company”) actively
expanded its business areas, introduced
design services for plants such as energy
storage plants and distributed power
plants, and obtained the Grade B credit
rating of the power industry (thermal
power, hydropower, nuclear power and

new energy) consultation.

During the Year, the Design Company
had completed 228 wind (photovoltaic)
resource assessments and technical
advisory reports, 42 feasibility study
reports, 26 microsite selection reports,
12 preliminary designs, 15 construction

drawing designs and 11 record drawings.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(3)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

iv.

Financial Leasing Business

In 2018, the Group’s subsidiary Tianjin
Green Energy International Leasing Co.,
Ltd. (“Leasing Company”) strengthened
its competence build-up and recruited
professionals in the financial leasing
industry, gradually improving its
organizational structure. During the Year,
the Leasing Company actively commenced
its financial leasing business in the
renewable energy industry and successfully
invested in 5 external financial leasing,
demonstrating that the leasing business has
started to develop. Meanwhile, the Leasing
Company’s own financing capability has
further improved and has built excellent
cooperation relationships with a number of
banks and financial institutes.

Energy Storage and Incremental
Distribution Network Businesses

In 2018, the Group actively expanded
its energy storage business based on the
renewable energy industry chain and
constructed energy storage demonstration
projects for power generation side and
users side. In particular, the Group’s high-
altitude power storage project in Tibet,
the nation’s first high-altitude echelon-
use power storage project on the power
generation side, has been put into
operation. In the meantime, the Group
invested jointly with a number of investors
including Alfa Laval Group (“Alfa Laval”)
and Breakthrough Energy Ventures (“BEV")
in the Malta energy storage technology
development project, an incubation of
Google X Labs, in the United States.
Such technology can be widely applied to
various energy storage markets such as
grid peak load shifting, auxiliary services,
distributed energy resources and business
and industrial parks, which provides the
Group with a first-mover advantage in
the energy storage business sector and
technical support to quickly enter the
energy storage industry in the future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

Energy Storage and Incremental
Distribution Network Businesses
(CONTINUED)

The Group aggressively built up its team
of experts and trained up talents in
energy storage. It strengthened its own
capacity through construction and actively
participated in the formulation of industrial
standards and industrial conferences. At
the same time, the Group made efforts in
the construction and operation of energy
storage projects on the power generation
side, the development and promotion
of energy storage project on the user
side, as well as in the application of the
Group’s intelligent energy cloud platform,
thus laying the foundation for the Group
in mastering the components of energy
storage systems, the technology and
operation mode of energy storage and
gaining an advantage in the exploration
and development of the energy storage

business.
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(3) Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

V.

Energy Storage and Incremental
Distribution Network Businesses
(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group successfully
won the bidding of the Harbin
Comprehensive Bonded Zone incremental
distribution network project, which is
one of the third batch of demonstration
projects in the national power system
reform. At the same time, the grid
connection of the micro-grid demonstration
project in Lanzhou New Area Science and
Technology Innovation Park has also been
included in the pilot construction plan
for Gansu Province’s grid connection to
micro-grids. These two projects are major
developments of the Group in the area
of comprehensive energy services, and
will maximise the resource advantage of
the Group in the intelligent operation
and maintenance of Internet of Things
as well as in new energy applications
during the construction and operation of
later projects. The projects will become
the Group’s model projects in providing
comprehensive energy services as well as

intelligent operation and maintenance.

During the Year, other business segments
of the Group contributed RMB162,961,000
to the Group (2017: RMB318,419,000).
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In addition to financial performance, the Group

believed that high-standard corporate social

responsibility is of great significance in building

a positive relationship between an enterprise and

society, motivating its employees and achieving

sustainable development and return for the Group.

(1

Environmental Protection

The Group is committed to making positive
contributions to the Group, environment and
communities, unswervingly developing clean
energy and practicing energy conservation
and emissions reduction to protect the natural

environment.

The Group’s renewable energy power projects
such as wind power and photovoltaic power
generation projects focus on the investments and
management in environmental protection, the
conservation of water and soil and biodiversity
through measures such as increased investment,
optimised designs, advanced technologies
and intelligent operation in the full life cycle
management of power plants. The Group strives
to maintain sustainable and healthy development
for the environment as well as for the human
race, and commits to its responsibilities for
improving the energy structure, mitigating air
pollution and reducing greenhouse gas emission
and haze. The Group also adheres to the concept
of green operation by reducing the emissions
and discharge from administrative activities and
increasing the efficiency of resources and energy

consumption.
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lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(1)

Environmental Protection (CONTINUED)

In addition to paying attention to environmental
protection in the management of renewable
energy power generation projects, the Group
also promotes and practices the concept of
environmental protection through its own

efforts.

In alliance with professional public welfare
organizations, the Group launched public
welfare donation activities with the theme of
“Environmental Protection & Public Welfare,
Zero Abandonment of Old Clothes” throughout
the Company in 2018, with a total of 308
people donating 1,971 kg of clothing. The reuse
of these clothing is equivalent to a reduction
of 7,097 kg of carbon dioxide emissions and
a saving of 11,828 tons of water, together
with a decrease of 394 kg of pesticides and
In addition, the

Group also delivered a lively and interesting

591 kg of fertilisers in use.

general science lecture on wind power to
more than a hundred primary students at the
Beijing International Wind Power Exhibition.
While learning the knowledge of wind power
generation, the students also strengthened their
belief in environmental protection and came to
acknowledge the importance of clean energy

sources in protection of the environment.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(1) Environmental Protection (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group achieved the
equivalent reduction of carbon dioxide, sulphur
dioxide, and nitrogen oxide emissions and the
saving of standard coal and water conservation
from the electricity generated by the Group's
invested wind power plants and photovoltaic
power plants, as compared with those by
conventional power plants. The reduction in
pollutants contributed to the reduction in PM10

and PM2.5 emissions and haze.

(—) REREE)

REE  EEREENR S RHIRE
BEHFTEE S EEHRERAL - 18
ERRL Ak ZEF A
SR BER - A R B4R AN
K o V5 M EYV R HE R A PM10
PM2.5 - B BZEMETER ©

Emission Reduction by Power Plants

BEHRHEE
Accumulated
2018 Amount
Emissions Reduction

Indicators AR 2018 F ST E
CO, (Kilotons) CO, (FmE) 4,395 24,551
S0, (tons) 0O, (W) 1,439 21,783
NO, (tons) NO, (&) 1,383 19,413

Standard Coal Saving BAIR B (F1E)
(Kilotons) 1,710 8,624
Water Saving (Kilotons) AR (FE) 6,917 64,450

(2) Compliance
During the Year, the Group has complied with

relevant standards, laws and regulations of our

business, management and labour standards.

42

(=) &8

AER AKEEEY  BFE %
THg L BRETHEER X
BRIEM -



2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWMR DN

lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(3)

Community Responsibility

The Group actively fulfilled its social

responsibility. While focusing on the

development of clean energy business, the

Group was committed to charity business in

order to reciprocate the society by different

means.

1.

Poverty Alleviation

The Group actively carries out poverty
alleviation tasks in areas where power
plant investments have been made,
through combined measures such as
poverty alleviation through projects, and
local poverty reduction and economic
development assistance of various means.
In 2018, the Group launched public welfare
donation activities in places including
Tongdao in Hunan, Hiaxing in Hebei
and Dezhou in Shandong and brought
care and assistance to local students
and left-behind children. The Group also
participated in the on-site fundraising
activity organized by the Health, Poverty
Alleviation and Supplementary Medical
Relief Fund of Jiangmen City and became
one of the first donating enterprises of the
poverty alleviation fund with a donation
of RMB200,000. In the meantime, as a
poverty alleviation photovoltaic project,
Haixing Photovoltaic Project helped local
poor households with an annual fund of
RMB1.998 million.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(3)

Community Responsibility (CONTINUED)

2.

Education

The Group promotes the education of
national renewable energy business while
facilitating the development of local
economies, culture and environment by
actively carrying out cooperation between

schools and enterprises.

In 2018, the Group extended a donation
agreement with the Education Foundation
of North China Electric Power University.
Scholarships were set up and the level
of funding was increased to reward
outstanding students with excellent
conduct, to help students whose
families suffer from financial difficulties
to complete their studies, to reward
students with outstanding performance in
technological innovation, invention and
manufacturing, to reward outstanding
teachers and management staff, and to
inspire outstanding undergraduates to
further their studies. The Group funded
67 students in 2018 and the total number
of beneficiaries amounted to 1,177
students. In 2018, the Group’s operation
and maintenance company launched the
school-enterprise cooperative mode of
training jointly with a number of colleges
and universities. In October, the Group
held an opening ceremony of the Concord
O&M Wind Power Course for the first
class of 2018 with Hunan Hydroelectric
Occupational College and started the
School-Enterprise Cooperative Order

Training with Ulangab Vocational College.
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Il. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(4)

Customer and Supplier Relationships

During the Year, the Group maintained a good
relationship between customers and suppliers

and there was no major dispute.

During the Year, the Group’s 5 largest customers
accounted for 64% of the Group’s total sales
for the Year, including 19% from the largest
customer. The largest customer was State Grid

Hunan Electric Power Company.

During the Year, the Group’s 5 largest suppliers
accounted for 89% of the Group’s total
procurement amount for the Year, including
36% from the largest suppliers. The largest
supplier was Xinjiang Goldwind Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. It supplied wind turbines
equipment for some of the wind power projects

invested by the Group.

IV. HUMAN RESOURCES

(1

Corporate Employees

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had
1,493 full-time employees (31 December 2017:
1,312), 158 of whom worked at the Group’s
headquarters, 407 in project development
and management, 782 in operation and
maintenance, 66 in Energy Internet of Things
application and 80 in businesses such as design

and leasing.
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IV. HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

(2)

46

Employees’ Development

The Group always upholds its core values of
“people-orientation, value creation, working
for a better future and striving for excellence”.
Human resources are the main force of the
Group’s sustainable development. We have
firmly established the concept of sustainable
development which is people-oriented and fully
coordinated. We respect and are grateful to
every employee for their hard work in the new
energy business and strive to provide them
with a good working environment and a broad
development platform to inspire positive energy,
enhance cohesion and build a happy enterprise,
so as to achieve the common development of

employees and enterprises.

The Group pays attention to the growth and
development of its employees. It provides
different career development paths and
promotion channels for different positions and
individual capabilities. Employees can choose
management, technical and professional
development channels. Meanwhile, through
reviewing talent, the Group has precisely made
a human resource plan and optimised the talent
pipeline and training in order to provide the
staff with a more efficient path for their career
development and to constantly enhance the

organization capabilities of the Group.
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V.

HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

(3)

(4)

Employees’ Trainings

The Group is committed to establishing a
learning organization and has built a complete
training system. With the online and offline
trainings, different curricula are designed for
the management, middle managers, backup
management cadres and new employees.
Every year, a variety of training courses are
conducted based on an annual training plan.
The Group keeps learning, innovating and
improving itself, achieving the common growth
with its employees. In addition, the Group
focuses on building an internal team of part-
time instructors, developing training courses
independently and providing convenient
conditions for the employees to pursue training
voluntarily.

In 2018, the Group organised training
sessions for its middle managers, back-up
talents, new employees and other business
departments totalling more than 450
participants. The training content covered
modern corporate management knowledge,
professionalism, interview techniques,
leadership, communication skills, execution
capabilities, innovative management and
team building etc. The business department
of the Group also developed various kinds of
professional trainings covering policy, finance,
engineering, production, distribution and sales
of electricity, energy storage, financial leasing,
files management based on their actual needs
to satisfy their needs regarding business and
development.

Safety and Health

The Group has always focused on securing
the occupational safety and occupational
health of its employees and kept improving
the management system of occupational safety
and health in order to provide systematic and
institutional guarantee to its employees in this
regard.
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IV. HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

(4)

48

Safety and Health (CONTINUED)

The Group makes continuous efforts in safety
management through various measures such
as improvement of safety management system,
establishment of a three-tier integrated general
management system, a three-tier “information
liaison officer responsible for safety, quality
and environmental protection” and a four-tier
control system of safe production objective with
the Group, subsidiaries and project companies;
carrying out the management of monthly report
on safe production information and holding
monthly meetings regarding safety; carrying out
regular supervision and inspection on safety;
organising “month of safe production” activities
and fire safety training. The Group also raises
the awareness of safety, improves construction
safety, prevents incidents, improves essential
safety and develops the management philosophy
of “safety management by everyone, safety need
from everyone” through measures such as the
construction of safety corners. According to the
safe production policy of “safety first, prevention
orientation and comprehensive management”,
the Group designated parties accountable
for safety at different levels and achieved
simultaneous planning, arrangement, inspection,
summarization and assessment of both safety
works and various production and operation
works, so as to guarantee the employees’ health
and safety.

With the commitment of providing a safe,
healthy and comfortable working environment
for its employees, the Group renovated the
office area in the Beijing management centre,
organised a physical and interest club, built
fitness and sports facilities, and organised
sports events such as walking activities, cycling
challenges and sports meets, with the aims of
improving health condition, facilitating their
communication and enhancing cohesion.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2018, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB1,366,305,000
(31 December 2017: RMB1,110,803,000). The net
assets of the Group were RMB5,546,739,000 (31
December 2017: RMB5,255,146,000). The balance
of bank loans and financial leasing of the Group
was RMB7,061,877,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB5,497,520,000). And the gearing ratio of the
Group was 69.88% (31 December 2017: 64.51%).

Pledge of Assets

As of 31 December 2018, the buildings and
equipments of the Group were pledged to secure
a loan of RMB3,503,839,000 (31 December 2017:
2,054,524,000).

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged
its 49% equity interest in Erlianhaote Changfeng
Century Concord Wind Power Exploiture Co., Ltd.
("Erlian™) with the total value of its registered capital
of approximately RMB37,240,000 (31 December
2017: RMB37,240,000 ). The outstanding balance
of the bank loan of Erlian as of 31 December
2018 was RMB31,519,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB42,918,000). Save as mentioned above, there was
no material contingent liability of the Group as at 31
December 2018.

Commitments

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB1,283,819,000 (31 December
2017: RMB1,960,602,000), which were not included
in the financial statements. The amount included the
capital committed to joint ventures and associates that
was contracted but not provided of RMB61,050,000
(31 December 2017: RMB105,050,000) and the capital
contracted but unpaid for the payment for equipment
purchased of RMB1,222,769,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,855,552,000) by the subsidiaries.
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Risks Associated with Policies

The profits of wind and photovoltaic power companies
are largely affected by the changes in the policies
of the state and the industry. In recent years, grid
parity has been sped up due to the implementation
of mechanism to deduct the on-grid price of newly-
built renewable energy. Meanwhile, as the scale of
traded power volume is expanding continuously, the
electricity price of commissioned plants is subject to a
downward adjustment risk. Renewable energy subsidy
is granted in batches by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC, while the time for future batches remains
uncertain. Projects listed in the subsidy catalogue
may subject to continuous growth in outstanding
amounts. In addition, subsidy may be granted based
on the market instead of by the government in a fixed
amount upon the implementation of Green Certificate
trading, resulting in uncertainties in prices. So far,
there were no relevant policies or regulations in this
regard. The Group will keep abreast of the policies’
direction, exercise sound judgement and prospectively
estimate the adverse factors that may exist, so that
various measures will be designed to reduce risks,
minimising the risks arising from the changes of

policies.

Risks Associated with Climate

The power generation changes with the annual
fluctuation of wind and photovoltaic resources, which
is the primary climatic risk that is faced by the wind
power and photovoltaic power industry. In addition,
extreme weather conditions such as typhoon, freezing,
strong sandstorm, haze, and lightning strikes will
bring safety risks to wind power and photovoltaic

power generation companies.
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(CONTINUED)

Risks Associated with Climate (CONTINUED)

The Group has already completed wind power
and photovoltaic power generation projects in 17
provinces (cities and autonomous regions) which are
into operation. In order to address the risks of annual
climate changes, we will continue to optimise the
project deployment to further counteract the impact
caused by climatic risks. In addition, the Company
will increase scientific research and improve design
standards in terms of aspects such as turbine type
selection and development path program, and fully
assess and respond to the impact of climatic factors
on the safety and effectiveness of power plants.

Risks Associated with Power Curtailment

During the Year, the power curtailment was further
reduced and would maintain a favourable trend.
However, for reasons such as low energy consumption
from the industry sector, unreasonable structure of
power grids and the construction of grid lines which
lagged behind the expected schedule in certain
regions, it was impossible to totally eliminate the
curtailment of wind power and photovoltaic power in
a short term. The Group will continue to optimise the
project deployment, increase the development and
construction in regions without power curtailment
and make good judgements on the trend of policy
changes, so as to take advantage of government
policies to counter the problem of power curtailment.
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(CONTINUED)

Capital Risk

The Group is principally engaged in investment in
wind power and photovoltaic power plants in the
PRC, with relatively high demand for borrowings. The
cost and amount of capital will have a direct impact
on the Group's operations. With sound performance
and credibility, a stable debt structure and diversified
financing channels, the Group has consistently
enjoyed financing interest rates that are lower
than the average level of our peers. The Group will
continuously pay attention to the financing market,
expand the financing channels, bring forth new
financing products and optimise capital structure to
secure the supply of capital.

Exchange Rate Risk

The Group’s business is primarily based in mainland
China with most of its revenue and expenses
denominated in Renminbi. During the Year, the
Group issued bonds of US$200 million. Fluctuations in
Renminbi exchange rate will result in foreign exchange
losses or gains from the Group’s overseas business.
The Group will pay active attention to the fluctuations
of exchange rates and take effective measures to
hedge exchange rate risks.
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In 2018, various policies of the industry were issued
in the PRC, particularly the implementation of such
policies as the allocation of centralised wind power
projects through competitive bidding, grid parity
and reduction of subsidies, which will facilitate a
shift of focus for the development of renewable
energy industry from scale and speed to quality and
efficiency. The progress of technology for renewable
energy has been accelerating and the costs for power
generation continues to drop. The situation for the
consumption of clean energy continues to improve
as evidenced in the construction of ultra-high voltage
transmission and transformation projects, de-capacity
of fossil fuel power generation which prompts the
consumption of clean energy, and the easing of
power curtailment. With the further deepening
of the structural reform of energy on the supply-
side and power system reform and the continuous
improvement of the market-based power trading
mechanism, the scale of market-based power trading
continues to expand. It is expected that businesses
such as incremental distribution network, distributed
projects in close proximity to users, market-based
power ancillary services and energy storage will be
closely integrated with the renewable energy power
generation business and facilitate the continuous
innovation of new business models in the industry.
With this trend of inevitable transformation of
energy consumption, renewable energy in the power
generation market will continue to maintain its

competitive advantage in the industry.
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PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Currently, the costs for renewable energy power
plants are lower than those for fossil fuel power
generation. In an era of competitive bidding,
grid-parity, renewable energy has no problem in
competing with fossil fuel power generation. With the
development and construction costs constantly being
driven down thanks to the progress of technology
and technical innovations, the economic viability
of renewable energy projects has been uplifted
continuously. There is a continuous improvement
of appetite for renewable energy and an easing
of power curtailment in the northern regions, and
the development potentials for distributed power
projects is huge. On top of these, the government
also provides grid-parity projects with various support
measures in terms of policies, so as to secure the
long-term and steady income of these projects.
Development opportunities and room for growth for
renewable energy will remain optimistic.

In recent years, the Group has optimised its
assets quality, transformed operating model and
adjusted its investment strategies with accurate
strategies for development and operation. With
its increased capability, the Group has successfully
addressed various changes in the external operating
environment. The Group will insist to spare great
efforts in the development of renewable energy’s
industrial chain, as an investor as well as a service
provider. With focus on practical work and laborious
efforts, the Group will become an industry leading
world-class enterprise to create significant and
continuous returns for its shareholders and the

society.
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In 2019, the Group will respond to competitive
bidding and grid-parity, and will continue to
implement the principle of healthy development,
focusing on the strategies involving production
safety, lowering LCOE, enhancing pre-development,
expediting the construction of Energy Internet of
Things and intelligent operation and maintenance,
optimising asset structure and improving asset
quality. Focusing on innovative strategies relevant
to the industry, the Group will strive to achieve the
followings:

1. Consolidate the foundation of safety
management and establish a long-acting
safety mechanism

The Group will continue to improve its safety
management system and pay close attention
to safety management. Through measures
including safety supervision and inspection,
safety education and training, implementation
of accountability system for production safety
and relying on scientific and technological
innovation, the Group will accelerate the
construction of supporting facilities for safety
management, consolidate the foundation of
safety management, and establish a long-
acting safety mechanism, so as to assume its
responsibilities for the life and health of its
employees, the safety of corporate assets and
the safety of the society as a whole.
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2.

Focus on the main business of power
generation and improve assets quality

The power generation business has become
the pillar business of the Group. Currently,
the Group has certain pipeline projects with
attractive electricity price and return, which can
meet its construction plan for the coming three
years. The Group will continue to accelerate
project construction and achieve a steady growth
in its attributable installed capacity. In addition,
the Group will enhance refined management
and improve the quality of power plant asset
management, as well as improve equipment
availability through the application of Energy
Internet of Things and centralised monitoring
centres, technological transformation and other
measures, thus increasing power generation
output and improving operating efficiency of
power plants.

Pursue the lowest LCOE and enhance its
competitiveness in competitive bidding and
grid parity

By firmly implementing the principle of “the
lowest LCOE", the Group will steadily reduce the
LCOE of its power plants, and enhance its core
competitiveness in the era of competitive bidding
and grid parity. By implementing the measures
including optimising designs, applying latest
wind turbines and new technologies, reducing
procurement costs and expediting project
construction, effectively controlling the cost of
newly-built power plants and dedicate to lower
the direct LCOE of the newly-built projects.
Through the application and technological
transformation of Energy Internet of Things,
refined management and level of operation and
maintenance of power plants will be improved,
and the LCOE of commissioned power plants
will be reduced. Meanwhile, through various
measures and refined management, the Group
will be able to enhance the efficiency of capital
utilization and lower the LCOE in all aspects.
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Adapt to situations, and make judgments
to optimise deployment and pace of

development

Under the complicated and ever-changing
business environment, the Group will carry
out careful research on new policies to make
judgements on policy and market changes;
adjust investment strategies and optimise
development deployment in line with policy
direction and market trends. By taking targeted
measures, the Group will be able to put more
efforts into capturing resources. In accordance
with the estimated returns of projects on the
assumption of no subsidy, the Group will
handle projects on a priority basis, by holding
some projects in reserve, starting development
on some other projects, and commence
construction for another batch, so as to maintain
a sustainable and healthy pace of development.
On the condition that the red alert in the
northern regions is removed, the Group will
increase its development efforts in wind power
projects in the north, and actively participate
in the development of distributed wind power

projects.
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PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Continuously develop Energy Internet
of Things to promote the smart energy
management

The Group organised a team of specialists in
Energy Internet of Things, under the leading
of which, the Group will step up its efforts in
developing products of Energy Internet of Things
and continue to advance the development and
application of the POWER" system. Leveraging
on the “smart brain” of the POWER" system, the
operation model of power plants with minimal
human monitoring and reduction of operation
cost of power plants will be realised through
measures such as Energy Internet of Things, big
data analysis and artificial intelligence to monitor
and analyse the equipment of the power plants
and implement centralised monitoring for
the areas where power plant groups locate.
In addition, the application of the Group’s
POWER" system will expand into fields including
distributed photovoltaic power plants, poverty
alleviation power plants and user energy storage,
in order to provide supply and management
services of energy and other derivative services.

Explore and develop new businesses and
exploit new growth points for profit

In 2019, the Group will continue to make efforts
in pre-development and pipeline of distributed
wind power and distributed photovoltaic power
projects and construct high-quality plants.

During the Year, the Group will further explore
its development paths by acquiring talents in
energy storage, accumulating experience in
energy storage, establishing a technical team in
energy storage and continue to pick up pipeline
projects of energy storage. In addition, the
Group will explore business models of integrated
energy services based on intelligent micro-grids.
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Explore and develop new businesses and
exploit new growth points for profit
(CONTINUED)

In terms of financial leasing business, the
Group will continue to improve its business
and financing capability. In addition to the
conventional wind power and photovoltaic
power projects, efforts will be made in
developing financial leasing for projects including
energy storage and frequency regulation. In the
meantime, the leasing companies will actively
promote the development of the Group in
businesses including energy storage, operation
and maintenance as well as energy Internet of

Things.

Enhance asset operational management and

optimise asset and liability structure

The Group will continuously improve its ability of
sustainable development and risk management,
enhance asset management, improve investment
and financing systems, strengthen overall budget
and fund management, enhance financial
risk warning and optimise asset and liability
structure, in order to ensure that the gearing

ratio of the Group remains at a reasonable level.

In 2019, all the staff of the Group will work
very hard together to develop and innovate,
and strive for the Group’s improvements in both
quality and efficiency. The Group will become a
world-class renewable energy power generation
enterprise, providing more clean energy to
the society and creating more value for our
Shareholders and investors.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shunxing, aged 57, joined the Group in 2007. He
has become the Chairman of the Company since June 2009.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree of Electricity Generation
from Tianjin University and a Master degree of Energy
Source Economy Management from the Management
College of Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Liu is the
vice president of China Energy Research Institute and an
executive director of China Energy Council. He was formerly
the Vice CEO of China Energy Conservation Investment
Corporation.

Ms. Liu Jianhong, aged 50, joined the Group in 2007. She
is the Vice Chairperson of the Company in January 2016.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Liu holds her Master degree from the Law School
of Renmin University of China and an EMBA from China
Europe International Business School. She was the Chief
Legal Officer of China Energy Conservation Investment
Corporation.

Mr. Yu Weizhou, aged 54, joined the Group in 2009. He
is the Chief Executive Officer (“the CEQ") of the Company
in January 2016. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in statistics and a
Master degree in finance from Renmin University of China
and a Ph. D degree of Engineering Management from Xi’
an University of Technology. Mr. Yu once worked in State
Economic & Trade Commission, State Power Management
Commission and China Shenhua-Guohua Energy Investment
Ltd.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Niu Wenhui, aged 48, joined the Group in 2010. He is
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and has become
an Executive Director of the Company since January 2017.
He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration of
Beihang University. He had served as vice president of
China Ruilian Industrial Group and Chief Financial Officer of

Rainbow Group Shenzhen Branch.

Mr. Gui Kai, aged 60, joined the Group in 2015. He has
become an Executive Director of the Company since June
2016. He holds a Master Degree of China University of
Mining & Technology. He had served as General Manager
of Shenhua Trading Group and Shenhua Science and

Technology Development Co., Limited.

Dr. Shang Li, aged 45, joined the Group in 2012. He has
become an Executive Director of the Company since January
2018. He holds a Ph. D degree in Computer Engineering
from Princeton University, USA. He was an Associate
Professor of the Department of Electrical, Computer and
Energy Engineering in University of Colorado at Boulder and
the Chair Professor in Tongji University. He was formerly the

vice president and Chief Architect of Intel China Research.
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Feng, aged 49, has been appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company from 28 February
2019. Mr. Wang holds a Master’s degree in North China
Electric Power University. Mr. Wang is currently the
General Manager of Planning and Investment Department
of Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (“Huadian

Fuxin”, a substantial shareholder of the Company).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, aged 73, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2006. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, in the
United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yap is also an independent non-
executive director of Frontier Services Group Limited, which
is listed on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Brockman
Mining Limited, which is listed on The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Australian Securities Exchange.

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang, aged 72, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January
2018. He holds a doctorate degree from the University of
Nebraska-Lincoln. He was the global vice president of Intel
and founded Intel Labs China, ILC as its first dean.

Ms. Huang Jian, aged 50, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since December
2012. Ms. Huang holds a Master degree from the Central
University of Finance and Economics of the PRC. She is also
a certified public accountant in the PRC. Ms. Huang is the
partner of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants and was
a full time member of SME Board Pubic Offering Review
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Zhang Zhong, aged 49, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 4 June 2018.
Mr. Zhang received a Master of Laws degree from Renmin
University of China and is currently a partner of Zhong
Lun Law Firm and an independent non-executive director
of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (000338.sz, 02338.hk), Beijing
Dalong Weiye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (600159.
ss), and Keda Group Co., Ltd. (600986.ss). Mr. Zhang was a
member of the 4th, 5th and 6th GEM issuance verification

committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jiang Yingjiu, aged 50, joined the Group in 2007.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Renming University of China. Mr.
Jiang has worked for Beijing Urban and Rural Construction
Committee and China Energy Conservation Investment

Corporation.

Mr. Wang Xigang, aged 39, joined the Group in 2009. He
is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a Master
degree from Peking University. He has worked for Aviation

Industry Corporation of China.

Mr. Ma Suoming, aged 45, joined the Group in 2015.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Master degree from North China Electric Power University.
He has worked for National Electricity Dispatching and

Communication Centre.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Shang Xuelian, aged 55, joined the Group in 2008.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Shandong University. Mr. Shang has
worked for Shandong Lubei Enterprise Group Limited.

Mr. Liu Ruiging, aged 54, joined the Group in 2011. He
is assistant to CEO. He holds a Master degree from North
China Electric Power University. He has worked for Huadian
Group New Energy Limited and China Shenhua — Guohua
Energy Investment Ltd.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the

“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
52 to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group's
income and contribution to operating profit for the Year is

set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 184. The
interim and final dividends for the Year are set out in Note
15 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Year are set out in Note on pages 188
and 393.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company are set out in
Note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the

Company are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of
164,080,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
on the Stock Exchange. All the repurchased shares were
subsequently cancelled by the Company during the Year.
Details of the share repurchases during the Year are as
follows:

AAFBE HEREE LHES

al

FA AR RBEXMER-DRLASH
164,080,000 R F & 0.01 BT 2 - FT B
BRRNDEERFAWANAREHE - FAME
B 2 FFIBT ¢

Purchase price per share

BRBEEE
Number of
share
repurchased Aggregate
Month and cancelled Highest Lowest amount
BER
=kv) RO EE REE RIEE B
HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
July 2018 17,010,000 0.350 0.340 5,928,550
—ZT-NFtA
September 2018 21,750,000 0.320 0.315 6,906,200
—ZE-N\FNA
October 2018 80,060,000 0.320 0.290 24,214,400
- N\F+A
November 2018 7,390,000 0.320 0.315 2,329,900
—E-NF+—H
December 2018 37,870,000 0.320 0.305 11,781,100
“ZE-NFt+=-A
Total
st 164,080,000 51,160,150

The repurchase of the Company’s shares by the Directors
during the Year was made pursuant to the mandate granted
by shareholders at the last annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2018, with a view to benefiting
shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value
per share and earnings per share of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2018 are set out on page 188.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and
equities of the Group for the last five financial years is set

out on page 400.
DIVIDEND

The board of directors recommends to declare a final
dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$0.01), subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Based on the number
of issued ordinary shares as of the date of approving this
consolidated financial information, the proposed final
dividend amounted to HK$170,254,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB145,109,000). This consolidated financial
information does not reflect this amount as dividend
payable as at 31 December 2018. It is expected that the
final dividend will be paid out before end of June 2019.
Further announcement will be made by the Company for
the date of closure of register of members.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted a Scheme on 15 June 2015, and
revised it on 29 June 2017. The Scheme does not constitute
a share option scheme for the purpose of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. Reference is made to the announcement
dated 15 June 2015 and 29 June 2017. Capitalised terms
therein should contain the same meanings unless otherwise
specified. The principal terms of the Scheme are outlined
below.

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to (i) recognize the
contributions of the Employees; (ii) provide additional
incentives in order to retain the Employees to continue to
work for the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.

Administration

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board (or a committee from time to time authorized by
the Board to manage the Scheme) and the Trustee in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the Trust
Deed. The Board may, from time to time, at its sole
discretion determine the number of Awarded Shares to be
awarded to the Selected Employees. The Board is entitled
to impose any vesting conditions, as it deems appropriate in
its absolute discretion with respect to the entitlement of the
Selected Employees to the Awarded Shares. Any grant of
the Awarded Shares to the connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company must be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (other than the
independent non-executive Director who is the Selected
Employee). The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to deal
in any shares in the market during the period when any
Director is in possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company or when the dealings in the
Company'’s securities by Directors are prohibited under any
code or requirement of the Listing Rules or any applicable
laws.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further Awarded which will
result in the nominal value of Shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding five (5) per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date (the
“Scheme Limit").

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded
to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not exceed
one (1) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date (the “Individual Limit").

Each of the Scheme Limit and the Individual Limit shall
be refreshed automatically on each anniversary date of
the Adoption Date during the duration of the Scheme as
stipulated under the above stated in the Duration, such
that (I) the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall not exceed five
(5) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as
at each anniversary date of the Adoption Date: and (ii) the
Individual Limit so refreshed shall not exceed one (1) per
cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at each

anniversary date of the Adoption Date.
Operation of the Scheme

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall (i) issued as new Shares by the
Company to the Trustee held on trust for the Selected
Person or (ii) purchased by the Trustee on the market, in
either case out of cash paid by the Company by way of
settlement to the Trustee pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme. The Company shall pay the Trustee sufficient funds
for any purchase including the cost of the Awarded Shares

and the relevant expenses.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Operation of the Scheme (Continued)

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall inform the Trustee the names
of the Selected Employees, the number of shares awarded
to them, the vesting date, the vesting conditions (if any)
and other relevant information under the Scheme and
the Trust Deed. Within 20 business days (on which the
trading of Shares has not been suspended) after the Trustee
receives the cash for the acquirement of new Shares or
the purchase of the Awarded Shares, the Trustee shall
apply the same towards the purchase of the Awarded
Shares at the prevailing market price at its discretion. The
Awarded Shares so purchased will be kept by the Trustee
until the relevant vesting conditions are met and until then
the Awarded Shares will be transferred to the Selected

Employees accordingly.
Vesting and Lapse

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
fulfillment of all vesting conditions, the relevant Awarded
Shares and Related Income held by the Trustee on behalf
of any Selected Employee shall vest in such Selected
Employee on the Vesting Date and the Trustee shall cause
the Awarded Shares and Related Income to be transferred
to such Selected Employee. If the Selected Employee fails
to deliver the signed and completed transfer documents to
the Trustee within the stipulated period, unless the Board
determines otherwise, the Awarded Shares and the Related
Income shall not vest and shall revert to the Trustee as the
Returned Shares.

In the event that prior to the Vesting Date the Selected
Employee ceases to be an Employee, any unvested Awarded
Shares and Related Income that the Selected Employee
is entitled to shall lapse accordingly, unless the Board
determines otherwise.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Vesting and Lapse (Continued)

In the event that a Selected Employee dies before any
Award to him as vested, unless the Board determines
otherwise, the Award to him shall lapse immediately and
the Awarded Shares to which the Award relate and the
Related Income shall revert to the Trustee as Returned
Shares. If Awarded Shares have vested before the death
of the Selected Employee but have not been transferred
by the Trustee to him, such vested Awarded Shares and
Related Income shall be held by the Trustee for the personal
representative(s) of such Selected Employee and the Trustee
shall transfer to such personal representative(s) such
Awarded Shares and Related Income pursuant to the terms
of the Scheme and the Trust Deed.

Where any Awarded Share does not vest in accordance with
the relevant provision herein and becomes Returned Share,
the Board may grant Award(s) of such Returned Shares
to other Selected Employees subject to such conditions or

limitations as the Board may decide.

Notwithstanding any other provisions provided in the Share
Award Scheme, if there occurs an event of change of
control of the Company, whether by way of offer, merger,
scheme of arrangement or otherwise, unless the Board
determines otherwise, all the unvested Awarded Shares
shall immediately vest on the date when such change of
control event becomes or is declared unconditional and
such date shall be deemed to be the Vesting Date.

Rights

The Selected Employees shall not have any interest or rights
(including the right to vote or receive dividends) in any
Awarded Shares or in the Related Income unless and until
the Trustee has vested the ownership of such Awarded
Shares in the Selected Employees.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any Shares held under the Trust.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Termination

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the 10th
anniversary date of the Adoption Date or such date of early
termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of the
Selected Employees.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares that can be
awarded under the Scheme is 447,311,748. On 5 April
2016, 61,700,000 Shares have been awarded to the
Selected Employees pursuant to the Scheme. No additional
Shares have been awarded during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shunxing

Ms. Liu Jianhong

Mr. Yu Weizhou

Mr. Niu Wenhui

Mr. Gui Kai

Dr. Shang Li (re-designated on 2 January 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Shaohua (resigned on 28 February 2019)
Mr. Wang Feng (appointed on 28 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS,BBS,JP (resigned on 4 June
2018)

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang (appointed on 2 January 2018)

Ms. Huang Jian

Mr. Zhang Zhong (appointed on 4 June 2018)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Gui Kai, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Ms. Huang Jian
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forth coming annual general meeting.
In accordance with bye-law 102(B) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Zhang Zhong and Mr. Wang Feng shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

at the forth coming annual general meeting.

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for as specific
term and will be subject to retirement by rotation and

re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and the Company considered that they are

independent.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group are set out on pages
60 to 64 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period of
notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation or
make other payments equivalent to more than one year’s
emolument.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates had
an interest in a business, apart from the businesses of
the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group

pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of each director and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the”Model
Code”) under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), or known to

the Company, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/ EERITETHASRAAE QT REAE
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING BATRIZRG HEROREETES
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY SRR HEA(E)

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company: (i) RELXTIROZHAE:

Approximate percentage of the total issued share capital
HERTRABHMAE D (%)
Approximate
percentage of
the total issued

Name of the Directors Personal Family Corporate Total share capital
FERTREAAY
EEpg A £ AT st ZBABEAL
(%)
Liu Shunxing 9,000,000 — 1,845,484,242' 1,854,484,242 21.69
2))E 8
Liu Jianhong 8,710,000 — 150,000,000 158,710,000 1.86
=l
Yu Weizhou 25,130,000 — — 25,130,000 0.30
AN
Niu Wenhui 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000 0.05
X
Gui Kai 3,600,000 — — 3,600,000 0.04
sl
Yap Fat Suan, Henry 200,000 — — 200,000 0.002
359713
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

()

(i)

76

Long positions in the shares of the Company:
(CONTINUED)

Note:

1. 1,147,877,155 shares are held by China Wind Power
Investment Limited (CWPI), which is wholly owned by
Permanent Growth Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing held as
to 46.77% of the issued shares of Permanent Growth
Limited. 290,000,000 Shares are held by Guangfeng
International Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Beijing Guangfeng Energy Technology
Limited, of which Mr. Liu holds 99% of the issued
share capital. 407,607,087 Shares are held by Splendor
Power Limited, of which Mr. Liu holds 99% of the

issued share capital.

2. 150,000,000 shares are held by a discretionary trust
for which Ms. Liu Jianhong is the founder and settlor
and can influence how the trustee exercises its
discretion.

Long positions in the underlying shares of the

Company:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018,
none of the directors and chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code adopted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors (including their respective spouse and children
under the age of 18) to acquire benefits by the means
of the acquisition of the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed under the
section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/
or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital under Section 336 of the
SFO.

(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Number of the

ESWEROSES ZEF

R EXTEEREBZITRABRARRBHAIMA
BeEnm 2B HEROREFTHEERZ
Bk IKE IREEIN  RAFERE
AEE - AR HEAERNER RSB E R
ABEIVEMNLH  BLER(BERES
BZREBMI18EA T 2 FR)AIFEE AR QT
S EATBE QR Z R AR A S A 5
M &H) o

FERR

MR2018F12A318 BEXESEREET
BRABRARR ST MEE AR ZKG - #H
RGO RESPHREZERRHAB ]
FTiERI s RARIENE T SRR FE
m (AR IEES LB ERAE 336 1EARARIE
BEITA A AR 5% B UA F 2 #ERS) o

(i) REIFRBZHR:

Approximate percentage

shares of of the total issued

Name of shareholder the Company held share capital

HERITRAEE 2

REREH BEEXRRTARAEE BAE DL

(%)

cwpl® 1,147,877,155 13.42

Huadian Fuxin 880,000,000 10.29
EEH

Goldman Sachs 58,562,998 0.68

(ii) Long positions in the underlying shares of the
Company:

Name of shareholder
REEE

Goldman Sachs®

Number of the
underlying shares
of the Company held

BEFLAFMEAROEE

(i) REDFAEBAROGZHR

Approximate percentage
of the total issued

share capital
HERTREAEHZ
BHAEDL

(%)

432,390,000 5.06
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Note:

1.

Save

1,147,877,155 shares are held by CWPI, which is wholly
owned by Permanent Growth Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing held
as to 46.77% of the issued shares of Permanent Growth
Limited.

The Board announces that on 13 December 2018, the
Company entered into the Convertible Loan Agreement
with Goldman Sachs Asia Strategic Pte. Ltd. (“Goldman
Sachs”), pursuant to which Goldman Sachs agreed to lend
and the Company agreed to borrow the Convertible Loan
in a principal amount of US$30,000,000 (drawable in one
Disbursement). The Convertible Loan will consist of three
tranches as follows: (i) Tranche | being US$12,000,000; and
(i) Tranche Il being US$9,000,000; and (iii) Tranche Il being
US$9,000,000.

The Convertible Loan (or any portion thereof which shall not
have been converted) shall be repaid on the Maturity Date,
together with the Redemption Premium (if any).

Goldman Sachs have the right to convert all or any part
of the outstanding principal amount of their respective
participation in the Convertible Loan into Conversion Shares
at a Conversion Price of (i) HK$0.5 per Share (for Tranche I);
(ii) HK$0.55 per Share (for Tranche Il); and (iii) HK$0.6 per
Share (for Tranche Ill) (subject to the adjustments as set out
in the Convertible Loan Agreement), credited as fully paid,
at any time after the date of the Disbursement and prior to
the Maturity Date. If the Company fails to repay any part of
the Convertible Loan on the Maturity Date, the Lenders may
continue to exercise its right to convert all or any part of the
outstanding principal amount of their respective participation
in the Convertible Loan until the date on which the Company
has repaid the Convertible Loan in full.

Assuming a Conversion Price of (i) HK$0.5 per Share (for
Tranche 1); (ii) HK$0.55 per Share (for Tranche II); and (iii)
HK$0.6 per Share (for Tranche ) and there is no adjustment
to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of the
Convertible Loan Agreement, the aggregate principal amount
of the Convertible Loan of US$30,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$234,300,000) is convertible into
approximately 432,390,000 Conversion Shares. Details can
be referred to the announcement dated 13 December 2018.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, there

were no other persons who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all losses and liabilities
& etc. which they may incur or sustain by reason about
the execution of their duties, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors. The
Company has also arranged appropriate Directors’ and
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of

the Group.
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest 5 customers
accounted for 68% of the total sales for the Year, and the

largest customer included there in amounted to 21%.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for 89% of the total purchases for the Year, and the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 36%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had interests in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy for its employees is set
up and approved by the Remuneration Committee and
the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board, as authorised by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting, having
regarded to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share award scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the share award scheme are set out in the Report of the
Directors on pages 68 to 72 of the annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 81 to
94 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there was sufficient of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 53 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shunxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERARSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate

governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
has reviewed the Group's corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“the
Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all directors of the Company
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised of eleven
Directors, including six executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors. On 2 January 2018, Dr. Shang Li was re-
designated from the independent non-executive Director
to the executive Director, and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director.
On 4 June 2018, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS,BBS,JP
resigned as an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Zhang Zhong was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director. On 28 February 2019, Mr. Wu Shaohua
resigned as non-executive Director and Mr. Wang Feng was
appointed as non-executive Director. Biographical details
of the Directors are stated under the section “Biographical

Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The major shareholder of the Company, CWPI holds
1,147,877,155 shares of the Company. CWPI is held
indirectly by, amongst others, two executive Directors

namely, Mr. Liu Shunxing and Ms. Liu Jianhong.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between the
Board members.

For a Director to be considered independent, that director
should not have any direct or indirect material interest in
the Group. In determining the independence of Directors,
the Board follows the requirement set out in the Listing
Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a specific term
and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election

at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and
overseeing, the functioning of the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interest for the Group. The Chairman
is responsible for approving the agenda for each Board
meeting, after taking into account the matters proposed
by other Directors. With the support of the executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chairman also actively
encourages all Directors to be fully engaged in the Board'’s
affairs and make contributions to the Board's functions. The
Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to provide
effective communication with shareholders.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The CEO is responsible for managing the business of the
Group, attending to the formulation and implementation
of group policies, and assuming full accountability for the
Group's operations. Acting as the principal manager of the
Group’s business, the CEO develops a strategic operating
plan that reflects the long-term objectives and priorities
established by the Board, and is directly responsible for
maintaining the operational performance of the Group.
Working with the senior management and the Board, the
CEO ensures that the funding requirements of the business
are met and closely monitors the operating and financial
results against the plans and budgets. He also takes
remedial actions when necessary and advises the Board of
any significant developments and issues of the Group.

Ongoing dialogues are maintained with all Directors to keep
them fully informed of all major business developments and
issues.

Exg@)

THRAEZAEERAEEZEY 28ER
RETSERER YHAKEZEE L2
B - ORAKEEBZEEEEA  THAE
ﬁﬂﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁhﬁ{%K
FeREBUELESE TERARERAS
Bze@ERR - THEHEASEEEAER
EXERBTEF BREINXH2ERR
Ko UENERKERMBEETATER
BEZBERL REFERRRERTHALM
AEBZEMERERIERAEESREMH
BR -

THESREZRESZ -BERBHFE EKF
TEME—VEBEHERLEER -

83



2018 F 8
BEFERERERLQ T

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERARSE

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly, and at least 4 times a year.
Between meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to Directors the information on the activities and
developments in the business of the Group on a timely basis
and when required, additional Board meetings are held. In
addition, Directors have full access to the information of the
Group and the independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. During the year ended
31 December 2018, a total of 13 board meetings and 2
general meetings (2018 AGM” and “2018 SGM") were
held and the attendance of each director is set out below:
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the year ended 31 December 2018/
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Board 2018 2018
Name of directors meetings SGM® AGM’
2018 F R 2018 F KRR
EEpnA EEggR HEIAE® BFERE’
Chairman Liu Shunxing 13/13 11 11
=E 221 g £
Chairperson Liu Jianhong 13/13 1Al VAl
EES: Blga
CEO Yu Weizhou 13/13 171 171
TEBAR AN
Executive Director Mr. Niu Wenhui 13/13 M 171
HTES FXIERAE
Gui Kai 13/13 171 1/1
g3
Shang Li' 13/13 1/1 1/1
\D/SW
Non-executive Director Mr. Wu Shaohua’ 13/13 11 11
FHITES REBELE?
Independent Non-Executive Directors Dr. Wong Yau Kar,
BYFGITES David, GBS,BBS,JP’ 6/6 0/0 11
&R 3=+, GBS,BBS, P
Yap Fat Suan, Henry 13/13 171 171
Sy
Huang Jian 13/13 1Al I7Al
|
Zhang Zhong 6/6 171 0/0
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Notes:

! Dr. Shang Li has re-designate from Independent Non-
executive Director to Executive Director on 2 January 2018.

Mr. Wu Shaohua has resigned as a non-executive Director on
28 February 2019.

3 Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS,BBS,JP has resigned as an
independent non-executive Director on 4 June 2018.

Mr. Zhang Zhong has appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 4 June 2018.

> 2018 SGM was held on 12 December 2018.

° 2018 AGM was held on 28 May 2018.

Professional training for directors

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the Group’s
businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Group also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings by reading
relevant materials on the topics relating to corporate
governance and regulations and have provided their
training records.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Besides, the Company has set up three
committees including the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. Each
committee has its specific terms of reference with reference
to the Code:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhang
Zhong with Mr. Liu Shunxing, Ms. Liu Jianhong, Mr.
Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang being the
members. The Remuneration Committee meets for the
determination of the remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters such as making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. Dr. Shang Li has been re-designated as an
executive director of the Company and has resigned as a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company
and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company,
all the changes were effective on 2 January 2018. On
4 June 2018, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS,BBS,JP
has resigned as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company, and Mr. Zhang Zhong has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (CONTINUED)

Under its term of reference, the Remuneration Committee
assists the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategies across
the Group’s operations. The Committee also assists the
Group in the administration of the fair and transparent
procedure for setting policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. The
written terms of reference are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held 2
meetings with all members present. The Committee has
reviewed the remuneration packages for Directors and
senior management of the Group.

Remuneration of senior management other than directors
for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Nomination Committee REZEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, IREEZESHmSMKEHR - o Rl AR IEE L

namely Mr. Liu Shunxing (Chairman), Ms. Liu Jianhong, Mr.
Zhang Zhong, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Ms. Huang Jian.
On 4 June 2018, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS,BBS,JP has
resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company, and
Mr. Zhang Zhong has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code and are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Under its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors of the Company. Potential new
directors are selected on the basis of their qualifications,
skills and experience which the Nomination Committee
considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board. During the year, the Nomination
Committee has held 2 meetings with all members present.
The Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considered diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
board appointments are based on merit and contribution,
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee reviews the Policy on
a regular basis and discusses any revisions that may be
required, and recommends any such revisions to the Board

for consideration and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and the other members of the
Committee are Mr. Zhang Zhong and Ms. Huang lJian.
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry is a chartered accountant in
England and Wales and is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. On 4 June 2018, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David,
GBS,BBS,JP has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company, and Mr. Zhang Zhong has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the

audit committee of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the Code and are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under its terms
of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors, to review the Group's interim and annual financial
statements, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control system,

and to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee has held 3 meetings during the year

with all members present.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or

dismissal of the external auditors.
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AUDITORS’" REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is as

follows:

BB &

THEIFZBIRG 2 BRI

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018%F 2017 F
Nature of the services REME 12A31H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FoT AR For
Audit services Z 8 IR 2,633 2,492
2,633 2,492

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS B B B IR R A 2R EE 4

The Company has formulated risk management and internal
control policies covering the management of targets,
management of values and management of beliefs, and has
established a set of risk management and internal control
procedures encompassing the Company’s organisational,
institutional, procedural systems as well as information
system, in order to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ investment by means of ensuring that risk
control and strategic goals are compatible and within the
manageable scope, ensuring the proper maintenance of
accounting records and reliability of financial reporting, and
ensuring the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has established a comprehensive set of
risk management and internal control and monitoring
organisational systems. There is a risk management system
comprising the Board of Directors, the Risk Management
Committee; and there is an internal monitoring system
made up of the Audit Committee and the audit department
which reports to the Board. This set of systems ensure
the continuous improvement and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and the review of
their effectiveness. The Risk Management Committee is
made up of the Group’s management, which is responsible
and reports to the Board. The committee is responsible for
the design, implementation and monitoring of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, in order to
ensure the continuous effectiveness of the system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

The Company has formulated regulations and systems
relevant to risk management and internal control, including
the “Risk Management System” (JElf& &R HE)), “Internal
Control and Work Management Guidelines” (A &B4% 5l
TEERYEE)), “Anti-corruption Management System”
(REBEIRSF|E)), “Internal Audit Management System”
(R EFT| B ESIEZ )), “Audit Management Guidelines
for Employment Termination” (B £ 28 51 & 2 ¥ )% ))
and “Professional Ethics and Code of Conduct” (B3
BEITAZEHR])), etc. The risk management and internal
monitoring system aims to ensure the formulation and
effective implementation of financial, operational and
regulatory monitoring and risk management functions. The
process and information systems guarantee the effective
execution of the risk management and internal control
systems. Through the establishment of the process system,
the Company will be able to carry out risk identification,
risk assessment, risk response, risk monitoring and
risk improvement. During the year, the Company has
also improved the information systems relevant to risk
management and internal control, improved the internal
monitoring platform and established the corporate Wechat
platform for internal monitoring reporting. The Company
upholds the fundamental principles of “Prevention Precedes
Punishment” and “Protect Those Who Report, Avoid Those
Who are Being Investigated”

The Board has conducted a review of and is satisfied with
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group.

The Company has established an independent audit
function. The dedicated general manager of the function
is independent of the daily operation of the Group. The
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the internal
audit function of the Company has the capacity to
independently report to the Audit Committee in respect of
the matters including audit plan and resources, executed
audit procedures and material audit findings, and is capable
to conduct analysis and independent assessment on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems.

This year, the Company has continued to engage an
international risk management and business consultancy
company in providing service to the Company, and assisting
in the improvement of the Group’s risk management and
internal monitoring system.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view
and are in compliance with the statutory requirements and
applicable financial reporting standards. As at 31 December
2018, the Directors was not aware of any material
misstatement or uncertainties that might put doubt on the
Group’s financial position or continue as a going concern.
The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,

position and prospects in financial reporting.

A statement by the auditor about the auditor’s responsibility

is set out on page 175 to 183 of this annual report.
COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
the activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and
effectively. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
to prepare agendas and Board papers for meetings and
disseminates such documents to the Directors and board
committees in a timely manner. The Company Secretary
is responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully briefed
on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments when making decisions. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, including publication and dissemination
of Report and Financial Statements and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating
to the Group to the market and ensuring that proper
notification is made when there are any dealings of the
Director in the securities of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensure that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed.

During the year, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, the Company
Secretary of the Company, has undertaken no less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (“SGM")

Subject to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”) and Bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, shareholders holding in aggregate not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

Any number of shareholders representing not less than
5% of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act for putting

forward such proposal at a general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suite 3901, 39/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 28660281

Email: cs@cnegroup.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed in providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of interim and annual reports. In
addition to the circulars, notices and financial reports sent
to shareholders, additional information of the Group is also
available to shareholders on the Group's website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
is given. The Chairman and Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meeting.
Subject to the Act and the bye-laws of the Company, all
shareholders shall have statutory rights to call for special
general meetings and put forward agenda items for
consideration in the general meetings. All resolutions at the
general meeting are decided by a poll which is conducted
by the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort
to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTION AN DOCUMENT

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
document during the year.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report aims to disclose the latest development
in Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
commitment of the Group as of 31 December 2018
to the stakeholders. This report has been prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on the HKEX. This
report should be read together with the "Corporate
Governance Report” in the 2018 Annual Report
and the column Social Responsibility on the Group's
website.

Unless otherwise specified, the scope of this report
covers the ESG performance of the Group’s business
in the mainland of China only.

ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

(i) ESG Ideal

The Group is committed to being a socially
and environmentally responsible centennial
corporation, and is dedicated to being a world-
class international clean energy enterprise
and providing quality clean energy and
professional services. We operate business with
the best interest of the society, the lives and
the environment in mind, in order to actively
respond to climate change and energy shortage

through business development.
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ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(i)

ESG Strategy

In 2018, the Group reviewed the existing
ESG strategy and identified the goals and the
priorities in each area from the four aspects of
environment, people, operations and community.
At the same time, in response to the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs),
we carefully study the sustainability goals
that are most closely relevant to the Group's
business strategy and that the Group can make
a significant contribution to, to integrate them
into the Group's ESG strategy.

Environment

o We adhere to the development of new
energy sources, provide clean energy of
high quality, and contribute to climate
change.

o We comply with the environmental laws
and regulations of our operation place,
and build power plants in a responsible
manner.

o We adopt advanced technologies and
practices for environmental impact
assessment, pay attention to soil and water
conservation, biodiversity conservation,
and minimise negative impacts on the

environment.

o We promote the concept of green office,
effectively use energy and resources, and

reduce emissions.
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(ii)

- ESGEERAE)
ESG Strategy (CONTINUED) (=) ESGER(Z)

People AT

L

We comply with laws and regulations
relating to employment at our operation

place.

We adhere to the people-oriented
concept in talent development, implement
diversified recruitment, and provide equal
employment opportunities, good salary and

benefits as well as development platform.

We build a healthy and safe working
environment, implement the concept
of safety first, and effectively protect

employees’ health and safety.

We provide employees with diverse
training to achieve the common growth of

employees and the company.

We advocate healthy work and lifestyle,
and strive to increase employees’

happiness.
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ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(i)

ESG Strategy (CONTINUED)

Operation

On the basis of compliance with laws
and regulations, we provide high-quality
clean energy and professional services to
the society and create long-term value for
shareholders.

We consolidate the foundation and
promote innovation, and vigorously
promote the innovation and the application
of intelligent energy in the Internet of
Things to provide customers with more

energy products and services.

We strictly regulate supplier’s access and
evaluation, pay attention to and monitor
supplier’'s social and environmental risks,
and strive to achieve a win-win cooperation

with our partners.

We establish a corporate culture of
integrity and improve the transparency of

corporate operation.
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II. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED) Z - ESGEEER(Z)
(ii) ESG Strategy (CONTINUED) (=) ESGER,(&)
Community HE

We pay attention to the needs of
community, increase human and material
resources of public welfare, and share the
development results of the enterprise with

the society.

We improve the public’'s awareness of
environment and energy, and promote
the concept of environmental protection

through training and publicity.

We invest in education development,
promote school-enterprise cooperation,
and support the development of China’s
clean energy education.

We organise and advocate volunteer
activities to involve more employees in
public welfare activities.
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(iii) ESG Management System

100

The Group has established an ESG management
system with the Board of Directors as top
leader, senior management in charge and multi-
sectoral cooperation. As the top leadership of
the Group, the Board of Directors is responsible
for the development of ESG strategies and
the Audit Committee under the
Board of Directors supervises the Group's ESG

objectives;

commitment; the management of the Group
implements the ESG strategies and objectives,
and is subject to the assessment by the Board of
Directors; the Safety Management Committee
gives guidance on ESG work implementation,
and the Safety and Quality Supervisory
Department is responsible for supervision of
safety and quality. The business units of the
Group are responsible for the ESG commitment
in their respective fields.
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

ESG Management System (CONTINUED)

In 2018, the Group followed the General
Environment, Health, and Safety Guidelines, the
Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines
for Electricity Transfer and Distribution, the
Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines
for Wind Energy (2015) issued by the World
Bank Group, and the Social and Environmental
Sustainability Performance Standards (2012)
issued by the International Finance Corporation
to update the environmental and social
sustainability management system. With
the establishment and maintenance of the
management system, the environmental and
social sustainability issues involved in the Group’s
various businesses can be properly managed, and

related risks can be identified and controlled.

Stakeholder Engagement

Based on business and operation characteristics,
the Group identifies key stakeholders as follows:
government and regulators, shareholders and
investors, employees, suppliers and contractors,
customers and partners, and public and
community. Through a variety of channels, the
Group maintains good communication with key
stakeholders and responds to their expectations

in key concerns with appropriate actions.
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(iv) Stakeholder Engagement (CONTINUED)

Governments and

Legal operation

Z - ESGEEBAR(E)

() FEHEBEHNSEE

Official correspondence

regulators BIEEE BXER
BT R EEE HE Transparent governance Conference forum
ERE BamiE
Targeted poverty alleviation Phone call
FBERE B
Shareholders and Sustainable development of businesses  |Financial report
investors XBHAFERE B R
R MIEEE Financial performance Announcements and notices
BRI NERBE
Conference
=
Employees Labour rights Staff meeting
8T LR BIgx
Career development Training
BEERE =l
Salary and benefits Face-to-face communication
oA E0 1 T 8

Suppliers and
contractors

HEERERRE

Integrity in fulfilment of agreement
WIERA

Commercial ethics

[BEIEE

Fair competition

NEFF

Conference

.

= A

Phone call

B

Official correspondence

N AR

Face-to-face communication

[EEafiip gt

Customers and
partners

BEFPRAIEBH

Product responsibility
EmAE
Quality of service

RsEE

Conference

&

Phone call

B

Official correspondence

A GG

Face-to-face communication
MEEES

N L&

Public and community

Public welfare
=g/
Environmental impact
R E

Joint development

HFE#ER

Public survey
NRB2 T
Visiting and interview

FERD AR
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

(v)

Materiality Analysis

In addition to the major communication channels
above, we conducted an online survey for
stakeholders in 2018 to review ESG issues to
ensure that our actions and reports accurately
reflect stakeholders’ expectations. The survey
results are listed in the materiality matrix below.

Materiality on stakeholders
HRHERANEEY
> 9.9
;"’
®

— - ESGEEBARE)

(F) BEMZED T

B TIAEEZBBRBIAIN - B
R2018FFE T AR 0EE 5
FEHE  FRESCEEERSE -
ARERIRFIEN T8 K 3R 5 B S0 7 R
REMEHBEIHOHE - HEER
SRR T ERERERE -

Materiality on the Gourp's sustainability development

HiBAFERTIFERROEEN

@ New energy development ¥7&£/RRI%

@ Energy consumption BEJR{E A

@ GHG emissions ;& = FEEHEHT

@ Water usage 7K & JRfE

Waste management BEZ¥1%E 12

Ecological environmental protection 4 AEIEHE (R #

@ Employment, diversity, salary & welfare, and equal opportunity
BTEM St FHEFRFSHE

The most important issues we identified are
as follows: new energy development, product
responsibility, employee occupational health
and safety, as well as ecological environment
protection; important issues include customer
satisfaction, technology R&D and application, EfE -
community investment, energy consumption,

employment, employee training and

@ Employee occupational health and safety B TR FrEE% 2
9 Employee training and development 8 T i3I8 &
Technology R&D and application £ li&H & £ fE F
Anti-corruption management f2 855 & 12

Product responsibility 2 & 8 F

Customer satisfaction & F & &

Supply chain management f£t & i & 1%

006900

Community investment @18 &

BPRPI LN SERRERLE -
R EmEME - BIRER
BEZEZANERRERE B2
ZEBREPMEE - KilifEE
FEA - HERE - BEREMR BT
BTIHJIEER - fEEE
BRESEE  BEWERE K
BIRERASREREIN -

development, supply chain management, anti-

corruption management, waste management,

water usage and GHG emissions.
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GUARDING THE LUCID WATERS AND LUSH
MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE

Since its establishment, the Group has been
committed to the development of clean energy and
regards the undertaking as “doing the right thing”.
Energy is a common concern of the world and is the
core for almost all major challenges and opportunities.
Therefore, the Group is dedicated to the clean energy
field, sticks to green office operation, and puts energy
conservation and emission reduction into practice, so
as to guard the lucid waters and lush mountains.

(i) Developing Clean Energy

The Group commits itself to providing quality
clean energy and professional services, so as to
promote the harmonious coexistence of man
and nature. Therefore, we put clean energy
development as our top priority. In recent
years, responding to the Thirteenth Five-Year
Plan for National Energy Development jointly
issued by National Development and Reform
Commission and National Energy Administration,
as well as the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan for
Renewable Energy Development issued by the
National Development and Reform Commission,
the Group has been actively developing clean
energy. The Group’s installed capacity and
annual energy generation from wind power and
photovoltaic power maintain a relatively fast
growth, which has provided stable clean energy
to the society and promoted the realisation of

energy conservation and emission reduction.
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Ill. GUARDING THE LUCID WATERS AND LUSH
MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

()

(ii)

Developing Clean Energy (CONTINUED)

Compared with traditional thermal power
generation, the Group’s clean energy generation:

ML G N EE, AEEFEREE:

Saved water (tons) EiZIRZK ()
By2018 #i1-2018

6,917,000
Accumulatively 5184
64,450,000

Saved standard coal (tons) Hi4I1Z5E (H&)
By 2018 #1F2018

1,710,000

Accumulatively Z:&tE14)

8,624,000

Protecting Ecological Environment

As a practitioner in the green energy industry,
the Group’s major impact on environment
and natural resources is the influence on the
ecological environment during the construction
and operation process of power plants. The
Group strictly abides by the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Environmental Impact Assessment
and the Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection,
etc. Before the construction, environmental
impact assessment (“EIA”) and safety evaluation

= ERzL FEEKFILGE)

(—) BIBBERER(E)

Reduced CO2 emission (tons) —S{LBERiHE (58)
By 2018 #1:2018

4,395,000

Accumulatively $3158 7

24,551,000

Reduced NOx emission (tons) BEL4mHE (H8)
By 2018 #1:2018

1,383

Accumulatively et

19,413

Reduced SOx emission (tons) —&{LFRHE ()
By 2018 #1-2018

1,439

Accumulatively Stigi>

21,783

(Z) REERRE

ERRERREXNNEE &8
EBHRBERRAERNTZEETE
EREMERSETBIZP AR
RENTE - FEBRERE(TE
ARKMBERFREE) - (PEA
REMBARRISRIAE) (P
ARKMBIOSREE) ~
ARKNBERFEZEFEER) (2
REBRRREEEGIDZFRE
REFEM - AT - EEMARE
RIAR (BHEEEBE)IETRE
FEVEMNLZHE - AHRF -
L AP E MK AR A HEE ¢ 5
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MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Protecting Ecological Environment (Z) RELRERIBE(EZ)

(CONTINUED)

are performed for all construction projects
(including reconstruction and expansion projects)
of the Group, and the EIA report and safety
assessment report are submitted to relevant
government authorities for approval. During
the construction, the project company and
the supervision unit conduct supervision and
management, and strictly implement the “three
simultaneousness” system of construction
projects’ environmental protection, which
means that simultaneous design, simultaneous
construction and simultaneous operation of the
main body and the pollution prevention and
control measures and safety facilities project
must be realized. After the construction, the
project company organises internal acceptance
and external acceptance to ensure that the main
environmental protection facilities and various
ecological protection measures are implemented
in accordance with the requirements of the EIA
and the EIA approval.

Soil and Water Conservation

Vegetation damage is inevitable during the
construction of power plants, so the Group
attaches great importance to soil and water
conservation. In 2018, the Group further
increased investment in soil and water
conservation. There were 22 projects of soil and
water conservation under implementation. The

total contract amounts were RMB98.86 million.
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Ill. GUARDING THE LUCID WATERS AND LUSH
MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

(i)

Protecting Ecological Environment
(CONTINUED)

Soil and Water Conservation (CONTINUED)

During the construction of projects, we have
combined preventive protection measures and
water conservation engineering measures to
reduce water loss and soil erosion:

o When building roads and wiring stringing,
we try to keep away from trees and shrubs
as much as possible to reduce vegetation
damage;

o We effectively reduce water loss and soil
erosion through vegetation greening,
road slope treatment, and construction of
drainage ditch and drainage culvert;

o We effectively reduce the floor area of
maintenance roads and lifting platforms
by optimal design and rational use of
equipment. For example, the use of blade
lift trucks and axle vehicles to transport
large wind turbine equipment can greatly
reduce the road width and turning radius;
the change of unloading and lifting
methods for wind turbines via adoption of
lean lifting, so that the lifting area could be
effectively shrunk to reduce the damages
to mountains and vegetation. For the
design of base platform of electrical circuits
in mountainous area, the foundation of the
towers with high and low legs or unequal
heights is designed along the slope, which
will reduce the earthwork excavation and
filling by more than 50%, and effectively
combine environment protection and
improvement of economic benefits.
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MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Protecting Ecological Environment (=) RELEREBIE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Soil and Water Conservation (CONTINUED)

At the same time, we have changed the
operation and management pattern of power
plants and applied new technologies to promote
unattended and less attended booster stations,
so as to optimise the human resources allocation
in power plants and reduce the area of booster
stations.

Biodiversity Conservation

In consideration of the noises and the potential
damages to animals arising from wind turbine
operation and rotation, we have paid special
attention to the existence and migration of birds
and wild animals during the EIA, and tried our
best to protect biodiversity during construction
and operation of the wind power plants.

In order to understand and provide targeted
protection, we have employed third-party
professional organisations to conduct field
surveys and report on biodiversity. In 2018,
investigators conducted field surveys in and
around Nanzhao Huanghou Wind Power Plant
and Nanzhao Huayuan Wind Power Plant
to observe if there were any target species
such as mergus squamatus, anthya ferina
and falco cherrug, and if there was possibility
of hits on target species from wind turbines
operation. Such observations would provide
basic information for developing protection
and management measures. Investigators
also conducted detailed surveys especially for
Andrias, a national Class Il protected amphibians
wild animal, in the wind farm of the Laomiaogou
Reservoir to understand whether there is Andrias
and how to protect such kind of national rare
species.
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MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Protecting Ecological Environment (=) RELREBIE(Z
(CONTINUED)
Biodiversity Conservation (CONTINUED) LS EMIREE)

In addition to investigation on biodiversity, we
also protect biodiversity by practical actions in
production and daily life. In 2018, repairers of
the Group’s wind-solar complementary power
plant in Arikunduleng, Inner Mongolia, found
a young injured ciconia nigra (a national Class
| protected animal) during inspection. They
rescued it jointly with the local forest public
security bureau and sent it to a pet clinic for
professional treatment, thereby putting the
Group’s concept of biodiversity conservation into
practice.

Emissions Management

During the construction and operation of power
plants, the main emissions include dust during
construction, noise generated by wind power,
light and shadow generated by photovoltaic
power, and sewage from booster stations.

We have arranged waste disposal areas along
the road to transport the remaining soil to
designated location and cover it in time, so as
to reduce dust pollution. For facility location,
we have taken the impact of noise and light on
the surrounding residents into full consideration,
especially for sensitive places such as schools and
hospitals, to make sure that there is adequate
separation distance. When there is higher
requirement from local environmental protection
authorities, we review the facility location in
strict accordance with environmental protection

requirements.
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(ii)

(iii)

110

Protecting Ecological Environment
(CONTINUED)

Emissions Management (CONTINUED)

We also formulate unified regulations for water
and sewage treatment measures in the project
site. Most of the new energy development
projects are located in the suburbs, where the
construction and domestic water sources are
generally from local wells. We have entrusted
qualified institutions for water testing and
identification, and the water can only be used
after meeting the requirement specified in the
Hygienic Standard for Drinking Water. The main
sewage source is the domestic sewage from
the booster station workers. After septic tank
treatment, such domestic sewage is discharged
into the buried integrated domestic sewage
treatment facility for further treatment. The
treated water is qualified for road cleaning and
urban greening water per requirements in the
Miscellaneous Water Quality for Urban Sewage
Recycling and Utilisation, and completely used
for greening or sprinkling water to suppress dust
in the booster station, leaving no significant
impact on the regional surface water and
groundwater environment.

Promoting Green Operation

The Group adheres to the practice of green
operation. In 2018, we adopted a series of
measures and achieved good effects in energy
conservation and emission reduction.
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(iii) Promoting Green Operation (CONTINUED) (=) HEEEERN(E)

Power Management

In 2018, we replaced some of the old lighting
fixtures in the headquarters office with energy-
saving lamps step by step, made full use of
natural light, and avoided unnecessary light
during daytime and lights that are never
turned off; the decorative lights were turned
off except for important festival days. Through
above measures, the headquarters office has
made significant achievement in power saving.
From August to October 2018, the power
consumption of the headquarters office was
decreased by 5.2% on a year-on-year basis,
including a decrease of approximately 1,400
kWh in August and September and a decrease
of 2,400 kWh in October.

Water Management

In 2018, we replaced some manual faucets with
automatic faucets, and added control valves
to faucets with large water output. At the
same time, we strengthened inspections and
gave timely treatment for local leaks and water
seepage to prevent waste, so that the use of

water resources could be reduced.
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(iii) Promoting Green Operation (CONTINUED)

112

Paper Management

We have strengthened the control over printing
paper. We carried out centralised purchase
from the suppliers according to fixed monthly
amount. Any temporary procurement must be
approved by the Administrative Department, and
we strictly controlled the usage of paper and
avoid waste from the source. When using paper,
we advocate printing on both sides, and paper-
free office.

Vehicle Management

In 2018, we added a vehicle-specific
management mechanism. Each car was assigned
to a staff responsible for driving, inspection and
maintenance management. At the same time, we
strengthened the management of vehicle records
by increasing records of fuelling and traffic
violation, so as to form vehicle management

documents to better monitor vehicle fuel usage.
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(IV) Environmental Key Performance Indicators () BIEERENIEE
(KPIs)
Unless otherwise specified, the environmental M BAESAAYN - ANEIFTIREHERIBIE
KPIs provided in this section only cover the BREBUEEEEERE=EFNTE
business of the Group’s wholly-owned businesses RiENHEERNTINERE 28 A
in the mainland of China, whereas that of the TERENBEER o

joint-venture projects are excluded.

Emissions By

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) (tons) 2 697,79
BEREHNES(SHE—REE =) () T
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tons)
o 1,595.82
BN (EHE—)(HE)
Petrol for official vehicles (tons) 1 573.40
NG R () T
Diesel for official vehicles (tons)
. 22.42
NGBS h (ME)
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (tons)
TN 6,101.90
A (EE =) (M)
Purchased electricity (tons)
6,101.90
HNEEEE (1R
GHG emission intensity (g/kWh) 335
BEREBHERZE(R/TER) '
Total hazardous waste (tons) 110
BEREEDBEE(E) '
Hazardous waste per capita (tons per person
- P pita ( perp ) 0.00074
ANIBEEEM(WE/A)
Total non-hazardous waste (tons) 115 26
EEREEYES () '
Non-hazardous waste per capita (tons per person) 0.08
ANEEREEY (W A) '
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(IV) Environmental Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) (CONTINUED)

Emissions (CONTINUED)

Note:

1. Due to its business nature, the significant air
emissions of the Group is GHG emissions,
arising mainly from electricity and fuels derived
from fossil fuels. The Group’s GHG inventory
includes carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide. GHG emissions data is presented in
carbon dioxide equivalent and is calculated
based on the 2075 Baseline Emission Factors
for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the
National Development and Reform Commission
of China, and the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories issued by
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC). Indirect emission data arising from
purchased electricity do not cover purchased
electricity for projects in Tibet, as Tibet is not
included in the regional grid division in the 2075
Baseline emission Factors for Regional Power
Grids in China; therefore, the baseline emission
factors is unable to obtain.

2. Hazardous waste mainly includes waste toner
cartridges, ink cartridges, waste fluorescent
tubes, waste mineral oil, etc. Waste toner
cartridges, ink cartridges, waste fluorescent
tubes and other hazardous office waste are
recycled by qualified service providers. Waste
mineral oil generated from operation and
maintenance of wind power projects, as agreed,
is subject to recycling by vendors in accordance
with relevant regulations as the wind turbines
are under warranty; therefore, these data are
not yet included therein. The Group will disclose
data of such hazardous waste where applicable;
other waste mineral oil generated from vehicle
maintenance is submitted to qualified service
providers for recycling.

3. Non-hazardous waste mainly includes household
garbage, which is calculated according to the
Handbook on Domestic Discharge Efficiencies
for Towns in the First Nationwide Census on
Contaminant Discharge published by the State
Council.
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. GUARDING THE LUCID WATERS AND LUSH = ERZL  FEEASIL(E)
MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

(IV) Environmental Key Performance Indicators (9) BIEERENIEESE)
(KPIs) (CONTINUED)

Energy and Resources Consumption BER R ERHFE

Total energy consumption (MWh)
Ak S NI 15,736.54
R EFEESE OKRE)
Direct energy consumption (MWh)
> o wgy gk ip 6,512.63
BB CKELE)
Petrol for official vehicles (MWh) 6427 34
NIEE UM (JEFLEY ) o
Diesel for official vehicles (MWh) 85 20
NI ESm (JEFLRY ) '
Indirect energy consumption (MWh)
N NN 9,223.91
AR B R ELE)
Electricity (MWh)
b 9,223.91
SMNBE N K ELE )
Energy consumption intensity (kWh/kWh) 0.007
BERERE(TRRTRE) :
Water consumption (tons)
- 17,059.38
FEK 2 (W7 )
Water consumption per capita (tons/person) 1143
AFEKE (B, A) '
Note: 7
1. Total energy consumption is worked out by the 1. EBNESHERETHRKE
data of electricity and fuel with reference to HNEEMPEAREMEER
the coefficients in the national standards of the B A R & @ B (GB/T
People’s Republic of China General Principles 2589-2008) ) AR E A T £t
for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy =i
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008), and the
Standardisation Administration of the People’s
Republic of China.
2. Energy consumption intensity refers to the ratio 2. T EREEANGRRRE

of energy consumed to electricity generation. EHLH R o

115



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRSE

116

GUARDING THE LUCID WATERS AND LUSH
MOUNTAINS WITH PERSEVERANCE (CONTINUED)

(IV) Environmental Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) (CONTINUED)

Energy and Resources Consumption
(CONTINUED)

Note: (CONTINUED)
3. Water consumption refers to that of tap water.

4. Packing materials is not applicable to the Group.

FACILITATING EMPLOYEE’S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE

“People-oriented” is one of the Group’s core values.
We respect and protect employees’ labour rights,
provide employees with good salaries and benefits
as well as development platform, and hope to share
development results with employees. We regard
employees’ health and safety as the top priority, and
continue to improve the safety management system
to protect employees’ health and safety. We pay
special attention to employees’ growth and the ability
improvement, and strive to provide employees with
diversified training, so as to achieve growth together
with employees. We expect to make our employees
feel like home, care for employees beyond the
working environment, and enhance their corporate

identity.

In March 2018, in the “China’s Best Employer of the
Year” event organised by Zhilian Recruitment and
Peking University's Corporate Social Responsibility and
Employer Brand Communication Research Centre, the
Group won the “Nomination Award for China’s Best
Employer in 2017".
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

()

Thirsting for Talents and Building a Team

with Diversity

We are eager to recruit outstanding talents and
elites in the industry by implementing diversified
recruitment, and welcome talents with different
professional and cultural backgrounds to join
us, so as to jointly promote the development
of the Group. We strictly abide by the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Special Rules on the Labour
Protection of Female Employees and other
relevant laws and regulations, and developed
CNE Labour Contract Management System,
CNE Recruitment Management System, CNE
Management System for Employee Transfer,
Secondment and Resignation, CNE Reserve
Talent Management System, CNE Employee
Attendance and Leave Management System,
CNE Performance Management System, CNE
Administrative Measures for Employee Rewards
and Punishments, CNE Administrative Measures
for Plateau Subsidies, and other relevant rules
and regulations to standardise the management
of the Group in terms of recruitment, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, holidays, benefits,
etc. Meanwhile, the complete processes for
recruitment are guaranteed to be fair, just and
open, against any discrimination on gender,
race, belief, etc., and child labour and forced

labour are strictly prohibited.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(i) Thirsting for Talents and Building a Team
with Diversity (CONTINUED)

The workforce composition of the Group is as
follows:

Gender
L 173

2018

2017 1,062

2016

0 300 600 900 1200 1500

= Female BT
=Male HBHET

2018 2018 WEEREN

2017 217 1124 2017 BEENES

2016 2016 (AVARYE

2017 voRuPA

2016

AR BMHETIBRR(E

(=) REEB  TESTEKRE)

SEEREIBRNOT :

Level
REVIE %

2018 RO

300 600 900 1200 1500
= Senior management =% EIEE
= Middle management &2 E

= Ordinary staff EEET

Service lines
REREF

Head office management

KR

Design, engineering procurement
I and contruction (EP

WE S BREKERE - ZR(EPC)

Design, leasing, etc.

Bt HEEEB

782 6

Project development and
management
HERERER

IOperann and maintenance
T

| I Energy loT application
i i}

0 300 600 900 1200 1500 0 300

= 56 and above 5677 A L
= 46-55 46-555%
= 36-45 36-455%
= 26-35

- 26-355%
= 25 and below 255%LA T

Region
PEER

2018

2017

0 100 200 300 400 500 600
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900 1200 1500

m Eastern China FERIM R
m Southern China R R
m Central China @
® Northern China ESlg-

m Northwestern China  Fadtibl&
B Southwestern China  Fargibl&
u Northeastern China B dtith[&

= Hong Kong, Macau /&R EHTE
and Taiwan

m Foreign countries HhgE
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(i)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety

The Group adheres to the concept of “safety
first” and always pays attention to and
guarantees employees’ occupational health and
safety. We fully implemented the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Prevention and Control Law of
Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic
of China, Administrative Regulations on the
Work Safety of Construction Projects, Regulation
on Work Safety License and Regulation on
Work-Related Injury Insurance and other
relevant regulations, and, in accordance with
the production safety policy of “safety first,
with a focus on prevention and comprehensive
management”, established a group-level
occupational health and safety management
system and a subsidiary-level occupational
health and safety management system
specification, with the headquarters, branches
and subsidiaries, and project companies as
the main bodies responsible for safety at
different levels, so as to achieve simultaneous
planning, arrangement, inspection, summary
and assessment of the safety work and various
production and operation works. In 2018, the
Safety and Quality Supervisory Department of
the Group organised re-preparation and revision
of eight safety systems including CNE Provisions
on Production Safety Management and CNE
Procedures for Accident (Events) Investigation,
covering the safety management, safety
responsibility, accident investigation, safety work
rewards and punishments, safety education
and training, safety inspection and hidden
danger investigation and control, submission of
production safety information, management of
technical measures for labour safety protection
and anti-accident measures, etc. We also
regularly check hazards sources at workplace to
ensure that employees’ possible exposure to risk
factors shall be controlled within a safe range.
Meanwhile, in order to ensure the health of
employees, the Group organises employees to
have physical examinations every year.
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120

FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice

Construction Safety

The engineering company of the Group obtained
the occupational health and safety certification,
and developed the CNE Engineering Construction
Safety Management Measures and other systems
to standardise the safety management of
construction. During construction, we conduct
on-site safety training for construction contractor
personnel and strictly supervise construction
safety. Especially before the construction of sub-
divisional and divisional projects with high risk
such as excavation of deep foundation pit and
equipment hoisting, we organise the participants
to carry out safety technical disclosure training
for construction teams and operators in
accordance with the special construction plan. In
addition, during the construction of the power
plants, the supervisor conducts safety inspections
on the participants every week. Construction will
be suspended immediately if any safety hazards

found and rectification measures shall be taken.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice
(CONTINUED)

Production Safety

The Group takes production safety seriously and
has established a production system through
a series of systems such as Production Safety
Management Regulations for Power Plants,
Management Measures for Production Safety
Responsibility System of Power Plants and
Management Requlations for Production Safety
Standardisation. In terms of provision of labour
protection products, we provide employees
with adequate labour protection products in
accordance with the CNE Tooling Provision
Regulations and Supplementary Regulations
on Standards for Purchase and Distribution of
Labour Protection Products in the Production
System.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(i)

122

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice
(CONTINUED)

Production Safety (CONTINUED)

In 2018, the Group adopted various types
of targeted inspections, safety training and
other safety activities, in combination with the
comprehensive, detailed work requirements
for the actual work on site against all the
employees, to ensure the organisation,
responsibility, management and measures
for production safety works are all in place,
further strengthening the Group’s production
safety. In addition, fire, rain, snow and freeze
are the major environmental risks that affect
so we pay special attention to fire prevention
inspections, as well as rain, snow and freeze
disaster prevention. In 2018, the Group newly
formulated Measures for Preventing Fan Fire
Accidents and the Emergency Plan against Rain,
Snow and Frost, and arranged staff to conduct
spot check and regular check on the quality of
wholly-owned wind power projects in different
provinces, and included the entire process of
preparation, supervision and acceptance of
regular check on wind turbines into production

management.

We also impose punishments on the poor
management in production and operation,
whereas reward excellent teams and staffs in
the light of the Regulations on Rewards and

Punishments for Work Safety in Power Plants.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(i)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice
(CONTINUED)

O&M Safety

In operation and maintenance management, the
operation and maintenance company (“O&M
Company”) established a Safety Management
Committee, and regularly organises meetings
to study, discuss, and solve key problems in
production safety management, negotiate
safety management work such as safety culture
development, develop annual safety plan and
prepare safety funds, regularly establish safety
management regulations and countermeasures
in light of the current national and industrial
safety situation, and organise members of the
Safety Management Committee to conduct
safety management training. We implement the
accountability system, appointing the person in
charge of the power plant as the first person
responsible for safety, and sign the annual safety
responsibility letter. In addition, we arrange
a safety supervisor to carry out regular safety
activities as required by the O&M Company’s
Safety Management Committee, and implement
the safety management system, regulations
and safety requirements. For new employees,
the O&M Company conducts on-site safety
education, establishes safety archive, and signs
safety agreements with them.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH CBEEIL BMHEIRRE)
CARE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Safety First, and Protecting Employees’ (=) 2% — REEBIZX2(E)
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice B RELZER(E)
(CONTINUED)

O&M Safety (CONTINUED) TR IEM ()

The O&M Company also sets up a safety BHENRIESRN TR RIEE
technical training committee, responsible Be  AFHITLE  FiE)E
for developing safety and technical training A E . FHIAEL AT BE(E
management systems, to regularly organise B)Z%2 » HiTiEi)l o 22 I
safety and technical training for the Company THITRE HEERA EHZEM
and power plants (projects). The O&M REZ2EINER - WiEH 228
Company’s Safety Supervisory Department WIAMEEEREFZFENREE B
regularly issues typical accident cases and safety FEEELTEIERMEKERES
training materials regarding power generation, SMFEA @ WETELE - [ - &
and prepares “safety briefing” to disclose T - BEHBATGEESKEH
problems in safety management. Meanwhile, 40 4 E = T 2E A8 N R 2= = A4l 1
the Department publicises units and individuals I FINEWEIL A L e

who have made achievements in safety work,
and awards them. All power plants and project
teams regularly organise emergency plan drills
in accordance with the requirements of the
Company’s system, and organises “two votes
and three systems” training. Only the qualified

employees can take the position.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice
(CONTINUED)

Safety Supervision

In order to monitor the safety work of the
Group, the Safety and Quality Supervisory
Department set up by the Group took a
number of actions in 2018, including strict
control over the production safety information
submission, regular monitoring, and organisation
of third parties to carry out potential danger
investigation, so as to ensure the stable safety

situation of the Group.

To strictly control the management of
production safety information submission, we
established a three-level (the Group, branches
and subsidiaries, and project companies) system
of “safety, quality and environmental protection
information communicator”. Monthly safety
work meetings are held, requiring all project
companies to submit safety information which
includes the implementation of two votes (work
order and operation order), the implementation
of emergency drill and anti-accident exercise,
violation of the regulations, and organization
of safety activities, so as to supervise project
companies to complete daily safety work.
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(i)

126

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice
(CONTINUED)

Safety Supervision (CONTINUED)

We regularly carry out safety supervision and
inspection. In 2018, we carried out safety
supervision and inspection on 35 project
companies, focusing on the establishment
and improvement of safety system, safety
education and training, and the safety status
of construction projects. We issued supervision
and inspection reports on the problems found,
and requested rectification within a time limit
to achieve closed-loop management. We focus
on the autumn safety inspection, and prepare
relevant schedule, determining a checklist of
110 items, so as to avoid arbitrary and unclear
inspection, and ensure high quality of such
inspection.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE’'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(i)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Actively Carrying Out Safety Practice
(CONTINUED)

Safety Supervision (CONTINUED)

The Safety and Quality Supervisory Department
organised a third-party organisation to carry
out potential danger investigations on Guangxi
Fuchuan Wind Power Plant and Hunan lJiepai
Wind Power Plant in November 2018. According
to the national laws, regulations and standards,
and the actual production safety of the Group,
the experts from the third-party organisation
carried out detailed investigations item by item
of a total of more than 500 inspection standards
from five professional aspects including safety
management, labour safety and operating
environment, wind turbines, primary electrical
system and secondary electrical system. After
discovering the problems, the Safety and Quality
Supervisory Department instructed the project
companies to develop rectification plans in a
timely manner, and supervised the project group
to complete the rectification and eliminate the
hidden dangers in the wind power plants, so as
to further strengthen the production safety.
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(ii)

128

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Vigorously Publicising Safety Concept

We are fully aware of the importance of the
publicity and implementation of safety concept
for the safety work. To this end, we organise
the units at all levels to learn safety information
through a variety of ways to improve the
safety awareness of staffs at all levels. We have
established the OA Safety Column, releasing 79
pieces of learning materials of warning on safety
accidents, 72 pieces of materials in industry-
leading experience, and 81 pieces of materials
on laws and regulations relating to safety as well
as industrial standards.

Activities for Production Safety Month

In June 2018, the Group and our subsidiaries
actively carried out the activities for production
safety month in a variety of forms, including
safety examinations, safety skill assessment,
safety tools use, and emergency drills such as
flood prevention and heatstroke prevention in
high temperature. The activities for production
safety month fully mobilised the enthusiasm of
employees, enhanced their safety awareness,
consolidated safety skills, improved emergency
response capabilities, and further confirmed their

safety responsibilities.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Vigorously Publicising Safety Concept
(CONTINUED)

Activities for Production Safety Month
(CONTINUED)

At the Group level, we set up the “Column
for Production Safety Month 2018" in the
Safety Corner, and uploaded 11 documents
in the above column including Life Book,
the Importance of Safety, and Promotional
Video Recommended by National Energy
Administration for Guiding the National
“Production Safety Month”, “Production Safety
Expedition” Activities in the Power Industry
2018, providing materials for each unit to study

and disseminate safety knowledge.
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IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Vigorously Publicising Safety Concept
(CONTINUED)

Activities for Production Safety Month
(CONTINUED)

At the subsidiaries level, we organised the
employees to watch the theme video and
warning education film in relation to the
activities for “Production Safety Month”, and
carried out the activities such as accident recap
and accident case study; we organised 95
safety lectures, 80 accident case studies, and 73
emergency drills in total. The O&M Company
organised the “Contribution Cup” knowledge
contest; and 11 project companies independently
organised safety examinations, safety skills
assessment, and safety equipment and tool use.
In addition, during the safety month, special
safety inspections were conducted; and each
project company actively completed rectification
and achieved closed loop management.

130

M- BAZ20 WHEITBRRE)

D) REE— REEIRR(E)

AVERBZR2ER(E)

ZEHEHZE(E)

ATEBENER  RMESEE
(Z2EEAIEHETESEALA
ZR¥ER - ABRAREHRREKR
i FHMERASBEEES - H4E
BEE2EHBNR EHERHEE
80X~ JESSEMT7I N ¢ BEHENA
HEETIEBRIANESE 1@
HEARBFHEB TZE2ER - %
PHEEFLES R TEHRAER
SEE) ;AN - BE A HRAEF
BRL2HERE - FEE QA RER
HE)ER RN - BRMAREE -



2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERRSE

IV. FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(i)

Safety First, and Protecting Employees’
Safety (CONTINUED)

Vigorously Publicising Safety Concept
(CONTINUED)

National Fire Prevention Day Training

In order to respond to the national Fire
Prevention Day in 2018 and implement the
activity themed with “Fire Prevention and
Control throughout the Nation”, and further
enhance employees’ awareness of fire safety, the
Group organised fire safety training for 2018 on
6 November 2018. More than 50 persons from
the Group Management, different departments
and subsidiaries in Beijing participated in the
training; a total of 87 branches including
subsidiaries located outside Beijing, the project
companies and the O&M Project Department
participated in the training remotely. Such
fire safety training enabled the participants
at all levels to be aware of the concept of
“lack of safety awareness is also a hidden
danger”, further strengthening their fire safety
awareness and basic knowledge for effective
fire prevention, and laying a solid foundation for

winter fire safety work of all units.
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CARE (CONTINUED)

(iii) Organising Training and Improving the (=) AsgEI —=HeeER

Empowerment System

The Group is committed to becoming a learning
organisation. It encourages employees to learn in
various forms, and aims to achieve growth with
employees through internal and external learning

for value creation and self-development.

Complete Training System

We have set up a complete training system.
We have developed the Group Training
Management System, the Group Training
Archives Management Regulations, the Group
Internal Lecturer Management Regulations
and the Beijing Management Centre New
Employee Orientation Training Regulations,
etc. to standardise management of training.
We carry out diversified training courses and
create different training course systems for the
senior and mid-level management, management
trainees and new joiners. In terms of lecturer,
the Group lays great stress on the development
of lecturers responsible for developing teaching
materials independently and delivering

orientation courses to new joiners.
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(iii) Organising Training and Improving the (=) MAlE TEHMERBRE)
Empowerment System (CONTINUED)

Complete Training System (CONTINUED) TEENIZEZE(E)

In 2018, the Group’s trainings focused more

2018 FE£EFINEIMFERTEE

on employees’ actual needs and improving THERITEEZE  BAEITER
their work ability. We conducted interviews TiEge ) - HEEEUMAERE
with personnel in key positions, based on the TREEMEMITH G ARERE
results of which the training course system FTEIERER 125 7T
was updated, thereby improving training I REE  c EERPE
effectiveness and satisfaction. The Group keeps HERHER B T ERREEE
up with the trend of the Internet era, increasing P R @ BRI el F ke
the utilisation rate of the Group’s online college, BHhee - IR TETIHELE@EE
and making it easier for employees to learn 14 o

through the functions of online college on

mobile end.

Diversified Training Practices BEEEE

The Group’s main training cases in 2018 include:
training for mid-level management’s interview
skills, competence build-up training for reserve
talents, orientation training for new joiners and
professional training.

Mid-Level Management Training

The training for mid-level management interview
skills was carried out in September 2018, and
more than 50 senior and mid-level management
personnel from the Group management, Beijing
Management Centre and subsidiaries located in

Beijing participated in the training.
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(iii) Organising Training and Improving the
Empowerment System (CONTINUED)

Diversified Training Practices (CONTINUED)
Competence Build-up Training for Reserve Talent

In June 2018, the Group carried out the second
stage of the third reserve talent training scheme,
in which 45 management trainees participated.
The training covered modern enterprise
management knowledge, improvement of
professional accomplishment, interpersonal
communication skills, action & execution,
innovation awareness training and team
building.

Orientation Training for New Joiners

In 2018, newcomer orientation training took
place in March, June and September respectively
with more than 60 participants. The contents
include the enterprise’s general situation,

corporate strategy, rules and regulations, etc.
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(iii) Organising Training and Improving the

(=) g =ERERR(A)

Empowerment System (CONTINUED)

Diversified Training Practices (CONTINUED)

Professional Training

The business departments of the Group also
organised a variety of trainings. For example,
the Engineering Department participated in
the Enterprise Archives Management Training
organised by the Training Centre of National
Development and Reform Commission; the
financial system organised two training sessions
for all employees involved to learn the latest
financial and tax law knowledge, and sent
employees to participate in external professional
trainings provided by Tax China and Golden
Education for many times; the production system
carried out trainings on policies and regulations,
safety management, equipment, technology,
and professional knowledge by inviting external
experts and group lecturers, or out-of-office
research; the power distribution department
organised trainings aiming to improve the
operational ability of power sales personnel; and
the design company organised engineering cost
training to strengthen the designers’ awareness
of project cost control, and further improve
their program design capability. Additionally,
the other business departments of the Group,
according to actual needs, also organised various
professional trainings, including energy storage,
financial leasing, and file management to
meet the needs of employees for business and

development.
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(iv) Creating Family Culture and Increasing

136

Employees’ Sense of Belonging

While paying attention to employees’
occupational health and safety and career
growth, the Group also hopes that employees
can work happily. To make employees feel happy
physically and mentally after work and relieve
work pressure, the Group organises various
corporate cultural activities, including brisk
walking, bicycle challenge race, sports meeting,
etc., so as to strengthen the communication
and exchange among colleagues, enhance the
enterprise cohesion, and improve employees’
identification with the Group.

Work-Life Balance

We encourage positive working and living
conditions. We organise a variety of sports after
work and encourage employees to participate
actively to achieve a balance between work and
life.

Le Tour de France Challenge Race

On 21 October 2018, our leaders and employees
teamed up to participate in the L'Etape Beijing
by Le Tour de France, and successfully completed
the whole race through challenging themselves,
persistence and continuous breakthrough,
proving the Group’s values of “Striving for
Excellence” and the spirit of “Cooperation
and Aggressiveness” with practical actions and
excellent performance.
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(iv) Creating Family Culture and Increasing (M) TR EMETRER(Z)

Employees’ Sense of Belonging (CONTINUED)

Work-Life Balance (CONTINUED)

Sports Meeting

From 26 to 27 October 2018, the Group sent
a team of more than 40 persons to participate
in the 6th “Wind Power Cup” sports meeting.
They participated in basketball, football,
badminton, table tennis, swimming and
other sports, and won the swimming team
championship. The sports meeting not only
demonstrated the Group's spirit of “Cooperation
and Aggressiveness”, but also enhanced our
exchanges with industry peers, and deepened
the understanding and communication between
the colleagues from different departments and

units of the Group.

Brisk Walking

Brisk walking is an annual routine activity of
the Group, which aims to promote the physical
and mental health of employees and enhance
their awareness of exercise. The number of
participants has been increasing year by year. In
April 2018, a total of more than 120 employees
participated in the “Power to Go" spring
outdoor walking in the Olympic Forest Park.
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FACILITATING EMPLOYEE'S DEVELOPMENT WITH
CARE (CONTINUED)

(iv) Creating Family Culture and Increasing
Employees’ Sense of Belonging (CONTINUED)

Mutual Fund for Employees

We focus on the status of employees outside
the work scene, and look forward to creating
a family-like work environment. To help solve
major difficulties such as serious illnesses
among employees within the Group or their
direct relatives, the Group has set up a “Mutual
Fund for Employees”. Since its establishment
in August 2010, the Fund has helped nine
employees with a total of RMB300,000.

STANDARDISING ENTERPRISE OPERATION WITH
THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Our vision is to become an international world-class
clean-energy enterprise, which also spurs us to adhere
to the enterprise spirit of “Integrity, Dedication,
Cooperation and Aggressiveness” and achieve
sustainable development of enterprise through the
honest corporate governance, high-quality product
and service, responsible supply chain management and
industrial exchange, and scientific and technological

innovation.
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()

Integrity - Combating Corruption and
Upholding Integrity

The Group attaches great importance to anti-
corruption work. On the basis of complying
with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, in 2018, we revised and released
the Anti-Corruption Management System, the
Code of Professional Ethics, the Internal Audit
Management System, the Audit Management
Guidelines for Employment Termination and the
Measures for the Supervision and Administration
of Bidding, and revised the original Professional
Ethics and Code of Conduct for Managers
to the Code of Professional Ethics, the scope
of application of which was expanded from
managers to all employees.

As for anti-corruption work, the Group upholds
the fundamental principles of “Prevention
Precedes Punishment” and “Protect Those
Who Report, Avoid Those Who are Being
Investigated”, and adopts comprehensive
measures including training, education,
guidance, encouragement of reporting, and
public disclosure of results. Reporting channels
include telephone, email, mailbox and corporate
WeChat.
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Integrity - Combating Corruption and
Upholding Integrity (CONTINUED)

In 2018, the Group actively carried out the
education activities themed with “combating
corruption and upholding integrity”. In
April 2018, the Group organised employee
representatives to go to the Anti-corruption
Warning Education Base of Beijing Municipal
Prison for receiving warning education. In the
activity, the prison guards led the employee
representatives to visit the anti-corruption
warning education exhibition and the living
places of the prisoners, and watch videos of
typical crimes accused of duty crimes. The anti-
corruption education activity is a wake-up call
to raise awareness of anti-corruption among
employees. By the end of 2018, the Group’s
WeChat supervision platform uploaded 12 anti-
corruption thematic articles, with more than
2,000 views.

Dedication - Quality Control

The Group is committed to providing quality
clean energy and professional services. While
ensuring safe and stable energy supply to the
society, we also actively develop energy storage
business, attach importance to standardised
system management and customer satisfaction

for various professional services.
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STANDARDISING ENTERPRISE OPERATION WITH
THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Dedication - Quality Control (CONTINUED)

Safe and Stable Energy Supply

At present, the Group has 74 wind and
photovoltaic power plants in Hebei Province,
Shanxi Province, Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region, Liaoning Province, Jilin Province,
Heilongjiang Province, Jiangsu Province, Anhui
Province, Shandong Province, Henan Province,
Hubei Province, Hunan Province, Guangxi
Province, Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province,
Yunnan Province, Tibet, Gansu Province, as well
as in the United States, including 43 wholly-
owned power plants, providing quality clean
energy for the society.

In 2018, the Group achieved an equity power
generation output of 3,635.77GWh, with a year-
on-year growth of 48.55%.
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o Bz RELXEE(E)

(ii) Dedication - Quality Control (CONTINUED) Z) BhE.-GEEEE)
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Developing Energy Storage Business

With the gradual increase in the proportion
of renewable energy power generation, the
demand for energy storage industry is gradually
enhanced, and energy storage technology
innovation is bound to be a new focus for
efficient utilisation of clean energy. In 2018, the
Group increased its investment in energy storage

business.

Case 1: Naidong Energy Storage Project of

Tibet for power generation side

In 2018, the energy storage project of power
generation side in Tibet Naidong was put into
operation. This project is our first project in the
field of energy storage, and also the first high-
altitude echelon-use energy storage project
on the power generation side in China. The
project can effectively alleviate the local power
shortage at night and the difficulty in electricity
consumption for residents, benefiting the society
to the greatest extent. It can also play a role
in power generation peak-load shifting and
smoothing of power output, which significantly
improves power quality and local power supply
stability.
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(ii)

Dedication - Quality Control (CONTINUED)

Developing Energy Storage Business
(CONTINUED)

Case 2: Malta investment project

In December 2018, the Group signed a
cooperation agreement with several investors
including Alfa Laval Group and Breakthrough
Energy Ventures to invest in Malta Inc., a
molten salt energy storage company incubated
by the Moonshot Factory (formerly known as
Google X Lab). The Malta project is a new
generation of energy storage technology based
on thermoelectric conversion, using hot molten
salts as energy storage media. Compared with
traditional lithium batteries, Malta energy
storage technology features low cost, high
energy density, no attenuation, and long life

cycle.
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STANDARDISING ENTERPRISE OPERATION WITH
THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Dedication - Quality Control (CONTINUED)

Quality Professional Services

Operation and Maintenance Service

The Group’s O&M Company takes active practice
of “Internet + O&M", and provides safe,
professional and excellent full life-cycle clean
energy services based on big data and driven by
cloud computing. Complying with the Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Fire
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other laws and regulations, the
O&M Company established a service quality
management system and a quality supervision
system via the formulation of regulations
including the Management Rules for Periodical
Maintenance and Acceptance of Equipment, the
Management Measures for Quality Supervision,
the Implementation Measures for Quality
Management and the Assessment Measures for
Quality Management. The quality supervision
system is in the charge of the deputy general
manager, and each power plant is equipped
with a two-person quality supervision team,
which controls the operation and maintenance
quality according to the management measures
for quality supervision. The quality supervision
is completed by the Security Department and
the Power Plant Department through random
inspection of production safety records and

communication with employees.
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Quality Professional Services (CONTINUED)

Operation and Maintenance Service
(CONTINUED)

In 2018, at the levels of headquarters and power
plants, the O&M Company actively interacted
and communicated with client companies on
a regular basis. The headquarters appointed
persons to conduct regular inspection on site,
and to communicate with persons in charge
of the site from clients. The appointed person
received feedbacks and suggestions from the
client to the Company for improvement. For
the enhancement of refined management of
power plant, the O&M Company carried out
comprehensive operation analysis, improved its
capabilities of overhaul and strengthened its
implementation of “7S” management to create
benefits for clients in a more practical way. As a
result, the O&M Company received 11 rewarding
letters from the customers. In addition, multiple
teams of the O&M Company won team and
personal awards in skill competition and

performance appraisal.
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(ii) Dedication - Quality Control (CONTINUED) Z) BhE.-GEEEE)

Quality Professional Services (CONTINUED) BEHELRE (E)
Design Service RETARTE

The Group's Design Company adheres to
the quality policy of “scientific management,
elaborate design, sincere service, and customer

satisfaction” and strictly complies with the

SEMBRANABRFINEE
2 BLRE - BERY - BEm
BEINEENH  BRET(ER
TROREERG)  GBERT

Administrative Guidelines for Survey and BHRGAARERIDEYS EE
EREESR - [ RETABIEB
TESEEBRRAE WKEEE
ERBANHENR  FIE TRE
ERHE) REEFPELER -

Design of Construction Projects, the Contract
Management Measures for Survey and Design
of Construction Projects and other laws and
regulations. Besides, the Design Company passed
the quality management system certification
and formulated the Confidentiality Management
System in accordance with the documents of
quality management system to protect clients’

privacy.
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Quality Professional Services (CONTINUED)

Design Service (CONTINUED)

The Design Company provides technical
consulting services for the whole process of the
new energy power generation project, including
planning, feasibility study, construction drawing
design and post-assessment. During the phase
of project planning, the work mainly includes
macro-position, preliminary analysis of resources,
project scaling, boundary condition investigation,
construction schedule and investment estimation
and other technological works, as well as
helping the owner to determine the direction
and size of investment. During the phase of
feasibility study, the work mainly includes
detailed analysis of resources, power generating
capacity estimation, major scheme design, rough
investment calculation, financial appraisal and
other technological works, as well as helping
clients to determine the basic scheme, economic
benefits and feasibility of investment. During
the period of construction drawing design, the
work mainly includes the construction drawing
design for electrical engineering, architecture,
structure, road and circuit, as well as helping the
owner to complete the engineering construction
for the whole project. During the phase of post-
assessment, the work mainly includes proposing
targeted technical transformation plans based on
specific operation and helping clients constantly
improve the economic benefits of projects under
operation.
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Quality Professional Services (CONTINUED)

Design Service (CONTINUED)

In 2018, the Design Company completed 228
reports on evaluation and technical consultation
of wind (light) resources, 42 feasibility study
reports, 26 micro-position reports, 12 preliminary
designs, 15 working drawing designs and 11 as-

built drawing designs.

After the completion of each designed element,
the Design Company will organise on-site
return visit to the designed element, which is
guided by project manager and participated
by major professional designers. The level and
quality of design service could be constantly
improved through field survey of physical
works on site, discussion and research with
the owner, construction, supervision and
other units involved in construction, and
collection of feedback from all parties about
the practicability, applicability and effectiveness
of the designed product. In 2018, the Design
Company successively organised return visits to
Shenzhangtang, Hongtang, Cuomei, Jiangzi and

other projects.
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Quality Professional Services (CONTINUED)

POWER" Service

The POWER" developed by the Group’s subsidiary
Beijing Power Concord Technology Development
Co., Ltd. is an one-stop comprehensive new
energy intelligent solution service. The service
provides customers with intelligent operation
and maintenance platform for photovoltaic and
wind power plants, which conducts efficient and
optimised management and control over the
assets and operation & maintenance personnel
of the power plants to maximise the power
generating benefits of power plants and the

returns on owner’s funds.

In 2018, the Group released the POWER™ 3.0 and
the mobile client app “Yixun”. As of the end of
the year, the POWER" system has accumulatively
served installed capacity of more than 5 GW of
renewable energy power plants, including 2.9
GW of installed photovoltaic power capacity
and 2.1 GW of installed wind power capacity,
and covering centralised wind farms, centralised
photovoltaic power stations, distributed
photovoltaic power stations and distributed wind

power projects.
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(ii)

Dedication - Quality Control (CONTINUED)

Quality Professional Services (CONTINUED)

In terms of business concerning new energy
supply, energy storage and also all kinds of
professional services, the Group always pays
high attention to its quality control and focuses
on the standards for brand publicity. Seriously
abiding by the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Group published
the CNE Manual for Visual Identification of
Company Brand Image, the Corporate Brochure
and promotional videos. With standardised
language and systematic visual symbols, the
visual application of the Group’s brand has been
enhanced, the Groups’' corporate brand image
is more uniformly and efficiently promoted,
accordingly improving both the Groups’
corporate image and brand influence.

Supply Chain Management

As our important partners, our suppliers have
key impact on the development of the Group.
We pay close attention to the environmental and
social risks of suppliers and manage to achieve
win-win cooperation with them.

We emphasise the procurement principles of
fairness, justice and openness, and select quality
suppliers and contractors via bidding. In 2018,
we newly formulated the Bidding Evaluation
Expert Database Management Guidelines to
regulate qualification evaluation and internal
experts, as well as the establishment, use and
management of the bidding evaluation expert
database, which ensured the fairness and justice
of bidding evaluation in a more effective way
and improved the quality of bidding evaluation.
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(iii) Cooperation - Win-Win Development
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(CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management (CONTINUED)

We strictly executed the supplier management
system to take effective control over the
selection of suppliers and carry out constant
tracking and annual assessment to the
suppliers. During the bidding stage, we carry
out preliminary review over construction
contractors and equipment suppliers, and
conduct assessment and evaluation on the
qualification, performance, financial situation
and legal risks of suppliers. Only suppliers that
pass the preliminary review are qualified for
bidding. We have established a list of qualified
construction units, which were comprehensively
evaluated based on multiple indicators. Once a
safety accident occurred, the supplier would be
blacklisted immediately. We also list complaint
hotline in the bidding documents to make it
convenient for the tenderers to monitor the
whole bidding process.
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(CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management (CONTINUED)

In order to enhance the management for
construction contractors and equipment
suppliers (especially for hoisting units and
centralised booster station units), we conduct
onsite visit to units bidding for the first
time, so as to get more direct and deeper
understanding of their independent property
rights of equipment, comprehensive strength
of enterprise and organizing ability. In addition,
we carry out questionnaires among the major
tower manufacturers of the industry. Based
on the questionnaire results, we interact and
communicate with suppliers with different
focuses, and organise experts to pay on-site
investigation visits to their main plants and
contract manufacturer plants to ensure the

tower supply.
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Industrial Exchange T

In 2018, we actively took part in industrial
exchange to obtain updated knowledge
and technology of the industry and got an
understanding for new trends of the industry

to promote self-perfection. During the process,

2018F  HIMBRAMITER
T ORERATEEFT NG BT - R
%ﬁﬁ@)ﬁ CFBE . MREBHH

DR BRPITMEITESZL
%’* RETENEE -

we shared experiences with the industry, which

contributed to the development of the industry.

In 2018, the Group took part in the preparation 20184 - EELXM TEEHAET

and appraisal of the Technical Specifications for E R e EE I RER DT
Wind Resource Analysis and Power Generation REBREEHEFERTEE))NG
Capacity Method in Micro-siting (an energy HIMETE  aERFHEYETED
standard under the leading of China General BT % o fEfER ﬁ%%g@a’\jiﬁ%lj

Certification), taking responsibilities for the

TEd - KRE2EEH T(ELR
BETh RiZ %lJ/\,;b$§Z1Tﬂ\7n<1¢>>%D<<7Hu%

formulation of standard method for wind shear

calculation. For the preparation of standards for R R E GRS E RS YR
energy storage industry, the Group took part TEFEAE o

in the preparation of the Technical Conditions
for Battery Energy Storage Power Control
System and the Technical Conditions for Power
Conversion Equipment of Optical Storage
System.

153



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - -HERERES

V.

154

STANDARDISING ENTERPRISE OPERATION WITH - BEZL REOXEZ )
THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(iii) Cooperation - Win-Win Development (Z) 6 - HBREE)
(CONTINUED)
Industrial Exchange (CONTINUED) TEZT(E)
In 2018, the Group participated in multiple kinds 2018F - EFEZMT ZHEEax
of academic exchange conferences, sharing men  WERMEeZ ST EEH
its experiences and learning about frontier KB WEBITERSIITELE
researches and advanced practices of the BE o

industry.

The Technology
Department of the
Group
& BB A

“Conference of Competitive Bidding for Power Grid & Big Base
Construction”;
B R ERAAE

The 3rd China Offshore Wind Power Conference & Wind Power
Electronic Equipment Forum;
Fo-EFTEHELRAEASEREER/EESERIE

The 14th China SoG Silicon and PV Power Conference (CSPV);
FE B ARG R S KEBFET D (CSPY)

The 3rd China PV Industry Development and Innovation
Application Forum;

FZEPBECAEFERENERRE

The 2018 Rhine TUV Beijing Solar Photovoltaic Technology
Seminar;
2018 BB E (TUV) LR ARG BE A R BT 51 &

The 11th International PV Performance Modeling and Monitoring
Conference;
S+ —EBE LA s 2248 B BRI T & & (PVPMO)

The 5th China Energy Storage Innovation and Technology
Conference;
FEhlE EFE AR mITEE

Inviting GOLDWIND, Envision, Gamesa, Shanghai Electric and
other fan manufacturers, laser & radar manufacturers and tower
companies to the Group for communication and exchange.
ZRBERAMNE ESER - AEE - LEERAEREBER
ENTEMR R LB R FREBEITIR

The Energy Storage
Department of the
Group
S EFEEEE

2018 China Renewable Energy Academic Conference;
2018 B Al BARLRBIMAE

The 2nd Energy Storage Battery Technology Development
Direction Seminar.

F_ERFEEMRMERTANTE -
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(CONTINUED)
Industrial Exchange (CONTINUED) TEX 7 (&)

° The 16th International Conference on Industrial Informatics
(INDIN 2018)

e ETREIXEFESZEEEHEINDIN201S8):

. Beijing International Wind Power Exhibition (CWP 2018);

. b R B B BE & (CWP2018)

° Wind Power Big Data Application and Smart Wind Farm
Construction Forum;

J BAEIRER RS 2RSS ERME

o 2018 SINOTEC Annual Meeting of Technological Supervision;

e  2018FHEEBERMEESFE

. The 11th International Conference on Photovoltaic Performance
Modelling and Simulation Testing;

©  Et-EERRREERERERATNE

Power Concord ° The 7th China (Taiyuan) International Energy Industry Expo & Fair
HHIBE for New Technologies and Achievements of Private Enterprises;
. %t):EP B(KXR)BEREREXEESRE G EHRMIMTARY
3

o The 3rd Conference on Operation and Post-service of
Photovoltaic Power Generation;

o  BZEXNRBEELRERBHNE

o The 12th International Photovoltaic Power Generation and Smart
Energy Conference & Exhibition (2018 Shanghai SNEC);

e ET+T_EEBRAGREARNEEEZRERATERES (20185
SNECQ) 5

o 2018 Photovoltaic Power Generation Operation Index Release
Conference & 2nd Photovoltaic Power Station Operation and
Maintenance Seminar

. 2018@%% EBTEREMSEE _EXNBUHETHERE
X/}IbﬁﬂuT
° “Intelligent Future Driven by Innovation” - The 5th China Wind
Power Post-market Seminar;
Concord O&M e [EIFEEE)  BERRIFHETEREEMISEENNE
e EE o The 11th China International Wind Power Industry Development
Forum

o Et+—ETHEREREEXLERSERE
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(CONTINUED)
Industrial Exchange (CONTINUED) T (#)

Concord Power

=V

2017 Annual Electric Power Survey & Design Statistics Report
and Industrial Benchmarking Information Filing Conference;
2017 FEBHHARAST FHRMAZ LR ECERLIES

WindSim Chinese Users Conference;
WindSim A EAFEAXE

2018 Beijing International Wind Power Conference and
Exhibition, where the Group carried out comprehensive
display and gave a main speech to the investors, equipment
manufacturers and design peers attending the expo under
the theme of “full-process assessment and continuous service
optimisation”.

2018t R ARASERES  UI2BRETH  HEELR
BIRTERMBEAZNMEGHNIRER  RIEH - RetATEHRT 2
FRBORREEREEDZE -

(iv) Aggressiveness -
Innovation

In responds to the concept of "Accelerating
‘Internet+’ Smart Energy Construction” in the
thirteenth five-year plan for national energy

development, the Group actively combined the

Science & Technology (/9) #EEH - BRI

SEEGRERBERERER
[T=F I REIPH R0 EE
[(EM@E+] D2 RER]INE
o RRER - BEERITREAT

energy industry with artificial intelligence to BEeEGES  BIEARFAI I TR

achieve structural optimisation of energy industry
and improve production efficiency and economic
efficiency via science & technology innovation.
Complying with the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China and

FITREXREBOERIAREER
KB BERAENBETT - EE IR E
(P EARAMBERTEE #HF
E) (PEARAMBEHIRE)E
ERERENR - BN AEERE

the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic EERER HEANSEEETET
of China and other laws and regulations, the Y& RETHEERMAIHE -

Group establishes internal intellectual property

management system to carry out intellectual

property management to drive technology

innovation constantly.
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Innovation (CONTINUED)

Smart Energy Management

In 2018, while increasing its investments in
research and development, the Group actively
carried out development of POWER'3.0,
Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) system,
and centralised monitoring and control centres,
and also strengthened the application of big
data function, and developed an “Intelligent
O&M" platform. Based on regional operation
management, the Group uses the POWER"®
system as an online platform, and applies an
“POWER™+ Yixun + Centralised Monitoring
and Control Centres + EAM “ mode to achieve
remote centralised monitoring and control
over power plants, big data analysis and early
warning, remote intelligent fault diagnosis,
intelligent work order system, and unattended or
less-attended booster stations. With the online
platform’s operation guiding off-line power plant
equipment, the Group has realized standard
operation and maintenance management,
professional detection and assessment, technical
transformation and efficient professional fault
treatment. Through online and offline full
lifecycle management of assets, the Group
has obtained comprehensive improvement in
power plant management efficiency, equipment
operation quality and level of operation and
maintenance, and made great achievements in
resource optimisation, reduction of electricity
cost, and improvement of operation efficiency.

EBREREHR

20184 - SEMAMEHRA - 18
1% B R POWER™3.0 - BEE R &
G(EAM) « IR LR ERTE -
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Innovation (CONTINUED)

Technology Application

With its continuous attention to the
development of equipment and technology
in new energy industry, the Group conducted
research and actively promoted its use. For
example, the Group introduced 150m wind
tower and laser radar anemometers, completed
of the measurement and drawing of reference
map of the solar energy resources and the first-
year power generating hours in 32 provinces
(municipalities and autonomous regions) of
China, applied new type of wind turbines
equipped with high turbine tower and long blade
during the projects construction, and carried out
study on policies and technology application in
distributed and energy storage industries. The
Group Testing Center was officially approved
by the China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment (CNAS) and obtained
CNAS qualification. The Group continued to
organize "“Technology Innovation, Management
Innovation” and received 6 awards for

innovation work in 2018.
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V. STANDARDISING ENTERPRISE OPERATION WITH
THE SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(v)

List of Awards

The Group always sticks to the corporate
values of “Integrity, Dedication, Cooperation
and Aggressiveness”. In 2018, the Group was
awarded in all business segments, and all our

efforts were paid off with a list of awards.

o Bz RELXEE(E)

(B) BREE

EEMKRREIRGE WE S
B R WD EEEE 2018
FoESEBRRHBRRR #S
BIEKAE - FFY#izmigaE
£8 °

Units rewarded

Tittle of awards

BREN RIFEB
Best Value Public Utilities and Capital Construction Company Award of
The Group the 2018 Golden Hong Kong Stock
EE 9 g

2018 B AEBEARETENEAZERAR

Power Concord

BHHE

“2018 Energy Internet Cloud Platform Innovation Award” of the Energy
Internet and “The Belt & Road” Forum
BEREMEE —F—RIRKERER

BIFT ]

Excellent Power Station Asset Management Enterprise of “Guangneng
Cup” & CREC Awards Ceremony

[J e |& CRECEFERBHRIEEBAEUMEEEIRRE

RE[2018FFERFREHMPZET=

Concord O&M
e EL

The Best 10 Enterprises in the Top 50 of China Wind Power Industry in
2018

2018 PR EEESORHEBFLE

Certificate of New and High Tech Enterprise

(BFHRMEXEE)

Concord Power

AT

The “Potential Star” of 2017 NEEQ Conference

[2017 FR=RIREFG BN ER

Grade B Consulting Qualification for Power Industry (Thermal Power,
Hydropower, Nuclear Power, New Energy)

BHIENE KB %E - FR) EHZRARTR

Yanyuan Project
ERIER

2017 National Wind & Photovoltaic Power Station Production Operation
Index Benchmarking and Appraisal Contest — AAAAA Rate of
Chongging and Sichuan Province, Central China.

2017 FE2EEAE - KGR LRBEMEEETER

R SR BRTLLE T i
BEEM - W)IIESARKSE

Eryuan Project
JEIRIE R

2017 National Wind & Photovoltaic Power Station Production Operation
Index Benchmarking and Appraisal Contest — AAAAA Rate of Yunnan
Province

2017 FEE2EEAT - KFaEHIAE
BEfMESARRSTE

BULEEBTREHELHEN L ER

Jiepai Project
RIEEE

2017 National Wind & Photovoltaic Power Station Production Operation
Index Benchmarking and Appraisal Contest — AAA Rate of Central
China and Hunan Province
2017 FE2EESE - K561
@R SAREE

B A EBTIRRH R HEN L ED
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CREATING SHARED VALUE WITH SINCERITY

As a responsible enterprise, the Group always follows
its sincere heart to make contributions to our society
and take social responsibilities while focusing on the
development of clean energy business, so as to create

shared values between enterprise and society.

(i) Environmental Protection

Based on the business feature of the Group, we
initiate public welfare activities in environmental
protection field, so that the environmental
protection behaviours could be advocated by
our practical actions and the public awareness
of environmental protection could be enhanced

accordingly.

Lecture for Popularisation of Environmental

Science

During the Beijing International Wind Power
Exhibition held in October 2018, the Group
proactively took the responsibility to receive
more than 100 pupils’ visiting. During their visit,
the Group presented a short but interesting
lecture in wind power generation. From
the educational lecture, the pupils obtained
knowledge about wind power generation,
enhanced their awareness of environmental
protection and recognised the importance of

clean energy in environmental protection.

AN FHEzL o RIERAEEE

ER—FRABENGEE  SEEFIRN
BREREERRNOFE - REFEE
—RARHZL AT BS A SR
g BOMHESRME BEROEHYSH

RPN RRNEEEBEE - ERIR
BERARAZED  UWERTHIE
BRERTR  YRARZHRRE
E‘Eﬁ o

f£2018F 10 At R B X & 85 B
o EEEHAEES—BZE)
BAMNDBAL  LEEMTRT
—ISEBEBNRNEERL/E
BE - FRIZMEZERE MBI
By ERIRRIES - HRFBIBZR
BERERERENEEM -



2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiE dHE2RE

ﬁﬂ:

VI. CREATING SHARED VALUE WITH SINCERITY
(CONTINUED)

()

(i)

Environmental Protection (CONTINUED)

Zero Discard of Old Clothes

From September to October 2018, along with
professional public welfare organisation, the
Group initiated a public donation campaign
under the theme of “Environmental Protection
& Public Welfare, Zero Discard of Old Clothes”.
A total of 308 employees participated in the
donation, and donated 1,971 kg of clothes.
According to relevant measurement and
calculation, a carbon emission of 7,097 kg could
be reduced by reusing such clothes. Equivalently,
this may save 11,828 tons of water, 394 kg of
pesticides and 591 kg of chemical fertilizer. After
classification, the clothes would mainly be used

for donation and environmental regeneration.

Poverty Alleviation

Responding to the targeted poverty alleviation
policy of the state, the Group took actions to
learn local demands of the project regions and
made investment in the construction of local
infrastructure, so as to boost local public utilities
and economy. In 2018, a number of project
companies of the Group provided poverty relief

donations to the regions.

N FHEzL o BIEHR

(=)

(=)

{ZEE#E)

BR(E)

EXFME

2018 F9 A R10R @ ¥ A
ﬁ%m”%%sﬂET [RR&A
CEXREWE INEFEARIBE
%EJJ HET308 AREITT IR -
S BEAYWI,971T AT A
H opEXYHBFIAEBREER
R | b3 ET7,097 T2
BRI K 11,8288 » JE D (E &
2394 F 53 - ﬁd\@ﬁﬁ{tﬂtﬂsm +
7o BB RDEBRE— 5K
é}x%mﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁio

73 -1

SERBRERRFBERERR
B R E B E A

REEHERREER - (REEH
NEEFEHELEIER - 20184F -

SEZEEB AR AAMEMIRH T
KERY -
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(CONTINUED)

(ii) Poverty Alleviation (CONTINUED) (=) &RE(E)

Poverty Alleviation at Wanfoshan Primary
School

In March 2018, the Group’s Tongdao Project in
Hunan arranged caring donation campaign for
Wanfoshan Primary School in Huaihua, Hunan
Province, where the project located. The donated
living materials and school supplies including
clothes, hats and books were distributed to
local pupils on the site. During the donation
ceremony, Tongdao Project Company introduced
the Group’s concept and committed to pass on
the caring activities. The members of Tongdao
Project Company interacted with the children
to stimulate their curiosity and imagination.
Meanwhile, the company members also drew
pictures with the children, whose visions for
wind power generation were presented in the

pictures.

Donation in Dezhou City, Shandong Province

In October 2018, the Group’s Pingyuan Project
in Shandong Province participated in the “A Day
of Kindness in 2018” donation campaign held in
Dezhou City, Shandong Province, and donated
RMB3,000 to help the left-behind poor children

in villages and towns.
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VI. CREATING SHARED VALUE WITH SINCERITY
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Poverty Alleviation (CONTINUED)

Key Poverty Alleviation Project in Haixing

County

In May 2018, the Group’s Haixing Project in
Hebei Province donated teaching materials and
school supplies worth RMB20,000 to the Zhiyuan
Primary School in Zhaomaotao Town, Haixing
County, Hebei Province, where the company
located, and delivered goods to the families of

poor students.

Donation to the Health & Poverty Alleviation
Fund in Jingmen City

In July 2018, the Group took part in the
fundraising campaign of the supplementary
medical assistance fund for health and poverty
alleviation in Jingmen City, and donated
RMB200,000,

companies of the fund.

as one of the first donor

Education

The Group values the investment in education
and assists talent cultivation for new energy
industry and the society via educational
investment.

N FHEzL o RIEREEEE)

(=)

®RE(#E)

BEEHKEERE

201845 H » £EE T )AL G H
I8 B mFT A b4 /5 G
HEIUR/)ERETEEMEB TR
2YE  XAAR LAZERER
BEREXRARMMD -

BEHFITRERBEES

201857 H  EE QTN T H
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(CONTINUED)

(iii) Education (CONTINUED) (=) B8 (#E)

Scholarship of North China Electronic Power
University

In order to enhance the capabilities of
technology innovation in renewable energy and
support the development of renewable energy
education in China, as well as to adhere to
scientific concept of talent development and
carry forward the spiritual idea of “people-
oriented & future created by technology”,
the Group increased its support to the study
and development of renewable energy from
2018. The contribution made by the Group
each year was increased from RMB200,000 to
RMB330,000, to set awards and scholarship
for the School of Renewable Energy of North
China Electronic Power University. The awards
and scholarship included “North China
Electronic Power University Concord New
Energy Scholarship”, “North China Electronic
Power University Concord New Energy Student
Subsidies”, “North China Electronic Power
University Concord New Energy Technology
Innovation Award”, “North China Electronic
Power University Concord New Energy Talent
Cultivation Award” and “North China Electronic
Power University Concord New Energy
Postgraduate Admission Award”, which were
respectively provided for awarding excellent
students with good moral character and learning
skills; helping students under poor economic
conditions to finish school; awarding students
making impressive achievements in technology
innovation and invention; awarding outstanding
teachers and management personnel; and
encouraging outstanding undergraduates to
continue further education. The Group funded
67 students in 2018, and the accumulated
beneficiaries reached 1,177.
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CREATING SHARED VALUE WITH SINCERITY
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Education (CONTINUED)

School — Enterprise Cooperation

From public surveys in multiple projects, the
Group learned about the local requests for
employment. Considering the nature of the
fieldwork, the Group’s O&M company followed
the local principles in talent recruitment and
retention policy. On one hand, cooperating with
regional talent markets, the O&M Company
carried out talent recruitment in Wuhan City
of Hubei Province, Jianghua County of Hunan
Province, Binhai District of Tianjin, Bengbu
City and Xiaoxian County of Anhui Province,
giving priority to local professional talents in
employment. On the other hand, the O&M
Company cooperated with local colleges and
universities, creating “reserved classes under
apprenticeship system” to cultivate talents for

new energy industry.

In 2018, the O&M Company jointly organised
“reserved classes under apprenticeship system”
with Hunan Polytechnic of Water Resources
and Electric Power and Ulangab Vocational
College to specially cultivate local talents. While
recruiting students, the schools pick students
specifically with special consideration of power
plants’ locations. After being trained under a
“2+1" mode, the students are directly hired
by the power plants. Meanwhile, the O&M
Company reached preliminary cooperation
intention for the order-oriented training mode
with Hubei Water Resources Technical College,
Wuhan Electric Power Vocational and Technical
College and Yellow River Conservancy Technical
Institute, so as to further promote the cultivation

and transfer of local talents.

N FHEzL o RIEREEEE)
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Index to Content of ESG Reporting Guide of HKEX

> R

BEERGH(ESGME]ES)ANBT RS

TEDE - E®|

Subject Areas, Aspect General Disclosure and KPIs

C —RIE R ERERUER

Index

=5

A. Environment

FASRAE IR IR AT

emissions data.

BEm iR AR AR R R B o

A - B
Aspect A1 Emissions
B A1 367
General Disclosure (1) Policies; and Encouraging Green
— AR 5E (2) compliance with relevant laws and |Operation;
regulations that have a significant impact |#EEAA GBI A
on issuer relating to air and greenhouse |Environmental
gas emissions, discharges into water and |Performance Indicators
land, and generation of hazardous and |IRIBAEMIGIZ
non-hazardous waste.
FHERMRERBYN  HKRLTENHE
T BEERBEREMNELS
(M BE: &
(2) BFEH T RAREERTENEBEELR
TEHER -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective |[Environmental

Performance Indicators
}/Ri“z )du;El TT

KPI A1.2
FABHEMIRIRAT.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
BERBEHEMER(UAEAE) R(MER)FE
(MABEEBN - BEXBE

Environmental

Performance Indicators
IRIFEBIRIZ

KPI A1.3
RABEUEIRALS

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
FECEEREYESE (UETE) R(WER)
EE(MABESEN - BEREAE

Environmental
Performance Indicators
RIBEBUIRIE
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+ - KfERE)

KPI A1.4
FABHARUIEIRAT.A

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
FELAEZEEDES(NETE)R(WER)
BE(MABEEEN - BIERBE) -

Environmental
Performance Indicators

RIGES IR

KPI A1.5
FASHARUIEIRATS

Description of measures to mitigate emissions

and results achieved.

it PP 1R b S PR ERIS AR

Encouraging Green
Operation;

HEERR BN
Environmental
Performance Indicators

RIGEWIEE

KPI A1.6
FABHAUIEIRAT.6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

Hl IR EEREEERMNDEREELSE
BV b B PTERIS AR -

Encouraging Green
Operation;
HEZEIA
Environmental

Performance Indicators

RIGEMIET

Aspect A2
EmEA2

Use of resources

BIRE R

General Disclosure
—RR I EE

Policies on the efficient use of resources
(including energy, water and other raw
materials).

BRERER(BIEER - KEEMERME) D
HUR -

Encouraging Green
Operation
HEZeRN

KPI A2.1
RS UEIR A2

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

REAESNEERIEEER(NE - fk
M) BEFEE(UNTRETERAE) REE (RS

ERE - SERIEHE) -

Environmental
Performance Indicators

RIGES RIS

KPI A2.2
FABHRIUIEIRA2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BEKEREE(WAGES B - BIERB

sts
=
Ean

Environmental

Performance Indicators

RIBEMIER
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KPI A2.3
FASAEIEIRA2.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

st g IR A R s A1 &I R FTERIG AR

Encouraging Green
Operation;

HEEZ BN
Environmental

Performance Indicators
IRIBEBIEZ

KPI A2.4
RABAIEIRA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

F alt SR EXGE B 7KOR AT B R RE - LA KRBT
7Kz w8 R PTEIS ACRE ©

Encouraging Green
Operation;
WEZERA
Environmental

Performance Indicators

reference to per unit produced.
BRI TR BEM BB S (UNEEHE) R (20E
R)EBEESEMLHE -

RIBERUER
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished |[N/A
BB BIEIZ A2.5 products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with | &8

B4R AUIRIR A3

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
HILXEEHHRRRRAERNERATER
EEREBEUATENITE -

KPI' A3 Environment and natural resources
RS E 1R A3 REMNKAEIR
General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant | Protecting Ecological
—RRIE R impact on the environment and natural |Environment
resources. REEREIRT
IR ETFARHRBERRAARERENERTE
BBR ©
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of |Protecting Ecological

Environment
IRFEEREIRIE
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Society

=

B1 Employment
=

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(1) the policies; and

(2)compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRFM R gE  BRLREMN  TERHE - R

B TPE#E - Zat REBAREMEGS

KA RIEy

(1) BR &

(2) BTHE LM RARAEEATZENHERERZLR
ERIEH -

Thirsting for Talents and
Building a Team with
Diversity

RKEBER - TEZ TEK

KPI B1.1
RABAA R B

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region.

RIER - BIREE - FicdR K EE 5 e E
A% -

Thirsting for Talents and
Building a Team with
Diversity

SRKEBEE - TEZ TTEK

KPI B1.2
FABAARIEIRB.2

Employee turnover rate by gender age group
and geographical region.

IR - FiER Mt EE D EE MK X -
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B2

Health and Safety
f2 i 2

General Disclosure

Information on:

Safety First, and

FASAE M E1RB2.3

measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

30 PR A B BB B R R B
MITREERITE ©

2HEHE - AR

—MRHE (1) the policies; and Protecting Employees’
(2) compliance with relevant laws and |Safety
regulations that have a significant impact |Z2%— REEI L2
on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BHRHLZE2TIERERREE TREBEN
JE%E’U :
) BUER - K
( ) BRH PR ARIBEAZENBBAR MR
ERER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. —
BASR A IETR B2.1 T AB L -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. —
R AEBUIEIRB2.2 HIGEEXTIERS -
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety |Safety First, and

Protecting Employees’
Safety

a3

ZrE— REEILE

B3

Development and training
R BIET) o

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge

Organising Training,

FASEAE R E1R B3

gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
REFNREERN(NERERERE  PRER
BlEonXIEER S

—AR IR EE and skills for discharging duties at work. [and Improving the
Description of training activities. Empowerment system
FHRRAEEBTIERENABLRENE |E8E) cEHERR
5K o HIREIEE

KPI B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by |[—
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KPI B3.2
FABAARIEIRB3.2

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
RESRMRMENE S  BREETKZIN
TR -

B4

Labour standards
8 T AR

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

(1) the policies; and

(2) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAP) 1L E Tk aghilss TH) -

() BR &

(2) BT EMAREERZENERERENR
EHERL -

Thirsting for Talents and
Building a Team with
Diversity
REBEE - HTEZTEK

KPI B4.1
RAB AR IEIR B4

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

H i A T R A B DI 0 1R A LA B o B T e GR Il 55
T o

KPI B4.2
RABE4E IBIE B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

i P BB E R IB R E R B B 1B L AT ERER
28R o

There were no such
violations for the year.
REEFWEZEEREBEN

B5

Supply Chain Management
HEE R

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and

Cooperation - Win-Win

—R iR social risks of the supply chain. Development
HEENRFEMSERERBUR - A HRER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. —

RS 48 IR 1R B5. 1

i mE D ER A -
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KPI B5.2
BASAE M E1R B5.2

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

MG AHERNED - MERTEEIE
DI ERE A AR BBENNRITRERS.
V& o

Cooperation - Win-Win
Development

B HRBRE

B6

Product Responsibility
EmaE

General Disclosure

Information on:

Dedication - Quality

reasons.
EEEJZE%:L'FDDD%(%EP Rz REEEHM
el ENERS)

—RHEE (1) the policies; and control
(2) compliance with relevant laws and |#i3  ZEiL#%
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.
FHAFRHESNRENREREZS BS
BEERLBEEE R ER
(M BE: &
(2) BFH ETRARAEATENEBERELR
ERERL
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped |N/A
AR AE IEIE B6. 1 subject to recalls for safety and health |TiEA

KPI B6.2
R ERIEIEB6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

BN E D &R IRFEE AR EE A -

Dedication - Quality
control

i  EELE

KPI B6.3
B4R MIE1RB6.3

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

Tl R e o N RIS A E R B RV 1B B -

Dedication - Quality
control

B - 8T
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KPI B6.4
FASAE N 515 B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

WS ERTHEENERBKEZRF -

N/A
NiE A

KPI B6.5
FASAEMIEIR B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.
HHE 75 B RHRIE R RALEGR - A KB
T REERITE »

Dedication - Quality
Control
W BT

B7

Anti-corruption
R&ES

General Disclosure

—RWE

Information on:

(1) the policies; and

(2) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

BRAD IEFRER - R

(M BE: &

(2) BTH FTRRAEATENEBERELR
EHEHR} o

WEE RO RER

Integrity - Combating
Corruption and Upholding
Integrity

HIE - RBER

KPI B7.1
PR AR IR BT 1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.

REBRPANYE FTARISIHEEERET D EFLS
MBS AR E B MEFAAAER ©

There was no such cases

for the year.
REZEALEHRND

KPI B7.2
FASEAR IR BT 2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

by S iEm R By - LARBRERIT R E
mﬁ}f °

Integrity - Combating
Corruption and Upholding
Integrity

HIE - RIBIER
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RE - -HERERES

VIl. APPENDIX (CONTINUED) + - HsR(E)
B8 Community Investment
HEEE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to |Creating Shared Value
—MRHE understand the needs of the communities |with Sincerity

where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

Bt RS2 ERE MRS EMELRT EME
REEBZBHEEELRIEAOBER °

Bzt BIERZEE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
8§ 45 B 1Z BS. 1 environmental concerns, labour needs, heath,
culture, sports).

HIEREENHE REFH HIFXK-
R - Xt - 885) °

Creating Shared Value
with Sincerity

a2l BEXZEE

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
RASR A IE1E BS.2 the focus area.
EHEISEEMHAER(NESEXER) -

Creating Shared Value
with Sincerity
RO BlEHEEE
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Deloitte

To the Shareholders of Concord New Energy Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 184 to 399, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

=2

e REEAR D RMRER

(RERAZMELZ HRAE])

RZEMATEBIEMD EEFINHRE
1842 399B HA M RERER QAL
THBIEAADEREWBAR(RHEIES
B ZHGREaHBRE  WEAWBRREE
R-ZE-NEFE+-A=+—B2Z2HEAMBER
Kk BEZALEFEZHGEEaREME
BlRmER  GEEREHRRGERERE
R URBRAMBEREMINEZSHEE
BE -

BARR  ZEGEAVBBRRCORRELS
AN ERMZIBAEMBHRELEY AR
MARMRBREEER T —\F+ A
=T —BZHMBRR AREEEREEZ
BUEFEZUBEENESRE  YDER
FEIRANGD ] 2 WBERTEZ RS -
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REETEREGE)

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTPNAEEBARENSEE

Goodwill impairment assessment

BB R E R

We have identified the goodwill impairment
assessment on power generation segment as
disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements as a key audit matter because significant
management judgements and assumptions are
involved as part of the impairment review, any
impairment charge could have a significant financial
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
HREFEEEEAEREABMERR - BERIRE
ZBEEBBGEHVBRRTRENUBLE - A
bt BB EFRE M B RN T 18RE 2 ERE
FHE BRI AREARETFIE

The Group conducted an annual impairment review
on goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount
of the relevant group of cash-generating units to
which the goodwill has been allocated based on
their fair value less cost of sell of under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 — Impairment of Assets.
EEERBEREGHENE6R-EERERTEB
FERELEMRFEZERARBEREEKASZ
e ERE - HEERT T FERENH -

The impairment review performed by the
management involves assumptions as set out below,
amongst others, that are subjective in nature and
the Company is required to use judgement in
applying such information.
HEREATZRENAS R TREERE - BER
BIEME A Dt B AR T E AT HIE -

—  Estimated online power quantity of each wind
farm;
— BREEMZEFLHEEEE:

—  Projected installation capacity;
— TEARKERE

—  Expected tariff rate; and
— TJEHAEE : M

— Discount rate.
—  BBRE -

Our procedures in relation to goodwill impairment
assessment included:

BAEt I ERER AT RA 2 AT

o assessing the valuation methodology and
discount rate used in determining the
recoverable amount of the relevant group of
cash-generating units by consulting internal
valuation specialists;

s BBFBAANNEERR  BHEBERECELEM
AR @IS T RRETER 2 HERM
BRI 5 T LARTA

o comparing the key assumptions applied in
the impairment assessment, amongst others,
the estimated online power quantity of each
wind farm,projected installation capacity and
expected tariff rate to historical performance
of the Group;

o HREMETERZEARKRR  WEEERLZ

A LEEEE  FARKRSE  BRHEEM
MR ERE  HESEFREEETHLE

o reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets, and considering
the reasonableness of these budgets;

e  HWAER WEHEEES  HIBFRE
ITHER - WERZERE RN

° examining the management’s sensitivity
analysis over the key assumptions applied in
the impairment assessment; and

s EREEEBMAEFETRABZERRRME
T2 BBIEDT : AR

o checking the adequacy of disclosures in Note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

s MERAMBHMRMFTI8THEZRIIE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REETEREE)

Key audit matter

BEEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTPNAEEFAREANSE

Impairment assessment of tariff adjustment recei

FE W EE B E R

vables

We have identified the impairment assessment
of such tariff adjustment receivables as disclosed
in Notes 4 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements as a key audit matter because the
impairment assessment of such tariff subsidy entails
a significant degree of management judgement.
BT S M BWMERMTTE 4 M 22 P E 2 EEMBEW
RZBEARAFTEEEEAERANIEE D ETHE -
It - FRAPI A 3t 1B B e MRORU (BRI B A8 R A R
FArEE -

Tariff subsidy on sales of electricity is recognised as
revenue for the Group’s power plants eligible for
the subsidy. The settlement of such electricity tariff
is subject to government authorities’ approval by
agreeing to include the electricity power plants into
the Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (the
“Catalogue”).

HRNBEERESHBZAEEER  SHHEEEEM
BN R BN » B BENRZATRGH R - BUT
MPIRER BB EBMA AT BERREBH INE
B BESI([BE]) -

As at 31 December 2018, the tariff adjustment
receivables recognised by the power plants which
have not been included in the Catalogue was
RMB501,146,000 and the impairment assessment
of such tariff adjustment receivables requires
management judgement about whether the power
plants are eligible for the application of entering the
Catalogue.

F2018F 12 A31H » WAMAB R EMERLE
BB SR ARKS501,146,000T © FillE
BRPRUAF ZRENATEEREHEBERES

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of tariff adjustment receivables included:

BT IS B AL FOR BRI R P 5 A 2 A8 RE X
mF

obtaining a list of the Group’s power plants of
which tariff subsidy is recognised as revenue
but yet to register in the Catalogue, and
discussing the requirements and conditions
for the registration in the Catalogue with the
directors of the Company;

ERKEEMBEIRBAEBHRELZARB
ZEEBEHFE HEEEEEIREUE

A B 8% 2 BRAEM

obtaining an opinion from the Group’s legal
advisor to confirm that the power plants in
the list above are qualified for, and had met,
all the requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Catalogue; and
ERMESEEZZERER - UER LM ERK
BERAMRERA BB ELMGH AR

checking, on a sample basis, of the past results
of the registration of the Group’s power plants
in the Catalogue.

MRt EREEMATERSP 2 ERER -

™= B
BIRERREIIABE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

H &R

BERFEFRUZTEMERAR - FHP
BABEAEMER  TERGEEMBHRRNE
Bz = HE RS -

B GREMBERRZBERLTERZEER
B - READP T EREATE A ZRELE® °

EREEMBHRERET 280 BMZE
TRMEZSTEMEN  UBBMEXETE
AMEEEEREREHMBRRIBRMEER
BEPERZERAHREATN B HEMU
FHEEEARBRRAL2BER - HRELMSD
RATZTE RMBERZFEMERT D
RTEXRER BMBREHREFE - £t
I BPABBEER -

EERAEENGAMBBRAREZ
BE

BERAEFRRAAERBEAGHMRERM
ZIBBMBHRELER] RBETRARMRE ] Z
RERE ®HUIEEMAAZEEMBRE
AREEEEZRAR/LEZABDIES - AR
RAEMBHRER T FHEARAFHERMER
ZBEREERRAL -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BRBAREAGESUBRRAREZE
E(&)

ERBRIBBEMENIRMITZETLHE
Z—®o BRPERFTBREPERTHEH
B AR BRI - R - PR

o BRIRFEAGZEMBREBNMEFL
H RS 2 B RAR E&L‘Eﬂ‘ﬁﬂﬁ
READEZERR  YERFED
ZEABEREMACE L IRHER EE
REFARESRAR &R BEEZ
B% - R - REEERE - REEH
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BN EREH 2 EXHERER

fRELRET AR 2 M EBIEBIAREHEA
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mak Chi Lung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 February 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERHER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A31BILFE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Brat AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 56 1,414,070 1,035,967
Cost of sales and services rendered  ARIGAZN F& 85 & A A 12 (547,600) (643,752)
Gross profit EF 866,470 392,215
Other income HAb WA 7 30,678 43,593
Other gains and losses, net H i R EsE , JF R 47,140 97,360
Impairment losses, net of reversal WAL - B0 FE 9 (17,443) (25,337)
Distribution and selling expenses BiHRHEER (6,854) (530)
Administrative expenses EEEBH (235,414) (179,018)
Finance costs YR IDWIN 11 (301,210) (184,903)
Share of profit of joint ventures, net [E(RA S EUES @ JF58 130,179 102,940
Share of profit of associates, net JEMREEE R a5 16,594 24,246
Profit before income tax BR A8 B A R 12 530,140 270,566
Income tax expense TSR~ 13 (16,291) (63,948)
Profit for the year REERF 513,849 206,618
Profit for the year attributable to: ZFEERFEBERN :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE ZEDN 502,406 200,036
Non-controlling interests JEHEE 1)1 2 11,443 6,582
513,849 206,618
RMB cents RMB cents
AR¥5 AR
Earnings per share attributable FREEEXQATEEA
to owners of the Company EBitz8REF
during the year 14
Basic earnings per share BRERZF 5.88 2.33
Diluted earnings per share FIREEET 5.87 2.33
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HRERBERAEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A3 HIEFE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Profit for the year AR F R F 513,849 206,618
Other comprehensive expense: Hitt2EEX :
Item that may be reclassified AR ES M E 18 2 HH
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation EREHTEER
of foreign operations (9,861) (11,239)

Other comprehensive expense for ZAFEHMEEBX -
the year, net of tax HERBIE (9.861) (11,239)

Total comprehensive income for AEEXHNREE

the year 503,988 195,379
Total comprehensive income 2HEHKRALERE .
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N 492,394 188,816
Non-controlling interests FEE G MR 11,594 6,563
503,988 195,379
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REEERER

As at 31 December 2018
M2018%F 12 A31H

2018 2017
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
it ARETT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRB 16 10,297,106 7,171,794
Land use rights T R 17 432,424 355,001
Intangible assets EEEE 18 1,004,289 1,004,608
Interests in associates REEENF 2R 79 317,699 281,386
Interests in joint ventures REBREZER 20 1,532,872 1,396,107
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESmEE 21 — 4,726
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEGFAEREZ
through profit or loss EREE 21 8,545 —
Contract assets AREE 22 298,404 —
Trade and bill receivables BUNE SR N B 23 18,482 140,377
Prepayments, deposits and other BRHIE - Be2 Rk
receivables H fh fE U 3R IE 24 846,029 692,334
Finance lease receivables mEREEWFE 25 53,628 19,100
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIEE E 35 36,898 33,256
14,846,376 11,098,689
Current assets REEE
Inventories "E 26 20,482 50,269
Contract assets EREE 22 689,080 —
Trade and bill receivables FEUNE ZBR A & =ik 23 714,746 1,227,743
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIA ~ e REAM
receivables JE W GRTE 24 685,529 897,837
Finance lease receivables REEEEWFE 25 8,327 5,100
Amounts due from associates R NI E ] 79 20,913 28,250
Amounts due from joint ventures JEI A EE A 20 61,050 354,167
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFABRZZ
through profit or loss TRLEE 21 — 34,280
Cash and cash equivalents BekRE&EEER 27 1,353,613 1,011,294
Restricted deposits SRR HITF 27 12,692 99,509
3,566,432 3,708,449
Total assets EEMAR 18,412,808 14,807,138
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings IRITIER 31 3,751,233 3,575,599
Other borrowings EMER 32 2,587,324 1,380,555
Senior notes and bonds payable BREERENES ZER
FIE 33 1,463,162 299,324
Convertible loan AT AR E 3R 34 200,825 —
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 35 13,577 3,900
Deferred government grants TERE TR AT 7 B 36 23,273 24,136
Payables for construction in JH B @& 2 e FIA
progress 29 1,362,746 652,033
9,402,140 5,935,547
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

HEEEREBXR(EZ)
As at 31 December 2018
MR20184F 12 A31H

2018 2017
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
it ARETT AREFT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bill payables ENEZERREE 28 999,809 1,644,387
Payables for construction in THE 2 FENRIR
progress, other payables and H Ath FE T 5RIE K&
accruals FEFTE R 29 1,458,157 1,409,986
Contract liabilities ARAE 30 61,492 —
Amounts due to associates AN ENGIE ] 719 234 3,502
Amounts due to joint ventures &S hERE 20 19,837 13,471
Bank borrowings RITER 317 620,389 513,246
Other borrowings H gk 32 102,931 28,120
Senior notes and bonds payable BAEBERES BN
RIE 33 199,519 —
Current income tax liabilities JES TS FL 1,561 3,733
3,463,929 3,616,445
Total liabilities BERE 12,866,069 9,551,992
Net current assets REBEEFE 102,503 92,004
Total assets less current EEHAERRBAEE
liabilities 14,948,879 11,190,693
Net assets BEEFE 5,546,739 5,255,146
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to owners RATEEAEGRER
of the Company
Share capital N 37 74,049 75,164
Reserves #1E 5,444,179 5,082,632
5,518,228 5,157,796
Non-controlling interests FEiEH MR 28,511 97,350
Total equity AR 5,546,739 5,255,146

The consolidated financial statements on pages 184 to 399
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 February 2019 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Liu Shunxing

2 )Ig 5
Director

EF

HPNFE 184 AE39 B ZUBHREN T —N1
FoABEESSH AERKRETIEIRE

®E

Liu Jianhong
2B
Director

EFE
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HEHEREEERA A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEDEBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAEEARG
Premium
arising on
acquisition
of non- Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Contributed  controlling  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares  premium surplus— interests reserve  reserves  earnings  Subtotal  interests equity
(Note37)  (Note 37) (Note 51) (Note b) (Note a)
bt
ERfiEL
i ERR  RBEE  #EB JEE EXNBE AERE  REEW B FEAMER  RRSR
Wiz (k) (s Hi) il
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTE  ARBFL  AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR ABEFL
At 31 December 2017 RNENENA 75164 (47,593) 830724 2,359,083 (49,006) 5,880 98485 2285079 5157.7% 97350 5255146
Adjustments (Note 2) giRaE
(2) - - - - - - - (10,00) (10,00) - (10,00)
At 1January 2018 (restated) R 2018%151A
(Ed) 75,164 (47,593) 830724 2,359,083 (49,006) 5,880 98485 2215075 5,141,719 97350 545142
Profit fo th year RERRH - - - - - - — A6 S5 1B 51380
Other comprehensve (expense) ~ E42E (H%)/
income i - - - - - (10m) - - (1001 151 (9861)
Total comprehensive (expense)  BFEERE(ER)/
income for the year Waig - - - - - (10,012) - 502,406 492,39 11,59 503,988
Cancellation of reasury shares ~~ FBER
(Note 37 (i) () (1,115) 34,895 (33,780) - - - - - - - -
Repurchase of ordinary shares ~ EEREE
(Note 37ij) 7 - (45,250) - - - - - - (45,250) - (45,250)
Vesting of shares under share award  5£8)7
scheme (Note 38) ) - 8,134 (145) - - - (1.389) - - - -
Share-based compensation EIRR - - - - - - 545 - 545 - 545
2017 final dividends WTERRE - - - - - - - (13154 (13154) - (13,150
Acquistion of non-contolling 3£ IAER
interests - - - - (4,099) - - - (4,099) (68,583) (12,682)
Dividend paid to non-controlling X8 52511
interests & - - - - - - - - - (180 (18%)
Balance at 31 December 2018 W2018%12531A 74,049 (49,814) 396,199 2,359,063 (53,105) (#132) 91641 2704327 5518228 8511 5,546,739
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
RERDSBEHR(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LIGEEIN
Premium
arising
0 acquisition
of non- Non-
Share Treasury Share ~ Contributed ~ controlling ~~ Exchange Other Retained controling Total
capital shares premium surplus Interests Tesere TESEIVes gamings Subtotal Interests equity
Note37)  (Note37) (Note 51) (Note b) (Note a)
Yigsmsle
BRFEE
s EfR BhRE  BARE ZRE  EREE  EbGBE  REEN EgoHREMER ERER
) ) (51 gy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETE  ARETT ARETT AREFT AEETT AEEFT AREFr AREFr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 HTE1R18 75,645 (62,674) 449816 2,359,063 (31,099 17,100 102625 2159801 5070277 155473 5225750
Profit for the year KEERH — — - - - - - 200,036 200,036 6,582 206,618
Other comprehensie expense £ 2ERS - - - - - (110 - - (M) (19 (11239
Total comprehensive (expense)/  AEERE(ER)/
income for the year aaE - - - - - (11,220 - 200,036 188,816 6,563 195,379
Cancellston of treasury shares S4BT
(Note 37() (a3 (481) 18,731 (18,250) - - - - - - - -
Repurchase of ordinary shares LEROR
(Note 37() W) - (11,784) - - - - - - (11,784) - (11,784)
Vesting of shares under share
award scheme (Note 36) ) - 8134 (842) - - - (129 - - - -
Share-based compensation WRREEEZ A - - - - - - 3052 - 305 - 3,19
2016 final dividends WEEERS - - - - - - - (74,758) (74,758) - (74758)
Contrbutions by non-controling B H1E R E
Interests - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Acquiston of non-contolling B BRI
interests - - - - (17.907) - - - (17907) (83311) (101,218)
Disposal of partil interestina~~ REREL DTS
subsidiary b - - - - - - - - - 12375 12375
Dividend paid to non-controling~~ XREFsERs/M
interests fEg - - - - - - - - - (3750) (3750)
Balance at 31 December 2017 20175123318 75,164 (47,593) 3074 2,399,003 (49,006) 5,880 9%B48 2285019 5,157,719 97350 5,255,146
Notes: KT -
(a) Pursuant to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of (a) B REEEE - REIERNATHREAES
China (the “PRC"), each of the subsidiaries established in the BRARLNEMEZ10%EL5ERBGBATE  BEE
PRC is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax to the M AREEDARSEMEARY 50% &S

statutory reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of the

BRI ER - REXBERFTDNAFE

companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserves fund
can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to
offset accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the subsidiaries, provided that such fund is maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. As at
31 December 2018, retained profits of the Group comprised
statutory reserves fund amounting to RMB460,680,000
(2017: RMB397,359,000).

Other reserves mainly included share-bsaed compensation
recognised of which the related share options have forfeited
after the vesting date or were still not exercised at the expiry
date.

MER 25% ' SEAEESBATE A FEAKER
AIBIESEMARTEMELAS - R2018F
128318 AEBRESEAERBATEZET
Uy 2% & %8 A A R % 460,680,000 7T(2017 ¢
AR#397,359,0007T) °

EMFEHEIZREATFERRZARN A
AN ZEINZEEENTTEBR
FARBREERYAFARITE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A3 BILFE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARMTFT AREFIT
Cash flows from operating REREETH2RERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEEBB RS 39(a) 784,339 355,180
Income tax paid YA PTS R (18,078) (80,548)
Net cash generated from RETBELEZRE
operating activities R 766,261 274,632
Cash flows from investing RERETBHZ2HRERE
activities
Payments for property, plant and EEME  BREREE
equipment (2,310,576) (2,473,637)
Payments for land use rights fEE (s A (87,198) (113,599)
Capital injection to joint ventures & &b REE A R]
and associates & (54,597) (27,061)
Net cash inflow on disposal/de- BB, /LM E AR AT
registration of subsidiaries BFAFRE 39(b) 87,027 437,874
Net proceeds from disposal of BEEBE QREHIE
associates peck-cl 39(c) — 29,704
Payments in relation to disposal of I FEEE N E A A
subsidiaries in prior years FrsZ (508 — (4,030)
Net proceeds from disposal of LEWE - BE REE
property, plant and equipment Fri5 308 39(d) 2,237 170
Net cash inflows on acquisition of  UgEEHI B A 7]
a subsidiary 42 — 2,948
Proceeds from disposal of financial ~HEZRALEEF AR
assets at fair value through mZEMEEMS
profit or loss KIE 208,440 —
Payments for purchase of financial BEEBIZAALBETA
assets at fair value through EaseRMEE
profit or loss (173,052) —
Proceeds from disposal of other HEEMSREEMS
financial assets A 5,329,809 3,486,516
Payments for acquisition of other ~ BEHM S REE
financial assets (5,291,226) (3,460,204)
Payments for acquisition of BERAREETA
financial assets at fair value BRcemERE
through profit or loss (2,230) —
Dividends received from joint BEETERBER
ventures and associates BlZ A 44,615 77,213
Deposits received for disposal of BEEMB AR AR
subsidiaries o 1,000 31,705
Deposits paid for project HB AT
investments — (80,000)
Refund of deposits paid for Ug [0] & % & B 58
project investments 6,663 16,718
Repayment from joint ventures WE& &7 B 23,757 9,853
Receipts of government grants TR 7l B 2 Mk 2,902 5,777
Interest received B UFE 11,983 22,638
Placement of restricted deposits FTIE 2 PR I 75 5K (2,781) (175,966)
Withdrawal of restricted deposits SR AITFRRE 89,598 76,457
Net cash used in investing REFBFAZEESFEE
activities (2,113,629) (2,136,924)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A3 BILFE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
baE AR¥FT AREFIT
Cash flows from financing REMETH2HESRE
activities
Payment for share repurchase R 5T 8H 2 [E B 37 (45,250) (11,784)
Proceeds from bank borrowings BRI IE 816,950 1,021,338
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEEXR (534,173) (359,153)
Proceeds form other borrowings H & TS IR 512,931 538,413
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER (34,770) (37,403)
Issue of senior notes and bonds BITEBERBENES 33 1,280,180 100,000
Senior notes and bond issue BITREZBNES 2
expense ZH 33 (12,290) (136)
Issue of convertible loan BITAMARE K 34 189,938 —
Convertible loan issue expense BOOBMRERCER 34 (1,894) —
Dividends paid to owners of the YAEE T RARIER A
Company (73,154) (74,758)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SRR T ISR
interests =B A (11,850) (3,750)
Acquisition of non-controlling U BE BT B X B SRS 41 14
interests of subsidiaries FEE (24,170) (21,304)
Proceeds from disposal of partial o B B A R AR
interest in a subsidiary without
losing control — 9,282
Contributions by non-controlling FEVR B A RS IR
interests — 10,000
Interest paid BERFLE (378,847) (225,574)
Net cash generated from RETBHFELEZRS
financing activities HEE 1,683,601 945,171
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRESEEER
cash and cash equivalents B, CGRd) FEE 336,233 (917,121)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzRekBeFEE
beginning of the year HE 1,011,294 1,934,280
Effect of foreign exchange rate RekREEFEERZ
changes P& & F| 6,086 (5,865)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESRBESEHE
end of the year HE 1,353,613 1,011,294
Analysis of balances of cash and BR& KRS ZEEHER &k
cash equivalents 2
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTA 27 1,366,305 1,110,803
Restricted deposits SRR 17 3K 27 (12,692) (99,509)
1,353,613 1,011,294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1.

192

Bt 35 R AR B

GENERAL INFORMATION

Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Suite 3901, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The address
of principal place of business is Room 204-205, China
Wind Power Building, No. 9, South Shou Ti Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, Mainland China.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities of operating and investment in
power plants, provision of power plant operation and
maintenance services, provision of design, technical
and consultation services.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA") for the first time in the current
year.

HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Amendments

EXEH

e REBEGRQAB(KRAE)E
EARABSHMK I ZBR QG -
NRARNEBEBESXSGALETUE
BEFRG]) o RAFIFMI A
Suite 3901, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong
Kong ° F B4 ity i AR Bl 4L SR
B E K% EEE AE204-205

=
Z= o
=

EREEAR > ARAREKEB AR
MIAEEDEBZRFITIES: ER
BEMIE  BERUETTRME®  RHR
it BT R AR o

BRIEZBHA AW BHRKREUAA
RE(TARE DR -

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBRELER D)

21 FREERFERZEBUBREE
Rz 38 RAERT

AEECRAFEREERRARES
SETENAREM 2 B BN FRESE
A2 Tt 38 RAERT

FEMBREER 955
EHMTA

BRPBHMEERE 155
BEREFE 2 WA TR RIGREE
57
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 28
As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 40
Transfer of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2. ERAFTREBIEEMBHREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.1

REEBREERZEBPBRESE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

ERE(EEM RS ENEER
H)— 2% 225
INERX G RENTEHE

BRVBHREERE 255
BRIPZ IR 5208512

BRP RS ERLE 45 (EFT)
RIZEB BN EHREERFE AT - R
& FIEH BB & ERE 9
e TA

BBV B ELRSE 2857 (BFT)
BB R 8RF R —E
71 2014-2016 FHH]

BRI HmEERIE 40 5% (BR])
BREREYE

BrRTSN  AFEERBE YR
SRS AN FEAREE R
B RAFE R IAEFE I BAR K
/AR A M IRR TSR E L
BEATE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations.

2.

ERAHIREEIETEEMBREE
AT ERMBRERER D) (&)

2.1

FEERHERZEBUBREE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 5] (&)

BEEUBHEEREI15HERE
FERZKAER

AEBAFEHERBERBEMBR
SFEAFISH - BEYHHREE
AIE 15 EF B ERIFE 18
A - BAEGRTENE 1152
EA R LA o

AEBOEBNBERBEEMBRS
AEBIZE15% 0 WHK2018F 1 A1
HERXBERAZEEZ AR AE
o MR B 2 AR EEE Y
BEAMB(REMERDS - 1818
ATE)RER  hEEEMAE
e Ak - IRIBE SRS ER]
FISHEZBERR  AEBEDE
ZE¥2018F1A1H H KRTK
ZERBPEAZIZE - Bt - %
L S BRI BE AT E - B
ALEBREBRBEEESHELNSE
18R AMB B G ERZE 1157
s S R R AE ARSI o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERHITRKEBIEEMBEHREE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B ([ EBBEHEER |) (&)
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are 2.1 REERFEMZEBYBREE
mandatorily effective for the current year Bl 2 S RISET (42)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EBBREERFISHEERE
Customers (CONTINUED) FEEZKAER(E)

The Group recognises revenue from the REBERATEERRZ A -
following major sources which arise from BEHWARBERFRITNER :

contracts with customers:

. Sales of electricity o ETILA

. Power plant operation and maintenance o BRGE{T R EIRA
services

° Design, technical and consultation services . Mt BRI ER S AR TR U A

Information about the Group’s performance BEAEEBITER B RES

obligations and the accounting policies resulting B 7S R A BI| 55 15 9F i B P AR A

from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in SHEE - PDRIERM 6 &3 o

Notes 6 and 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial & BB &R & E B 15 55 A
application of HKFRS 15 V-4 7 -1 L
The following table summaries the impacts of TRBGETHBEEREEVBREE
transition to HKFRS 15 on retained profits at 1 BIZE 155 420181 A1 HIRE
January 2018. BR 752 o
RMB’000
AREFT
Retained profits REBEF
Balance at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 431 H 2,285,079
Financing component in the contracts of sale of BT H#EA R EIE 28D LI
electricity (Note 22) NGB (et 22) (10,053)
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 M2018%F1A1H 2,275,026
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

The following adjustments were made to

FEAHTRKEIEBUBREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

21 FEERHERZEBUBREE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

EEUBHEEREI15HERE
FERZKAER(E)

BB BHEERE 15 5B AT
ELtZHEBE(E)

H2018FE1 A1 BAHE BN

the amounts recognised in the consolidated KPR SBETTUATRHAE
statement of financial position at 1 January RBERATENRTEIBR o
2018. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
Carrying
Carrying amounts under
amounts HKFRS 15 at
previously 1 January 2018*
reported at R 20185171
31 December 2017 RERIHEE
RO17TE12831 Reclassification ~ Remeasurement RHE15%
AEESE EfDE Bt ine®
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT NEETT NEEFT NERFT
Trade and bill receivables EYESENRRE 1,368,120 (581,591) —~ 786,529
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TBFTZE 14 REMENFE 1,590,171 (21,646) - 1,568,525
Amounts due from joint ventures EREELETE 354,167 (102,387) - 251,780
Amounts due from associates RUBEDTTE 28,250 (21,882) - 6,368
Contract assets AFAE - 727,506 (10,053) 717453
Retained profits RERA 2,285,079 - (10053) 2,275,006
Other payables and accruals (excluding EfEAREER
payables for construction in progress) (FEBEARENT) 636,389 (56,478) - 579,911
Amounts due to joint ventures ERAEMEHE 13471 (5,108) - 8363
Contract liabilies ARARE - 61,586 - 61,586
* The amounts in this column are before the * AP 2 2 BESB KR

adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9

EHERNEIFHBZAN
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

(a)

A contract asset represents the Group’s
right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. As at 1 January 2018,
renewable energy subsidy receivables
relating to power plants not yet registered
in the Catalogue (as defined in Note 4)
of RMB130,324,000 (net of financing
component of RMB10,053,000), amounts
due from customers for contract work
of RMB48,687,000 and retention money
for contract work of RMB538,442,000,
which were previously included in trade
and bill receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and amounts due
from joint ventures and associates, were
reclassified as contract assets upon the
application of HKFRS 15.

2.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.1

FEERHERZEBUBREE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

EEUBHEEREI15HERE
FERZKAER(E)

BB B EERZE 15558 AT

ELZTE

(a)

Z(%E)

EREEREASEDEE
HAREEGRREFPHEZ
EMzAGRKRSE - BHE
2018F1A18B " X3 AH
(R WFHA) 2 BERAE
ERRFERMERERERARE
130,324,000 7T (30 B B & B
2 A R #10,053,0007T )
AERIBERERARE
48,687,000t © & [ L 72
RE & AR ®538,442,000
T LR ARBRERKRES
ERERERE - BEANRE - &
&R EMEURIES - UK
FEUR & & 1 B & A F K
B REBUBREENE
1ISREHDEREREE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

(b) A contact liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
As at 1 January 2018, receipts in advance
from customers of RMB50,842,000 and
amounts due to customers for contract
work of RMB10,744,000 previously
included in other payables and accruals
and amounts due to joint ventures, were
reclassified as contract liabilities upon the
application of HKFRS 15.

() At the date of initial application,
financing component in the contracts
of sale of electricity by power plants
not yet registered in the Catalogue
with corresponding adjustment of
RMB10,053,000 on opening retained
profits.

The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and its consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the current year for each of
the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

2.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.1

FEERHERZEBUBREE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

EEUBHEEREI15HERE
FERZKAER(E)

BB TR & ERE 15 58 /AT
ELZTZEHE(E)

(b)

ERBEREAEBRE X
MEFPFEREMIRE 2
B MASEBEREPR
BRWEEECEN 2HE
©F) BZE2018F1 A1
H- - %£f8EEHMmER
R ERAUAREMNEE
EEREFR ZBUYKEA
R# 50,842,000t AR I
BEREFINZEEAA
R¥10,744,0007C * 2B H
B R R E15REF S
BARERBE -

EVMERZH - BARTIA
Bt o EBWAR 2 &S
S AR 10,053,000 7T AR FE
AT HVREBRF -

TR T EAE BN RS ER
BI155 N EE 201812 318
ZEBEEHEERBRIREER
RPEAFERZFECEE - K
BERAZZEZIEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial

2. ERAFTREBIEEMBHREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.1

FEERHERZEBUBREE

Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

EEUBHEEREI15HERE
FERZKAER(E)

BB B EERZE 15558 AT

application of HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED) AT A ()
Amounts
without
application
of HKFRS 15
KER
BERUE
As reported  Adjustments HEER
BEH AEY EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ANRETT
Impact on the consolidated iR EERRBR
statement of financial position LEE
Trade and bill receivables W E 5B H B 1R 733,228 860,715 1,593,943
Prepayments, deposits and BRRE Eek
other receivables H i e Y sRE 1,531,558 21,844 1,553,402
Amounts due from associates s kNI | 20,913 23,503 44,416
Amounts due from joint ventures  fEMA LD EFIE 61,050 88,717 149,767
Contract assets AREE 987,484 (987,484) —
Retained profits {RE &7 2,704,327 7,295 2,711,622
Other payables and accruals HoAth B 5RIB K FE AT
(excluding payables for ER(TE2ES
construction in progress) B FE T 50) 826,121 60,116 886,237
Amounts due to joint ventures ENEEERIA 19,837 1,376 21,213
Contract liabilities HERAE 61,492 (61,492) —
Impact on the consolidated HiaRERY
statement of profit or loss 71N
Revenue 1,414,070 7,295 1,421,365

199



2018 F 8

HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

200

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments and the
related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for

1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities;

2)  expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial
assets and other items (for example,
contract assets, base receivables and
financial guarantee contracts); and

3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018
(date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018.
The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 3.
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2.1
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2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments and the

related amendments (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets under HKFRS 9
and HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1

January 2018.

ERAHMIREEIEEMBREE
RI(TEBMBREER D) (&)

21 FEERHERZEBMBREE
Rl 2 #ri8 R AER] (&)

EENBHREEANFIRETHMTA
RAGE165T (5)

BB B & ERFE 9 A TE
HLZTEHE

TR TRBEXERAB - A
2018F 1 A1 BIRBEB BT B RS
ZEREIFRMB B S ERE 39
SR N2 TRHIEREAHERMEE
MemaErEMBEEMETZS
¥ERETE o

Financial
Available- assets at fair
for-sale  value through
financial ~ profit or loss  Trade and bill
assets BROAER receivables Retained
THEE fTABEZ EWE 5% profits
SREE SREE AREE REER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT NEREFT ANBEFT NEETFT
Impact on the consolidated HEREE
statement of financial position BERIFE
Closing balance at 31 December R20175 12831 B
2017 HREE 4,726 - 1,368,120 2,285,079
Effect arising from initial BREREANBR
application of HKFRS 9 HEAEIR
yE
Reclassification from: ENE:
Available-for-sale e (4,726) 4,726 — —
Loans and receivables ERRELE — 75,592 (75,592) -
Remeasurement from cost to fair ~ EHHEALBE
value KA - 49 — 49
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 72201841 A 1H
S - 80,367 1,292,528 2,285,128
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments and the

related amendments (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (CONTINUED)

(a)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS investments to fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

At the date of initial application of HKFRS
9, the Group’s unlisted equity investments
of RMB4,726,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to
financial assets at FVTPL. The fair value
gains of RMB49,000 relating to those
unlisted equity investments previously
carried at cost less impairment were
adjusted to financial assets at FVTPL and
retained profits as at 1 January 2018.

2.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.1

REEBREERZEBPBRESE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

BEBUBHEEREIREMTA

RAGEA1SET ()

BIBR & ERE 9 B TE
G EBHEE)

(a)

AHEHERE

ARt ERmIREESE
FEBRBIRASEINIEZ

REBTEREER L%
ZHXERB  AEEHBA
R#4,726,000 T2 3E £
R ERHEEeRE
EESBERBEBRBEREARN
B8R o B 5% B4R B AN R
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BBz AR EREARE
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2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments and the

related amendments (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (CONTINUED)

(b)

Loans and receivables

As part of the Group’'s cash flow
management, the Group normally
discounts the bills received from debtors
to financial institutions or endorsing to
suppliers before the bills are due for
payment and derecognises bills discounted
on the basis that the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards to the
relevant counterparties. Accordingly, the
Group’s bill receivables of RMB75,592,000
previously classified as loans and
receivables were reclassified to financial
assets at FVTPL upon the application of
HKFRS 9 because the bills receivables are
held in a business model whose objective is
to sell. Due to the short-term nature of the
bill receivables, their carrying amounts are
considered approximate to their fair value
as at 1 January 2018.

2.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.1

REEBREERZEBPBRESE
Rl Z #ri8 R A8 R] (&)

BEBUBHEEREIREMTA

RAGEA1SET ()

BIBR & ERE 9 B TE
G EBHEE)

(b)

B N R IR

AEBEERSEERE
P —BHMEBAREZ
HeRmBEBBERTER
ZETEBREEMNKEIHA
EOTPR TEASEEEY
EBRTAERBMBNER K
HERXZHFREI#ERD
WEREE - At IHEER
BREFH R ERIFE I 2 R
o AEBRAFEREN
MEKFEZEEEREAR
# 75,592,000 LIREDEE
BRARBEFABRZZERE
Ed - AAZEERAHEE
AERHEEEXNBEN -
HZE2018F18A18 - HAfE
WEBHGENEE - HIRE
BEEAEENAEMRS -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments and the
related amendments (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (CONTINUED)

(¢)  Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses
a lifetime ECL for all finance lease
receivables, contract assets and trade
receivables(including trade-related
amounts due from joint venture and
associates). Except for those which had
been determined as credit impaired
under HKAS 39, finance lease receivables,
contract assets and trade receivables have
been assessed individually for significant
balances.

Except for those which had been
determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at
amortised cost, including restricted bank
deposits, bank balances, and non-trade-
related amounts due from joint ventures
and associates, and other receivables, are
assessed on 12-month ECL basis as there
had been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition.

For outstanding financial guarantees
provided to a joint venture of
RMB 16,126,000, the Group considers there
has been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and hence the
loss allowance is assessed on 12-month
ECL basis.

2.
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A(TERMBRERER D (H)

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

2.1

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERAYSTRKBIEBMBHREE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Bl([BEBEMEED |) (&
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are 2.1 AREEREEMCEBHBREE
mandatorily effective for the current year Bl i R EET (&)
(CONTINUED)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of JE B 2 B G K 5T ¥ Bl 4m
financial position arising from the application BEBEXECEE
of all new standards and amendments
As a result of the changes in the Group’s BN i EESHKE & - ¥
accounting policies above, the opening BEMBYVGAEEARBER T&
consolidated statement of financial position T EERSYSE BB B
had to be restated. The following table show THE . KBIEATENTE IR
the adjustments recognised for each of the line g o
items affected. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
31 December 2017 1 January 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
20175125318 ERUBEE  BEMBEEE 201851818
(B3t ERE15% EELT (E#)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ANRETFT ARETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial A/t HESBEE
assets 4,726 — (4,726) -
Financial assets at FVTPL 1R AA BEFAR
RIERMEE — — 4,775 4,775
Contract assets RREE - 130,324 - 130,324
Trade and bill receivables  ERE SRR E 140,377 (140,377) — —
Current assets RBEE
Trade and bill receivables ~ ENEFEHREE 1,227,743 (441,214) - 786,529
Prepayments, deposits and  BRIFUE - KR
ather receivables HiEUEE 897,837 (21,646) 876,191
Contract assets aREE - 587,129 - 587,129
Amounts due from joint ~ ERALERIE
ventures 354,167 (102,387) — 251,780
Amounts due from [ CA=UNSE S
associates 28,250 (21,882) — 6,368
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals EfbER ZER
(excluding payables for ~ [E:BR(TEE
construction in progress) &R RENT) 636,389 (56,478) — 579,911
Contract liabilities aRaE - 61,586 - 61,586
Amounts due to ERAERE
joint ventures A 13,471 (5,108) — 8,363
Capital and reserves BRARGE
Retained profits REEF 2,285,079 (10,053) 49 2,275,075
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

2.

ERAHIREEIEEMBREE
AT ERMBREER D (&)

2.2 CHEME R RERZHET REBET
ZERMBREER

AREBEBTARAEAATEHE
2018 12 A31H B MIE & K
ER 2 FE] RSB R] 2 BB ISR

206

HKFRS 16
BAMBWE LR 165

HKFRS 17
BAMBWEERE 175

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
BB (BRI RS 2E
ZBEg) —RER23NR

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB GHREAERIZE 35
CCHEN)

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BB HREAERIZE R
CCHEN)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

FEMBRELENF10HK

FRERTERF 285
(BRI )

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
BB ERIZE 1A

FEBS RS % (182])

Amendments to HKAS 19

ARG EUF 195 (ER])

Amendments to HKAS 28

ARG EAE 285 (1E5])

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB ERERNEET

%]

Leases'
HE'

Insurance Contracts®

RERE#)*
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

FreH@EEs THE M

Definition of a Business®

ESVhE

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’
AT BB #1E

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
KETHRBE N AEDEMZEENE A

Definition of Material®

BEEMEE®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement'
STEIEET - RS AEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
BELARE ERANREE E R

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'
BB BEREER|2015 2 2017 AEHFEX#'



2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (CONTINUED)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements
and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases
and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

2.

BRI REEITEBUBREE
AT ERMBREER ] (&

2.2 CHEME R RERZHET KRB

ZEBUBHMELER(E)

1 R-E-NF—-A B ERHA
w2 FREEREAER -

2 RZEZ—F—A—HZEEHA
B2 FEEARIERK o

3 REMz A ERRBZ FE
AR AR

4 HRARBEEHA-_Z_TF—A
—HAzBE—EFEHMABZ
Bz hb¥AMHEM -

5 RoE-EF - B HERHA
A FEIMMAR -

BT CRTELET M RS BBV RS
A ZERTIN  AREIEETBE -
FTEEME R B BT EHRE%E
A2 ERT 2 @R EA TR ZARK
TeHGAEERBRESEAY
@,

BEMBHEERF 16 HHE

BAEWHREENE 1654 H
BARABASIABER R &R
BRIE R 2 AR A REY - BRI
HEERE 1657 K A E R
REBSERE 17 REERE
MERAREE o
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2

208

New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be
accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use assets is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation
to land use rights for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be both presented
as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be
presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance to the nature, as appropriate.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already
recognised an asset and related finance lease
liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for land use rights
where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB158,546,000 as disclosed in Note 44. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

2.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2

210

New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid as rights under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will apply the requirements of HKFRS 15 to
assess whether sales and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale. For a transfer that does not
satisfy the requirements as a sale, the Group
will account for the transfer proceeds as
financial liabilities within the scope of HKFRS
9. In accordance with the transition provisions
of HKFRS 16, sale and leaseback transactions
entered into before the date of initial application
will not be reassessed but the new requirements
may impact the Group’s future sale and
leaseback transactions.
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2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

The Group intends to elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease
which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. Furthermore, the Group intends
to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the
definition of material by including additional
guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgements. The amendments also align
the definition across all HKFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The
application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the *“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of
the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

3.

FTERETHBERGE)

RERARERGZEMTARERY
REATABERABHERIAEZRS
BRI HZBEBETEETRE @ A
EaERE HERM A EERER
HEREF -

BeSh - REERER 2 - AR EE
EEENAA BET B ZHABZ TS
BREURZSHAEL AL EEHE
BB EBY WRAZ B F_E
SE=BR2ELRBERR - LBE
AL

s EEfBAEBREIBEEAR
EESZHREEXBBEREERED
BHRREREZRE

s E_EABAEBRERTFEER
BAEMBEZHRENINZ  BE
HEBEZEMERIMEABRREL
BWAE: AR

e F-ERBAERKEEEXAEZ
THEBEBAE -

TBZEBERBERLTX -

SRR
BHBBERREBARTRARFRE
B ARES  TR(REABIEER)
ZHBRRK - BEARBTE L TIEM
- HEAHZER2ES

s BRYUWREEZEN

. BBHRREEZSATRALE
EEETRER AR

s ARNERHRREEZRITE
PISEIER ©58 -

213



2018 F 8
HEHEREERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

®a

3.

214

Bt 35 R AR B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’'s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of the relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at the acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period,the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (CONTINUED)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joints ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture.

Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that to the interest in an associate or a
joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exist, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
a contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis, except for and variable
consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using either (a) the expected value
method or (b) the most likely amount, depending
on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (CONTINUED)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the
associated goods or services before payments
from customers in which the Group adjusts for the
promised amount of consideration for significant
financing components, the Group applies a discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The Group recognises interest
income during the period between the payment from
customers and the transfer of the associated goods or
services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (CONTINUED)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s accounting policy for the recognition
of revenue from construction contracts is described
in the accounting policy for construction contracts
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed and the
goods are accepted by the customers and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Revenue from rendering of services are recognised
when the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Electricity income is recognised when electricity is
generated and transmitted.

Tariff subsidy is recognised at its fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the tariff will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions, if any.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.

FTERETHBERGE)

WA (2018 FE1 A1 B 2A)(£&)

AEBRARES WA ERERRN
SIFBRIDERN TXRERNEFTEE
h oo

EVRERN MERCEBAECDHEE
PRE - ERIEERM WA - AR
FAMEMR 2 AT MR [ 1 A & TR AR o

ARAG A ER (I W RR P IR AR A 2 WA

K& 2 BB AWK B e N s T
ﬁ@ Efu °©

MBWAZEREBEANE MERERA
KRN T ERE KB BEENTEHR
FHZEFRRRAS WA LB REZ
BEREFE N X ) AR B | &%

.
ars °

BENRERHERE WA -

HARE A SRR WS B ARE
B 7 38 <7 BB Y (IR (0 ) B HE AR
PifHaL -

ReEME s He RaEERBEEERRNR
BRZERBHEAER

227



2018 F 8
HEHEREERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

®a

3.

228

Bt 35 R AR B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured by reference to the percentage of surveys
of work performed for individual contract up to the
reporting date. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable, contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are

incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profit less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. For contracts where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus
is shown as amounts due to customers for contract
work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
‘trade and bill receivables’.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys
to the lessee in return for a payment or series of
payments the right to use an asset for an agreed
period of time.

A series of transactions that involve the legal
form of a lease is linked and accounted for as one
transaction when the overall economic effect cannot
be understood without reference to the series of
transactions as a whole. The accounting reflects the
substance of the arrangement.

An arrangement that involves a legal form of a lease
is not, in substance, accounted for as a lease if:

o the Group retains all the risks and rewards
incident to ownership of an underlying asset and
enjoys substantially the same rights to its use as
before the arrangement;

o the primary reason for the arrangement is not to
convey the right to use an asset; and

o an option is included on terms that make its
exercise almost certain.

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Leasehold land and building for own use

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire property is accounted for as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building for own use
(CONTINUED)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as ‘land use rights’ in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “Exchange reserve” (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

3.

FTERETHBERGE)

HETHNEREEN(E)

el Be AT SE 3 0 L A & 08 - RUBIE R
EHECHET RSB ER]IHES
A 13 6 AR | R R A RSO R T
B WIRHEFHAERRHEH

S

4w ) = B B ) 88 2 A IS IR B
NEBZEEE AN Z EtE (N
BIVETZRPERRHELERZHATT
EXETHHE - £ —MEHR - LA
BitBcEBERERREEREBRA
ZHROTEXBHNE - UAABEAK
ZUINEFHBZFERERBERAR
BERERACRITEXRENTE - UE
SRRANGT B Z ASMNERHE 2 SFR IR
BTBEHMNE -

EHHARENERHBEENNEEL
ZEREZR EEELEZEHFAR

S

E\

HRAREHPBRERZIBEZ A%
BzRIMEE 2 BEEMABSRAER
BEMRZBTEXTESAEE 25
HmEE(N : AR®) - WS MEMEAB
BIRERFYERFTEGRIFEZHIEA
HAEERBEANRY  EERELTE
RARHELEBZEXRETNG) - F
EEZEREZR(WA)GF AL BEE
Wl REAAES(QEE - A0 #
EIREH ) o

231



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

232

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualified assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The Group’s
PRC companies are required to contribute certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Group, namely the share award
scheme.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (other reserves). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the other reserves.

Under the share award scheme, when the awarded
shares are vested the related cost of the vested shares
is released from the other reserves to eliminate the
related amount of treasury shares held for the share
award scheme. Any difference between the cost of
the vested shares and the related amount of treasury
shares is transferred to share premium.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings for
use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Cost includes professional fees and, for qualified
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than construction in progress) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part
of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management).

Land use rights

Land use rights represent the Group’s interests in
land held under operating leases and are initially
recognised at cost and subsequently amortised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measureable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (CONTINUED)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
using the specific identification of their individual
costs. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date or
settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require

delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since
1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’'s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in far value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2) (CONTINUED)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2) (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from joint ventures and associates,
other receivables, finance lease receivables, contract
assets and financial guarantee contracts). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life
12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that

of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables (including trade-related amounts due
from joint ventures and associates), finance lease
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these

assets are assessed individually.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(CONTINUED)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKAS 17 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount rate
that reflects the current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting
the cash shortfalls being discounted.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(CONTINUED)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, contract assets,
other receivables, and amounts due from joint
ventures and associates where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL,
available-for-sale (“AFS"”) financial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Dealings in securities and sale of investments are
recognised on the transaction dates when the
relevant contract notes are exchanged on the
trade dates when the securities are delivered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the other gains and losses line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 50.
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

AFS financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments or financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are unquoted equity
investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured. These AFS equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bill receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from and loans to joint ventures,
amounts due from associates, restricted deposits, and
cash and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

3.

FESTEEE)
SWMIAE)
EHEEE)

EHEEN SR BT E (KR E2
7 8RR BB 53 & R E 9%
#77) (%)

TREEREGE)

HRUBESBNAHECSREE  BR
MEBXZERAREMEEZIRAE
B 1% H V)06 B R R AT IR A FAET R KR
EREREZMZERE

HRUAKATHEZ EREE - BRRE
BRzeBERZERMEEMNREERR
HABSMEENREHSEBRITR
ZHEFARASREREBECHZERE -
ZERERAERENE I ISED -

FrBEEREEZIREERBMERRE
BAR - 1 E 5 GR A EL A Wk 2
IREEE R B HIEIRPEIRERIN o FEK
IRPZIREEZBIZERIIK - WES
& ok sl B At B MR AR A T R Uk E] - Al
T B IR o 5t AT M E R K[
&R AR -

259



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

260

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, senior notes and bonds payable, trade
and bill payables, contract liabilities, accruals and
other payables, amounts due to joint ventures and
associates, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018); and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Convertible loan contain debt and derivative
components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and
derivative components are recognised at fair value.
In subsequent periods, the debt component of the
convertible loan is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan are allocated to the debt and
derivative components in proportion to their relative
fair values. Transaction costs relating to the derivative
component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are
included in the carrying amount of the debt portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible loan
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of
financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparation of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales of
electricity and impairment assessment of contract
assets of tariff adjustment receivables

Tariff subsidy represents subsidy received and/
or receivable from the government authorities in
respect of the Group’s power generation business.
As mentioned in the accounting policy above, tariff
subsidy is recognised as revenue at its fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the additional
tariff will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions, if any.

According to the tariff notice released by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (the
“Tariff Notice”), for power plants which obtained on-
grid approval and commence in generating electricity
will be eligible for on-grid tariff subsidy, which is
determined by deducting the basic electricity price
from the total electricity price set out in respective
electricity purchase agreement.

Pursuant to the Tariff Notice, a set of standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy
has come into force since 2013 and approvals for
the registration in the Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy
Catalogue (Af B A REREEW M E © @B E 8% )
(the "Catalogue”) on a project-by-project basis are
required before the allocation of funds to the state
grid companies, which then would make settlement to
the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales
of electricity and impairment assessment of
contract assets of tariff adjustment receivables
(CONTINUED)

In making their judgement, the directors of the
Company, taking into account the legal opinion as
advised by the Group’s legal advisor, considered
that all of the Group’s power plants (including
power plants held by the Group's joint ventures and
associates) of which tariff subsidy is recognised as
revenue but yet to register in the Catalogue currently
in operation had been qualified for and had met, the
requirements and conditions as stipulated in the Tariff
Notice for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy when
the electricity was delivered on grid.

The directors of the Company are confident that all of
the Group’s operating power plants (including power
plants operated by the Group’s joint ventures and
associates) are able to be registered in the Catalogue
in due course and it's probable that the accrued
revenue on tariff subsidy will be received but only
subject to timing of allocation of funds from the PRC
government, after considering that there are no bad
debt experiences with the state grid companies in the
past and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC
government.

Any deferral on the timing of receiving the tariff
subsidy relative to the directors’ estimation in
performing impairment assessment may result in
potential impairment losses..
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales
of electricity and impairment assessment of
contract assets of tariff adjustment receivables
(CONTINUED)

As disclosed in Note 22(i), as at 31 December 2018,
the tariff adjustment receivables of RMB501,146,000
(2017: RMB130,324,000) was recognised by the
power plants which have not been included in the
Catalogue

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use
or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Impairment of goodwill (CONTINUED)

As set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the annual impairment review performed
by the management involves assumptions, including
estimated online power quantity of each wind farm,
projected installation capacity, expected tariff rate and
discount rate, amongst others, that are subjective in
nature and the Company is required to use judgment
in applying such information. Depending on the
complexity of deriving reasonable estimates of the
recoverable amount of the CGU, the Group may
perform such assessment utilising internal resources
or the Group may engage external advisors to counsel
the Group in making this assessment.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or a CGU or groups of CGUs
exceeds its recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of goodwill was, RMB1,000,060,000 (2017:
RMB1,000,060,000). No impairment (2017:
RMB62,584,000) was recognised during the current
year. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’'s
financial assets including unquoted equity instruments
of RMB8&,545,000 (Note 21) and derivative component
of the convertible loan amounting to RMB10,169,000
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil)(Note 34) are
measured at fair values with fair values being
determined based on unobserved inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes
in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these instruments. See
Note 49 for further disclosures.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments

The management has determined the operating
segments based on the internal reports reviewed
and used by executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision markers
(“CODM"), for strategic decision making.

The CODM considers the business from a
product and service perspective. The Group is
organised into certain business units according
to the nature of the products sold or services
provided. The CODM reviews operating results
and financial information of each business
unit separately. Accordingly, each business
unit (including joint ventures and associates)
is identified as an operating segment. These
operating segments with similar economic
characteristics and similar nature of products
sold or services provided have been aggregated
into the following reporting segments:

o Power generation segment — operation
of wind and solar power plants through
subsidiaries, generating electric power for
sale to external power grid companies,
investing in power plants through joint
ventures and associates;

° “Others”segment — provision of power
plant operation and maintenance
services, provision of design, technical
and consultancy services, undertaking
electrical engineering and construction of
power plant projects (the “engineering,
procurement and construction business”),
provision of finance lease services and
energy internet services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Business segments (CONTINUED)
During the prior year, the engineering,
procurement and construction business became
a non-core business, however, this segment met
the quantitative thresholds for the reportable
segment. In the current year, this segment
does not meet the quantitative thresholds for
the reportable segment, and accordingly, this

segment was grouped in “Others” segment.

The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of
adjusted earnings before interest and income
tax. This measurement basis excludes the effects
of non-recurring income and expenditure from
the operating segments.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted
with reference to the selling prices used for sales
made to the third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ remuneration, certain other income,

finance income and finance costs.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, all assets and liabilities are allocated
to operating segments other than assets and
liabilities attributable to head office.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERE)
(a) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) %Bo28(E)
Segment revenues and results, and segment DPERAREE ROAFEEEHEE
assets and liabilities =
The following is an analysis of the Group’'s TP RAEFELEDHE W
revenue, results, assets and liabilities by AHEE -BENEBE-

reportable operating segment.

Power Segment
generation Others total Elimination Total
BEH it R4 it 3t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABRTE  ARRTL  ARRTZ ARRTZ ARRETZ

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018% 12A31 BLEE

Segment revenue ARUA
Sales to external customers* EREN 1,251,109 162,961 1,414,070 - 1,414,070
Inter-seqment sales EEHERNE - 177,229 177,229 (177,229) -
1,251,109 340,190 1,591,299 (177,229) 1,414,070
Segment results FREE 781,016 12,781 793,797 793,797
Unallocated other gains and losses, et~ AFE 2 A REE 38 29,697
Unallocated income AR 1,512
Unallocated expenses AFAELER (15,699)
Finance income FBIA 11,983
Finance costs i (301,210)
Profit before income tax REERAET 530,140
Income tax expense HERER (16,291)
Profit for the year KEEE 513,849
At 31 December 2018 2018512318
Seqment assets NEEE 16,195,520 2,127,418 18,322,938 18,322,938
Unallocated assets ARl EE 89,870
Total assets EESE 18,412,808
Segment liablities AEBRE (11,400462)  (1,445863)  (12,846,325) (12,846,325)
Unallocated liabiltes (S WA (19,744)
Total liabilities BEEE (12,866,069)
* Revenue from power generation comprised * BEEBWADRIRERE T EEB K
revenue generated from wind power plants and LAGEHEER 28I AARE
solar power plants of RMB906,206,000 and 906,206,000 7T &z A FE# 344,903,000
RMB344,903,000, respectively. JC °
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERE)
(a) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) EXKDEE)
Segment revenues and results, and segment DENAREE RBoESEHES
assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) =(E)
Engineering,
procurement
Power and
generation construction Others  Segment total Elimination Total
\ Rt B o ‘
g5 RiET iy AR i e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
For the year ended BEN17£128318
31 December 2017 LEE
Segment revenue AEUA
Sales to external customers*  EFHANEF* 717,548 235,817 82,602 1,035,967 - 1,035,967
Inter-segment sales SENRRNE - 1,386,271 46,306 1432571 (1,432577) -
717,548 1,622,088 128,908 2,468,544 (1.432,577) 1,035,967
Segment results PE%E 467,153 (107,703) 10,486 369,936 - 369,936
Unallocated other gainsand A FAE7 Aol
losses, net REE 58 12,083
Unallocated income FFARZHA 6,438
Unallocated expenses IS s (15,565)
Finance income A 2,637
Finance costs AL (184,903)
Profit before income tax REGRAEN 270,566
Income tax expense e (63948)
Profit for the year REFR 206,618
At 31 December 2017 R17E12831R
Segment assets ABEE 12,210,238 21713 360,602 14,743,553 14,743,553
Unallocated assets Al EE 63,585
Total assets EEHE 14,807,138
Segment liabilities TEER (6,369,865) (3,123,334) (48,240) (9,541,439) (9,541,439)
Unallocated liabiltes Aol aE (10,553)
Total liabilties BEAE (9,551,992)

Revenue from power generation comprised

revenue generated from wind power plants
and solar power plants of RMB366,295,000and

RMB351,253,000, respectively.

* BEEBBADRIRERE S 3

BEMEABGEEER - €8I A
AR 366,295,000 7T & AR
351,253,000 7 ©
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(a)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERE)
Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) ¥EBoEE)
Other segment information Bt 7 HEH
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F 12 A31HLLEE
Power
generation Others Unallocated Total
BEEY Al FIAE @
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFR ARETT AREFR
Amounts included in the measure #5551 E B R A S
of segment profit or loss or BEASEEE
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  3EREIEE 21BN
(including property ,plant (BEME B
and equipment and land use B RERTR
rights) TiFERE) 3,649,247 9,001 - 3,658,248
Depreciation of property, plant 4% B Rk fE
and equipment LB 339,006 15,606 — 354,612
Amortisation of other AthEVEERT
intangible assets and land ERE B
use rights 15,834 4,645 319 20,798
Share-based compensation AR R
b 209 27 309 545
Interests in joint ventures and REELEREE
associates REZ R 1,798,820 51,751 - 1,850,571
Share of profit/(loss) of joint FEhAEERE
ventures and associates, net BRAEEN
/(BR) 58 149,619 (2,846) — 146,773
Amounts reqularly provided to the  # 2 & AF L+ ZF
CODM but not included in the ERRERAZ 2
measure of segment profit or FUAGTASE
loss or segment assets: B d s HEE
B
Loss on disposal of property, WEVE - HE RikE
plant and equipment, net LIEE R 11,886 507 - 12,393
Impairment loss on trade FEWE SERE
receivables - 11,906 — 11,906
Impairment loss on other Hth ST IR E
receivables 3,977 1,560 - 5,537
Finance income B (3.261) (8,722) - (11,983)
Finance costs BRI A 299,158 2,052 - 301,210
Income tax expense FERAY 13,323 2,968 - 16,291
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Business segments (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. 2¥ERGE)

(a) EBHE(E)

A7 EEH (&)

BZ2017F 12831 BLEE

Engineering,
Power procurement,
generation and construction Others Unallocated Total
et SR
BEXK RiET At AR Eehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT NEETT NEEFT NEETT NEETT
Amounts included in the  BEHEBZRHEER
measure of segment profit B A EEE -
or loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets SERBVAE 2 E1( A2
(including property ,plant 9% - BE - RER
and equipment and land use T R+ fEFE)
rights) 3,295,579 5,027 4,402 — 3,305,008
Depreciation of property, plant #1% - B R E1TE
and equipment 213,740 13,770 3,979 — 231,489
Amortisation of other At B EERTIER
intangible asset and land 12
use rights 9,207 4,648 — 319 14174
Share-based compensation AR BEEZ {130 945 315 105 1,787 3,152
Interests in joint ventures and RAEPERBERRZ
associates ER 1,677,493 - - - 1,677,493
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ~ EIEEEME REE AT
ventures and associates, net 2R/ (E548) -
ek 127,451 (265) - - 127,186
Amounts reqularly provided to ## B AFHTEEE
the CODM but not included ~ #FZ/Ef 724
in the measure of seqment WA A7 El
profit or loss or seqment  AEEEHEF
assets:
Write-down of inventories  F&WE 3,518 13,353 — — 16,871
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERREZ
plant and equipment, net [ - FE 4,462 1,598 - - 6,060
Impairment loss on goodwill ~ EE(E — 62,584 — — 62,584
Impairment loss on trade ~~ [ERE BEFAE
receivables 8,590 1,002 — 9,592
Impairment loss on other ~ EftEMFUARE
receivables 19,386 - - — 19,386
Reversal of impairment loss ~ EMMA £ FERIEL
on amounts due from joint &
ventures - (3,641) — - (3,641)
Gain from a bargain purchase  FTEREF|E - - (1,213) - (1.213)
Finance income FHEUA (6,968) (15,614) (55) - (22,637)
Finance costs HHRA 172,838 12,065 — - 184,903
Income tax expense FEHAY 37,190 22,250 4,508 - 63,948
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5.

276

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are mainly located in the
PRC and the remaining operations are located in
the United States of America and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from
external customers is presented based on the
location of the customers. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred

tax assets and financial assets) is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

5. 2¥ERGE)

(b)

HESE

REETFELEMITRFEAR
HMBE(HEL) - EibEEmur
BREXBENEE -

AEBRBIFEP ZBAESR
RIBINEPR P 2 IR (L B HEE © A
SEZHERBDEEFESREBEEEZ
WU EERBRELCHBREE

REBEE)

Revenue Non-current assets
Year ended 31 December At 31 December
BN12831BLLEE ®12A31H
ON FREBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT ARB¥FT AREFT
The PRC M 1,382,822 1,012,096 13,563,562 10,025,511
Others H b bR 31,248 23,871 836,121 763,333
1,414,070 1,035,967 14,399,683 10,788,844
Information about major customers () FEEFEM

Four (2017: three) external customers
individually contribute more than 10% of the

W& (2017« Z&)INBEFL GG
NEFBRABI0% o IEZWAZ

total revenue of the Group. The revenue of these EREBLMINT
customers is summarised below:

2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Customer A Z2E A 292,284 112,969
Customer B P B 213,433 195,227
Customer C =P C 170,245 N/A*
Customer D Z2FED 162,178 109,038

Revenue from customers above are attributable
to power generation segment.

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

biEp 2 WA R BN EEEY

\ ¥
D8 -

* HEZWATBARBEZ A EE

WAZ10% °
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FEMBHmRME
6. REVENUE 6. WA
6.1 For the year ended 31 December 2018 6.1 HBZE2018F12A31LEFE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year

HZE2018F 12 A31HIEFER

ended 31 December 2018 is as follows: EBZUWADHIT :
Power
generation Others Total
BETK Hith et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT AR¥EFT AR¥FT
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREF AR ZWA
customers R
Sales of electricity: EEWA
Basic electricity price BEHEBRA 717,080 — 717,080
Renewable energy subsidy Al A BRI RL
(Note) WA (H1aE) 529,095 — 529,095
Power plant operation and BRGETT M
maintenance services WA — 95,803 95,803
Engineering, procurement A BB RET
and construction WA — 28,791 28,791
Provision of design services RHBRET ARG UA — 14,296 14,296
Provision of technical and R R AR
consultancy services HUA — 10,987 10,987
Provision of agency service REHERIEUA
on sale of equipment — 7,403 7,403
Other revenue H AU A — 1,664 1,664
1,246,175 158,944 1,405,119
Finance lease income BERERA — 4,017 4,017
Financing component interest B &/ 5 F 2Ug A
income 4,934 — 4,934
Total revenue WA 5t 1,251,109 162,961 1,414,070
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6.

278

Bt 35 R AR B

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

6.1 For the year ended 31 December 2018

(CONTINUED)

Note: Renewable energy subsidy is provided by the

relevant PRC government authorities to the

wind and solar power plants operate in the PRC,

subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions.

As further explained in Note 4, approval for the

registration in the Catalogue is required before

the allocation of renewable energy subsidy by

the relevant PRC government authorities.

An analysis of timing of revenue recognition

for revenue from contracts with customers is as

follows:

WA (&)

6.1

BZE2018F 12 A31LLEE(E)

B - R B A RE IR RE A R AR I
BT #EAsT RN B 2R 7
MAGRER2ES NI - X
BRAMEELEEREREMED
HIEA RREHRTE - HMHE4
Fridt - £ BB R HE 1T #E BY)
D ECAT - ZAFAREREM B 8% o

HEPEI 2 A RBAZWATER
BRI

Power
generation Others Total
BEK Hit Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT AREFT AR¥FrT
A point in time: TR B RERR
Sales of electricity R UN 1,246,175 — 1,246,175
Engineering, procurement et REREL
and construction WA — 28,791 28,791
Provision of design services RHEBE RGN — 14,296 14,296
Provision of technical and R AR
consultancy services U A — 10,987 10,987
Provision of agency service FEHERIEWA
on sale of equipment — 7,403 7,403
Other revenue HAnUg A — 1,664 1,664
1,246,175 63,141 1,309,316
Over time: R R
Power plant operation and BRUETT e
maintenance services WA — 95,803 95,803
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREF AR ZWA
customers B 1,246,175 158,944 1,405,119
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REMBBRRME

6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

6.1
(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue

with the amounts disclosed in the segment

information.

6. WA

6.1

BZE2018F 12 A31LLEE(E)

AT RERF R WAL B
= %&E@%%ﬁZF’sﬁZ;ﬂlﬁ °

Segment Con-
revenue Elimination solidated
2 EBUT A e  BEEBRA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBEFT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREF AR ZWA
customers: R
Sales of electricity EBMA 1,246,175 — 1,246,175
Power plant operation and BRHET R
maintenance services WA 153,924 (58,121) 95,803
Engineering, procurement BET  RERET
and construction WA 54,935 (26,144) 28,791
Provision of agency service JEHERERA
on sale of equipment 10,300 (2,897) 7,403
Provision of design services TR IR U A 36,583 (22,287) 14,296
Provision of technical and R R
consultancy services Bl 7% A 67,643 (56,656) 10,987
Other revenue E A YA 3,481 (1,817) 1,664
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREF AR ZWA
customers A 1,573,041 (167,922) 1,405,119
Finance lease income mEMEEWA 13,324 (9,307) 4,017
Financing component interest B & R D FL.EUA
income 4,934 — 4,934
Total revenue L ONED 1,591,299 (177,229) 1,414,070

279



2018 F 8

HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

6.1

280

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(CONTINUED)

Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

The Group’s revenue is mainly generated
from the sale of electricity, the provision
of power plant operation and maintenance
services, provision of agency service on sale of
equipment, the provision of design, technical
and consultancy services, and finance lease
income.

The revenue from the sale of electricity
comprises of basic electricity price and
renewable energy subsidy. For the renewable
energy subsidy related to power plants not
yet registered in the Catalogue, the related
receivables are classified as contract assets upon
the application of HKFRS 15. Such contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables
upon the completion of the registration in the
Catalogue. More details are set out in Note 22(i).

Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation for contracts with

customers

Contracts for power plant operation and
maintenance services are typically have a 1-year
non-cancellable term in which the Group bills
on a monthly fixed amount. The Group elected
to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice.

All other contracts are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted by HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

WA (&)

BZE2018F 12 A31LLEE(E)

BEF#IERZETER

AEBZWATERBESTWA
RHEMELMEERST - HER
WOIEMRT - BRHERET - BRI
ARBARBERERA -

EERABEETEBRARAH
HRERABE A © R EAREA B
SRR B RS B ERAER 2 I B AR
IR A - BB RRIEE
AU BRELENE ISR ZRER
BREFREE MEAREERHE
A BB RTHREBAREE SR
I8 o BB RME2203) -

PHEERGEFENBRNELZX
Z1E%

B BERETREERIGEM
BHNTAHMERRS1F  AF
ERZEFHRNEARARESR
MRE -  AEBERZEEANAEE
BRRARZETHERUA R E
HEEHE -

B EME L2 T RIHE MRS &
TEREMF - LEEVHBRE
ERIE1SHAE  DEREZE
EBITEH X BB ARIFWE -
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FREMBHERMETE
6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WAE)
6.2 For the year ended 31 December 2017 6.2 HZE2017F12831LEE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year WA Z ST :
is as follows:
RMB’000
AREFITT
Sales of electricity: EEWA :
Basic electricity price EITEE LA 347,918
Renewable energy subsidy Al A AR R AU A 369,630
Engineering, procurement and construction Rat - BREE K T 235,817
Power plant operation and maintenance services  BEGETT REEIWA 79,461
Finance lease income BEHEERA 3,035
Other revenue HA A 106
1,035,967
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7. OTHER INCOME H # Uk A
An analysis of the Group's other income for the year HMIWAZoFwoT~ -
is as follows:

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#Fr AREFT
Interest income FlEWA 11,983 22,637
Tax refunds (Note ii) MBRE(W ) 9,301 2,412
Government grants (Note i) BIFEBh (B2 1) 3,765 1,908
Rental income He WA 1,496 5,051
Guarantee income (Note iii) WEARWA (B 2E i) — 8,364
Others Hib 4,133 3,221
30,678 43,593

282

Note:

(i)

(iii)

During the year, the Group obtained government
grants of RMB2,902,000 (2017: RMB5,777,000) to
promote the development of renewable energy and
investments in certain provinces in the PRC. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants. Government grants for which related
to the investments in power plants are included in
deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the useful lives of the related
assets. Further details are disclosed in Note 36.

The amounts mainly represent refunds of value-
added tax and other taxes received from the PRC tax
authorities.

The amounts in the prior year mainly represented
guarantee fees earned for providing financial
guarantees to a former subsidiary. The financial
guarantees were expired during the prior year.

Hyat

() RAFARN AEERFSEFHEGA
R ¥2,902,0007(2017: A R #
5,777,000 7T ) AR HEBN L A AR B 2 AT
BERRCERIZE - BRIERREZ
LWHBZ ARG - BERIE
BB NRHmEE AR R E - I
NEGEEEHAEECFRFHR
Bt ABm o sFBEHIIRHEE36 -

(i) HEWEBRMHABBHJERR
B R R A BB -

(i) ZeRRHEMBIARARHSBER
M2 EREA - ZE2RERERA
—FRBIE -
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8.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

An analysis of other gains and losses, net is as follows:

Htul s k&R, #58

Hip s RERFE 2T

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEBTFT
Gain on disposal/de-registration of &GS N B R

subsidiaries and associates, net BRwElzWEs - FEE

(Note 39(b) and 39(c)) (K17F 39(b) % 39(c)) 25,066 172,198
Fair value gains on financial assets at ~ EAABEABZZE®H

FVTPL BEZAABEESHKRS 42,750 16,644
Fair value gains on derivative AMBRERZ AR EEE

component of convertible loan By s (A5t 34)

(Note 34) 11,307 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HE REE2

equipment (Notes 39(d)) 1 (H5F 39(d)) (12,393) (6,060)
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 18)  EEEE (A 18) — (62,584)
Write-down of inventories (Note 26) FERE N 26) — (16,871)
Gain from a bargain purchase TEBENSG(HiF42)

(Note 42) — 1,213
Exchange gain/(loss), net RS (E518) 55 204 (88)
Adjustments of sales proceeds of prior LARIFEREMEB AT Z

year's disposal of subsidiaries A (17,970) —
Others Aot (1,824) (7,092)

47,140 97,360
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9.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 9. BMERBRX BEZFHE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFITT
Impairment loss on trade receivables EU B 5 RFURE
(Note 23) (Hfat23) (11,906) (9,592)
Impairment loss on other receivables H fth FE WK IE R (E
(Note 24) (Btet24) (5,537) (19,386)
Reversal of impairment loss on A ECEFTEREL
amounts due from joint ventures &[0 — 3,641
(17,443) (25,337)
Details of impairment assessment of financial assets HZE2018FE 12 A3 HEESRMEEY
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in AL SIS B A1 48 o
Note 48.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10, EEEFHEZ(E2ESHS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& #Hek#s 185,330 144,647
Pension costs — defined contribution  RIKESMA — TR KT
plans (Note (i) (AL ) 35,615 28,077
Share-based compensation (Note 38) LARR D BEYE 2 {458
(Kt 38) 545 3,152
221,490 175,876
Less: Employee benefit expense i BRbIEEBAAX
capitalised (Note(ii) (152 (ii) (36,254) (24,987)
185,236 150,889
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10.

11.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant
forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension scheme in future years
(2017 nil).

(i) Employee benefit expense has been capitalised as
construction in progress under property, plant and

equipment as at 31 December 2018.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the current and prior year are
all directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 46.

EEEARX(BSESEME) (&)

(i) 20184 12A31H  AEEEEKX
FOR R AT AR E R K FEER
REFTEIMEFR(2017 - &) -

(i)  ULHN R2018F12A31H - EE R
MEAZEERNMEGTAME - HELE
BEREETRE -

BEEEFAL
AREBMFAN FFREESHALTED

2EE EMesRMREMTI6 2D
H o

FINANCE COSTS 1. BBRAE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEEFIT
Interest expenses on: FEXZH :
— Bank borrowings — SRITIERX 214,439 203,599
— Other borrowings — HE A& 90,137 27,450
— Loans from a joint venture — BEEZEXK — 585
— Senior notes and bonds payable — BEEBRESFIE
(Note 33) REIA (K1 7F 33) 123,768 12,695
— Convertible loan (Note 34) — AR E R (i 34) 11,222 —
439,566 244,329
Less: Interest capitalised (Note) i R BB (HTET) (138,356) (59,426)
301,210 184,903
Note: Bz

During the year, borrowing costs have been capitalised at
various applicable rates ranging from 4.4% to 8.3% (2017:
2.9% to 7.2%) per annum for qualified assets classified
as construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment.

REER EVE BERSEBIZEET
B WATREBAEZEREBARARS
BB 244%%E83% (20174 : 29% =
7.2%) 2 FFIE@ETERNE o
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12.

286

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging

the following:

12. BRAFISBLATER R

BRATISEL AT A 2 F0RR T 5IS IR

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFITT
Cost of sales and services rendered HEEm MRS AR
included:
Direct operating costs for power BRETZHEENR
generation 425,487 289,319
Cost of power plant operation and BRGEST R MR
maintenance services 68,199 55,932
Cost of provision of design services JETIRFBAAR 10,226 2,545
Cost of provision of technical and BT A0 5 5 BR A5 AR AR
consultancy services 10,415 7,458
Cost of provision of agency service B HERIBRAR
on sale of equipment 4,367 —
Cost of engineering, procurement HET - BEEE B AR
and construction 26,489 286,979
Cost of finance lease BAMRER A 1,120 818
Cost of other revenue E A 1,297 701
547,600 643,752
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12.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

12. BRATSBLATRR (&)

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFITT
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREZTE
equipment 354,612 231,489
Amortisation of land use rights i {58 R AR A 5 20,479 13,855
Amortisation of other intangible assets £ £ 12 & = 5 £ 319 319
Total depreciation and amortization e R#iERER 375,410 245,663
Less: Amount capitalised as JET A - BE RS
construction in progress under ZHERTRZERNE
property, plant and equipment o (7,887) (8,136)
Total depreciation and amortisation AR 2T ENHEHARE
charged to profit or loss 367,523 237,527
Amount included in cost of sales AR AR TS K 85 B AR
and services rendered Gk (357,739) (228,439)
Amount included in administrative FFAEEERACSE
expenses 9,784 9,088
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 2,633 2,492
Operating lease payments e 23,119 18,446
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13.

288

Bt 35 R AR B

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FIEHiRx

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFIT
Current tax EH%E
— PRC corporate Income tax — B EAEH 17,242 49,658
— PRC dividend withholding tax — HPEIR BB 1,070 15,861
(Overprovision)/underprovision in B (%), DEHR
prior years: e
PRC corporate Income tax AR (b EEFTIS R (8,056) 7,441
Deferred tax (Note 35) RIERIIA (K7 7F 35) 6,035 (9,012)
16,291 63,948

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been
made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong during the year (2017:
nil)

PRC corporate income tax is provided for at the rate
of 25% (2017: 25%) for the year of the profits for the
PRC statutory financial reporting purpose, adjusted for
those items which are not assessable or deductible for
the PRC corporate income tax purpose

Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
During the year, no provisions for income tax have
been made in other jurisdictions as the Group had no
assessable profit generated from other jurisdictions
(2017: nil).

The law of the PRC on corporate income tax provides
that qualified dividend income between two “resident
corporates” that have a direct investment relationship
is exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such
dividends will be subject to 5% to 10% withholding
tax under the tax treaty or the domestic law. The
Group is currently subject to withholding tax at 5% to
10%.

REBRAFERNRERTBEETMA
bR F - BREBEBNESHEREE
(2017 : f®) o

MABEEMBERERME - FREGEMN
BHIERAFE&mHZ225% (2017 :
25%) 2 T RETIREE - WAREKEPHD
XMER - StEBAEMNT ST AR 218
BYELTAZE -

REMBDEERMEL ZRKEER
AAER ZBITHEANE - AHAKH
TrEXRBHEMESER 2B K
AW ARELEMBZERER Z R
(20174 - &) -

BEBETEARKMBEEEMRSTER
o EBRBEERREMEACMEIER
CEIZHETZERENE  WHAR
TR - AR - TR RFLFK
MESBARIER &% LB RH
5% % 10% ZFTSH - NEBARFREE
ERIN5% E10% SR ZRE °



2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

13.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before income tax per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss as follows:

FrieBipis(#)

REFRBRAXEEAS
SRR FERAT

B R ZBRAT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Profit before income tax B PTS T AT 4 A 530,140 270,566
Tax calculated at domestic income tax  FH @ FIZBE R 2 & =
rate of 25% (2017: 25%) (Note (i) 25% (2017: 25%)
(Bt ()t & 132,535 67,642
Effect of preferential tax rates of HETHBAREEREX
certain subsidiaries (Note (i) 2 (H15F (i) (2,878) (15,190)
Tax effect of share of results of FI2mBeENrRaEE
associates and joint ventures EERHERE (36,693) (31,797)
Income not subject to tax EERB WA (17.716) (11,979)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 X
purposes 29,708 38,118
(Overprovision)/Underprovision in prior @FHI (%), VetiRfi4
years (8,056) 7,441
Effects of tax holiday on assessable BRI R P EFMK 2
profits of subsidiaries established in MR Rl FERFUE ] 2
the PRC (Note (iii)) T B (15 (i) (116,160) (57,271)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 8 EERIELFIBEE 2
&8 57,486 25,230
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  FIF:@F KHER 2 FiEERE
tax losses and unrecognised REREER
temporary differences (28,466) (11,680)
Tax effect of temporary differences not N[ 7 KR U HFTE A
recognised ZERERE 5,461 37,573
Recognition of withholding tax in WRARFEZ FERHIA
current year 1,070 15,861
16,291 63,948
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

The domestic tax rate (which is PRC corporate income
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the
Group is substantially based is used.

Certain subsidiaries resided in western China or
engaged in high-technology industry are entitled
to preferential income tax rate of 9% and 15%
respectively (2017: 9% and 15% respectively).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC are entitled to preferential tax treatments
including three years exemption followed by three
years of 50% tax reduction. The first year exemption
started from 2013 to 2018.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB502,406,000 (2017: RMB200,036,000) by the
weighted average number of 8,549,412,000 (2017:
8,574,740,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year, after adjusting the effect of shares repurchased

and held by the Company’s share award scheme.

13.

14.

FrieBipis(#)

Hfat

(iii)

AEBEGERECEAMAEEEEZ
BRI EEEMSHE)

HoBRPREASNREXKEESH
RMEEX 2B REIDBZES9%
15% Z1BEBFTSHE(2017F : 9% A
15%) °

AEFEFBEAMME THBRARZAH
BEE REZFEHHERAER=
FRRR—FHIE  RHBME—FH)
2013 E 2018 F A -

BREF

=38

EXFRBNEBEFHBRNRR WD L

Bt EQBMEE 2 RE

72 SN

| % R FE (& ) A R 502,406,000
Jt(20174 + A R #200,036,0007T ) B
WEFERE BT ERA 2 INEFHE
8,549,412,000 (2017 £ : 8,574,740,000)
FEEL -
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REMBEHRME
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14.
Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive

BRERNE)
uE
BREERNEEAERCHTERERZ

AHE T35 B = RER S BB A 8 &
HMRERZ A #EEE S BRE

potential ordinary shares from the share award

scheme and the convertible loan.

st

E_o

2018 2017
Earnings: A
Earnings for the purpose of basic AERGREF) 2 5% F|
earnings per share (RMB’000) (AREFT) 502,406 200,036
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEETLTBERO 2
shares: A
Adjustments on convertible loan AR E R B
(RMB’000) (Note 34) (AREFT)
(it 34) 15,328 —
Earnings for the purpose of diluted HEETRANZmF
earnings per share (AEBTT)
(RMB’000) 517,734 200,036
Number of shares: RGO :
Weighted average number of BEXRGREF Z @&k m
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 hEF I E
of basic earnings per share (FR)
(thousands) 8,549,412 8,574,740
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEETLTBERO 2
shares: E
Adjustment for effect of dilutive BEBEELERGD
potential shares: HE
Share award scheme (thousands) A& 17 £2 BT &
(Th) 3,588 20,584
Convertible loan (thousands) AR E R (FAR) 263,598 —
Weighted average number of BREERT 2L
ordinary shares for the purpose R - 15 81
of diluted earnings per share (F&)
(thousands) 8,816,598 8,595,324
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DIVIDEND

15. B2

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETT AREFT

Dividends for ordinary shareholders ~ RAFE AR 7E B E

of the Company recognised as IR B BE 2 FERR
distribution during the year:
2017 Final — HK$0.01 2017 FR — HMX0.01787T
(2016: HK$0.01) per share (2016: B%0.01#7T) 73,154 74,758
73,154 74,758

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 of HK$0.02 per ordinary share has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming general meeting (2017: final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of
HK$0.01 per ordinary share has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and approved by the
shareholders at the general meeting held on 28 May
2018).

RAREGERE  RAREFCIREH
£2018F 12 A31 HIEFEZ RHBKE
F%0.028 7T - WAKRRREKERITZ
R EFRKE L4 AE(2017 - AR AE
EEREEI2017F12A31ALEFE
AR EEN0.0178TT - WEKLRRE
7201845 A28 HE T ZREBFFE K
g ) o
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BER®%RE
Leasehold ~ Power plant  Office furniture Construction
Buildings  improvements equipment  and fixtures  Motor vehicles in progress Total
Br  EEDERE LBy BAGE HE ERIR g
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTT ARRTE AREFE ARRTL AREFR ARRTT ARRTE
Cost: B
Asat 1 January 2018 N08E1A1R 635,459 21,863 5,315,498 8m 50,657 1,675,634 1,748,888
Additions e - - 10412 27,443 1 3,506,926 3,556,018
Disposals (Note 39(d) L& 90) (36) - (5.837) (402) (2,980) (11,586) (20841)
Reclassiications BN 183,638 - 2889314 - - (3,078,152) -
Disposal of subsiciares RENELT
(Note 39b) (Wt 39) - - - (3%) - (59,895) (59,930)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12831A 824,261 21,863 8,200,447 10783 58,854 2,032,927 11,224,135
Accumulated depreciation: 2inE:
Asat 1 January 2018 AsE1A1E 55714 26,091 438,410 24,458 a1 - 577,094
Charge for the year TEERY 28,294 3 31,49 9,079 4957 - 354,612
Disposals (Note 394 HEW#390) (16) - (1.731) (83) (281 - (4,661)
Disposal of subsidiaries RENELT
(Note 39(3) (&390) - - - (16) - - (16)
As at 31 December 2018 20185128318 83,99 26,124 148,928 33438 34547 - 927,029
Net carrying velue: BHAE
As at 31 December 2018 R018E12831A 140,269 1739 1,460,519 31,345 21307 2,032,927 10,297,106
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RAMHRRME
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 16. Y% - MERZRE(Z)
Leasehold Power plant  Office fumiture Construction
Buldings ~ improvements equipment and fixtures— Motor vehicles In progress Total
g7 EENRRE MRk BN i3 EEIR g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NEETT AEEFT A\RERT ARETT O AEETT AREFT ARETR
Cost: A
Asat 1 January 2017 MTE1R18 295,416 271,765 2,589,170 31597 13,263 1,629,462 462673
Additions HE 336 % 9,859 6,653 10,015 3,134,888 3,161,849
Disposals (Note 39(d) HE W 390) - - (2,595) (46) (2,621) (4.383) (10,061)
Reclasfications ENE 39,707 - 2719064 - - B -
Disposal of subsidiares RENEAF - - - (16) - (25,562) (25578)
Acquistion of a subsidiary KL
(Note 42) e - - - 5 - - 5
As at 31 December 2017 R017512831R 635,459 27,363 5,315,498 a3, 50,657 1,675,634 7,743,388

Accumulated depreciaton: 2itihE:

Asat 1 January 2017 RTEIA1E 39,562 24,789 248,089 0,47 29,732 - 363419

Chatge for the yer FEERY 16,5 130 191,088 3660 43 - 21653

Disposals (Note 39(4)) L& 290) - - (767) (36) (1,648) - 2.851)

Disposal of subsidiaries RENELA - - - (13 - - (13

As at 31 December 2017 R01TE12831A 55,714 26,091 438410 24458 .4 - 577,09
Net carrying value: BHFE

As at 31 December 2017 R01TE12831A 579,745 111 4,877,088 19319 18236 1,675,634 1171,79%
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

The above items of property, plant and
equipment, except for construction in progress,
depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Buildings 20 to 25 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements useful lives of 5

years and lease
terms
Power plant equipment 20 years
Office furniture and 3 to 5 years
fixtures
Motor vehicles 5 years

For the year ended 31 December 2018,
depreciation of RMB4,576,000 (2017:
RMB6,719,000) has been capitalised as
construction in progress under property, plant
and equipment.

As at 31 December 2018, certain buildings
and power plant equipment with an aggregate
net carrying value of RMB230,621,000 (2017:
RMB134,342,000) and RMB3,091,346,000
(2017: RMB1,760,156,000), respectively, have
been pledged to banks and certain financial
institutions to secure banking facilities and other
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 31 and
Note 32).

16. M¥ BERRE(E)

(a)

NEBEFEEE  BEZIRIN I
EREAt A ERF RS ERARE
BENBEZENBREEFELT

g 20E 254

HEWEEE ZRAFRAFRSF
LS rRES

e 204

BI/NEE N 3E 54

RE 54

HE2018F 128318 ¥ % -
MEMEBETZ2EETIRCER
ftIrEE£E A AR 4,576,000
(2017 : AR#6,719,0007T) °

MR2018F 12 A31H A&EEHA
ERkEMERBEELENETF

REABRCEEREFESD
A A R #230,621,00070(2017 ¢
ABR#134,342,00070) M A R
3,091,346,0007T(2017 : AR ¥
1,760,156,000 7C ) (K 5£31 & M
F£32)
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17. LAND USE RIGHTS 17. tibERE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBFIT
Analysed for reporting BEHRSMUOT :
purposes as:
Current assets (included in REBEE(GFALSE - FBHEE
prepayments, deposits and other R B A SRR TE )
receivables) (Note 24) (K1:£24) 22,317 18,115
Non-current assets EMENEE 432,424 355,001
454,741 373,116
The Group's interests in land use rights represent REE 7 H(F AEERIETEMAEEH
prepaid operating lease payments in the PRC with X TEEDEME  EReFHEE—
remaining lease terms ranging from 3 years to MRM3IFERL9F HP D EEB T H(EF
49 years, of which title certificates in respect of AEEz e AEANRE133,036,0007T
carrying amount totalling RMB133,036,000 (2017: (20174 : AR#123,317,0007T) °
RMB123,317,000) have been obtained as at 31
December 2018.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, amortisation R2018F12A31BZ2HE - #BiEs
of RMB3,311,000 (2017: RMB1,417,000) has been A RY3,311,000(2017 : AR
capitalised as construction in progress under property, 1,417,000 0) EWE REL AFERYE -
plant and equipment. W= A o

296



2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BEE

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
BE HtBFEEE #zE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ABEFTT AREFITT
Net carrying value as at R2017F1HA1B2
1 January 2017 SR FE 1,062,644 4,867 1,067,511
Amortisation e — (319) (319)
Impairment (Note 8) BB (HTEE8) (62,584) — (62,584)
Net carrying value as at M2017F12H31H
31 December 2017 2 BREDHE 1,000,060 4,548 1,004,608
Amortisation 5y — (319) (319)
Net carrying value as at 742018512 A31H
31 December 2018 ZEREFE 1,000,060 4,229 1,004,289
Goodwill [E5ES

Goodwill mainly arose from the acquisition of China
Wind Power Holdings Limited (“China Wind Power")
and its subsidiaries (collectively “China Wind Power
Group”) which was completed on 1 August 2007.
China Wind Power Group was engaged in investment
in wind power plants, engineering, procurement,
construction and power plant operations and
maintenance.

Upon application of HKFRS 8 Operating Segment
in 2009, the relevant goodwill was reallocated to
the respective groups of CGUs, which represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the relevant
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment.
The reallocation was based on the relative value of
the relevant groups of CGUs.

AERARKETFBEREZRARA A
([PERE]REWBAR(SBIHEH
RELEE])MEELZ - WEE 2007 F8
A1HEK A RHREEERERESE
BRI E - REF - HEE IURERE
TMEE -

2009 FEABBHEMEERIE 8
— KRR BERNERET SRS
HERCEDLBEMAHE  BeEASBN
HERKREAEERNI AT A ERE
ZEEEEEETER BT RN EEE
ENBIREBR - EFHMENAE
ReEDENEAZHEEE -
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FREMBRERME
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 18. BREE(E)
Goodwill (CONTINUED) BE(E)
The carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated to the HEVEAMEBESIRIBES T 9LE
groups of CGUs as follows: IS EASMNBAS
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETF T
Investment in wind power plants R E IS E T 926,157 926,157
Engineering, procurement and ML RN EE
construction (“EPC Business”) ([EPCJ#7%5) 75,800 75,800
Power plant operations and BEEITMMEE
maintenance 60,687 60,687
1,062,644 1,062,644
Less: Impairment J® ORE (62,584) (62,584)
1,000,060 1,000,060
Goodwill is monitored at the groups of CGUs, the HMETReEESUAEETELRE B
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for CEABVHASATHNEEEEBNE
internal management purpose and not larger than TEZBTRARAREE DBz RIERE
the respective operating segments. The Group has B AEEDTEHBZAOK SR -
assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and BRTHBBCEPCERBEELASALD
determined that the goodwill has not been impaired, REFHEREBAEIN  WEEZEEL
apart from the impairment provided for the EPC HORE o

Business CGUs in the prior year as explained below.
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®a

18.

Bt 35 R AR B

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED)
Investment in wind power plants CGUs

The recoverable amount is determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on the
financial forecast covering a ten-year period and
discount rate of 14% (2017: 15%). Cash flows beyond
the ten-year period are extrapolated at zero % (2017:
zero %) growth rate. The cash flows and discount rate
reflect assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the relevant CGUs. Key assumptions
include estimated online power quantity to be
generated from the Group's existing and forthcoming
projects, projected installation capacity, expected tariff
rate and discount rate. The management determined
these key assumptions based on past performance
and expectation on market development.

EPC Business CGUs

The recoverable amount was determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 15% (2017:
15%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a growth rate of zero %
(2017: zero %).
revenue generated from the Group’s existing and

Key assumptions include estimated

forthcoming design and consultancy services, expected
profit margin and discount rate. The management
determined these key assumptions based on past
performance and expectation on market development.

During the prior year, the directors of the Company
determine that the scale of the EPC Business will be
reduced in the foreseeable future and the Group
will principally focus on the provision of design and
consultancy services. Accordingly, an impairment loss
of RMB62,584,000 was recognised in the prior year.

18.

BRVEE(HE)
e (E)
REBEMBELELHENZRE

TM&@ BIRARBERD SR ARG

CHEFRABEERANRETFH
Zﬂﬁﬁ‘%z’ﬁ/ﬂljﬂz}m)ﬂ 14% (2017 : 15%)
ZHMBE - BBE+FZRERENT
(2017 : B)EREIRHEE - R MR
RERETHEL2EETHERRSE
HETHITEERTAZRR - BREE
FREERAEERBRARRIBEEFESE

T IHEREE  BAEKAE  TEEE
BRERX - EEEENBELRLY

ISR TAMETELARER -

Rit - REBRBIRETELEN

ReELBMARKESEERESRE
B EHZFEREAEMEE  MEZRE
MR DERESAEEEM EZRER
FHOHBEE - RERBARAZI
WERA 15% (2017 :15%) » BB E
FH RS HMAIE0% (2017 : 0%) 1%
RERHEEMR - BREXLEAEERER
BRAEHEB R RERARBEE S
flEr i - THEAFE R RITRE - B2
EBREATZERTISEERPETZ
ZHREEK -

J:_E'E ji%auu% ZZE—J—%EEJ
2GR BABERZRRERD

E.H#IEEEPI‘_t%Efﬁ\&H-I_%DuﬁuqHE
BrEoEIlt F—FERRATARE
62,584,000 ST Z A EIEXK ©
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18.
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Bt 35 R AR B

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED)
Power plant operations and maintenance CGUs

The recoverable amount of the CGUs was determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was
15% (2017: 15%) and cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of zero % (2017: zero %). Key assumptions include
estimated service revenue, expected profit margin and
discount rate. The management determined these
key assumptions based on past performance and
expectation on market development.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the CGUs' carrying amounts to exceed their
respective recoverable amounts.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, which arose from business
combination completed on 1 August 2007, represent
the Wind Power Plan Cooperation Agreements signed
with relevant local government authorities in the PRC.
This intangible assets are amortised over the duration
of the agreements of 20 years.

18.

BEEE(E)
e (E)
ERMELREET T ELEN

ReEEXBNAIDNKRESBENESRE
AFrER 2 EREEMETE  MizRe
MEADERSREEEREZRER
FHCHKEE - BemBRER 2B,
WERAE15% (2017 : 15%) © 7 FH
2N 2R AR 0% (2017 1 0%) 2
WEXEEMR - BEREREFMETR
B - FEEAE R RAIRE - EIRE
TREFERTSERBHERZER
TEETZSEREE -

ARBEERR/EFAEANATKRESE L
BMREBRAIEELECSEZHTISEH
ReEhETzRREBLEN KL
B e

HtBLEE

200748 A1 H ¢ B8 China Wind
Power REMESTEMEREE - A
SRR RE P B 5 BUN A 25 5T 2 B ) 3%
BREIGEHE - IWEEEER T Z
PR 20 SFHEGH o
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH 19. REEE AT Z2EZR
ASSOCIATES

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement EGAEEaBERTBRAZSB/NT -
of financial position are as follows:

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Cost of investment in associates JY: R/ B = U AN 298,061 243,464
Share of post-acquisition results and JEEUREEE EE R E M2 M

other comprehensive income, net Wz - MRS

of dividends 19,638 37,922
Share of net assets of associates DEMENRZFEE

(Note (i) (H1aE () 317,699 281,386
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from associates JE T Bg: 2 B FROR

(Note (ii) (K132 (i) 2,389 16,467
Other receivables from associates JrE B 5 ) EL A FRIE

(Note (i) (HTaE (i) 18,524 1,411
Amounts due from associates for ERIEz R E TSR

contract work (Notes (iv)) (K132 (iv) — 10,372

20,913 28,250

Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to associates (Note (v)) JEREEE A RIRIB(MAE (W) (234) (3,502)
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19.

302

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the

principal associates are as follows:

Name of associates

Place of establishment
and operations and kind
of legal entity

19. REEE QTR 2B (E)

Mat -

(i) FA20184FFN120174 128318 &

il N

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting rights held
by the Group — indirectly

BZFHRIT ¢

Principal activities

ERMAL/ ARREESE
BELNRER RiREREEE TEEEESRRRERELE  FEXE
2018 2017
Changtu Liaoneng Xiexin Wind Power Co., Ltd.  The PRC, Sino-foreign 25% 25%  Wind power plant
equity joint venture investment and operation

EEESRERNETERAT HE - PIhaERE BERRE RET
Jilin Province Zhanyu Wind Power Assets The PRC, limited company 17.15% 17.15%  Wind power plant

Management Co., Ltd. (Note) investment and operation
ENEERETEEREER PR ARAA (Het) BERRE RET

BRRA
Fuxin Union Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, Sino-foreign 24.5% 24.5%  Wind power plant

equity joint venture investment and operation

BHBAaRNEEERAT TR RHRELE RERRERET
Fuxin Century Concord-Shenhua Wind Power The PRC, Sino-foreign 24.5% 24.5%  Wind power plant

Co., Ltd. equity joint venture investment and operation
ENRERARNEEERRA hE - PAEELE AERRE RETT
Chaoyang Century Concord Wanjia Wind Power ~ The PRC, limited company 30% 30%  Wind power plant

Co., Ltd. investment and operation
HHHEERENEEERAT PE - BRAR BERRE LB
Fuxin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Fuxin The PRC, limited company 30% 30%  Wind power plant

Taihe") investment and operation
ENREANFEEERAT HE - BRAR BB A RET

(TE#%E])
Note: Bt -

Even though the Group holds less than 20 percent

of the voting power of this investee, the Group

demonstrates significant influences on this investee by

holding a seat on the board of directors for a board

with 11 members and the 11 members each represents

respective shareholders of this investee, and the Group

is the second highest percentage in total shareholding

of the investee while the largest shareholder hold

18.55% equity interest in this investee.

EAREESEREEARRRED
R20% @ ANEEREBAT TR
HBRERRZEAREN  EES

ENBRBRE—FL

m11%kE

B-AREWHREESARE A&
EFEWEEANRBEERES A
Dt MEm A DA 18.55% ©
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Note: (CONTINUED)

(if)

Amounts due from associates represent trade
receivables and are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable based on terms of the relevant contracts.
Included in such amounts as at 31 December 2017
was retention money held in respect of construction
contracts and sales of equipment to associates of
RMB11,510,000, which were aged over 1 year. Upon
application of HKFRS 15, the above retention money

was reclassified to contract assets (Note 22).

19. REEE QTR 2B (E)

(i)

(#)

W E AR E S HEAERPE
R BN ZBHEEBEHNOEZN
HNIEEHHEE & LE2017F12A°

BME EUBERAESRER
BEARLHEERBZERARE

11,510,0007C * BREARB B 14F - IRIE
EBTIBEREERNFE 155 - LER
SEMDBEAAREE(MizE22) -

An aging analysis of the above trade receivables, based é’f‘f.,_ By LB S rEkZE
on the invoice date, is as follows: BOMTMT ¢
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Within 3 months 3EARA 316 632
3 to 6 months 3E6EA 475 —
6 to 12 months 6Z=121E A 634 18
Over 1 year 1FLE 964 15,817
2,389 16,467
The aging analysis of the above receivables which are B HA R R B FE IR 5 BR SR B 9 A 4o
past due but not impaired is as follows: T~
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEWHFT
Within 3 months 3fEAR — 11,510
Over 1 year 1F L E 964 4,307
964 15,817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Note: (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Other receivables due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free, non-trade in nature and repayable on
demand.

(iv)  The amounts due from associates for contract work
as at 31 December 2017 were contract costs incurred
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, but not
yet billed. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amounts
were reclassified to contract assets (Note 22).

(v)  Amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Summarised financial information of associates

Set out below is the summarised unaudited financial
information for Fuxin Taihe, a material associate of the
Group in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
prepared under HKFRSs which is accounted for using
the equity method.

304

19. REEE QTR 2B (E)

Mia - (%)

(iii)

(iv)

Ho At JE U Bk 2 X B AROE R B IR E
w28 3E%%&ﬁlm5§?X

HZE2017F 128318 EWEER
RIZEHNIRFEACEEZAERK
AMEEBRBFBRECHEREELX -
m#%%w%ﬁiﬁWEw%ZE
B EAAGREE(MFE22) -

JE A B X B SROR R LA FE S R
BR - BEIRENREE -

EABE QAR M BEMPER

TRIRTRARSEREZBHFAR
(KRBEERBLRAR/AEEHZE
REpE QR REET BRI HEM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH

ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of associates

19.

REENR 2 EH (&)

BEABELRZHBERBMLE)

(CONTINUED)
Fuxin Taihe =§Z 3=
Summarised statement of
financial position EESEXREM 2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ABRETFr
Current assets mEEE 210,403 187,881
Non-current assets IERBEE 545,989 594,969
Current liabilities mEaE (101,773) (74,389)
Non-current liabilities ERFHEE (289,700) (332,500)
Net assets BEFE 364,919 375,961
Summarised statement of
profit or loss and other
comprehensive income mElE R 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Revenue WA 124,322 120,221
Depreciation and amortisation P& R (37,370) (36,854)
Finance costs B 7 A R (17,630) (20,204)
Other expenses HEH (11,332) (11,799)
Profit before income tax B P15 B AT 4 7 57,990 51,364
Income tax expense FriSHi (15,175) (6,420)
Profit and total comprehensive REE mH R EIN S E58
income for the year 42,815 44 944
Dividend received from the associate ZNEE T H| B N FIR% &2
during the year 4,084 —
Share of profit by the Group AREEEEEF 12,845 13,483
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES WITH
ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Fuxin Taihe (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

19.

REENR 2 EH (&)

EHFES(E)

PR EE AR B HS & FRLER A OF B S Rk P B
RZRBERNRIRRREE CHERN
T~

statements:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEBTFr
Net assets of Fuxin Taihe FREEFRE 364,919 375,961
The Group’s shareholding in & B
Fuxin Taihe 30% 30%
The Group's share of net assets of ~ ANEEE(EEE
Fuxin Taihe 109,475 112,788
Unrealised profits, net REB &N - F5 (2,444) (2,887)
Carrying amount of the Group’'s ZANEEER ZREE
interest in Fuxin Taihe 107,031 109,901

Set out below is, in aggregate, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests in all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity

T A7 B R R 5E A B 2 BT
BITFE AR S AR 2 AR EEA -

method.
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Aggregate carrying amounts of AEBEEEEREER
the Group's interests in these
associates 210,668 171,485
The Group's share of profit and JEMR AR 2 AN Em F
total comprehensive income for EHEKRE AR
the year 3,749 10,763
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBHERMETE
20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 20. REELEZRER
WITH JOINT VENTURES
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement IFEEEBEBERTERAZSENT -
of financial position are as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Cost of investment in joint ventures & &> 2% &R 1,461,179 1,461,179
Share of post-acquisition results and JEEUEEE EE R E M2 E
other comprehensive income, net Wz - MRS
of dividends received 71,693 (65,072)
Share of net assets of joint ventures [E{GAEDEEEFE
(Note (i) (BtEE (i) 1,532,872 1,396,107
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from joint ventures FElE B EFIA
(Note (iii) (K172 (i) 34,252 322,515
Amounts due from joint ventures for AR T2 ERALPELE
contract work (Notes (iv)) (Kt (iv) — 16,669
Loans to joint ventures (Note (ii) FTEEREZERMZE ) 26,798 36,366
61,050 375,550
Less: Allowance for amounts due JB BB EFUBEREE
from joint ventures (K172 (i)
(Note (iif)) — (21,383)
61,050 354,167
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to joint ventures JERT & EERIE
(Note (v)) (BteE (v) (19,837) (8,363)
Amounts due to joint ventures for ~ ARIEZEMNAENESHE
contract work (Note (vi)) (Kt (vi) — (5,108)
(19,837) (13,471)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES  20. RA&DES % (A)
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: Kzt -
(i) As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the 0) 2018 & 2017128318 =&
principal joint ventures are as follows: ABDEHBINT :
Place of Proportion Proportion of
establishment and operations of ownership voting power
and interest held by held by the
Name of joint ventures kind of legal entity the Group Group Principal activities
AL/ ERREELY rREREL k&
RELELH REERBER EELA SRHA TEXH

2018and 2017 2018 and 2017

Jilin CWP-Milestone Wind The PRC, sino-foreign 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Power Co., Ltd. equity joint venture operation
EHERGRRNEBARAR TR MERERR RERRELET
Erlianhaote Changfeng Century Concord Wind The PRC, sino-foreign equity 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Power Exploiture Co., Ltd. joint venture operation
CERNREGARRERE hE e ERE BREFRE RET
BRAR
Jilin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, sino-foreign equity 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
joint venture operation
ENREENEEERAA HE - PHRELE RERRARE
Tongliao Taihe Wind Power The PRC, sino-foreign equity 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Co,, Ltd. joint venture operation
BEZAENEEERAA TE - PhaELR RERmREREN
Taipusigi Century Concord-Shenhua Wind Power  The PRC, sino-foreign equity 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Investment Co., Ltd. joint venture operation
RESHRERARNEERE hE - PIRELE BEHRERET
BRAA
Taipusigi Union Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 51% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
REFERSRNEEARARA PE - BARAR REHRERET
Sugian Century Concord New Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 49% 50%  Solar power plant investment and
operation
EEBAHERERAR HE - BRAT REHERRE RES
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REMBEHRME
20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES

WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(i)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the
principal joint ventures are as follows: (CONTINUED)

20. REEEER(E)

Hiat (%)

(i) R2018F 2 2017F 12 A31H » £ &
AELEHENT  (£)

Place of Proportion Proportion of
establishment and operations of ownership voting power
and interest held by held by the
Name of joint ventures kind of legal entity the Group Group Principal activities
AL/ ERREELY rREREL kE
RELELH RERERER EELA REBLA TEXH
2018and 2017  20183and 2017
Mengdong Century Concord New Energy Co., The PRC, limited company 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Ltd. operation
SRIBAMEREERAA PE - BRAR BERRELET
Tianchang Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.  The PRC, limited company 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
AEBAENESERLA HE BRAR RERRE RET
Gansu Guazhou Century Concord Wind Power The PRC, sino-foreign equity joint 51.45% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Co,, Ltd. venture operation
HRIMGRRENEEERLA HE - PIaERE RERREAREN
Wuchuan County Yihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 46% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
R EERENEBERAA A BRAT RERREREN
Suzhou Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
ENBaENEEERAR TE - BRAT BEHREREN
Xiaoxian Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, limited company 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
BERARNEEERAA PE - ARARA EERRE RET
Jianghua Yao Autonomous County Century The PRC, limited company 59.3% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. operation
TEERRREGARNES hiE - BRAF BEHRA RET

ERAAE
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REMBEHRME
20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES

310

WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

()

(iii)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the
principal joint ventures are as follows: (CONTINUED)

20. RE

EhEoER(E)

(#)

MR2018F 201712 A31H £ &
REDERFENT  (£)

Place of Proportion Proportion of
establishment and operations of ownership voting power
and interest held by held by the
Name of joint ventures kind of legal entity the Group Group  Principal activities
AL/ ERREELY rREREL Ea ]
RELELH RERERER EERLA REBLA TEXH
2018and 2017 20183and 2017
Jingmen Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, limited company 59.3% 50%  investment and operation
AMBARNEEERAT PE - BRAF RERRE LS
Hebi Century Junlong Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited company 59.3% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
BERARERNEEERLA ME - ARAT RERREREN
Yantai Yihao New Energy Development Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC, limited company 49% 50%  Wind power plant investment and
operation
REERNERREERAT HE - ARAR B SRR RENT
Loans to joint ventures are unsecured, bear interest (i) TAHELEZERRZER - RFAF
at 5.2% (2017: 5.2%) per annum and are repayable E52% (2017 1 5.2%)FF B B &K —
within one year. FRYE -
Amounts due from joint ventures included trade iy EREZBLEFRBEBEEGELEZ

receivables from joint ventures of RMB31,210,000
(2017: RMB261,788,000), net of impairment of
RMB nil (2017: RMB18,246,000), are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable according to the terms
of the relevant contracts. The remaining balances
of RMB3,042,000 (2017: RMB39,344,000),net of
impairment of RMB nil (2017: RMB3,137,000) are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

BREZERNKRZERBRFE
A K #31,210,00070(2017 © A R
261,788,0007t) " ELEAARKET
Je(20174F + A R #18,246,0007T ) °
ZoBmEEEER  REWIZEEER
HEITEE - Fth e 5 A R 3,042,000
Jt(20174 © A R #39,344,0007T ) -
BEEBAAREZ L2017 AR
3,137,000 7T) BEEFER - 2B RA

RERIEE
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(CONTINUED)

Included in the above trade receivables from joint
ventures as at 31 December 2017 were retention
money held in respect of construction contracts and
sales of equipment to joint ventures of RMB85,718,000
in which RMB69,122,000 were aged over 1 year based
on invoice date but not impaired. Upon application of
HKFRS 15, the above retention money was reclassified
to contract assets (Note 22).

An aging analysis of the above trade receivables from
joint ventures, net of allowance for doubtful debts,
based on the invoice date, which approximates to the
revenue recognition date, is as follows:

20.

Re&

EhEoER(E)

Mia - (%)

(i)

(#)

HE2017F128318 R A E
TCEEFEADEAECERBHE
HEzEERESL AR 85,718,000
gL EAFRARM69,122,0000 AR
B—F&3E BERE - RESE
B IR ERF 1557 0 LAl E SRE
CETDEAEREE(WFE22) -

ERBEWAERBRAMEEZEER
H - L8 SRR RINBIERER
BFEZREOTMT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EFT ARBTFT

Within 3 months 3EANA 6,798 11,148
3 to 6 months 3F6M@A 2,440 1,121
6 to 12 months 6= 1218A 704 15,678
Over 1 year 195 E 21,268 233,841
31,210 261,788

The aging analysis of the above trade receivables

which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

e EaERRE B S RBRIAZ
fREC DTN

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFT

Within 3 months 3EANA — 12,675
3 to 6 months 3Z261AA — 10,836
Over 1 year 18 E 1,939 192,545
1,939 216,056
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REMBBRRME

20.

312

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 20. R

WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(CONTINUED) (i)

An analysis of the movements in the allowance for
doubtful debts for amounts due from joint ventures
during the year is as follows:

BRbX R (E)

Mia - (%)

(#)

KA ELEY REREZEHHN
mF -

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBETFr

At 1 January 1H1H 21,383 17,865

Impairment recognised during the BB FE WK IE 2R E B K

year, net — 3,518

Written-off during the year A F M (21,383) —

At 31 December 12H31H —_ 21,383
The amounts due from joint ventures for contract work (iv) B Z2017F12A8318 " EREZ1D

as at 31 December 2017 were contract costs incurred
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, but not
yet billed. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amounts

were reclassified to contract assets (Note 22).

The amounts due to joint ventures are unsecured, (v)
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due to joint ventures for contract work (vi)
as at 31 December 2017 were advances received from

joint ventures but not yet provided the construction

service. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amounts

were reclassified to contract liabilities (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged (vii)
its equity interests of one (2017: one) joint venture,

with total value of its share of registered capital

held by the Group amounted to RMB37,240,000

(2017: RMB37,240,000) for certain bank borrowings

advanced to such joint venture. At 31 December 2018,

the related outstanding bank borrowings amounted to
RMB31,519,000 (2017: RMB42,918,000) which bear

interest rate at 4.41% (2017: 4.41%) per annum.

EANIRKEBERACEEZARK
AN EERERFER S B HRIBA -
BIEEBHBHRES LS 155 248
T eBEENSBAEREEM
22) °

HihfE a2t RAERBEERE
- RBRIRENRER

HZE2017F12A310 ARTIRZ
EREECETIBARE S EUE
BHARREERS ZEKZIE - R
BEBVHREENFEISHEZHAE
SHENMSEAERAREME30) -

R2018F12A31H A& E D &
WEREZ—(2017: —)BWAZ D
ERE ARZEECEMBRTE
FoAEEMBEZAMEREER
AR #37,240,00070(2017 : AR
37,240,0007T ) © # Z£2018% 12 7
318 ZAELERIEFZ ERBE
A AR #31,519,0007T(2017: AR
#42,918,0007T )+ FH X £4.41%
(2017: 4.41%) ©
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

The Group’s joint ventures are involved in either wind or
solar power plant investments and operations and related
activities in the PRC, and each joint venture involved in
wind or solar power plant investments and operations has
similar risk and return. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company have considered that it is appropriate to aggregate
the disclosures in accordance with HKFRS 12 Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities and present the summarised
financial information of the Group’s joint ventures engage in
the same principal activities on an aggregate basis.

Summarised aggregate financial information of the Group’s
joint ventures engage in wind power plant investments and

operations is as follows:

20. REEEER(E)

Mia - (%)

BELECMBESHE

AEEZALCEETRERATERER S
RAGREHREEHRE  EZNEREE
FHRNEEAECXEAGHALUARRE
e B ARFEERRBEELEER
ERUBMEEI 2R TS 2 KT
ETEHBRBEAEAHERELERAZLER
ERMBERREEN -

AEERNEEEECEZHBERNT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARBTFT

Current assets MENEE 1,698,609 1,497,901
Non-current assets SEmBEE 7,052,187 7,473,916
Current liabilities mEIAE (1,146,648) (1,430,310)
Non-current liabilities ERTEE (4,032,834) (4,237,346)
Net assets EEFE 3,571,314 3,304,161

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the
following:

bhEEREBEZEEER T

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR TFr

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEER 377,555 421,542

Current financial liabilities nEBERAE

(excluding trade payables) (B IE AR (889,499) (1,132,172)
Non-current financial liabilities EnBemAaE

(excluding trade payables) (T EEEMAERERD (4,032,834) (4,237,346)
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20.

314

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 20.
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

REEREzBE(E)

Mia - (%)

BELECHBERBEE)

(CONTINUED)
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Fr AREFT
Revenue WA 1,272,339 1,139,175
Depreciation and amortization e B (456,696) (464,877)
Interest expense FEER (236,804) (243,636)
Other expenses HEthEA (270,551) (208,135)
Profit before income tax R PTAS 250 A 308,288 222,527
Income tax expense e (47,449) (25,957)
Net profit and total comprehensive REZFRMAM2Em =B
income for the year 260,839 196,570
Dividend received from these joint AREFUWER DAL
ventures during the year 25,372 77,213

Summarised aggregate financial information of the Group's

joint ventures engage in solar power plant investments and

operations is as follows:

AEBARGREERLELEZHBHEN

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Tx AREFr

Current assets MENVEE 20,294 14,049
Non-current assets IEREEE 150,514 155,516
Current liabilities mEAaE (8,266) (29,823)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (127,000) (110,000)
Net assets EEFE 35,542 29,742
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20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

(CONTINUED)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

following:

20. REEEER(E)

Mia - (%)

BELECHBERBEE)

biBEEREBEZEREEAT

aft -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEMEIER 15,870 7,031
Current financial liabilities nEBeHMEE
(excluding trade payables) (TR EREMER) (3.709) (27,264)
Non-current financial liabilities FRBemBRE
(excluding trade payables) (T BIEEMR) (127,000) (110,000)
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Revenue A 22,365 22,805
Depreciation and amortization s B (7,382) (7,275)
Interest expense MEEA (6,031) (6,352)
Other expenses HEmEMR (4,225) (3,600)
Profit before income tax R ET 1S 55 A A 4,727 5,578
Income tax expense FrisfiA (1,191) (668)
Net profit and total comprehensive REZFRMMEmI 2%
income for the year 3,536 4,910

Dividend received from these joint

ventures during the year

REFRBI DA

315



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

316

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 21.

AHHESHEE RAAEBES

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH ANEHCEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEBTFT
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE
Unlisted equity securities, at cost AR N AGTE 2 AR B
(Note (i) =EESHEFZ ) — 4,726
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAnBEFAERZSH
Unlisted equity securities, at fair AR EEGEZ R LT
value (Note (i) wEE S (K7 30)) 8,545
Equity securities listed in Hong RHEFEZEE LTKRE
Kong, at market value (Note (ii)) (B2 (i) — 34,280
8,545 34,280

Note:

Hfat

(i) The unlisted equity securities represent investment in 0)

equity securities issued by private entities established
and operate in the PRC. As at 31 December 2017,
they were stated at cost less impairment. Upon the

application of HKFRS 9, they were reclassified to

financial assets at FVTPL as disclosed in Note 2.

(i) The equity securities listed in Hong Kong were held for (ii)

trading purpose and fully disposed of during the year,

and were classified under current assets.

FEEMBRBHFEBERER ML E
ZREREMBITIEREFRE -
BMRK20179F12 A31 BIRE LKA
BERAESR - REBBRSERE
R2HRE  CfRBHE2BREETD
MAAABENAEZZSBEE -

FEELTERREARSREN - BB
REFEMREZIEFEM LR
ERPEERT o
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS 22. EEEE

At At
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
2018 % 20184
12A31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Tariff adjustment receivables FEW B B FHERIE (L ()

(Note (i) 501,146 130,324
Retention money (Note (ij) BRE (K152 (i) 453,555 538,442
Construction contracts (Note (iii)) EZyEARI(HEE (i) 32,783 48,687

987,484 717,453
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  &ZFRHMTINT
Current assets MENEE 689,080 587,129
Non-current assets EMEE E 298,404 130,324
987,484 717,453
*  The amounts in this column are after the adjustments * AHERERBEMBWMELENSE 15

from the application of HKFRS 15.

Notes:

(i)  Tariff adjustment receivables

Tariff adjustment receivables represented government
subsidies on renewable energy for ground projects to
be received from the State Grid based on the existing
government policies.

As mentioned in Note 4, pursuant to the Tariff Notice,
a set of standardised procedures for the settlement
of the tariff subsidy has come into force since 2013
and approvals for the registration in Catalogue on
a project-by-project basis are required before the
allocation of funds to the state grid companies, which

then would make settlement to the Group.

(i)

Sk EAmAEE -

R EERBKIA

U E (B B RIRERBERTRIR
R BREREEQRKERZAIBE
BEIRIE B 2 BUTHAL

M4 - RIEEEBAN EE
HOHEEL2EZRERAN2013F 8
£ BERIRGETFEEREMA
BlZ A BREBIEBIER REE
AT BARREEHRMESHEE
8 ZBBEAREELETEE -
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22.

318

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

()

Tariff adjustment receivables (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the recognition of accrued revenue on tariff subsidy
is proper based on their judgement and taking into
account the opinion from the Group's legal advisor,
that all of the Group's power plants of which tariff
subsidy is recognised as revenue but yet to register in
the Catalogue had been qualified for, and had met, all
the requirements and conditions as required according
to the requirements and conditions for the registration
in the Catalogue. The directors of the Company are
confident that all of the Group’s operating power
plants (including power plants operated by the Group'’s
joint ventures and associates) are able to be registered
in the Catalogue in due course and the accrued
revenue on tariff subsidy are fully recoverable but only
subject to timing of allocation of funds from the PRC
government, after considering that there are no bad
debt experiences with the state grid companies in the
past and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC
government.

As at 31 December 2018, the tariff adjustment
receivables of RMB501,146,000 (2017: RMB130,324,000)
was recognised by the power plants which have not been
included in the Catalogue.

Tariff adjustment receivables classified under contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
Group's respective power plants are registered in
the Catalogue pursuant to the prevailing national
government policies on renewable energy.

In respect of the revenue from the sale of electricity
by power plants not yet registered in the Catalogue,
the directors of the Company have evaluated the
terms and conditions of, and the counterparties to,
the contracts which may impact revenue recognition.
The related receivables are mainly from the PRC state
grid companies, which would normally be settled
within one and a half year based on past experience.
The Group considers the settlement terms contain
significant financing component and accordingly the
amount of consideration is adjusted for the effects of
the time value of money taking into consideration the
credit characteristics of the relevant counterparties.

22.

BREEE

Biet (&)

(i)

EREERAEREE)

RRAREERA ARAEE 225
BREEMATAALME BHERRTE
ZHE BRAGM - Bt EEEA
SEZREMBERZER L REE
FHERREBHYAIREAREER
B RAREFMHE AEEZEE
LER(BREAEESEEENBER
BERRE R T ARBIEE 2T B
BER YR EEIBEERES
NAEERGE  BEBEHAPE
WFaE  SEHBAIAZEKE -
TRBEEHBEBRTZE S BRHE
ZH

2018412 A31 8 A AR &%
ZERERZEEHIBERRECES
AR®501,146,000 (2017 F : AR
# 130,324,000 7)) °

REBRRTABLERLRRE 24X
SEZEMEREPERK - HEE
WEEBABRRTHaREESHERE
WEZERFKIAT -

FEAMABB2ERELEZEEWR
A REIEFCFA A EF ERARE
RzAaRZBRIET & 258
FHE - HEARBRKRETERETEE
REMAR BERBEBELRBRERN
FESFAAIRD o MR E R
TEEEZRMARD  FiltEEER
EREBHEXZEF I ZEREH
ZEHREEFERERE -
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 22. ERAEBEE
Notes: (CONTINUED) et - (&)
(ii) Retention money (i) HER:E
At At
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
2018 F 2018 4
12A31H 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTFT
Receivables from: FEYFRIA -
Third parties BYE=7 352,274 441,214
Joint ventures AREdEE 88,428 85,718
Associates il /N 12,853 11,510
453,555 538,442

The above balances represent retention money held in
respect of construction revenue and sale of equipment,
in which in an aggregate amount of RMB418,841,000
(1 January 2018: 475,903,000) were aged over 1 year
based on invoice date but not impaired.

b B 5 YRR 2 A TR

BHEHEBZEER

FBERARE

418,841,0007L(2018E1 A1H A B
#5475,903,00070) © WEBEREE
HHIBRE A1 F AL - BRRE -
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 22. AEABEE
Notes: (CONTINUED) Hiat - (&)
(iii) Construction contracts (iii) ZEEAE
At At
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
2018 F 2018 4
12A31H 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBTFT
Amounts due from customers for ERIEZENSEE
contract work
— Third parties — BYE=TF 21,844 21,646
— Associates — BE N A 10,650 10,372
— Joint ventures — REDE 289 16,669
32,783 48,687

The amounts due from customers for contract work

are contract costs for construction contracts incurred

plus recognised profits less recognised loss, but not yet

billed.

The Group's construction contracts include payment

schedules which require stage payments over the

construction period once certain specified milestones

are reached. The directors of the Company consider

the above amounts due from customers for contract

work would normally be transferred to related

receivables within one year based on past experience.
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GREMBHRRMET
23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES 23. EWESRIEREE
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
Trade receivables (Note (i) FEWE BRI (AT () 258,231 853,640
Tariff adjustment receivables JEW B BT ERIE
(Note (ii)) (Bt (i) 356,179 448,480
Bill receivables (Note (i) FE U ZE & (B 7 (i) 130,724 75,592
745,134 1,377,712
Impairment loss on trade receivables &4t 3 88 ZORIE (4157 (i)
(Note (i) (11,906) (9,592)
733,228 1,368,120
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ABERSMT
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Current assets MENBEE 714,746 1,227,743
Non-current assets ERENEE 18,482 140,377
733,228 1,368,120

The Group does not hold any collaterals over trade and bill
receivables as security.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 48.

Notes:

(i)  Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables include receivables from
the sale of electricity, provision of construction and
other services. The Group’s credit terms granted to
customers ranging from 30 to 180 days. For certain
construction projects, the Group generally grants
project final acceptance period and retention period
to its customers ranging from 1 to 2 years from the
date of acceptance according to the contracts signed
between the Group and customers.

AEBWARFAEAEKE SERRFRER
Bz M (EFEIR -

72018412 A31 HEWE S RFUBRER 4
FHIBERMIFEA8 -

frsE

(i) EREIERX
AEBEERZESHERDIEES - 2H
B L0 E Ath BR 75 2 FE MR R - A& E
TEPZNFEEHNR30KXE180
X HRBHMEIBE  AEETFE
PRroRERRERP\ARNEERHEE
FR®ikzARIZE2F -
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REMBBRRME

23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (CONTINUED)
(i) Trade receivables (CONTINUED)

The movements in the impairment loss on trade
receivables during the year are as follows:

23. EWESRIAREE(E)
HisE - (&)
() ERESERE)

ERBEEHOTMT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHFTT ARETFT

At 1 January ®n1A1AH 9,592 —
Impairment recognised during the — ZREEJH{EZE)FEE

year, net 11,906 9,592

Written-off during the year R (9,592) —

At 31 December ®12A31H 11,906 9,592

As at 31 December 2018, the aging analysis of the
trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts,

MN20185 128310 [EIRE FEX
MR ERBHEEFE BRI (AR

presented based on invoice date, was as follows: SRHRE)MT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AB¥T T
Within 3 months 3MEA AR 162,972 141,505
3 to 6 months 3Z26fEA 12,451 26,645
6 to 12 months 6% 121& A 13,555 81,281
1-2 years 1224 32,511 304,972
Over 2 years 2FALE 24,836 289,645
246,325 844,048

Included in trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
was retention money of RMB441,214,000 held in
respect of construction revenue and equipment sales.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the retention money
receivables were reclassified to contract assets (Note
22).
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WRER 2 EEW AR R B E R
ZHEERFLAARA41,214,000
TL e BEBEBEBHBEHRELAE 155
BUREFRCEEREFCETDEAS
FEE(ME22) -



2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(i) Trade receivables (CONTINUED)

An aging analysis of the above trade receivables which

23.

FEWE ZRRERE (&)

Biet (&)

() ERESRRGE)

ZEWE ZBRFE BB RREZ

are past due but not impaired is as follows: BRSO ¢
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARHFT
Within 3 months 3EANUA 1,755 116,888
3 to 6 months 3E61EA 8 11,295
6 to 12 months 6= 121EA 14,126 21,692
Over 1 year 1H M E 36,720 128,994
52,609 278,869

The above receivables relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no financial
difficulty and based on past experience, the overdue
amounts can be recovered and are not considered as

impaired.

Certain of the Group's bank borrowings (Note 31) are

pledged by the cash receipts from the sale of electricity

by certain of the Group's power plants.

(ii) Tariff adjustment receivables

theBHRETRREMBRE
BYEP  REBENEER  BHFKA

AL E - AR REL -

—LEERETERIEREEERRE
O RAEEET ZRITERERE

BHR(FIEE3T) °

(i) EWREERAENE

An aging analysis of the tariff adjustment receivables, JE T {8 38 B R IR 2 BR e /3 AT (DA A
based on the revenue recognition date, was as follows: WREHAE)MAT :

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFr
Within 3 months 3EAA 68,136 127,841
3 to 6 months 3E6EA 56,828 91,758
6 to 12 months 6E 12188 129,489 132,776
Over 1 year 1FEME 101,726 96,105
356,179 448,480
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23.

324

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Trade adjustment receivables (CONTINUED)

The Group’s tariff adjustment receivables from the
sale of electricity are mainly receivables from the state
grid companies. The collection of the tariff adjustment
receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalisation of the allocation of funds
by relevant PRC government authorities to the state
grid companies. See Note 22 for tariff adjustment
receivables recognised by the power plants which have
not been included in the Catalogue.

Bill receivables

As 31 December 2018, the Group endorsed certain bill
receivables accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
trade payables due to these suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of RMB564,707,000 (2017:
RMB618,080,000). The Bills had a maturity of one to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the Bills and the
associated liabilities.

All bills received by the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, the Group's bill
receivables were reclassified as financial assets at FVTPL
because the bills receivables are held in a business
model whose objective it to sell.

23. EWESRIAREE(E)

Biet (&

(ii)

(iii)

EREEARNEE)

AEBMENHEEERESEFRNBEREE
BEKEREMARIA - f£EEF
BB #ETRKEEREMARZR
BHR% BREADFGEERE
BEFAER - RIIABHEZEKER
FARFAME22 -

HI1E2018F 12 A31H AEFEEE
AR EAERITAIAN 2 EKEE
(IZEBDEHEmAREED B 2 E
B ZH A AR 564,707,000 7T
(2017 + AFR#618,080,0007T) ° i&
HEEERAREARE—ZEXMEARN
Hff- ARAESESRE EEECEE
BRZEZR 2 BEKRERD - B
gt - AR ARBER L EER 2 25
AeEkARERE -

REBWIREZREZIBMBEAIRN
—F .

RBEFBH B MEEANE IR ZRE -
HRERRESARERBEENZ
BERY EEZEREESEER
NABEAABEZEREE -
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24, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

24. ANRKIE - BEREMERKEA

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Deposits paid for purchase of AR - EREEERER
property, plant and equipment 103,157 176,230
Deposits paid for project BHIRERES
investments 119,235 125,898
Other prepayments E A IER IR 48,939 105,220
Deposits for other borrowings HEMEFIRES
(Note 32) (K17t 32) 21,319 72,203
Other deposits Hinize 43,729 50,256
Sales proceeds receivables from e B P BB A I FE YRR
disposal of subsidiaries 106,294 149,701
Receivables from former subsidiaries  FEUL AT B A 51718 46,799 83,661
Other receivables Hofth pE R IE 67,429 94,954
Current portion of land use rights T b {5 A 2 BN ERES
(Note 17) (Kt 17) 22,317 18,115
Value-added tax recoverable A Ui Bl $EE 970,834 711,673
Amounts due from customers for GRIEZEREF25E
contract work — 21,646
1,550,052 1,609,557
Less: Impairment loss on sales i BRE B A A FEUERIA
proceeds receivables from ZRE
disposals of subsidiaries (15,197) (16,545)
Impairment loss on other H At e W RIE BB
receivables (3,297) (2,841)
1,531,558 1,590,171

325



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24.
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS

AND OTHER

24, ARNHE BERHEMEKRKE

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) (&
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFITT
Less: Non-current portion JB - SERENER D
Deposits paid for purchase AT - BREERE
of property, plant and FREE K
equipment (103,157) (176,230)
Deposits paid for project BHITERZER
investments (39,235) —
Deposits for other borrowings HittERRZER (21,319) (72,203)
Other deposits and Hitiz e
prepayments (35,466) (17,546)
Sales proceeds receivables B BB A R R GKIE
from disposal of subsidiaries (15,197) (20,679)
Other non-current receivables H Ath FE Y SR IE (27,579) (38,707)
Value-added tax recoverable AT B3 (E (619,273) (384,618)
Impairment loss on sales 55 B P 8~ 7] e W sk I8
proceeds receivables from 2B
disposals of subsidiaries 15,197 16,545
Impairment loss on other H b e R IERE
receivables — 1,104
Non-current portion classified FREBL D EEFRBEE
under non-current sets assets (846,029) (692,334)
Current portion classified under FREHBIPEERBEE
current assets 685,529 897,837

Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amounts due
from customers for contract work were reclassified to

contract assets.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in

Note 48.

SR

RIBEFBEERF 155} BESRE

WD BEAREE °

M20184 12 A 31 HEMEWE Z ME
S5 R M 48 -
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®a

24,

25.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, ERSE R4 REMERSE

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements in the impairment loss during the year

are as follows:

(%)

RERZRBEZDBERAT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

At 1 January m1A1H 19,386 1,050
Impairment recognised during the RERR 2 BEREBEFE

year 5,537 19,386

Written-off during the year PGS 6| (6,429) (1,050)

At 31 December K12 A31H 18,494 19,386

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Certain plant and machinery of the Group are leased
out under finance leases. All interest rates inherent in HFRAHEHE - FFEHES

25. MERERERFE

the leases are fixed at the contract date over the lease T BLAEHEE -

terms.

AEBRLEBENEMREARERE

AR=ELRE

2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFr

Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 OMAT :
Current assets MENEE 8,327 5,100
Non-current assets EMBEE 53,628 19,100
61,955 24,200
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FREMBRERME
25. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. REHEEWRIE(Z)
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
REHENRE REHENRERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Finance lease receivables BE M E EUR
comprise:
Within one year 1TEUR 12,244 6,880 8,327 5,100
In more than one year but 1ZE2%F
not more than two years 16,768 5,667 12,901 4,340
In more than two years but 2 & 54
not more than five years 43,082 11,103 37,875 9,900
In more than five years 5FM 3,001 5,182 2,852 4,860
75,095 28,832 61,955 24,200
Less: unearned finance 0 RERRERE
income (13,140) (4,632) N/A N/A
61,955 24,200 61,955 24,200
Effective interest rates of the above finance leases T mERECEBRMNESETFT7.32%
range from 7.32% to 9.84% per annum. £9.84% °
Finance lease receivables are secured over the plant B & 10 B e YR IE LATE & 2 R B AN B
and machinery leased. The Group is not permitted to HERER - EEABEARBEAONER
sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default T AEETATTHESERERR -
by the lessee.
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended EZE2018F 12 A31 BFE 2 ME G
31 December 2018 are set out in Note 48. B R4S -
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26. INVENTORIES 26. &
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFITT
Raw materials JR#4# 3,905 226
Work in progress vy 15,583 34,045
Finished goods BURK (B 994 15,998
20,482 50,269

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in profit or loss amounted to RMB28,926,000
(2017: RMB221,337,000). During the year ended
31 December 2018, no work in progress (2017:
RMB16,871,000) was considered as obsolete and
written-off.

FE45E AR 28,926,0007L(2017 ¢
A K #221,337,0007C ) £ 18 25 M 7E
R AR X M2018F 128310 &
(2017 : ARR¥ 16,871,000 ) @ Hi M
ETIREE Z E R M ANEE o
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 RBESZEER
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTHE G 1,366,305 1,110,803
Less: Restricted deposits (Note) i XREITFER (M) (12,692) (99,509)
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSFEY 1,353,613 1,011,294
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents that are NEBATERINEEE I B4 E
denominated in foreign currencies are set out below: ZREeKREEEBEBENT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T ARETT
Denominated in: IATBEEBETE -
— RMB — AR% 24,177 493
— HKD — B% 1,326 5,408
— Us$ — Xt 837 389
26,340 6,290

330

Note: The restricted deposits mainly represent bank

acceptance bill deposits and electricity sale

guarantee deposits.

As at 31 December 2018, the weighted average

effective interest rate on the Group’s bank balances is

0.39% (2017: 0.41%) per annum.

Wi  ZRBIFREZRBBRITASLESR
HEAFRLENHERES -

M2018FE 12 A31H - "NEEIRITAR
ZMEFHERFZER0.39% (2017 :
0.41%) °
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28. TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES 28. ENEZRIFINERE
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARET T
Trade payables JERTE SRR 624,002 1,240,592
Bill payables ANES 375,807 403,795
999,809 1,644,387
Included in trade payables as at 31 December 2 1F2018%F 128318 ER & 5B
2018 were retention money held in respect of ZheEsSyEEARYEESAAR
construction contracts of RMB378,920,000 (2017: #378,920,000 5(2017F : A R #&
RMB385,151,000). Apart from the retention money 385,151,0007C) - B—F B ST 2 RE
which is normally repayable after one year, the & REWEZFHEEHANAE—F
average credit period on purchase of goods is (20174 : —4) »
approximately one year (2017: one year).
As at 31 December 2018, the maturity date of bill MR2018F12A318 ' ENEEREA
payables was within 12 months (2017: within 6 £12@AR2017 : 6 AER) °
months).
An aging analysis of the trade payables, based on ERESERZERDMAZERH
invoice date, is as follows: BEWNT
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT ABRHTFIT
Within 3 months 3MEAA 39,007 1,091,970
3 to 6 months 3E61EH 12,184 1,657
6 to 12 months 6= 121@A 13,879 37,767
1 to 2 years 1224 464,869 72,243
Over 2 years 2F N E 94,063 36,955

624,002 1,240,592
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29. PAYABLES FOR CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS, 29. EERECZCENER HMENSR
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS BN ESTER

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T

Payables for construction in progress 18 B ii& 7 fE < 78 1,994,782 1,425,630
Retention money payables RE S ETIREK 586,432 381,560

Deposits received for disposal of e B P BB A R TR U AR A X
subsidiaries 8,500 44,405
Other payables and accruals H i JE A< 5RIE R FE R RUB 231,189 146,373
Receipts in advance TEM AR K — 58,415

Amounts due to customers for aRIBZENEFPSRE
contract work — 5,636
2,820,903 2,062,019

Less: Amounts repayable after one  Ji - —FEENEELTHEE

year and shown under non- IR &5
current liabilities (1,362,746) (652,033)
Current portion classified under SERRDERE
current liabilities 1,458,157 1,409,986
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amounts due REEBP B WMELERE15RIETE
to customers for contract work were reclassified to ERIIBZENEEREBENERAESE
contract liabilities. FA&afE -
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FREMBRERME
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 2EEE
At At
31 December 1 January
2018 2018~
2018 % 2018 4F
12A31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AR FIT
Receipts in advance TEUER SR 60,116 50,842
Construction contracts (Note) BESRKF) 1,376 10,744
61,492 61,586
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments * AESBERBBMBRMESERZES
from the application of HKFRS 15. R IEARAE -
Note: Bzt -
The amounts represent advances received from customers It B A B E B R B T8 ST MR i R fR 4
for contract work but not yet provided the construction BERBzERNR  UELeHEESRENEGE
service. Included in the above balances are amounts due to TEZSTERAARE1,376,0007L(20184F 1
joint ventures for contract work of RMB1,376,000 (1 January A18 : AR¥S5,108,0007T) °

2018: RMB5,108,000).
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31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. HRITEX
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREF T
Secured HIHERER 3,626,968 3,659,545
Unsecured I IFRERER 744,654 429,300
Total borrowings fEsEss 4,371,622 4,088,845

The secured bank borrowings are secured by certain
buildings and power plant equipment of the Group
(Note 16(c)), cash receipts from the sale of electricity
by certain of the Group’s power plants (Note 23) and
certain equity interests in subsidiaries.

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are

ERERBITERZERDSEEED

% BELEXK

ZE (BTEE 16(¢)) -

SEN S

B ENHEE(MF23)ME2EE R

P B8 X B) 2 AL AE o

AEERZAE TR T EARIER * -

repayable*:
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFr
Within 1 year 1A 620,389 513,246
Between 1 and 2 years RENEFE2FH 370,364 330,525
Between 2 and 5 years MRE2EFESFM 1,192,884 1,019,591
Over 5 years S F 2,187,985 2,225,483
4,371,622 4,088,845
Less: Amounts due within one year & - RREBBEE NIIRZR
shown under current liabilities —FREIE 2 B 5008 (620,389) (513,246)
Amounts shown under non-current  RIERBIBEE NIIRZ FUA
liabilities 3,751,233 3,575,599
* The above amounts due are based on scheduled * NEFBIHESBERSERERR

repayment dates set out in the respective loan

agreements.
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31.

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

TR (E)

AEBRITERETRMETOMA -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Fixed-rate borrowings BT M ERER 293,552 273,670
Variable-rate borrowings EEFIEE TR 4,078,070 3,815,175
4,371,622 4,088,845

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's AEBRITERZEBRENE 2 &6 E 0

bank borrowings are as follows: I

2018 2017

EIFIE
EBFRETER
El5E PR R 1Tk

Effective interest rate:
Variable-rate bank borrowings
Fixed-rate bank borrowings

The fair values of the non-current borrowings are
estimated using discounted cash flow calculations
based upon the Group’'s current incremental
borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings
with maturities consistent with those remaining for
the debt. The carrying amounts of the non-current
borrowings approximate their fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

2.9% 10 5.9%
2.7% to 7.0%

2.9% t0 6.9%
2.7% to 5.9%

FERBERZAREE  EXNAEHD
HAEAMR BREE TS — B2 BIAME KA Bl
ZEREBERNE  FARSRFTRE
HORTERIBR - RIEHIR - IERBIE
R EEEREE AR EEEE
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FE MBI RME
31. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 31. \ITERE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency H IS ARE AR EFINERITEE
denominated bank borrowings at the end of each SR :
reporting period are as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Denominated in United States IAETTES
dollars:
Fixed-rate borrowings ERES=FN 16,148 16,607
Variable-rate borrowings FEFERER 11,957 13,386
Denominated in Hong Kong dollars:  LABH 27
Fixed-rate borrowings (& 7E M = B % 7,404 7,063
35,509 37,056
32. OTHER BORROWINGS
32. HMfERK
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFIT
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  AZIAMIT :
Current liabilities MENAE 102,931 28,120
Non-current liabilities EmEAE 2,587,324 1,380,555
2,690,255 1,408,675

336

During the year, the Group entered into agreements
(the “Agreements”) with certain PRC financial
institutions (the “Financial Institutions”) whereby
the Group drew down RMB1,414,600,000 (2017:
RMB1,418,300,000) in aggregate from the Financial
Institutions of which RMB854,303,000 (2017:
RMB835,462,000) was received in the form of bills..
Such borrowings are to be repayable in 2018 to
2030 and carry interest ranging from 5.0% to 6.1%
per annum (2017: ranging from 5.0% to 5.9% per
annum).

FEAFREEREPH NS FBEEBAT
18 [ SRR ) BT e (AT B[ 153
& IR BEE B AR 1,414,600,000
7£(2017 + A R #1,418,300,000 7T ) -
H s A R #854,303,0007(2017 = A
R 835,462,000t ) 2 i 1B & W E 1%
WE| o ZEERFML2018E 2030515
NEE BERFENERE50%E6.1%
(2017 : {EFREFERZEZ5.0%E59%) °
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32. OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As collaterals for the above financing,

32. HifER(E)

Lt E 2 ERY)

(i)  The Group transferred the ownership title of () AEEDEBHVE  BERDEE

certain property, plant and equipment to the

Financial Institutions.

ZFIEEBR SRS

(i)  The Group entered into financial guarantee (i) ZANEEFIZTEMNRSRMEE 25

contracts in favour of the Financial Institutions

for the due performance of the Group's BHER o
obligations under the Agreements.

BRERAOAREAEBEERETT

(iii)  Upon the discharging all the Group's obligations (i) EAREERERTTTEROELE

under the Agreements, the Financial Institutions
will return the ownership title of those property,
plant and equipment to the Group for minimal
consideration. Despite the Agreements involve
a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted 1 RBIE RS %

for the Agreements as collateralised borrowing
in accordance with the actual substance of the

Agreements.

TREBRIEFEEIRERERE
AEE LR - BB REREBZH
B - BEBTE S RN RET
X ARBREGEZBESHE

(iv)  An aggregate amount of security deposits of (iv) H20184 12 A31H E5t X - 7

RMB119,569,000 placed with the Financial
Institutions as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB72,203,000), of which RMB98,250,000 was
offset with certain repayment instalments as
agreed with the Financial Institution (2017: nil).

& AR %119,569,0007T(2017 :
A R ¥ :72,203,0007T ) ¢ H &
© Eh RS [F) = B FE BE B S SR TE IR
H2z &R A ARMIS,250,0007T
(20175 : &) -

(v)  Other borrowings are secured by the Company’s (v) P20184F12A31H E fb & 5%

equity interests in subsidiaries with an aggregate
investment cost of RMB1,022,776,000 as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB473,240,000).

AAEEMNB AR ZREZ R
& %A AR #1,022,776,0007C
(2017 : AR#473,240,0007T) °

The maturity profile of the above borrowings is as i ESEEE RN T
follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREFT
Within 1 year 19FN 102,931 28,120
Between 1 and 2 years RENEFE2FMH 130,583 76,589
Between 2 and 5 years MRE2EFSFM 1,197,730 559,247
Over 5 years 5N E 1,259,011 744,719
2,690,255 1,408,675
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33.
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SENIOR NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE

33. BARBREFZENRE

The movements of senior notes and bonds issued by

FRADETEARBERESZENKIER

the Group during the year are as follows: BEINT :
Medium term Green Senior
bonds bonds notes Total
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
hHERE F3=tee BEEE &t
(Kita) (KiEb) (BiEe)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT
Carrying amount at 201761718
1 January 2017 EEEE 199,451 — — 199,451
Issue of green bonds gBES — 99,864 — 99,864
Interest charge (Note 11) FBZHHZ11) 12,201 494 — 12,695
Interest payable FERFIE (12,195) (4971) — (12,686)
Carrying amount at 2017512831 HF
31 December 2017* RAEREE* 199,457 99,867 — 299,324
Issue of senior notes BREEZET - - 1,267,890 1,267,890
Interest charge (Note 11) MEZE (1) 13,002 7,212 103,554 123,768
Interest payable JERIFIE (12,940) (7,170) (101,502) (121,612)
Exchange differences BN AR — — 93,311 93,311
Carrying amount at R20185128318F
31 December 2018 RAEEEE 199,519 99,909 1,363,253 1,662,681
Less: Amounts due within - —ERIEZRE
one year shown under =V
current liabilities (199,519) — — (199,519)
Amounts shown under non- FrREat
current liabilities — 99,909 1,363,253 1,463,162
* Both the medium term bonds and green bonds are * M2017F 12 A31 8 FEES &

shown under non-current liabilities as at 31 December

2017.

BEFHIIEIFRBHEEERT -
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33.

SENIOR NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

The medium term bonds issued by the Group in April
2016 were registered in the National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors (Zhong Shi Xie
Zhu [2016]GN No.1) and China Development Bank
has been designated as the principal underwriter
of the bonds. The principal amount of the bonds is
RMB200,000,000 with maturity in three years. The
bonds bear fixed interest rate of 6.2% per annum,

payable annually.

The principal and interest of the bonds are cashed
through the custodian in accordance with its face
value at the maturity date. The bonds are unsecured
and the custodian is the Inter-bank Market Clearing
House Co., Ltd. The effective interest rate of the bonds
is 6.5% per annum.

The green bonds were issued by the Group
in December 2017 and its principal amount is
RMB100,000,000 with maturity in three years. The
green bonds bear fixed interest rate of 7.2% per
annum, payable annually. The effective interest rate of
the green bonds is 7.2% per annum.

The senior notes (the “Notes”) were issued by the
Group on 16 January 2018 and its principal amount of
is US$200,000,000 with maturity on 23 January 2021
unless earlier redeemed in accordance with the terms
thereof. The Notes bear fixed interest at 7.9%
annum payable semi-annually. The effective interest

per

rate of the Notes is 8.3% per annum.

33. BARBREFZENAREAE)

Hfat

(a)

NEER2016F 4 A6 HETT 72016
FEF—HTHER  ZPHEED
EFEETEMESERSAHBS(PM
5 [2016]GN 1 5%) 5k - BIK G5
RITRMDAERRAR B RETIT 2 %K
HE  RPHEBETEBEAARKE
200,000,0007T ' 2 EAIERHBAR A=
FoZPBPERFFEARE62%  BF
B e

o

ZPHREBE 2 AR BIBEE AN
B HMARREAELN - PR
BEERER ZTHRBEFEEA
RITETIBBEERRDAERRA - %
PHIRBEZERFNER6.5% -

REBR2017FNARBEHETHE
naElfES - A& AARK 100,000,000
T =FHH - ZEEFNERAFH
BETEFEFET2% - rEHE 2 EEF
ERFMNET2% °

M2018F1 A 16 B » AEEEITAE
/200,000,000 7T 7 (B 5 E 45 5
HIH A20214F1 A238  BRIFREE
SRR ATE D - 3% 295 2 & E ) R
BEFTI9%  BFEFIN—K - BE
WERFEREE83%
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SENIOR NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Note: (CONTINUED)

(@]

(CONTINUED)

At any time prior to 23 January 2021, the Group may
at its option redeem the Notes, in whole but not in
part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the Notes redeemed plus the
applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date.

At any time and from time to time prior to 23 January
2021, the Group may at its option redeem up to
35% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of
common stock of the Company in an equity offering at
a redemption price of 107.9% of the principal amount
of the Notes redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date; provided that at least 65% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes originally issued on the
original issue date remains outstanding after each
such redemption and any such redemption takes place
within 60 days after the closing of the related equity
offering.

33. BARBREFZENAREAE)

Biet (&

(@]

(%

202141 B 23 A28 Z (E BT
AEBENEEEL2FETRHBOR
B BELRNERERNBREEREAS Y
100% * M EEHZ=EDHH(ERIE
BB A 2 EAEE - U RERFIR
RFE(E) -

ANEERIE2021F1A23AZAESR
BOH(ETRIESR) 2 EMERR
TEERAELERE REBELRERA
©.2107.9% 2 FERIER « 1 LFERH &
REFE(ME)  EREMERDE
—EYSEARNANLTBRABRESF
B BEOE%35% 2 EHASHEE
B REVRBEITHONBRETNE D
65% 2 EBEHF AR BEETNETES
BRI MAERN BZEERT T
AR BITHERIEN 60 RRNEA -
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN 34.

On 23 May 2018, the Group issued convertible
loan (the “Convertible Loan”) in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$233,800,000 (approximately
RMB189,938,000) to International
Corporation (“IFC"), which consists of three tranches:
(i) Tranche | being HK$93,480,000; and (ii) Tranche
Il being HK$70,110,000; and (iii) Tranche Il being
HK$70,210,000. IFC has the right to convert all or any
part of the outstanding amount of the Convertible

Finance

Loan into the ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of (i) HK$0.5 per Share (for
Tranche 1);(ii) HK$0.55 per Share (for Tranche II);
and (iii) HK$0.6 per Share (for Tranche IlI) (subject
to the adjustments as set out in the agreement for
the Convertible Loan dated 28 December 2017 (the
“Agreement”)).

The outstanding principal of the Convertible Loan
bears interest at a rate of (i) 2% per annum for the
period commencing on the date of the Agreement
until the date falling on the third anniversary of
the date of the Agreement; and (ii) 5% per annum
thereafter. The maturity date of the Convertible
Loan is 27 December 2022 (the “Maturity Date”). If
the whole or any part of the Convertible Loan is not
converted into the ordinary shares of the Company
by the Maturity Date then the relevant non converted
portion of the Convertible Loan shall be repaid in
full together with an amount required to provide IFC
with an Internal Rate of Return (as defined in the
Convertible Loan Agreement) in respect of such non-
converted portion of the Convertible Loan of 7%.

RRER

2018F5A238 X & B @ B B
/AR BIC) BT RE &
¥H /233,800,000 m(H A AR &
189,938,000 T ) A] iR & SR (F F [ 7]
BBRER]) - ZETRBRERAS A=
Hi 1 ()28 — H3 593,480,000 7T ¢ (ii)
% 285470,110,000/87C * (ii)FE 355
70,210,000 7 ° IFC A #E 1% T it &8 3%
BREZEZTRRER Z2EHE L2 R
BESBEEBRARRNRZEBR : ()F—
HIERR 0.5 T (iI)E _HE®RM0.55/8
7T RGi)E=H 0.6/ T(BEHE 2017
F12 A28 B 2 REFBE (H
BIHBEDREETHE )

ARBRERZ KERSH () RETRRE
P EEFBERRERARE =
FEAERAMIE 2% WEF KT8
BREBIZ(I)5% 2 FFEGFE - %%
AR ER R A A20229F12 A 27
B(RRIEIEE L) - WAREIEE - %%
AR ERZ B D 250 R IR A AR
NAZEBR - BT RBRERZ MRS
BRIBOEMEFABRBH FRIFCIE
HZ27% 2R RERFEZ 1B

RHEE -
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Bt 35 R AR B

CONVERTIBLE LOAN (CONTINUED)

IFC may serve a written notice on the Group requiring
the Group to (a “Prepayment Notice”): (i) at any time
during the period commencing on (and including) the
third anniversary of the date of the Agreement and
ending on the fourth anniversary of the date of the
prepay
the non-converted portion of the Loan within 45 days

Agreement (the “First Prepayment Period”),

of the date of the relevant Prepayment Notice in the
amount specified in the Prepayment Notice, provided
such amount is not, when aggregated with all other
amounts prepaid in response to Prepayment Notices
during the First Prepayment Period, greater than one-
third of the total amount of the Loan; or (ii) at any
time during the period commencing on (and including)
the fourth anniversary of the date of this Agreement
and ending on the fifth anniversary of the date of
the Agreement (the “Second Prepayment Period”),
prepay the non-converted portion of the Loan within
45 days of the date of the relevant Prepayment Notice
in the amount specified in the Prepayment Notice,
provided such amount is not, when aggregated with
all other amounts prepaid in response to Prepayment
Notices during the First Prepayment Period and the
Second Prepayment Period, greater than two-third of
the amount of the Loan. Any prepayment made shall
be applied pro rata across Tranche |, Tranche Il and
Tranche Il

The Convertible Loan contain two components, debt
component and derivative (including conversion and
early redemption options) component. The effective
interest rate of the debt component is 10.2% per
annum. The derivative component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

34.

ARRER(E)

FCAgegmASE RN EERBN 2
IAKE(ERBIFEMFBAD - ()EF
“TAFREEER RRBRERESRNE
FERAER(BHIEREMZESBE]D
ERIERE - A BARENSE - &£
HEAMFEBMABRENISRA - BRE
R RERE D - EHER - Z2BINE
P B R TEA Z AR LA BB A ET TR &Y
FIBEHMESRE M TRAREREEN
=nz— s HRZBEENEAFE B
(PREEB)RBEZHEFAAFER
(R8T 3 —IRTEAT FREAR ) 45 R A (E 1
BrRIA - WNZBARENSEE - £48
B FURA A B4 KA - BRER
ZAREBMBY  EHR  ZEBEMLEE
IRFBR R EARI RN — R TR AR BE TR
NFBAMBANOAEEMESE 2 -
FTARERESEN=Z N2 =« IWE
MEMFIRLAERARE - £=
BN =8 -

ARBRERBEMEMARKRIS - EF
B AT (B RS R A IR BT fE B % 12
BIKD - BRI EBRNERETSF
102% - fTEK D EAREHE - AR
REEZFHNERIE -
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FREMBHERMETE
34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN (CONTINUED) 34. ABRBERE)
The movements of the debt component and derivative RNER A BEEREBEK D FMOTER
component of the convertible loan during the year are STEEIMT
as follows:
Debt Derivative
component component Total
BB TR D &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ABEFTT AREFITT
Upon issuance 21T 170,508 19,430 189,938
Issue expense BITER (1,894) — (1,894)
Interest expense (Note 11)  FIBXH(H:F11) 11,222 — 11,222
Interest payable FERTFE (2,547) — (2,547)
Fair value changes N BEE - (11,307) (11,307)
Exchange differences bE i AR 13,367 2,046 15,413
At 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A31H 190,656 10,169 200,825
Binominal valuation model is used for valuation of PTERDHRB X EHERAETE
the derivative component. The key inputs used in the B ZENPERA B ABIHRN
model are disclosed in Note 49. B5E 49 ©
35. DEFERRED TAX 35. EELEHIE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax BEFRGHEEREEMSHARZY
liabilities is as follows: T
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFITT
Deferred tax assets BEEFSHERE 36,898 33,256
Deferred tax liabilities BELEMEHAR (13,577) (3,900)
23,321 29,356
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35.

344

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 35. EERBIE(E)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Unrealised
inter-companies gains
KER K

2018 2017

RAENRLEMSHEERAB2Z SN
N

EEFMEHEE
Deferred
government subsidy Total
BEHFRHY @t
2018 2017 2018 2017

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETT

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARETZ ARETT

At 1 January W1A1R 30,524 21,909 2,732 2,882 33,256 24,791
Credited/(debited) to the profit 1B 8,/ (;FA)#B%

or loss (Note 13) (Wit 13) 3,792 8,599 (150) (150) 3,642 8,449
Disposal of subsidiaries ERIB AR EHIE

(Note 39(b)) (Bt 39(6)) - 16 - - - 16
At 31 December “128318 1316 3052 2,582 2732 36898 3325

At 31 December 2018, the Group had tax losses of
RMB340,448,000 (2017: RMB126,621,000) arose in
Mainland China that can be carried forward to set
off against future taxable income which will expire
within 1 to 5 years. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

M2018F 12 A31H » AEBERFHK
B A& 2 FIE S 1B A A R 340,448,000
JL(2017% + AR #126,621,0007C ) °
EEEDUIKERZERBERA - 555
R1ESFREH - ARRRBARIRE
AR TERI M I R FERE BIRER TR E
@ °
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35.

Bt 35 R AR B

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets (CONTINUED)

The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the

following years:

35. BEHIA(E)

EEFFBHRERE(E)

AERRBEBESRATEEREMD

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFoT

To be expired on: 1S T 51 B BRfE
31 December 2018 —E-N\Ft+ZA=1+— —_ 2,412
31 December 2019 —E-hNEFE+=ZA=1+— 10,347 11,072
31 December 2020 —ECEFE+-A=1+— 11,113 11,301
31 December 2021 —E-—F+-_A=1+— 15,357 15,906
31 December 2022 —E-—F+-A=+— 81,399 85,930
31 December 2023 —E-=F+=-A=+— 222,232 —
Total unused tax losses REHABIEERARE 340,448 126,621

At 31 December 2018, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of RMB150,904,000 (2017:
RMB138,226,000), subject to the agreement of the
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong, arose in

Hong Kong available for offset against future profits.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams. The estimated

tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

M2018F 12 A31H  ALEEREEE
&2 TRIBE R A A KR 150,904,000 7T
(20174 AR¥ 138,226,000 70) A
R ERA o BRI Z 5 Fm EE
TR - WAREHBREHIBEEERR © It
(T EE 18 ] SR HA 4SS o
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DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities

35. BEHIA(E)

EEFEHAR

Unremitted earnings Unremitted interest Total

KERNE RERAE @t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000
ARETL AREFT AREFZ ARETT AREFT AREFI
At 1 January W1A1R 3,900 4,463 - — 3,900 4,463

Debited / (credited) to the A/ (k) EER

profit or loss (Note 13) (Hi£13) 873 (563) 8,804 — 9,677 (563)
At 31 December M12A31H 4,773 3,900 8,804 — 13,577 3,900

The deferred tax liabilities recognised relate to
temporary differences arising from the unremitted
earnings of joint ventures and associates, and the
unremitted intercompany interest payable from certain
PRC subsidiaries to overseas subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB99,684,000 (2017: RMB81,573,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the undistributed retained earnings
of subsidiaries of the Group, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EHERAREHRABBERREALEEER
BERBZRKERNBEEZERMEE
2EH - ARF LR BEEFING B QA
ZERBRZFE

MR AE BRI SREF Y R =
HeEpo  RE BEREEEEAER
ZARRBRAEE T EEDE - 20184 12
A318 AEEMBRARARDIKRER
FIFER 2 FEIRR R E B ERLER ST
BEABARY99,684,0007L(2017 = A
R# 81,573,000 7T) W ARESHER o
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36.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are received from the PRC
government and the government of the United
States of America (“US"”) by the Group as financial
subsidies for the promotion of the development of
renewable energy and investments in the PRC and
the US. Government grants from the PRC government
are recognised as income over 20 years based on the
expected useful lives of the relevant non-current assets
including property, plant and equipment invested in
certain areas in the PRC, while the government grants
from the US government are recognised as income
over 5 years as the relevant properties continue to
qualify as specified energy properties as defined by
the US Department of the Treasury.

The movements in deferred government grant during
the year are as follows:

36.

T 8 B A AN 5 B B b B e SR B KT
ARIBGH RE IR E X 3 R M et 2 BT B
BHAh - REFPEBN 2 HeLREXE
REEREREEETEEREZER
HIRRE 20 F A BREERRIRA - T2k B 3
B R A oz #60 B R SR B B R AR P SR e
HREERHENTARERREEZR
% S FAD MIERUA -

ARERNFEEBRFAB 2 ZEINT

2018 2017

At 1 January m1HA1H
Government grants obtained during ZRFEESHTHEE
the year
Released to profit or loss during R 7 Bk 48
the year
At 31 December MW12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETT AREFT

24,136 20,267

2,902 5,777
(3.765) (1,908)
23,273 24,136
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. KX
Ordinary shares issued of HK$0.01 each: BETEBRER0.01ET
No. of Nominal
shares value
gy 4= EHE
000’shares RMB’000
T ARETF T
As at 1 January 2017 M20174F1 A1 H 8,730,965 75,645
Cancellation of ordinary shares FTEH 2 Bk
(Note (i) (B ) (19,370) (173)
Repurchase and cancellation of CfE 1R iH 2 E ik
ordinary shares (Note (i) (K172 ) (34,800) (308)
As at 31 December 2017 7K2017F 12 A31H 8,676,795 75,164
Repurchase and cancellation of EE &R 2 EBk
ordinary shares (Note (i) (HTEE (i) (126,210) (1,115)
As at 31 December 2018 201812 831H 8,550,585 74,049
Notes: Htat -
(i) During the prior year, 54,170,000 ordinary shares of 0) F—FFE 28 IT#HETER

the Company with total par value of RMB481,000
were cancelled, the related costs of repurchase were
RMB18,731,000 and the exceed of costs of repurchase
over the par value of the shares of RMB18,250,000
was charged to share premium. Of which, 19,370,000
ordinary shares were repurchased in 2016 for a total
consideration of RMB6,947,000 and 34,800,000
ordinary shares were repurchased in 2017 for a total
consideration of RMB11,784,000.

(i)~ During the current year, the Group repurchased a total (i)

of 164,080,000 ordinary shares of the Company from
the market for a total consideration of HK$51,160,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB45,250,000), of
which 126,210,000 ordinary shares with total par
value of RMB1,115,000 were cancelled before 31
December 2018. The related costs of repurchase are
RMB34,895,000 and the exceed of costs of repurchase
over the par value of the shares of RMB33,780,000 is
charged to share premium.

348

54,170,000 f% - 4AME{EA R 481,000
T EEMREEA AR 18,731,000
L BB EE AR 18,250,000 T
WEBERTAREEMN - Hf -
20164 [0 f# & i (% 19,370,000 3% -
B A R #6,947,0007T 2017 4 [@
f% @ A% 34,800,000 % - BB AR
11,784,000 7T ©

RAFER - NEB R TSRO E
164,080,000k 2 A" A Al E@k - 4
fE{E 51,160,000 ;t(HEE N AR
45,250,0007T) * EH 126,210,000 %
ZERR - BEAEAARE 1,115,000
T D R20184F 12 A31 B AT aE 84 -
o] B8 A 78 & A A R 34,895,000 7T -
ARk = EE A R 33,780,000 7T #)
1% B AT ARRZRE -
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37.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares for the purpose of share award
schemes

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
151,500,000 ordinary shares were repurchased from
market at a price of approximately HK$0.55 per share
for a total consideration of RMB66,572,000 and held
as treasury shares for the purpose of the Group’s
share award scheme (the “Scheme”) as detailed in
Note 38. The directors of the Company approved an
aggregate number of 61,700,000 shares under such
scheme and all of these shares have been awarded
to the relevant participants of the scheme up to 31
December 2018. At 31 December 2018, the remaining
89,800,000 ordinary shares are held as treasury
shares.

37.

A (&)

EER

RE E2015F12A831HBHILEFE R
151,500,000 fix & 8 fx LA & A% 470.55
BILRAMEBEFREHE  BEEAARK
66,572,0007T * WHIEREFRITE -
ARAEE R EETEI("FTE") -
HBERME3S - AARESREZLTE
#H & B 1D # 8 A5 61,700,0000% © &=
201812 A31H  AABELERHHE
BT ZErEl s s - BR20184F 12
A 318 89,800,000 f& & i A% # 15 £ /B
FhR -
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38.

350

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

In June 2015, the directors of the Company approved
a share award scheme under which shares of the
Company will be awarded to the Group's employees
as an incentive (the “Scheme”). Pursuant to the rules
of the Scheme, the Group has engaged a trustee,
for the purpose of administering the Scheme and
holding the awarded shares before they are vested.
The directors of the Company have approved an
aggregate number of 61,700,000 shares under the
Scheme and they have been awarded to the relevant
employees according to the vesting period as set out
in the Scheme, of which 37,500,000 shares have
been awarded to directors of the Company and the
remaining to other employees of key position.

Movements in the number of awarded shares during
the year are as follows:

38.

IR A0 R Bt &

20156 H RARESSHAET —
ER D SRENET S - LRI EI T AR T
Bfn AASREN A& E (& 8 ([IR 1) 5B &
gl - RIBERMDEEFE - AEEDE
BAEFA - UEBRGRBETE R
EROER T 2R ARFE LRk G -
RNAEE =G H 61,700,000 B 7% %
D EEEN AT BIR% - Z AR 45 A LA SE BN AR IR
B 1n 52 Eh &+ &1 5% % T HAM 2 M RR B 0
8 ; Ef 37,500,000 i BN A AR AR Z
= ORSRORBLEMERENE

<]

H e m

R 2 HERBMT :

Number of shares

BOHE(R)

2018 2017
As at 1 January W1HA1H 18,510,000 37,020,000
Vested during the year* 257 S A2 (18,510,000)  (18,510,000)
As at 31 December M12HA31H — 18,510,000

* Of which 12,450,000 (2017: 12,450,000) shares were
allocated to the directors of the Company.

The Group recognised total expense of RMB545,000
(2017: RMB3,152,000) for the year ended 31
December 2018 in relation to the Scheme.

The fair value of the shares awarded at the grant
date (i.e. 16 November 2015) was HK$0.47 per
share, which was based on the market value of the
Company’s shares at the grant date. At 31 December
2018, the Company had no awarded shares unvested
under the Scheme.

*  H 112,450,000 8% (2017 : 12,450,000
PO LR AR ARES ©

HE2018F12A31BIHFE - K&
B ANfEL s ERERRT LA
%A ARMS545,0005C(2017 « AR
3,152,0007%) °

ERNEFBEBI2015F 129160 ) A
ARECTHE BTHAZERAREEZ
RO ARBEAERLTET - HE
2018F 12 A31H » AREERBEERTA
STEIIETABE T 2lH o
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FREMBHmERME
39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. ZABEESRERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEBHMEZHRSE
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARETFT AREFIT
Profit before income tax B AT T AT 4 A 530,140 270,566
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs B 75 A AR 11 301,210 184,903
Interest income FEWA 7 (11,983) (22,637)
Depreciation of property, Wz - BB k&
plant and equipment e 350,036 224,770
Amortisation of land use b {50 PR R 8
rights 17,168 12,438
Amortisation of other HEmEp & EgH
intangible assets 319 319
Release of deferred I RE BT 465 B 8 8
government grants 36 (3,765) (1,908)
Write-down of inventories FERE 7 — 16,871
Impairment loss on trade FEMERSORE
receivables 9 11,906 9,592
Impairment loss on other HAth JEURBR FURLE
receivables 9 5,537 19,386
Reversal of impairment M A &b EFIRR
loss on amounts due B8O
from joint ventures 9 — (3,641)
Impairment of goodwill EENEAED 8 — 62,584
Fair value gains on BARBEFAER
financial assets at FVTPL ZEMEECLEE
U =5 8 (42,750) (16,644)
Fair value gains on AIEMESFITES S
convertible loan DAMBEZ NS 8 (11,307) —
Share-based compensation  LAMRH AEE Y (5 545 3,152
Share of profit of JEMREE R A A
associates, net (16,594) (24,246)
Share of profit of joint ElEadbEES
ventures, net (130,179) (102,940)
Adjustment of sales VAR & B A 7
proceed of prior year’s FRf3SH &z A%
disposal of subsidiaries 8 17,970 —
Gain on disposal/ HE G EN B AR
de-registration of KB N mz W
subsidiaries and it
associates, net 8 (25,066) (172,198)
Gain from a bargain EHBEFE
purchase — (1,213)
Exchange (gain)/loss, net P& 5 (Was) B 18
HER 8 (204) 88
Loss on disposal of HEWE - BERE
property, plant and 2 E1a
equipment 8 12,393 6,060
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REVBERRME

39.

352

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

39. ZEREREBRMEE)

(@) Cash generated from operations (a) REUEBEZRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
2018 2017
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
it AR¥F AREFr
Operating profit before EELESRDR2RE
working capital A
changes: 1,005,376 465,302
Decrease in inventories FEmLY 29,787 14,041
Increase in trade and bill JEE S ERA R EE
receivables )i (98,982) (297,606)
Decrease in TENFIE - ek
prepayments,deposits and H A & YR IR
other receivables 234,328 423,342
Increase in contract assets ERIEEEM (119,601) —
Decrease in amounts due JFE LA B 2 B FRIB R
from associates 7,779 68,893
Decrease in amounts due JEU A &1 IR R
from joint ventures 139,441 228,320
Decrease in trade and bill ENESERERRER
payables e (418,251) (681,589)
(Decrease)/increase in other  ELfth fE{T TR 1B R lE = 3K
payables and accruals HORD) /G0 (54,492) 149,268
Increase in contract liabilities & [ & &N 50,748 —
Decrease in amounts due to  ERTEE A B Z I8
associates (3,268) (9,130)
Increase/(decrease) in TERt S & ZERTRE AN
amounts due to joint yae:2>
ventures 11,474 (5,661)
Cash generated from REEBRBzES
operations 784,339 355,180
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Disposal/de-registration of subsidiaries

During the year, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interests in certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries to independent third parties for an
aggregate consideration of RMB172,417,000
(2017: RMB594,420,000), and resulting an
aggregate gain on disposal of RMB30,842,000
(2017: RMB176,627,000).

During the year, the Group deregistered certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group and
recorded an aggregate loss on de-registrations
of RMB5,776,000 (2017: RMB11,150,000).

39. ZEREREBRMEE)

(b)

HE EHEKER A

REE AEEBEEL2EH
BRralzazalELARY
172,417,000 70(2017 4« AR
594,420,0007T ) 2 BB H &% &
MNEZF  WAHLESETARE
30,842,0007T(2017%F + A R ¥
176,627,000 7T ) 7 i B Wz ©

REE  AEEFHETAEE L
2EMBAR - EHEELREE
AR #5,776,000 T(2017 F + A
K% 11,150,0007T) °
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39.

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

354

RERTREBRWEEE)

Disposal/dep-registration of subsidiaries (b) HE SHMEBAT(E)
(CONTINUED)
The gain on disposal/de-registration of HE B AR Z W - R
subsidiaries, net, is as follows: W
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AEHTFT
Consideration: RE -
Disposal of subsidiaries HE B A R PTSRIEF 5 172,417 594,420
Proceeds from de-registration of LRI IR EEE
subsidiaries 92 62
172,509 594,482
Carrying amount of net assets of ~ FTREMBARZFEEZ
subsidiaries disposed of: FREAEE :
Land use rights 3 fsB P A — 108,425
Property, plant and equipment W - BERH 59,914 1,164,146
Interest in associates NN — 3,093
Inventories FE — 695
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR — 335,242
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIE - e MEAME
receivables W IE 30,993 148,507
Amounts due from fellow FEUSHH B A F) 2 FIE
subsidiaries 44,640 11,244
Cash and cash equivalents BekRE&EEER 83,063 9,072
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE — (902,778)
Amounts due to joint ventures JEfT& & ERIA — (9,056)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries E{THIE A 7> 3718 (48,107) (404,366)
Other payables and accruals E At R SRIB K FEET R (19,254) (30,381)
151,249 433,843
Realised profits on transactions 7N 5= B £ B 1 F)
between the Group and these REHEERZME
subsidiaries 3,323 4,822
Realised deferred tax assets BEERCEEMSHERE — 16
Others EHAth 483 —
Gain on disposal/de-registration of & FFiEHMBE AR Z
subsidiaries, net (Note 8) W - FEHES) 25,066 165,477
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Disposal/de-registration of subsidiaries

(CONTINUED)

Net cash inflow arising on the disposal and de-

(b)

39. ZEREREBRMEE)

HE EEKEAR(E)

& T 8 M B R B PR S FORF

registration: B
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFT AEEFIT
Consideration for disposal of EURE
subsidiaries 172,417 594,420
Proceeds received upon liquidation B AGEEME
of subsidiaries 92 62
Consideration not yet received and  ARUCHR 2 5+ A H fth g
recorded in other receivables WkIg 2 R E (18,412) (60,263)
Deposits received in prior years VABT4F E T s s 3K (38,576) (115,785)
Cash and cash equivalents R E M S mER R 2
derecognised from the ReMREeFEER
consolidated financial statements (83,063) (9,072)
32,458 409,362
Consideration for prior year'’s REEDWBAFELE
disposals received in FHEIRE
the current year 54,569 28,512
87,027 437,874
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39, SAELRBRME(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disposal/de-registration of associates () HE sSHE&AT
During the prior year, the Group disposed of HN2017FE R NEBHEBL N
certain associates for an aggregate consideration A 2 48X {8 34,450,000 7T I FE 2R
of RMB34,450,000 and recorded gain on HEWES 6,721,000 7T °
disposal totalling RMB6,721,000.
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal: REEAZHEESREASEE -
2017
RMB’000
ARETF T
Total consideration BmRE 34,450
Consideration receivables JE i B 5 R (4,746)
Net cash inflows FREBRA 29,704
(d) Disposal of property, plant and equipment (d) HEVE BERRE
An analysis of the cash proceeds from the meRensrY  HEVE &
disposal of property, plant and equipment is as BRFREREGEHFIBEFHEES
follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBETT

Net carrying amount (Note 16) BREFEAE16) 16,180 7,210
Loss on disposal (Note 8) EEIEAES) (12,393) (6,060)
Consideration for the disposal HEZRE 3,787 1,150
Less: Settled with other receivables J& : H b el zk1AE (1,550) (980)
Net cash proceeds received R E e a5 2,237 170
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bank borrowings, other borrowings, senior notes and

bonds payable and convertible loan are grouped under

interest payable.

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40. RERBREIH>ABIYHESR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's TERFAMTARERKARBHETH B
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BEZES RIERSLIERSER - H
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising REE EHELA 7 EBE  HBEHREN
from financing activities are those for which cash ERAKBERETREEREFS G
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in HenearxtREIHELA RS RS
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as JI= N
cash flows from financing activities.
Senior
notes
Bank Other and bonds Convertible Loans from
borrowings borrowings  payable loan Interest ajoint Total
(Note 37)  (Note 32) ~ (Note 33) ~ (Note 34)  payable*  venture
B RELE
BIER  EMER RENER TRRER EATE- X @3t
(RN (ER) ) MEW
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANEBTR ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFL AREFT ARETZ
At 1 January 2017 ®2017%1518 3,426,660 — 199,451 3,222 40,500 3,669,833
Financing cash flows BERERA 662,185 501,010 99,864 (225,574) — 1,037,485
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR — — — — —  (40,500)  (40,500)
Deposits placed REE — 72203 - — 72003
Bills received WEIZg — 835462 — — 835462
Interest expenses* iyt — — — — 244329 — 244329
Difference between coupon SEFEA

interest and effective interest ERRIRES 9 9) - -
At 31 December 2017 W2017E128318 4,088,845 1408675 299,324 - 21968 — 5818812
Financing cash flows BEREMA 282,777 478,161 1,267,890 188,044  (378,847) 1,838,025
Deposits placed rES — 47,366 - - 47,366
Set off with deposits placed RESBE M 41)

(Note 41) - (98,250) - - - (98,250)
Bills received WIZE — 854,303 - - 854,303
Interest expenses* MEX - - - — 439,566 439,566
Difference between coupon SEFEA

interest and effective interest ERFIREE 2,156 8,675  (10,831) -
Fair value changes NrEEE - - - (11,307) - (11,307)
Exchange differences ERF2 - — 93311 15413 - 108,724
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31R 4,371,622 2,690,255 1,662,681 200,825 71,856 8,997,239
* The movements of interest expenses attributable to * SERNIBITER  HtER  BENE

ARBEREFRTEBRERZMNEE
REBRARENFEET -
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41.

358

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, the Group entered into
financing arrangements with the Financial
Institution in respect of property, plant and
equipment and drew down an aggregate
amount of RMB1,414,600,000 (2017:
RMB1,418,300,000) from the Financial
Institution, of which RMB854,303,000 (2017:
RMB835,462,000) was received in the form
of bills. Further details of the financing

arrangements are set out in Note 32.

During the year, the Group entered into an
offset agreement with a Financial Institution
to offset the security deposits placed with
the Financial Institution and the repayment
instalment of RMB98,250,000 (2017: nil).

During the year, the Group acquired the non-
controlling interests of certain non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries with an aggregate consideration of
RMB72,682,000, of which RMB48,512,000 was
settled through offsetting other receivables from

a non-controlling shareholder.

41.

FBEZHRERS

(a)

TRFRN NEERDE - BE

FEESREBIT T RE B
EUNSREBETRERAARE
1,414,600,0007C(2017 = A R
#1,418,300,0007T) + EF AR
¥ 854,303,000 T(2017 : A R
#5 835,462,000 7T ) A K R Uk
B o BEBHETFIBIIENMEEI2 o

REERAFEE -RESBEER]
MEE RS  BETRRZ SR
B2RESRDBNRERARE
98,250,000 7C(2017 : &) ©

AREBRAFEUAARE
72,682,000 7T 8 2 51X B U 8 2B
DIEREFRRIMIEE S - H
AR 48,512,000 7T i B 7 (&
Hoh R FEIE HIR R RIBAHE -
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATION 42. BESH
In March 2017, the Group acquired 20% equity 201743  AEEI 1 TARE I
interest in Topping Center Ltd. (“Topping Center”), SHE AL EZEEFHEA
the then joint venture of the Group, from the existing AREB 2 E&EEFE Topping Center Ltd
joint venture partner at a cash consideration of ([Topping Center ) BH 2=+ 2K
RMB1. Subsequent to the acquisition, Topping Center o MU 2 1% - Topping Center X /A
became a wholly—owned subsidiary of the Group. KEB2EHNE QT > Topping Center
Topping Center is principally involved in the provision TELARNDEEHMEEIEHMERS -
of finance lease of equipment for wind power plants.
Fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities PRS2 AR EENAGBEK
acquired at the date of the above acquisition was as B AZARBEOT :
follows:
RMB’000
AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment M - B KRB 5
Interest in an associate* NN 79,876
Cash and cash equivalents ReELREFEIEAR 2,948
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfTFIE © e REMERFKIE 4,963
Finance lease receivables** FEN EL & TR & R x 35,349
Amounts due from related companies JE T B B R RRIE 100,500
Amounts due to related companies JE A B HES A AR (217,576)
6,065

* Interest in an associate represents Topping Center’s
investment in 46.6% equity interest in a subsidiary
of the Group, of which the amount is equal to the
non-controlling interests of that subsidiary recorded
by the Group. The acquisition of such associate is
accounted for as an equity transaction as acquisition
of additional interests in a subsidiary.

**  The fair value of finance lease receivables acquired
in this transaction as at the date of acquisition
approximate their carrying amounts and none of the
receivables are expected to be uncollectible.

* REE AR ZERIER B ARIRET
REEB-WEB AR Z246.6% K &
REARZ AEBEZWNB QA ZIE
PR o B E A RRIEEIEE
BRZRH5%E - SAEKBENERA R
REHMERS

o

= RBER BBEAXRZERS ZEWE

EMEFRz AR BEEHRESHE
H%E - BIEEHE TR R A AR
[E] o
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42.

43.

360

BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

42. hESHE)

RMB’000
AREFIT
Gain from a bargain purchase recognised REEBREZEREBRIINE
on the acquisition
Consideration transferred: EHEE s HE:
Cash B —
Fair value of the joint venture BEPEZANEEB
(80% in Topping Centre) (R RAEFEEZ80%) 4,852
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired B BBAFEECAREBE (6,065)
Gain from a bargain purchase recognised in RERPER REBEGE
profit or loss (1,213)
Net cash inflows in respect of the WEHEZRERARE
acquisition —
Consideration paid in cash ERREXNZEHE —
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired R BEB RS RIRITER (2,948)
2,948

Since the acquisition date, Topping Center contributed
revenue of RMB3,035,000 and a net loss of
RMB2,665,000 to the Group’s consolidated revenue
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2017,

respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantee to a bank in favour
of a joint venture of the Group in respect of a
banking facility provided by the bank to that joint
venture. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
amount of guarantee was RMB16,126,000 (2017:
RMB21,958,000), which represented the amount that
could be required to be paid if guarantee was called
upon in entirety, of which RMB16,126,000 had been
utilised by the joint venture as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB21,958,000).

43.

BUYERE e RAFMR2017F12 A
BNHEFEASESHMARIETRE
Bt Uz A A R #5 3,035,000 MFEE A
AR¥2,665,0007C °

ZEEE

AEEBRIRITMEERARREIRE
MIRITIREAIRIT AR 2 A Z R » &
F2018F12A31H BFtER &3
B AR 16,126,00070(2017 + AR
21,958,0007T ) « i E K ¥ HRHFEER
B AEBERIESNZEE  HRAR
#16,126,0007T 2 & & 2 A 72018
F12A318(2017 : AR¥ 21,958,000
TOFA °
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 43.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair value of the financial guarantee contract at initial
recognition and subsequently at the end of each
reporting period is not significant as the default rate

is low.

44, COMMITMENTS 44,

Operating lease commitments

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises and
equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging

from 2 years to 15 years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

XEREE)

ARBEEBR/RVRERE RRER
EHRERRYBREREONAAEER
RENXBERMSEE)

0|

iE

REHEERE

EREBEA
AEERBENAHEELEHE L AE

TETHAEREME - HaHEHEE
H2FEEI15F -

MA2018F12 A31H 1SE$E%FEAT\
AR E 2 RIRRIEAER K
BIOR :

2018 2017

No later than 1 year BB 1 F

Later than 1 year and no later than HEB 1 FERNHESF
5 years

Over 5 years AFLA L

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT

17,486 15,128
73,707 65,180
67,353 83,051
158,546 163,359
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44,

45.

362

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had capital

44, RYE(E)

BRAE

RBEAGEMBRRKFERTAR

expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the EMREAZERETNT
consolidated financial statements is as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

Acquisition of property, plant and ME - BEREERX

equipment

The Group has entered into a number of
arrangements to develop power plant projects in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
capital commitments to joint ventures and associates
contracted but not provided for amounted to
RMB61,050,000 (2017: RMB105,050,000).

ARETFT ARETT

1,222,769 1,855,552

AEECHRRTPEERRAEEB LA
L 2018 12 A31 8 » B%5]
ERERBEMNTEELERBE AT Z
EmEXSBEAARY 61,050,000
(2017 : AR#¥ 105,050,000 7T) °

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. ABAERS
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated () BRAEEUBHRERPSEHHREN
financial statements, the following material T REARTETIRS
transactions were carried out by the Group with
related parties during the year:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Sales of goods and services to MBS NT A S EN
associates and joint ventures EEm&RB (Mt ()
(Note (i) 59,239 4,910
Loan interest income from joint A EPEERFBUA
ventures (Note (ii) (B732 (i) 1,135 929
Loan interest expense to a joint AECEERFETH
venture (Note (iii)) (K152 (iii)) — 585
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(i) The terms and conditions of sales of goods and

services were mutually agreed by both parties.

(i) The loan interest income arose from loans to
joint ventures bear interest at 5.2% (2017:

5.2%) per annum. Details of the loans to joint

ventures are disclosed in Note 20(ii).

(iii)  The loan interest expense arose from loans from

a joint venture which bore interest at 6.76% per

annum and were fully settled during the prior

year.

Key management compensation

(b)

Key management personnel are those persons

having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the

Group, the total remuneration of the key

management personnel is shown below:

(if)

(iii)

45. BHERS (&

HEEMMRBEETREZE
TR TR -

e EPEREEFIRFHE
5.2% (2017 : 5.2%) & B ° [A)
BENERHIERZAREE
BB FER M 200) PHFE -

BOEBRZAEBHAY F8
6.76% - BN Lt —F2E R

mE ¥ I

o

HREEESH

BREEABRARNL A BT

5ta

EEMZEGHASEESHZA

8 BREEAEFMEENT

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Share-based compensation

e RhEMmEMEEET

DA A B 22 A5 3%

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT
15,529 13,078
345 2,375
15,874 15,453

363



2018 F %
HEHEREEERA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 46. EERTHRARTH

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the NEEERTRAXH I - BEFmEs
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules 2 FHHRBEEFEEDTEE - WEWD
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as T
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HZE2018F 12 A31BILEE :
Employer's
contribution
toa
Share-based retirement
payment benefit
Name Fees Salary (Note (i)) scheme Total
Boxt  BAEAHE
#e #e e (Wit () ZEEH g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT ARE T ARBTT AREFL
Executive directors HTES
Liu Shunxing (Chairman) PEE £/) - 2,628 80 140 2,848
Liu Jianhong (Vice SR (FLE)

Chairperson) — 2,354 66 140 2,560
Yu Weizhou (Chief Executive &M (77845)

Officer) — 1,907 66 140 2,113
Niu Wenhui X 1,087 35 14 1,263
Gui Kai sl 1,086 53 125 1,264
Shang Li (Note vi) L) - 1,179 - 174 1,353

Non-executive directors:  JFE{TES :

Wu Shaohua REE 183 - - - 183
Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors:
Yap Fat Suan, Henry it 190 190
Jesse Zhixi Fang (Note vi)) 772 BB (H13E vii) 183 - — - 183
Huang Jian = 183 - - - 183
Zhang Zhong (Note ix) KRN i) 107 107
Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, &3 ,GBS,BBS,JP

BBS, JP (Note viii) (it vii)) 86 86
Total B 932 10,241 300 860 12,333
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46.

DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

46. ESRITHARFM(E)

HZE2017F 12 A31BILEFE -

Employer's
contribution
toa
Share-based retirement
payment benefit
Name Fees Salary (Note (i)) scheme Total
Bty RAEREE
#% g e (Hrzt () ZEEER Lk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
NREFIT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT
Executive directors HTES
Liu Shunxing (Chairman) PEE £/) — 2,053 460 130 2,643
Liu Jianhong (Vice SR gLE)

Chairperson) — 1,950 383 130 2,463
Yu Weizhou (Chief Executive S M( 778 #3)

Officer) — 1,787 383 130 2,300
Niu Wenhui (Note i) ExOR(Hii) — 1,076 205 118 1,399
Gui Kai 5 - 1,043 307 114 1,464
Yang Zhifeng (Note v) GREH ) — 499 383 46 928
Non-executive directors:  FHTES .

Gao Fu Chun (Note i) RERM i) 13 - — - 13
Wu Shaohua (Note ) RBEWF i) 151 — — — 151
Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors:

Yap Fat Suan, Henry B 156 — — — 156
Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, &/ 3 ,GBS,BBS,JP

BBS, JP 156 — — — 156
Shang Li (Note vi) W) 163 — — — 163
Huang Jian B 163 — - - 163
Total B 802 8,408 2,121 668 11,999
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46.

366

DIRECTORS’

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

It represents amortisation of the fair value of shares
award under the Scheme (Note 38) measured at the
grant date and charged to the profit or loss over the
reporting period.

Mr. Niu Wenhui, the Chief Finance Officer, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 23 January 2017.

Mr. Gao Fuchun resigned as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 9 February 2017.

Mr. Wu Shaohua was appointed as an non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 9 February
2017 and resigned with effect from 28 February 2019.

Mr. Yang Zhifeng resigned as an executive director and
the Co-Vice Chairperson of the Board of the Company
with effect from 1 November 2017.

Dr. Shang Li has re-designate from independent non-
executive director to an executive director of the
Company with effect from 2 January 2018.

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 2 January 2018.

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS,BBS,JP resigned as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 4 June 2018.

Mr. Zhang Zhong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 4 June 2018.

Save as those emoluments presented above, no other fees

or emoluments were paid, have been or will be paid to the

independent non-executive directors in respect of the current
year (2017: nil).

46. ESRITHARFM(E)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Bk XA 5 ¥R 2 B2 b -

RERZEL B8 2B E s
RE T (M EE38) TREIKO AR E
Bt AERE MR BERRAEE -

20171 A23HE  BERVBEFX
PR RTAARNITES -

201752988 2a8&LEBT
RRBZIERITES -

20172 A0H  RBELLEES
FARNRBERITES - RN2019%F2
A28 HEHT -

201711 A1B 8 - 155 & % & B
FARANITEEREESHERE
& BRFTERMNBARZES -
MEHELER2018F1 B2H BB IE
WITEBERATIHNTES -

HZERiE+TR20185F 1 A2 BEMER
NEVBIYLIFRITES ©

&R 318+ ,GBS,BBS,JPH 20184 6 A
4ABBIARBBY IERMITES -

RELAEN2018F6 HAB BT AR
AIBMIEHITES ©

ZNC S e R T

Hus e oS e FBL
JEHITEE (2017 + 48) ©
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46. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 46. EERTHEAREMZ)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The executive directors’ remuneration shown FiiETESE 2N AESIE AR DT
above was for their services in connection with the REBFBERZREEI o FiiIEHITE
management of the affairs of the Company and the EVRMAEEARNANTIEES 2 RBH
Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments B o FatBSIIEEITES 2R AEE
shown above were for their services as directors of the BRNTEEZ RIS -
Company. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
During the current and prior years, no directors of the RNEMUABIEE - KRBEBEEERE
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments, HEBRETMBH - BARD T RAAN
and no emoluments were paid to the directors of the NRESS AR ESE MASED
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining BINARNER 7 #iBs/EABEEEE -
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
47. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. €@ T EEH
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of B-REHERES BT AR
financial instruments at the end of each reporting EEEOT :
period are as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss BEAREEAER 139,269 34,280
Financial assets at amortised cost RERKAFTECEME 2,379,803 —
Available-for-sale financial assets RN ESHE — 4,726
Loans and receivables (including cash EXMEWZIE(BFERE R
and cash equivalents) RE&EEHEE) — 3,265,688
Financial liabilities SRMEE
At amortised cost LR AGTE SRBE 12,747,497 9,406,659
Derivative financial instruments MESBAaRE 10,169 —
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48.

368

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of
financial risks. The management periodically analyses
and reviews measures to manage its exposure to
market risk (including foreign currency risk , interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding its risk management and has not
used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging

purposes.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s major financial
instruments include trade and bill receivables, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and current account balances with associates and
joint ventures, cash and cash equivalents, restricted
deposits, trade and bill payables, payables for
construction in progress, other payables and accruals,
bank borrowings, other borrowings, senior notes and
bonds payable, and convertible loan. Details of these

financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

48.

Bt % LB E 2R

AEBEAZERMGEAR - EEEEH
D MRETEEEERTSRAR(ERE
SRR HERERAREBENXME
) EERREABEESRRZTE
Mo —MmME  AEEERRERR
HRSTRES - WA ANMERERNITETA
A T AEEIPAE -

R2018F 128318 A& E 2 & @
TAXZRRERESIEREEE 1%
& REMBWGIE - AR EBEFAR
mZeMEE/AFE - B EMNBE
NAEFIE - B ENEEDENRE
U/ ENEECEZER  ReE kB
S EEHEE  XRHGFER - EHESR
R - HAFER 5RIE R ERTRE
RITER - HiIRK - EEREMNE
5 nHEHBRER - e@MIAZABFHR
FEREM T4 5% -
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48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign
exchange risk arises from monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies.

The Group operates mainly in the PRC, the
United States of America and Hong Kong.
Majority of revenue and cost of goods
sold and operations are denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”). Almost all of the
revenue and costs are denominated in
the group entities’ respective functional

currencies.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily with respect to the change
of exchange rate of United States dollars
("US$"”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is pegged with US$, against RMB,
which is the functional currency of most
of the Group’s operating entities. As at
31 December 2018, recognised assets
or liabilities that are denominated in a
currency that is not the entities’ functional
currency include cash and cash equivalents
(Note 27) , bank borrowings (Note 31),
senior notes (Note 33) and convertible loan
(Note 34).

48. MABRER (&)

(a)

W5 E R

(i)

SME B

SNERBREERTIAEZAR
BEIARKBSRESHE
KB IK B < R - SMNE
RmsEHECERERE
REBBEESE -

AEBETEAEPEARKM
CRXBERBFELE X2
WABRBEEY R FERAR
AARBE - EFHAEW
ARKAZEEEER 2

BEEHETE -

REBIINERBEZHEZE T
MBETHAREBAEARF
ZEEEY - DARBZE
KEEER - EEITTEM o
HZE2018F12A31H B
BRUIINESHEZEENE
B ARASEEINGEEEET
EZEREReRREEEE
B (K sE27) « R 1718 5K (H
31 BREE(E33)
MBI E R (HFE34) -
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370

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (CONTINUED)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in
RMB to US$/HK$ exchange rates (“RMB —
US$/HKS™),
constant, of the Group’s profit after tax

with all other variables held

due to changes in the carrying value of

monetary assets and liabilities.

48. MABRER (&)

(a)

in profit after tax

miSER(E)

(i)

S E B ()

TREBRNMEMR - ER
FEEMEHEE I E &
REBREENABZIREE
BEEE  EHAKEREF
HHARBREEL BT
EX(TAR®E — E/ 8
TTNEEEBBEEZESH ZH

2018 2017
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in profit after tax

BigeFmEEm . BEMEENS
OR2) O )
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB — US$/HK$ ARMESET, B
Appreciation of RMB by ~ AR¥FES%
5% 78,875 142
Depreciation of RMB by AR E5%
5% (78,875) (142)

Cashflow and fair value interest rate

risk

Cashflow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk
is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate as it is issued at

fixed interest rates.

(i) REZREBRAAEEFER

-4

RenENERBRASRT
ARKBRSREFSENESHN
RFEPMBEB2EE - DR
BEMNXERATRTAE
18 31785 B M R e M
[
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

48. MABRER (&)

(a) Market risk (CONTINUED) (a) WHRKE)
(ii) Cashflow and fair value interest rate (i) BELRERAAEEFEE
risk (CONTINUED) B(E)

The Group’s cashflow interest rate risk
arises from bank balances, loans to joint
ventures and bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cashflow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by bank balances held at
variable rates.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s bank balances
and interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a floating interest rate. The effective
interest rates and terms of repayment of
the interest-bearing bank borrowings of
the Group are disclosed in Note 31. No
sensitivity analysis has been presented for
the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances as the directors of the Company
considers that, taking into account that
the fluctuation in interest rates on bank
balances is minimal, the impact of profit or
loss both for the current and prior years is
insignificant.

The following analysis demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates for floating rate bank
borrowings, with all other variables held
constant.

AEBERSRMERRERKA
RITHE - TREDLEZE
RMRITHER - REBE T
FHNERT2ERAEERS
MM EREE - AJREE ZF
B RIRITERER AR (D 1K 5K -

AEBEHTHE M XEFHER
TERAEEMNRITE

AERTEERFBNNEE
e ME3TRBEAEEG
BRITEFNERMNERE
ARG - ARAREERE
RE - RITEHNEEH A
R B AFEREGENTZE
TR B2 B HIRITHERR
M RETEREME D o

TRANER T ELMFTE
BURKTEZERT - #
E ESIEFSS LET L)
G HHT -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (CONTINUED)

(ii) Cashflow and fair value interest rate
risk (CONTINUED)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2017: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit after tax for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have decreased/
increased by RMB32,909,000 (2017:
RMB14,069,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year.

As at 31 December 2018, The Group is
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to financial assets at FVTPL and
fixed-rate bank borrowings. No sensitivity
analysis has been presented as the directors
of the Company consider that the impact
to profit or loss for both the current and

prior years is insignificant.

372

48. MABRER (&)

(a)

miSRAE(E)

(ii)

BEHER AR BERER
()

HHEEFTRESOEES
(2017 : SOMEEEL) - MATA
HMBEHHTE  AAE
B & 12018412 A31H 1t
FEZBERF RS 14
A R % RMB32,909,000 7T
(2017 + A R ¥ 14,069,000
JT) °

fm il £t SRR D ATEE - R
RESHRREEZERT
ARNBEFENRER

201812 831H A&
EEEIEAEALBETA
BmzerEE 2 EEFE
RITIERT R 2R BEF
AR - ARREERBZ
EREAFER - FBREES

T A RETHERE
A -



2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTPL (2017: held-for-trading
investments and available-for-sale financial
assets). The Group invested in certain
unquoted equity securities for investees
operating in renewable energy industry
sector for long term strategic purposes
which are stated at FVTPL (2017: available-
for-sale financial assets stated at cost less
impairment). The Group monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk

exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented
as the directors of the Company consider
that the impact on profit or loss for the
current year is insignificant, taking into
account that (i) the carrying amount of
the investments is insignificant; and (ii)
the impact to profit or loss is not material
based on a reasonably possible change in
fair value of 10%.

48.

MHERERE(E)
(a) WEERE)

(i) EEREmE

AEBMAREEIEUAAEBE
AFERHEZHTAEHESR
MR EFEHFQ2017: FAE
ERB/EMA &S B
BE)NBREMBBRRAE
R - A5 B E K2 B
ZERZED D I BERR
TEZIELTHEZEES
EURAABEFTEEES

FAEEE(2017 ¢ BARK AR
FRES Rz AT E 2R
BE)VR - AEEETER
R\ B - 1 5% B R ki 2 30
AAEEBE RENESHRK
%o

HRARNRESZED ()%
EREZEEHRER) B
(I ERAREBE10% KHEE
B EE) - H A (EAEE R
BT ETEXN REE
HmEERRERNFEHERN
FET/N - B RS GURM
DITHEITIIR °
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

374

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash reserves and banking facilities deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows and match maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. In
addition to the currently available facilities,
management expects that further banking
facilities will be available by pledging those
newly completed power plant equipment.

The table below analyses the financial
liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity
groups based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest

rate at the end of the reporting period.

48.

MERER(E)

(b) FBELAR
ERRBEARE - AEBREED
BRAXSHRERASERIYL
HEETE  UARARTLE

BIER SR BEDHY S

TimeeMEERABENIHE
ko BREMAMZBEESN  EEE
HIS R B E AT e B
NESBEINNRITEREE -

TRETAEEBZEITEERE
& RRAEEI AR - BEHE
EBEXRESRIIEA 2 FEREM
HEITD - ERABBESEEERN
AEERERZFTEFRABMAED
KPR ERBERE - ZRE
EFEMASIH SR o LRFER
RFENE - AIRAIR SR B W
EHRZFIE o



2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

48. MABRER (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (b) REBELEAKE)

As at 31 December 2018 7A2018%F 12 831H

Weighted On
average demand
effective or less Total Total
interest than 6to0 12 1to2 Over2 undiscounted  carrying
rate 6 months months years years  cashflows amount
iETH it
ERAZE  OR6ER  6128R 126 2f0E  RERER REEAE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABRTE  ARETT ARBTL  AREFZ  ARRTT  ARETZ
Trade and bill payables  EREZEHRER - 656,059 2,099 204,109 137,542 999,809 999,809
Payables for construction in AB B 2/t -
progress, other payables  EfERFAR
and accruals fEitE — 1,379,583 70,074 467,933 894,813 2,812,403 2,812,403
Amounts duetojoint  EFNALLEHE
ventures - 19,837 - - - 19,837 19,837
Amounts due to associates EFEL D RIZUE - 234 - - - 234 234
Senior notes and bonds ~ [EFELZENES
payable 6.5%-8.3% 266,619 61,389 215609 1,426,859 1970476 1,662,681
Convertible loan AHARET 10.2% 2,049 2,103 4152 262550 270854 190,65
Bank borrowings FER 2.7%-6.9% 507,349 304,067 538,743 4,087,037 543719 4,371,622
Other borrowings AR 50%6.1% 130194 131961 285204 303595 3583403 2,690,255
2,961,924 571,693 1715840 9,844,755 15,094,212 12,747,497
Financial quarantee IRERGR
contracts 16,126 - - - 16,126 -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 48. BIEREBEE(£Z)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (b) FEBELRAKE)
As at 31 December 2017 H2017%E 12 A31H
Weighted On
average demand
effective or less Total Total
interest than 6012 Tt02 Over 2 undiscounted carrying
rate 6 months months years years  cashilows amount
T it
EEAE  JRefA 6-12{2 A 128 VENE RenBE  KEELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT  AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT  ARETX
Trade and bil payables ~ ENEZETNEE — 1259236 - 43,500 31651 1,644387 1,644,387
Payables for construction in AB B 2 At -
progress, other payables  EfERFAR
and accruals R — 1301530 — 405031 247002 1953563 1,953,563
Amounts duetojoint  EFNALLEIE
ventures — 8,363 — — — 8,363 8,363
Amounts due to associates ETEES A RFUR - 3,502 - - - 3,502 3,502
Bonds payable Eft% 6.5%-7.2% 12,940 7070 219570 107170 346850 299,324
Bank borrowings BRER 2.7%-1.0% 420,381 302,556 512,142 4147850 5382929 4,088,845
Other borrowings Htfezt 5.0%-5.9% 49,430 58235 154002 1609065 1870732 1,408,675
3,055,382 367,961 1334245 6452738 11,210,326 9,406,659
Financial quarantee BB ERAR
contracts 21,958 - - - 21958 -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Liquidity risk (CONTINUED)

The amounts included above of variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimate
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the
likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’'s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties or debtors provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and the amount of
financial guarantees provided by the Group
as disclosed in Note 43.

48. MABRER (&)

(b)

(c)

RBESER(E)

LAIFEITESRBERNENETA
L &R A ER R R R AR
EREZMERGEECEHERY

o
=

PRERERANTREZSER
BRTREBERER  2RBER
R TAREREREREE 2 &
RERE - ERMEHROER - &
KERBREBEZLFBE AT
ERMNZEE - A &GRS
BAERE  BORRAHNTRERR
ZEREANGHNIFAZEERE
B AR B S5 IR R 2 BIEE
A -

1= R B B R B FT 14

(i) EERERREBEFE

HZE2018F12A31H &
SEBERZEFHEBAR
BEEITE TR AEE KL
REMEAE &N EERR
(BEHRAEBELETHE
BIRBEFEVBRARLS
JIEEHMREMEECIEE
BEL  ARWE43HEES
EERBEMBERcEE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

378

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks

associated with its financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk primarily
attributable to its trade and other
receivables, contract assets and amounts
due from associates and joint ventures
which is arose during the course of
The

Group has policies in place to review the

the Group’s business operations.

recoverability of these receivables on an
ongoing basis and assess the adequacy of
provision for impairment.

For trade receivables, the management of
the Group limit credit risk by assessing the
credit quality of the customers, perform
ongoing credit evaluation taking into
account its financial position, past trade
experience and other factors. The Group’s
trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required.
The credit period is generally 30 to 180
days. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group has concentration of credit
risk because trade receivables from its top
five customers accounted for 44% (2017:
47%) of the Group’s trade receivables as
at 31 December 2018.

48.

MREBERE)
() FRARRBEBERNMEGE)

(i)

EEmER B EE ()

M2018F 12 A31H » K&
BT BT R EMm
ERER  URmAEHESE
BEMENERRRE -

AEBEEERRIZRRRN
BHMEMERR - ARE

EUREREBEBELD
REELBEARNNAEE

KIEWIA - AEHEFIET
BE - UBEBREELRI
FE) AT = - I RY (A RE

BB -

HEKEBESERME A%
l%@ﬁaﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬂ
mERGEERR  &FH
%%#ﬁ~@&%%@%&
HMAZETHEEET
He AEBEEFZRFPIK
HEFEERE BHEPR
Sh BEBERAMNR B
A H — M AB308180K -
BREEFHME —EAxAEH

BE -SEEERBREY

A & & 22018412 A 31
H RIAEEFP2EKES
HEEEERE RN 44%
(2017: 47%) °
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. BIEREBEE(£Z)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (0 ERRBERESGE)
(CONTINUED)
(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1EHEER#EFE

For the amounts due from associates and
joint ventures, financial positions of the
associates and joint ventures are regularly
monitored in order to minimise the credit
risk associated with receivables due from
associates and joint ventures.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017:

on trade balances and other debtors

incurred loss model)

individually. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’'s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

EERNBNMEELRZE
NEeB|MmE - EHEERE
RAEIMA SRR ZBBR
S DARR K IR JEE 3 R (K B g
M"TTDAé{m%FWM
HEZEER

RNEBHBE ¥R E N EWEE
T VARG 3 6 DA RS A R

i 12 I 72 /N K AR o BERE
TEERE XA BAEREE o b o
REBRERBAVBRE
ERAIBIRHEBHES =
R EMEREREERE
BELAER(2017 : B4
BRER) TEITRER M °

Hilh - ARAREERR/EE
Bz ERARE KERD
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

In relation to contract assets of tariff
adjustment receivables, the directors
of the Company perform impairment
assessment on a periodic basis. Based
on the assessment, the directors of the
Company concluded that the probability
of defaults of the relevant counterparties
are insignificant after considering the past
repayment history, no bad debt experiences
with the state grid companies in the past,
existing market conditions, as well as
forward looking information. In addition,
as detailed in Note 4, the directors of the
Company are confident that all of the
Group’s operating power plants (including
power plants operated by the Group’s joint
ventures and associates) are able to be
registered in the Catalogue in due course
and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy
are fully recoverable but only subject to
timing of allocation of funds from the PRC
government. Accordingly, no allowance
for credit losses is provided for contract
assets of tariff adjustment receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2018. For
the remaining contract assets, the Group
determines that they have low risk of
default.

The credit risks of the Group’s bank
balances are limited because these balances
are placed with reputable financial
institutions.

The credit risks on financial guarantee
provided by the Group and finance lease
receivables are limited as the counterparties
have no default in the past and the
management of the Group does not expect
any loss arising from non-performance by

these counterparties.
380

48. MABRER (&)

(c)

ERER KRB (E)
(i) 1EAmER B EFE(E)

AKAREEREEFHEREIK
RIBEZAREETEB#ETR
B - BEBEFHER =
BEEBERZEHFRETER
E - BHBBESEHERAE
TRE%KR  WESRE
TG EE RAEEEA - K
RAEES LGSR ~5E
FredsEmeiiisR
BERBRBENRIKE 2
BEROWEEEEE 2K
MABE HEE@mIE
FT U a8 ZE AR P B RS HE R
BreimE - B2 WE - A
It - REERREZE2018F
12AMBLFEEBHAE
FBURFZEREERRER
BAHE - AEBR AT
EREEZEHNRABEIE -

REBRTT R FRNE
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DEERBRBER -

AEBEREZ S BEREE
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BENBAREEEIEEEY
TERETMARS T KE
TERBMEIE B -



2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading

assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit  Description
rating

ABERASR i

48. MABRER (&)

(o) FRARRBEBERNMEGE)

AEBABERRERD RFEERE

AT 487
Trade receivables, Other financial assets/
contract assets and other items

finance lease receivables
RN AREEN HtteREE HtER
BMEREEKR

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

iNEl RHUFZEHRRRE REEMAH
Eixec)

Doubtful There have been significant increases

in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed internally

or external resources

Rk * BYRHER A

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

% FREBRPEERETERRA

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

1 FRBRPEEAGFERENRRE A

SERBRERENAE AR -

Lifetime ECL — not credit-  12-month ECL
impaired

EEFENAESERE NEARBEREX
K — ABEERRE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-  Lifetime ECL — not credit-

impaired impaired

REFENNERERE EREFEHABBERERX-
K — RBEERRE FHERRE

Lifetime ECL — credit Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired impaired
BEGESNESRERE B2EGESANEDEREX
X—BECHRE — BAEERRME
Amount is written off Amount is written off
SEELH SEEHHE
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. BIEREBEE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (0 EARBRBETGE)

(CONTINUED)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures TERHEMNE T AEEN S HEE
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject Mz ARBM O @ ELLmE k< TEH
to ECL assessment: EREXFHENTE

Internal Credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount

EIEEREN NREARREFENRAEARL REELHE

RMB’000 RMB‘000

ARKFR ARKFR

Financial assets at
amortised costs

REBRATECEREE
Trade receivables (Note 23)  Low risk (Note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 549,895
B S (Hiit23) B2 @) BEFEBNERERER(REE
ERRE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 52,609
R BEAFEHARACRER(REE
ERRE)
Loss Credit-impaired 11,906 614,410
VS ERRE
Other receivables (Note 24)  Low risk 12-month ECL 267,076
EthRYGR (it 24) {ERR 12EARERERER
Loss Credit-impaired 18,494 285,570
Bx ERRE
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

48. MABRER (&)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (0 EARBRBETGE)

(CONTINUED)

Internal Credit rating

12-month or lifetime ECL

Gross carrying amount

A AR REAREFEREAERARX REEAH
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT
Amounts due from associates
(Note 19)
JEME S A RIFIB (ML 19)
— trade nature Low risk (Note (a) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 1,425
—BEFUE (&R (7 (a) BREFESANERERER(REE
ERRE)
— non-trade nature Low risk 12-month ECL 18,524
—FEHUE (B 1R2EAREHERES
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 964 20,913
PN REFESANERERBR(REE
ERAE)
Amounts due from
Joint Ventures (Note 20)
e B OETIBEMH20)
— trade nature Low risk (Note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 31,210
—BH1E ERR A2 @) BEFEBNERERER(REE
ERRE)
— non-trade nature Low risk 12-month ECL 27,901
—¥EHUE il REARBEEREX
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 1,939 61,050
*E REFEENERERERCREE
ERRE)
Cash and cash equivalents  Low risk 12-month ECL 1,353,613
(Note 27)
BeRkReSEEN(MH27) EER REARBBEREX
Restricted deposits (Note 27)  Low risk 12-month ECL 12,692
REEER Mzt 27) Ve REARBBEREX
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48.

384

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

48.

MHERERE(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EARBEBETMEE)
(CONTINUED)
Internal Credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
S AR NEARRAFESEAEREAX REELR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TT

Other items

HitER

Finance lease Low risk (Note (a) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 61,955

receivable (Note 25)
BERE ERE (W @E) BEFESNEREREL
TR IR (M 25) (REEERAE)
Contract assets Low risk (Note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 987,484
(Note 22)
BREEWZ22) BRRMEG) BEGTERANEREREL
(REEERAE)
Financial guarantee Low risk 12-month ECL 16,126
contracts (Note 43)
(Note (b))
HBERER EER NEARESREREX
(Bizt43) K1zt b))

Notes: Bt -

(@)  For trade receivables (including trade-related (a) HRESHEUREF(BEALD
amounts due from joint ventures and associates), ML AR EKE SRIE) -
finance lease receivables and contract assets, FEHERWEFMEREE -
the Group has applied the simplified approach AEBRBBEBYBEREENSE
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 95 2 L ARG ERET
lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected BHANTER(ERIBR 2B EE
credit losses on these items on an individual & o NEBIRERSREBEEETE
balance basis. IEE 2 EEEEERK -

(b)  For financial guarantee contracts, the gross (b) HREIBEERER  REAEEE

carrying amount represents the maximum
amount that Group has guaranteed under the

relevant contract.

REEEREARARBERZ &
REH -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 48. BIEREBEE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c)
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group provided RMB11,906,000 and RMB5,537,000
impairment allowance for trade receivables and other
receivables, respectively, were made on credit impaired
debtors.

The Group writes off a receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the trade receivables are over two years past

due, whichever occurs earlier.

The following tables shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach:

ERER KRB (E)

Hist - (%)

H E2018F12A31B L F E - K
EEHFNHBEEAZBZEBA - 5T
BT RIWE S RANE MU ZORE
A AR 11,906,000 7T M1 A R ¥
5,537,000 T AR o

BEEERPEBARRBREZMEK
MER mERKEA SR - REBER
B - Pl EBAERNEE
HOEABRERN - HEREFAH
BAMER  ARPELEERME -

THRER T HREBERR 2
W 55 S R N T A
GELE2 TR

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
BEFEHA BEFERN
EHEAB EHEREX
(REHERAE) (BEERAE) @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANEEFT AREFT
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 8318
under HKAS 39 and as at REEHGHENEIIR
1 January 2018 under RR2018%F 1 A1 HRE
HKFRS 9 BREMBREENE IR — 9,592 9,592
Impairment losses recognised  7220184E1 B 1 B K 2 Al
attributable to financial AZeBIA AR
instruments recognised DERIEEES
as at 1 January 2018 — 11,906 11,906
Write-off 1% — (9,592) (9,592)
As at 31 December 2018 201812 A31H — 11,906 11,906
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

The changes in the loss allowance for trade
receivables are mainly due to debtors with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of
RMB11,906,000 defaulted as at 31 December
2018.

The following tables shows reconciliation of loss
allowance that has been recognised for other

receivables.

48. MABRER (&)

(c)

EREBRIR B (E)

MR2018F 1283180 fE W &
SERBABECEZHEER
REFEERSBEOARE
11,906,000 JT °

KB Z IR -

Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL (credit-impaired) Total
BEFEHN
12EAR EHEREX
EHEAB (BEERRE) @i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ANEEFT ANEETIT AREFIT
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318
under HKAS 39 and as at 1 BREEEEHEEE39% R
January 2018 under HKFRS 9 R 2018 1 A1 AR
BEMBRELERE IR - 19,386 19,386
Impairment losses recognised 122018 % 1 A1 B R 2 BT
attributable to financial LEBIACAHRERE
instruments recognised as at
1 January 2018 — 5,537 5,537
Write-off 2 — (6,429) (6,429)
Asat 31 December 2018 #2018 12318 — 18,494 18,494

386



2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.

49,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

The changes in the loss allowance for other
receivables are mainly due to debtors with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of
RMBS5,537,000 defaulted.

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum
amount that the Group has guaranteed under
the relevant contract was RMB16,126,000
as at 31 December 2018. At the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company
have performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
the financial guarantee contracts. Details of the
financial guarantee contracts are set out in Note
43.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities. Some of the Group’s financial
instruments are measured at fair value for financial

reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data of the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group determines
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements and works closely with the
qualified values to establish the appropriate valuation

technigues and inputs to the model.

48.

49.

MRREBERE)
(o) FERARBRMBERNMEGE)

HiEWERBAR Bz EH TR
AR R RARSEENARY
5,537,000 7T ©

BRSRERAL  HE2018F
12A31BZFE  AEERIEHE
BHRERZEASERARE
16,126,000 7T ° & = & H XK -
RAREECEITRETHILS T
HEREBEVEERZEREREY
VAR - 1= AR B 18 R B A2 K18 3
o @BMERENFRMEL3 -

5t 7 LBy E 7R

AMENAT EEBNAEITEEBE
ENEMAGsAREE BoEEZ
CRMTAEMBRS T ARAEBER

£ -°

AEBERBAEGSZMGERZAIBE
REMTAAEE MRELESE—
BREAE AREBBBEE 2HE
B ABEETRAARENE - L@
BERBERZELETEE ZAER
iM% AME °
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49.

388

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis.

The following table gives information about

how the fair values of these financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined.

49.

TRMIAZAABEESREREET

E

R EE D

EBEFE X TRED T NAHEE S
MEEMESBRABENAA

Fair value hierarchy

MHERERE(E)

PTEMEEMEMABUARS
zlt:

AN

JL
N
S

BEZE

AREEER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£1 EY) Z3[E M@t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
At 31 December 2018 2018%F 12 A31H

Financial assets at FVTPL ?E&;“M B ABR 2R

Unlisted equity securities *EMRE(ME ()

(Note (a)) — — 8,545 8,545
Bill receivables (Note (b)) eSS Wird()) — 130,724 — 130,724
Financial liabilities SRARE
Derivative financial liabilities ~ fT£ 4R EE

(Note (c)) (Hiat(c) — — 10,169 10,169
As at 31 December 2017 20179124318
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBETABRZEH
Listed equity securities ispliES

(Note (d) (Hit(d) 34,280 — — 34,280

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, and there

were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both

years.

B Z=20184F 12 A31 HA2017 12 A 31
AZFEES1IERS2ERESE &

EM T

RBEAREHEIE -
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49.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) The fair value of the unlisted equity securities is
determined using valuation technique such as income
approach. In this approach, the discounted cash flow
method was used to capture the present value of
the expected future economic benefits to be derived
from the ownership of these investees, based on an
appropriate discount rate. The significant unobservable
inputs included long-term growth rates, taking into
account management’s experience and knowledge
of market conditions of the specific industries, and
discount rate, taking into account of weighted average
cost of capital of the investees. A slight increase in the
long-term revenue growth rate used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
the equity securities, and vice versa.

(b) Due to the short-term nature of the bill receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered approximate to
their fair value.

() The derivative financial liabilities represent derivative
component in relation to the convertible loan issued by
the Group. Binomial option pricing model was used to
determine the fair value. The key assumptions include
the Company’s share price, volatility of the Company’s
share prices, discount rate and dividend yield, inputs
such as volatility is deducted from the quoted price of
the relevant convertible loan. The higher the volatility,
the higher the fair value. The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

(d)  The fair value of listed equity securities is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

49.

BRREER(Z
ERMIBCZAAEBERISEEEET
B(#&)
iz

FLETERZAABEBBRBEA
ESHERMTUEE - ZHET
RBERZARE  KARSREN
BEMSREWIB AN AR AR
AREENGZ 2 BE  ZERNTAE
A NERERMERXR(ZRIERE
BzEm R AEITEMISBRZE
BOMAREX(ZEIHRREFTEARZ
INREFIGRLA) - BIBE AR BMA
BRE PR R ER RS TR
FARBEFFEBEZEN  RZIFA -

HREREERZEHNN HRESHE
BREURERREIE -

MTEERBBEEARAEERTZTER

EFEHZTETA - —IHAHHEE
ﬁTﬁ%ﬂﬁJEﬁﬁ?ﬁE’&ﬁﬁﬁ BE2REK
BREARABOERE  ARFAREZK
Pl TREEREX - RBUESH
NEREARB BB ERZ 5 HE
Tk TREEE AR BEEYS
1K -

EAREZAABERREZHREH
RZBRETSEREE
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mE

49.

390

B 5 R R M
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 49, BIEREBREE(EZ)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value of financial instruments that are SRITEZAABEREEEEETS
measured at fair value on a recurring basis 2(5E)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement E3ELAABFTEZHE
Derivative
Unlisted equity component of
securities convertible loan
TERERZ
FLETRE TEBD
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT AREFT
Balance as at 1 January 2017  R2017%F 118K
and 31 December 2017 2017412 A 31 B&%%E
Adjustment upon application  RIEHBYIERELRFEH 2
of HKFRS 9* R~ 4,775 —
As at 1 January 2018 7201841 A1 H(ZFiu)
(as restated) 4,775
Issue of convertible loan AR E K — 19,430
Capital injection during REFAER
the year 2,230 —
Fair value changes DR EEE 1,540 (11,307)
Exchange differences (R E — 2,046
Balance as at 720184 12 A 31 A&4%E
31 December 2018 8,545 10,169

* The fair value of the equity securities as at 1 January
2018 is measured with the same valuation techniques
and key inputs as at 31 December 2018.

Fair value of financial instruments that are not

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position, together with the
interest accruals, approximate their respective fair

values at the end of the reporting period.

* R2018F1A1H BEUEBTEZA
REERABEEBERENR2018F
12 A31 Bz BRE AETE -

HEEMUAAEEFTEBZEHMTRAZ
AAEE

RRABEERR  AFBBARRERR A
BHRRAGTEZEREEMAEZIRE
BE ZREFHE  BREHREE
Z R EERU -
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50. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. EAXFEEEIE

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total capital. Total borrowings represented
bank borrowings plus other borrowings, senior notes
and bonds payable, and convertible loan. Total capital
is calculated as total equity plus total borrowings.

The Group’s total borrowings and total capital
positions as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as

follows:

AEEEAEEZTEARR/RELAE
BB ERN  FERBKER
B R E R R KEY & 2 B8 MR
BRAERARGHE  HESKRRE
B AE AN s AR & & R ek o

AEEBEEWTERRENEEEENGE
B NERAEREFUKERSMES
ZERBREHRERFERNRRER L
BEMRE2H 2V WIRREEE
EIENEERNERBIELAE

REBIAEARE % RS ERERE

o It b 2 i {5 SR A BERR LA B A R RERT
e B4R %Eﬁyfﬁfﬂﬁ?kﬂl]tﬁ@

R EBNEBEZBMESFIAERE
BB B SRR INE AR

N

T

o

moY mE BB
i
LT

EE my

R2018F K 2017F 12 A31H » A&H
ERBBRERBBEARTOT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#¥FT AREFT

Total borrowings BB EE 8,915,214 5,796,844
Total equity B 5,546,739 5,255,146
Total capital BR4BEE 14,461,953 11,051,990
Gearing ratio BEXRBEEE 62% 52%
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FREMBHRRMEE
51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 51. ZIX’AE]ZEZI’;]’%%)‘R%
COMPANY
At 31 December 2018 A 2018512 A31H
2018 2017
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
it AR¥FT AREFT
Assets: EE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N GIENGIPE 3o 1,587,763 1,481,972
Amounts due from subsidiaries f&U&ff B A 7B 1,362,310 —
Deposits e 586 559
2,950,659 1,482,531
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from joint JEIN A D HEFRIE
ventures 140 134
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 78,414 31,328
Financial assets at fair value IEA R EEET ABZE
through profit or loss LEREE — 24,386
78,554 55,848
Total assets EEHATE 3,029,213 1,538,379
Liabilities: =L o
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Bank borrowings EE 7,404 7,063
Senior notes BEZE 1,363,253 —
Convertible loan AlERRE R 200,825 —
1,571,482 7,063
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals — H b B} 5018 [ fE 5+ 5008 63,094 2,824
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FERI B A T FRIE 21,702 76,315
84,796 79,139
Total liabilities BERAE 1,656,278 86,202
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (6,242) (23,291)
Net assets EEFE 1,372,935 1,452,177
Equity e
Share capital [N 74,049 75,164
Reserves (Note (a)) (B (@) 1,298,886 1,377,013
Total equity AR 1,372,935 1,452,177

392




2018 ANNUAL REPORT
CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

51. AATRZHMBEMRRETE)

Note (a):  Reserve movements of the company Kiat(a) - ANABEEEE
Contributed
Share  Treasury Surplus Other Accumulated
premium Share (note (i) reserves losses Total
LN
kiaE EER (W)  BERE  RHEB a5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETT  AEETT ARETT AREFT  AREFT  ARET1
Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017E1818 449,816 (6,947) 2,359,063 97,781  (1329492) 1,570,221
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AEEBIENEMAE

for the year B - - - — (102,165 (102,165)
Share-based compensation R BEE 3 - - - 3,152 - 3,152
Vesting of shares under share award ~ BIR (3 2 58

scheme (842) — — (7,292) — (8,134)
2016 final dividends 0165ERE - - - — (4758 (74759)
Repurchase of ordinary shares LaREE 57

(Note 37) — (11,784) — — — (11,784)
Cancellation of treasury shares HEERR (18,250) 18,731 — - - 481
Balance at 31 December 2017 R20175128318 430,724 — 2,359,003 93,641 (1,506,415 1,377,013
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ AEERATEMEE

the year Yagg - - - - 46,751 46,751
Share-based compensation MR BEE 3 - - - 545 - 545
Vesting of shares under share award ~ ZBYR(7 258

scheme (745) - - (7,389) - (8,134)
2017 final dividend WITEERS - - - - (154 (13154)
Repurchase of ordinary shares ERREEMWL57)

(Note 37) - (45,250) - - - (45,250)
Cancellation of treasury shares HEERR (33,780) 34,895 1,115
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018E12 5318 396,199 (10,355) 2,359,063 86,797 (1,532,818) 1,298,886
Note: Kzt -

(i) The Company's contributed surplus brought forward

represented the excess of the fair value of the shares

of the former holding company acquired pursuant

to the group reorganisation in prior years, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange thereof.

(i) ZARFREELZHARBIERIEAR
FEEESAERSGZREZERARBN
ZRARE BHEARRHERRBELT
2Ry Z E{EZ &R ©
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52.

394

SUBSIDIARIES

52.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal
value of

o) PN

R20184F K2017F 128318 £ &
MEAR ZFMEMMT

operations issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
and kind of legal registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
SRR
EEWHR BTEER/
A% TEERER dAfRkEzEE ERREERERILE TEXK
Direct  Indirect
E# Gk
Century Concord Wind Power The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd company RMB3,100,000,000
HEREREBRAF mE - ARAA TMERARE RERK
3,100,000,000 7t
Haotai New Energy Equipment  The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Sales of Solar power
Ltd company RMB500,000,000 equipmentand
new energy
equipment
ERAEEREBARLRA hE - ARAA AMERARE INGER G
500,000,000 7 REHE
Concord Power Consulting & The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 70%  Power system design,
Design (Beijing) Corp., Ltd. company RMB50,000,000 research and
exploitation
FEENTIRR(LR)RI hE - AR AMERAR RERG R HE
BRAR 50,000,000 7 RFE
Beijing Century Concord The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 90% Wind power plant
Operation and Maintenance company RMB20,000,000 operation and
Co., Ltd. maintenance
tRHaBgRERMARRA T8 FRAF AMERARY BERGETRER
20,000,0007T
Yongren Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant

Power Co., Ltd.

KEHEAGEEEARLT

company

HE - ARAR

RMB86,690,000

EERARE
86,690,000 7T

investment and
operation

G EmEE R
Ziﬁ
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52.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

52.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal
value of

MEAE (&)

R20184F K2017F 128318 £ &
B AR ZFMERNT (&)

operations issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
and kind of legal registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
AL R
EXBER BRTEER/
A% TRERER dAfRkEzEE ARAEERERSL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
Ef# LS
Naidong Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 146,150,000 investment and
operation
DRHBERGHEERR AT mE - ARAA AMERARE KEEEHRER
146,150,000 7T &1
Pingyuanxian Century Concord  The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Solar Power Co., Ltd company RMB74,380,000 investment and
operation
TREGAAGRETARAR  HE ARAA AMERARE AGEERRER
74,380,000 7T EfT
Eryuan Century Concord Solar The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB48,000,000 investment and
operation
HEBAEAGEEERAF hE - ARDAE AMERARY ARG EBRRER
48,000,000 &1
Huaping Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB97,860,000 investment and
operation
ENHARGRETAERAA mE - ARAF AMERARE AGEEERMRE R
97,860,0007T E1T
Yongzhou Dongtian Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant

Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.

AMREBEENEZTERAF

company

hE - ARAR

RMB83,176,000

s ERARE
83,176,000 7C

investment and
operation
REBERE RETT
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52. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 52. MiBRAT(#&)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

R20184F K2017F 128318 £ &
B AR ZFMERNT (&)

396

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal
value of

Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.

company

RMB133,920,000

operations issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
and kind of legal registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
AL R
EXBER BRTEER/
A% TRERER dAfRkEzEE ARAEERERSL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
Ef# LS
Fuchuan Century Concord Wind ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd company RMB 140,500,000 investment and
operation
BlHeRNBEEERAA mE - ARAA AMERARE RERRE RET
140,500,000 7T
Yongzhou Jiepai Century Concord The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company RMB1,826,834,000 investment and
operation
MNREHEENEERERAR  HE ARAF At ERARE BERKRE RETT
1,826,834,000 7T
Huize Century Concord Wind The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB87,150,000 investment and
operation
LERERNEEEFR AR hE - ARDA AMERARY R E R & RET
87,150,000 7T
Lingbao Century Concord Wind ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB75,000,000 investment and
operation
BEHaRNEERERAA HE - ARAAF AMERARE RERMRE RETT
75,000,0007T
Yongzhou Qiaotoupu Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant

investment and
operation
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52.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

52.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal
value of

MEAE (&)

R20184F K2017F 128318 £ &
B AR ZFMERNT (&)

operations issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
and kind of legal registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
AL R
EXBER BRTEER/
A% TRERER dAfRkEzEE ARAEERERSL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
Ef# LS
KMNBERBHAENETFERAA RE - ARAF HMERARE BERIRE RETT
133,920,0007T
Wuhe Century Concord Yinmahu The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 136,540,000 investment and
operation
TABERERRNEE hE - BRAA A ERARE REHRE LETT
BRAAF 136,540,000 7T
Suzhou Deren Wind Power Co.,  The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Ltd. company RMB93,220,000 investment and
operation
EMNECRNEERRAA e ARAA AMERARE REMRE RETT
93,220,0007T
Nanzhao Century Concord Wind ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 180,000,000 investment and
operation
HABERENEEERAF hE - BRAA AMERARE RERRE LETT
180,000,000 7T
Huize Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
company RMB87,870,000 investment and
operation
CERCANEEFRAA R - BRAR AMAERARE REBRE RET
87,870,0007T
Tianjin Green Energy International The PRC, sino-foreign  Registered capital of — 100% Equipment Lease

Leasing Co., Ltd.

Equity joint venture

AEAFHRERBEARAR  PE PIRELE

RMB1,000,000,000
HfEAARE
1,000,000,000 70

operation
RBHEE
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PN B
52. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 52. MEAR(E)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, particulars of the 20184 &2017%12 83180 £ &
principal subsidiaries are as follows: (CONTINUED) MEBARZFHMERNT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal
registration and value of
operations issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
and kind of legal registered share attributable to
Name entity capital the Company Principal activities
BRI AV <3 11)
EEBER BRTLER
£1 EEBRESR AfRAZEE APREERERS L TEER
Direct  Indirect
Ef# LS
Wuhe Juhe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
company RMB70,000,000 investment and
operation
TIRERNEERRAR mE - ARAA AMERARE RESRERES
70,000,000 7T
Tianchang Juhe Wind Power The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. company RMB77,000,000 investment and
operation
AEREEANEEERAA e ARAR A ERARE AESRAERES
77,000,0007T
Jingmen Shengjingshan Wind The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB97,100,000 investment and
operation
HMERLRNEEER AR hE - ARDA AMERARY RERRERES
97,100,000 7T
Yongzhou Hongtang Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.  company RMB80,000,000 investment and
operation
KNHERARNEERRAR B ARAA AMERARE RESRERES
80,000,000 7T
The table above lists the subsidiaries of the Company NEREEIN TESRBEAFTERE
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, EEREAENASEEEFEEEZS
principally affected the results for the year or formed 2 M B R F - #1E20184 12 A 31
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. B AEEFE2EMB AR 2 IFZEHIE
As at 31 December 2018, there was no non-wholly- BREERTE o

owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests.
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53.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 13 December 2018, the Company entered into
a convertible loan agreement with Goldman Sachs
Asia Strategic Pte. Ltd. (“Goldman Sachs”), pursuant
to which Goldman Sachs agreed to lend to the
Company convertible loan with a principal amount
of US$30,000,000, and the Company granted to
Goldman Sachs the option and the right to advance
an additional loan of up to an aggregate principal
amount of US$20,000,000.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on
16 January 2019, the Company and Goldman Sachs
agreed to make certain amendments regarding the
option and disbursement conditions of the additional
US$20,000,000 convertible loan.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
13 December 2018 and 16 January 2019 for further
details of the above convertible loan.

53.

HERKER

20184 12 A13 B + ZNAF]EE Goldman
Sachs Asia Strategic Pte. Ltd.
([Goldman Sachs ) 5T 3 AJ 2 3% B 5 15
% © ¥ Goldman Sachs #§ AN A A]
f& 130,000,000 €T 2 AR E T - A
B - ANA A\ Goldman Sachs #% i 12
HERAER - 451tk Goldman Sachs # AR
R AR B 20,000,000 E 7T 2 58N
X

HEHLERE - R2019F 181608 -
7K A @) B Goldman Sachs#t A B8 % &
20,000,000 E TTREINE R ZRER) ~ BEHR
et R B ET -

BALMAIRBRERZESFHIE B2
B AR AR2018F 12 A13H & 2019
F1A16HBMHZRE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEMBEHRE
RESULTS E4
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 31 31 31 31
December December December December December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 F 20174 20164 20154 20144
12A31H 12H31H 12HA31H 12H31H 12HA31H
IEFEE WFE IFFE IEFE WEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT ANRETFT AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Revenue and other W A K E At A
income 1,444,748 1,079,560 1,834,355 3,509,721 2,832,669
Profit for the year ZIN/NEIETFE DN
attributable to owners  E{L T
of the Company 502,406 200,036 457,815 408,090 241,463
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - BfERER
As at As at As at As at As at
31 31 31 31 31
December December December December December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
M2018F 20178 20165 20154  HR20144F
12A31H 12H31H 12HA31H 12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT ANRETFT AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Total assets BERRE 18,412,808 14,807,138 14,339,349 12,081,060 8,511,979
Total liabilities BfE®RE (12,866,069) (9,551,992) (9,113,599) (7,259,155) (3,971,542)
Net assets BEFE 5,546,739 5,255,146 5,225,750 4,821,905 4,540,437
Equity attributable IN/NCIEZ Z DN
to owners of the FE(L =S
Company 5,518,228 5,157,796 5,070,277 4,721,109 4,460,488
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